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MEM-001

IN THE JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE

CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDINGORGANS OF STATE

AFFIDAVIT

I, the undersigned,

MATHULWANE EMILY MPSHE

do hereby make the following statements under oath:

1. 1 am the Acting General Manager: Human Capital (HR) at South African Express

Airways, Kempton Park, Johannesburg.

2. The facts to which | depose are true and correct and are within my personal

knowledge except where it is apparent from the context that they are not.

3. | have been requested by the Commission of Inquiry into State Capture, Corruption
and Fraud in the public sector, including organs of state, to assist on their

investigations. My contribution wili relate to my period at the South African Airways

SOC limited ("SAA").




Qualifications and employment history with SAA~

MEM-002

4. My qualifications are as follows:

5.

Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management, Warwick UK;

BComm Unisa, =~

Associate Banking Diploma Institute of Bankers of South Africa,

Licentiate Banking Diploma institute of Bankers of South Africa.

| have extensive experience in leading and transforming human capital as a general
manager, executive and executive director. This experience spans over 18 years in
large global organisations across industries including and not limited to banking, retail

and airline.

| am a Professional Consciousness Coach, supporting individuals and executives by
co-creating achievement of goals through self-discovery thus empowering them to be

the grandest versions of themselves.

| am a non-executive directof"f.c;;ﬁeimé;diriefSA.and Fleld ,Band_F_ouﬁaatiaﬁ:"which.are__
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8. | served as a council member of the University of Zululand for seven years and
Chairperson of the Board for Kids Haven, a home for street children in Benoni, for
seven years. | was a member of the South African delegation on the Trust Reflect and
Telt {TRT) experience in Hamburg and remained a member and President elect before

TRT's dissolution. The main objective of TRT was to advocate for peace and

reconciliation.

9. | was employed at SAA from September 2010 to March 2018 as the General Manager:
Human Resource (GM-HR). I was then requested to be Acting Chief Executive Officer

(ACEQ) from Juiy 2015 to 13 November 2015, before returning to my HR position at

SAA.
My appointment as Acting CEO in mid-2015

10. Around the end of July 2015, | was appointed to act in the Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ) position, following the return of Mr Nico Bezuidenhout to Mango Airlines
(Mango), a subsidiary of SAA. Nico was the CEQO of Mango at the time, but was
appointed Acting CEO for SAA by Ms Dudu Myeni. A meeting had been called by Mr

Tony Dixon, a member of the SAA board of directors (Board). The meseting was with

the SAA Executive Committee (EXCO).

11. Mr Bezuidenhout was not at this meeting, but Mr Dixon informed us that he had met
with Mr Bezuidenhout and he then informed us that the Chairperson of the Board, Ms

Dudu Myeni (The Chair) had requested that Mr Bezuidenhout return to his role as the

CEO of Mango, and that | be appointed as the acting CEO.
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12. | was taken aback by what Mr_Dixon had said. This was due to the fact that the board
had decided to take Mr Bezuidenhout out of the position as the acting CEO, and aiso
that they thought to approach me to be the acting CEQ, and that they did not even

discuss it with me before this meeting.

13. At first | refused, but upon persuasion by my colleagues and discussions with family, |

decided to accept the offer.

14. | acted in this position until 13 November 2015 before being instructed to return to my
permanent position of General Manager, HR. This was following the appointment of
Mr Musa Zwane as the Acting CEQ. Officially, when | was sent back, | was informed
that the ACEO’s post would become and be dealt with on a “rotational” basis to allow
transfer of skills to other SAA personnel (Annexure TM1). In my opinion, this was
merely a way to remove me from the post, because Mr Musa Zwane acted from 14
November 2015, to October 2017. There was no further rotation in that period, till the

current CEO, Mr Vuyani Jarana, was appointed on 1 November 2017.

Chairperson’s interference in the daily operations

15. In my personal experiences of the Chairperson’s interferences, | first dealt with such
interference around 2015. The Chair (Ms Myeni) issued an instruction that certain
persons should be appointed in certain positions, and disciplinary action needed to be
taken against some executives of SAA. These instructions were over time. Some of

the instructions were verbal and others were written, such as-in emails.

v
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Instruction to appoint Captain Mpho Mamashela into the position of Chief Operations

Officer

16. During March 2015, SAA had started the process to implement section 189 of the
Labour Reiations Act (LRA), Act 66 of 1995 (Section 189 deais with the retrenchment

process). SAA had to reduce the head count. Consultations with the unions had been

initiated.

17. During these processes, the Chair issued another instruction that Captain Mpho
Mamashela be appointed in the position of the Chief Operations Officer. This position
was not provided for in the new approved SAA organisational structure. The Chair
mentioned that Mr Bezuidenhout met with Captain Mamashela in Mauritius and Mr
Bezuidenhout allegedly informed the Chairperson that Captain Mamashela would be
suited to the COO position. When | had a discussion with Mr Bezuidenhout in this
regard, he denied that this was the case. He said they had social discussions in

Mauritius over drinks after hours, and no commitments were made to take the matter

further.

18. Due to the fact that i considered the instruction unlawful in terms of policies and
procedures, ! refused to make this appointment and asked the Chair to first amend
and approve the organisational structure and issue the said instruction in writing.

Captain Mamashela was ultimately not appointed and the structure was not amended.

6 K
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Instruction to appoint Captain_Eric Manentsa. into. the position of Head of Flight

Operations

19.

20.

21.

22.

N

A further example of this is when an instruction was issued by the Chair, that Captain
Eric Manentsa should be appointed in the position of the Head of Flight Operations.
The subject of the appointment was introduced by Ms. Yakhe Kwinana (Ms Kwinana),
a board member and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee (ARC). This matter was
discussed in various Remuneration Committee (Remco) meetings. Ms. Kwinana
stated that Captain Manentsa had complained that his role as Chief Pilot (CP) was

ceremonial, and he needed to be appointed into the Head of Flight Operations role.

Present at this meeting were the Company Secretary, Ruth Kibuuka, the HoD
Employee Relations, Mr Lourens Erasmus, the Deputy Company Secretary Ms
Mabana Makhake, Ms Kwinana, Ms Myeni and Dr. Tambi (also a board member and

chair of Remco).

This matter was raised by Ms Kwinana following a discussion she had with Captain
Manentsa whilst they were seated together on a flight to East London. This was not a
formal complaint as it did not follow protocol and due process. Secondly, this was an
operational matter, where Ms Kwinana raised it without the proper mandate, and

outside of the realm of non-executive board member’s functions.

| was concerned that transparency, policy and procedure would be flouted in the
manner Ms Kwinana addressed the issue. At the-Remco meeting held on 9 July 2015
and on the 18" of August 2015 | then advised that the appointment of Captain

Manentsa into the position of Head of Flight Ops needed to follow due processes
6
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23.

24,

25.

26.

27.
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(Annexure “TM2”). | advised that combining the positions of Chief Pilot and Head of

Flight Operations was an anomaly.

The roles of Chief Pilot and of Head of Flight Operations had originally been
advertised and Captain Manentsa was appointed as Chief Pilot through due

processes. Captain Sandy Bayne was appointed as Head of Flight Operations, also

after following due processes.

Despite the above being explained, which was also supported by a submission to the
Remco Chair. Ms Myeni said they stood by their decision to appoint Captain Manentsa

as the Chief Pilot and Head of Flight Operations.

The Chair interjected and made it a racial issue, indicating that there was resistance to
appoint Captain Manentsa in that position because he is black. Historically, the roles
were separated and the company has reverted to the old structure. Furthermore, the

separation of the roles is a requirement of SACAA and Best Practice in the aviation

industry.

| then attempted a different angle to try explain and referenced more specifically the
policy | was referring to. I informed the Chair that according to the flight operations
manual, aligned to the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA) requirements, the role of Chief

Pilot and that of Head of Flight Operations needed to be kept separate (Annexure

TM3).

The Chair responded by saying “/ don’t care what you say, you will combine the

roles”. On this instruction | then initiated a request to CAA and the Department of

L;@RW
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transport, informing them of the board’s instructiom to tombine the two roles (DoT -

Annexure “TM4”).

28. This was actually an operational matter falling within the ambit of the CEQ and the
GM: Operations. After the roles were combined, Captain Manentsa was then
appointed in the position of Acting Head of Flight Ops, whilst still holding the position
as CP. No due processes were followed as it was an instruction from the board. As
time went on Captain Manentsa was allegedly not coping with the combined roles. He
allegedly stated that he never said he had wanted the combined position of CP and
Acting Head: Flight Ops, and he tendered his resignation for the post of Acting Head

of Flight Ops. He remained in his position as CP at that stage, and has since also

resigned as CP.

Instruction to appoint Mr. Kendy Phohileli

29. Mr. Kendy Phohleli {(Mr. Phohleli), was appointed during October 2013 as interim GM:
Commercial to SAA on a short-term contract to assist Mr. Monwabisi Kalawe, whose
position was CEO at the time. Then Mr Sylvain Bosc was permanently appointed in
the position as GM: Commercial, and Mr Phohleli's contract ended as Interim GM
Commercial. He was then appointed on a fixed term contract, to work on Special

Projects in Africa, under the GM: Commercial's Department.

30. It appeared Mr. Phohleli was very close to the Chair. Part of the reasons for stating
this is due to his contract often being extended so often. His contract ended and was
renewed on a further six (6) occasions (submission Annexure “TM5"). His position for

Africa expansion was also not included in the new organisational structure, as it was a
8



31.

32.

33.
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special project. This meant that it would have been creating an_ expectation of
continuous employment. It was at this point that the Chair got upset and issued an
instruction that Mr. Phohleli be appointed in the Commercial Division. The GM:
Commercial, Mr Bosc, declined to appoint Mr Phohieli; as there was no vacancy and

the position was not in the approved structure.

Ms Nivy Moodley, from SAA: Human Resources (HR), wrote a letter of termination of
contract to Mr. Phohleli. In the letter, he was encouraged to apply for permanent posts
that were being advertised. | know there were posts he applied for, as he had emailed

me, but he was not successful as he indicated in his email. The copy the email is

attached hereto as (Annexure TME).

On 28 and 29 September 2015, the Chair scheduled a board and Executive
Committee (Exco) meeting, which was held at the Intercontinental hotel at OR Tambo
International Airport (ORTIA), Johannesburg. During the meeting, my colleague, Ms
Moodley, was instructed to write a letter of appointment to Mr. Phohieli for the position
of Manager, in the Office of the Chairperson. This was transformed into an alleged
Board resolution according to an email from the Company Secretary (Annexure T™M7),
to appoint Mr Phohieli. The Board resolution, was later queried and chaillenged as

invalid, (Annexure TM8 & TMS9) since it did not satisfy all the requirements for a valid

board meeting.

Then, during October 2015, the Chair established a committee for Africa strategy. She
appointed Mr. Phohieli to be a member of this committee, even though he was no
longer an employee of SAA and he was not remunerated in any way. He should not

have been part of the committee, as it was for SAA employees and was highly

e £
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irregular. Amongst members of the committee | recall Captain Mamashela, Captain
Manentsa and Tebogo Tsimane, amongst others. There were no formal appointments

to the Commitiee.
Cancellation of LSG Sky Chefs’ contract

34. The history where this contract emanated, was due to various reasons. In short, there
had been an upgrade to the premium domestic and international lounges at ORTIA,
which was done to lure premium clientele, but the lounge had previously been
serviced on contract with Airchefs, a subsidiary of SAA. Airchefs had not been
providing a high standard of service, and there were numerous complaints by
customers. The upgrade of the lounge had been approached in partnership with a
private company, namely Investec. Investec thus also expected value for their money,
and a high level of quality and service, as a value add to their premium clients. As a
result, a new tender was formulated inviting all relevant catering companies to tender

for the lounge’s services, in which Airchefs also tendered.

35. During August 2015, LSG Sky Chefs were the most responsive bidder to be awarded
a catering contract after following the due procurement processes. The due processes
atso would have included LSG Sky chefs BEBEE status in the form of a certificate.
The amount was for an estimated R85 818 793.66, for a 3-year period. Purely out of
courtesy, and not any form of policy or instruction followed, | wrote a submission to the
Board and Chair on 20 August 2015, informing her to note the history, background of
events leading up to the procurement, evaluation and eventual award of contract

(Annexure TM10). | did not receive any response from the Chair, or the board. Due

)

10



36.

37.

38.

MEM-011

processes continued, and LSG Sky chefs were given a Letter of Award on 21 August

2015.

On 1 September 2015, the day before we were due to present to Parliament, the chajr
emailed me, informing me to hold the award of the LSG Sky chefs contract, This had
already been awarded. | cannot say | saw this email on 1 September 2015, as | did not
respond to it. On 2 September, | was with the Chair, as were various SAA board and
management of SAA. We were presenting SAA’s strategy to Parliament. The Chair
then had to answer Parliament’s guestions about the same appointment of LSG Sky
Chefs. She was not prepared for questioning, and the members of parliament
questioned her in such a way, that she could not provide answers. We as SAA

management tried to respond where we could {Annexure TM11 )

After the Parliamentary session was complete, the Chair appeared very angry
regarding this matter. Whilst we were awaiting transport outside Parliament, she

questioned me. She questioned why Airchefs were not awarded, saying, “Are you

telling me Black people cannot cook?”

I then received the email on 3 September 2015 from the chair, when [ returned to the
office. | responded to the chair, informing her that the tender, which had been initiated
in 2014, had followed due processes, and legitimately been awarded. | asked whether
she required a further submission to be made available, highlighting the legal,
reputational and business continuity risks presented by the suggested holding and/or

possible cancellation of the award.

| £
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39. She then emailed me back, now with input from Ms Kwinana also querying me, and
accusing me of treason! On the emall, dated 9 September 2015, Ms Myeni requested
the detailed processes in the tender, the decision process for award, and also included

why Air Chefs was disqualified (Annexure TM12).

40. | then received an email from the chair, dated 9 September 2015, where she stated
“The Board does not want to interfere with due process which belongs and is better
managed by the executive”. In the same email where she indicates to follow due
processes, she proceeds to interfere with due processes as can be seen from the
email contents (Annexure TM 13). | followed up her email with correspondence and a
legal opinion, which was obtained together with input from the CPO. [t appeared all
was legal and had followed due processes, and was within my delegation of authority,
which is what | tried to explain. | further advised the Chair about the risks of cancelling
this contract, as advised by the legal opinion from Ms Ursula Fikelepi, which was
attached to my email (Annexure TM14), of the SAA Legal department. By the mere
fact that | queried the Chair's instruction, the Chair was upset. She arranged a board
resolution (Annexure TM15), at the same meseting of 28 and 29 September 2015,
where the LSG Sky chefs contract was cancelled, and awarded to Airchefs, who had

not even made the shortlist. This was subsequently executed.

41. In her anger over me mentioning that the award was within my Delegation of Authority
(DOA), and as a result, she also reduced my delegation of authority for approvals and
that of EXCO members, by half. This was also through a board resoiution on 28
September 2015. This is contained in the email (Annexure TM16), and was also

gueried by email by some of the EXCO members (Annexure TM17).

12
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42. Air Chefs is a fully owned subsidiary of SAA. Airchefs was thus reinstated at the
OTRIA lounges when they opened. The quality of services and food did not improve.
Within days of opening, we received feedback of compliments on the décor, but

complaints about the quality of the food (Annexure TM18).

Ad-hoc forensic investigations and forensic investigations for uiterior purposes

43. The use of forensic investigations and their appointment appeared to be utilised, in

some instances, as a tool in attempts to discredit and possibly bring disciplinary action

against some SAA employees.

44. There were various forensic investigations that were initiated around these times. The
sources of the forensic investigations were more frequent via the SAA board. The
appointment of service providers in most of these instances was directly by the board,
and it was directly to a specific forensic firm, some of which were not on the SAA’s
appointed panel. The reasons for forensic investigations included sources such as
whistle blower reports, or reasons the board put forth. In some instances, it appears
some of the matters to be investigated were also “cross cutting” in the 'sense of some
of the issues being investigated, or persons being investigated in more than one of the
forensic investigations. To my knowledge, the following companies were appointed to

conduct forensic investigations on SAA executives:

ENS
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45| deal with the ENS investigations I'm aware of below,
451 The first entailed an investigation regarding Mr Nico Bezuidenhout (Mr,
Bezuidenhout), who was the Acting CEO at SAA before me, on allegations that he was

favouring Mango on certain contracts with SAA, at the expense of SAA.

452 Mr Wolf Meyer (Mr. Meyer), the then CFO, was then investigated regarding a

recording device he allegedly had in a meeting.

45.3 Mr Sylvain Bosc {Mr. Bosc), the SAA Chief Commercial Officer was accused

through a whistle blower report (this will be elaborated on later).

46. Mr. Bosc was put on disciplinary process and was found not guilty on all counts.

47. According to Mr. Bosc, regardless of the findings of the disciplinary process, Mr Musa

Zwane allegedly refused to reinstate Mr Bosc. Mr Zwane apparently said that the Chair

did not approve his reinstatement.

48. ENS apparently did several investigations. In the investigation regarding Mr Bosc, there
was initially a request to add the investigation as an addendum to another ENS
appointment. | refused, as in line with correspondence from Mr Siyakhula Vilakazi: SAA
Chief Audit Executive, indicating that not only was the request invalid, but the
appointment in whole, of ENS, was invalid (Annexure TM19). In Ms Kwinaha's email,
she alluded to ENS having done seven (7) similar assignments approved by the board
(Annexure TM20). | further note in Mr Vilakazi's correspondence, he states that ENS

was on the legal panel, but not on the forensic investigation panel.

14
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* Boqgqwana Burns

49. Their appointment for an investigation was regarding Mr Nico Bezuidenhout and Mr Wolf

Meyer, which related to the same matter that was investigated by ENS above.

50. In relation to my affidavit in general, and the Bogwana Burns investigation, | have been
shown copies of applicable documentation by investigators, some of which, | no longer

had record of, or had never seen. In relation to Bogwana Burns.

91. | was emailed a Letter of Engagement (LoE) on 1 September 2015. The LoE was from
Bogwana Burns (BB), dated 21 August 2015, which was emailed from Ms Kwinana's
secretary. | see the email, dated 28 August 2015, originated from the private email
address of Mr Luvo Makasi (the LoE has Luvo Makasi as the author from BB), to Ms
Yakhe Kwinana's email address. The LoE, providing for my acceptance signature, and
the covering email, are attached as per Annexure TM21. | had no previous knowledge

of this matter and did not sign this. | was not sure what procurement process was

followed.

52. [ was then instructed via Ms Kwinana’ s further email on 1 September 2015 that this was
approved by the board and to obtain the board resolution from Ms Kibuuka, the
Company Secretary (Annexure TM22). | now see from emails, that Ms Kwinana had
already emailed the same letter to Ms Kibuuka (Annexure TM23). Ms Kwinana had also

sent the letter to the board members (Annexure TM24).

53. | made enquiries with the Chief Procurement Officer, Dr Dahwa, as well as Mr Siyakhutla

Vilakazi, Chief Audit Executive and Ms Fikile Thabethe, Head of Legal and Risk, to
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establish whether they were aware of this appointment. They responded indicating that
they were not aware that BB had been awarded a contract to conduct a forensic
investigation. BB was not on the panel of Forensic Investigation or for Legal matters. |
informed Ms Kwinana that BB was not on cur SAA approved panel, and advised her to

follow the due processes.

54. There was email communication back and forth, up to 30 September 2015. The essence
of it was that there did not appear to be any formal process followed to appointment BB.
| see in the emails that the Company Secretary refers to a “draft” board resolution
attached in an email to me, dated 4 September 2015, but | do not have it. | am
suspecting that since Ms Kwinana forwarded the email headed “Draft letter for your
consideration”, the Company Secretary, she may have forwarded the same letter to me,
as | see the subject line is still the same, but with the “FW" (standing for forwarded)

prefix. | do not have the “draft” resolution, nor do | think there was ever cne.

57. On 7 September 2015, Ms Kwinana and Dr John Tambi (alsc a board member) were
waiting for me at my office. Ms Kwinana led the discussion, where she accused me of
not being a team player. She said that | was always “second guessing” the board’s
decisions by sharing the decisions with other EXCO, and not merely complying with the
instructions. They made it clear that my mandate comes from the board and | must

comply with the board instructions.

58. 1 then responded by informing them that ! had clear guidelines and a responsibility to
adhere to company policies, guidelines, legislation, and even shareholder MoU’s. | could

not act outside the parameters set for clean governance at SAA.

16
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89.1 also, at the same time, queried Ms Kwinana on the appointment of BB that | had

received from her. She explained that this appointment was an emergency.

59. As a result, if it was an emergency, a condonement could be approved, which had to
follow due processes and be approved by the CEO. This was never brought to me as

ACEQ for approval, and | would not have approved it anyway.

60. Ms Kwinana responded via email on 8 September 2015 with reference to the mesting
the day before. She also indicated that there were further Service providers that had also
been irregularly appointed by the SAA board, even inciuding ones she ‘may not be

aware of.” | then informed the Company Secretary accordingly.

61. Ms Kwinana then asked me, via email, on 11 September 2015, to obtain a legal opinion
on whether the appointment was not a deviation. | received the legal opinions on 30
September 2015, it also advised condonement, as it appeared as if the Service provider
had apparently already been engaged. All the emails referred to above are recorded in a

trailing email as attached per (Annexure TM25). | cannot recall whether the telecom

referred to in the emails materialised or not.

62. 1 have also seen a copy the same LoE, which | had not signed, which is now signed by
Ms Kwinana (Annexure TM26), and dated 4 September 2015. This is highly irregular, as
board members do not play an operational role in SAA activities. There was also at
some stage a query whether BB had signed a Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) with
SAA, which is protocol. They had not, but did sign one thereafter (Annexure 27). | see
the NDA is also signed by Ms Kwinana, also highly irregular of a board member. (NDA's

are supposed to be signed by two SAA officials. | have also perused the board resolution

ol ¢
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(Annexure TM28), and have seen that it was apparently resolved on 26 August 2015, to
appoint Luvo Makhasi of Bogwana Burns. The resolution states it was authorised for the

investigation of the Mango Airlines CEO emanating from the whistle blower report, and

the allegations against SAA CFO.

63. | see there was an email query on 12 QOctober 2015, from Mr Nick Linnell, requesting a
copy of a resolution appointing “Luvo” assuming this is Mr Makhasi from BB. | see the

resolution was sent to him, presuming it being the same resolution discussed above,

dated 13 October 2015 (Annexure TM 29).

64. On 7 November 2015, Mr Meyer sent an email to me (Annexure TM30), which was
copied to the board, Mr S Vilakazi, the SAA Chief Audit Executive, Dr Dahwa, the SAA
CPO, and the Company Secretary. He informed me that BB had approached him,
regarding Whistle Blower allegations and secret recordings.” He also alluded to the fact,

as | had, that there were no proper procurement processes, and no Non-Disclosure

Agreement (NDA).
Emst & Young

65. Around mid-2015, Emst & Young (EY) conducted investigations which were aimed at Mr
Meyer and Mr Bezuidenhout. Through the brief to EY, which came from the board

members, EY were given a scope to investigate over spending with Service providers,

that the board had approved.

66. These investigations had been implemented through Ms Kwinana as ARC chair.

According to feedback we received from Ms Kwinana, the investigation by EY on SAAT
18
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had indicated that they were very little transgressions in their findings, All she said
regarding the SAA financial investigation, was that EY outlined inadequacies in control
mechanisms. | requested a copy of the forensic report to implement any corrective

measures, but | have still, to date, never seen any of these reports.

Whistle blower reports

67. Whilst being on suspension in 2016, | received a call from an organisation known as
Organisation Undoing Tax Abuse (OUTA). They informed me that Ms. Kwinana had
approached OUTA, to confess that she and Ms. Myeni had on several occasions gone to
the internet café in Blue Valley, situated close to Ms. Kwinana's residence in Midrand, to
make informant submissions regarding the SAA’'s whistle blowing service. | have been
shown a transcript of the interview with Ms Kwinana and OUTA personnel as per

Annexure TM31. In summary, this is in line with what | was told. Mr Wayne Duvenhage,

from OUTA wili have full details.

68.1 have also reviewed the source documents for the whistle blower report dated 4
September 2015, and associated emails for the Mr Bosc matter (Annexure TM32). | am
of the opinion that this matter originated from Ms Kwinana. The reason for my opinion is
that Ms Kwinana alludes to this report being as a result of a “walk in” complaint. | fail to
see how anybody can “walk in" to SAA, If it was from an SAA employee, they would
have been aware of the channels available and the anocnymous call centre number

available for complaints. Ms Kwinana, as a board member, should not have dealt with

R%J\ £
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69. It is also my opinion that Ms Myeni and Ms Kwinana were utilising the whistle blower
forum as a tool to try dismiss SAA employees they disliked, or employees that were
against their instructions on what they wanted to achieve at SAA. Alternately, they would
use the means to implement an investigation against an employee, so-as to divert their

attention on work matters, in order to achieve their objectives within SAA.

State Security Agency matters with SAA

70. In February 2015, Mr Bosc, as GM Commercial, had visited Dakar, Senegal for official
work. It is alleged that he approached Senegalese government officials without following
protocol, which he relayed had been a misunderstanding and misconception, based on
prior engagements by the then SAA CEOQ, Mr Monwabisi Kalawe. The matter was deait
with internally, and with the Shareholder, and relevant role players, including the

Department of International Relations and Cooperation (DIRCO}).

71. The matter has previously been dealt with by then ACEO Mr Bezuidenhout. | am not

aware of any prior interaction with the SSA.

72. Following the whistle blower report above, made on Mr Bose, one of the allegations of
the above mentioned report, at paragraph 2, states: “Sylvain Bosch faifed to disclose his
relationship with General Sales Agency (GSA) that is operating in West Africa (Dakar) as
this coniract was awarded and affected local 24 Senegalese employees of SAA who are
now without jobs. Their jobs ended on 29 April 2015. He hired a GSA which replaced

these employees. He is a current shareholder of this GSA."
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Out of the blue, i then received a call from Mr Vincent Mnguni from the State Security
Agency (SSA). He informed me that they were conducting an investigation into the

closure of the Dakar route, in Senegal. | then requested him to put any request through

official channels and in writing.

! have seen an email that was forwarded to Mr Mnguni on 14 October 2015 (Annexure
TM33) from SAA’s Mr Matome Ramokgobedi, Manager: Network Planning: Commercial.
The information forwarded to Mr Mnguni is confidential information. It is relating to the
SAA route to Abu Dhabi. | cannot see a reason why this was done and cannct comment
further, but to say that it also entails correspondence with Mr Bosc and Mr Barry
Parsons. It appears that due protocol processes for the release of information to third
parties was not followed. Mr. Mokgobedi was a Junior Manager at SAA Commercial

department. He should not have corresponded with SSA directly.

Later, as a result of the request in writing from SSA, | obtained a letter dated 22 October
2015 signed by MV Dlodlo, for the Director General (DG) of SSA (Annexure TM34)
stated that they had an investigation opened regarding the allegations of fraud or
corruption against SAA officials. They requested investigation reports on aliegations

against SAA officials, including Mr Sylvain Bosc, and the Senegal Manager Mr Claude

Sabre,

As a result, | requested SAA legal department to assist in"a response through Mr-Leon
Action. The response was formulated, which | signed and it was dispatched {Annexure
TM35). In essence, the response included that there was an internal investigation done
and due processes in any recommendations would be followed. And due to it being an

SAA matter, being addressed, if there were any further requirements, then contact SAA
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legal. It was also suggested to SSA that the requirements were regards allegations

against SAA officials, but that the SAA investigation did not have any bearing on Mr

Bosc.

| have perused the trail of emails {Annexure TM36). | know that SSA were still not
satisfied with the response they received. In addressing the matter, | also guided the
response by suggesting and delegating that a response be sent to SSA to follow due
protocol. SSA would make a request to the Depariment of International Relations and
Cooperation (DIRCO), who would then forward the request to out shareholder, the

Minister of finance and proper channels would be followed. This is entrenched in the

emails.

As a result, Mr Lourens Erasmus, Head: Employee Relations, was tasked in formulating
the response. | signed the response after being drafted, and it was then dispatched on 9

December 2015 by email (Annexure TM37).

| have seen an email to the chair dated 14 January 2016 (Annexure TM38), from Mr
Funokwakhe Madlala of the SSA, indicating that they had not received any response
since the letter dated 12 November 2015. Ms Myeni then requested a copy of the report
on 17 January 2016. Firstly, this was not true, as can be seen from the email above, it
was emailed on 9 December 2015, so there was further correspondence after 12
November 2015. Secondly, SSA still did not foliow the suggested protocol as suggested
in the correspondence. They had no right to now approach the board on an operational
matter, needless to say, the chair was alsc supposed fo have emailed them back to

indicate as such. | do not know what transpired, as | went back to my role in HR.
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80. This was one of the allegations of misconduct levelled against me, that | had brought

81.

82.

83.

84.

SAA into disrepute by failing to provide SSA with their requested information. The notice

of the alleged misconduct was served on 19 January 2015.

Whilst still dealing with this query, there was another email and instruction from the chair
on 21 October 2015, requesting Executives and support staff to comply with being vetted
by SSA (Annexure TM39). in her letter, she informs that she had a letter from the
Minister of State Security, Mr David Mahlobo. | have been shown this letter, dated 13

October 2015, stamped by the Minister of Finance’s office on 15 October 2015

(Annexure TM40).

| forwarded the email with the instruction to request that each GM and subsidiary CEO’s
to comply with the request. The vetting was suggested for management only (to level 2).
| myself was not comfortable with what was going on. There was a clear interference
from SSA regarding the Dakar matter and the inclusion of Mr Bosc somehow. | see there
may possibly been some information ieaked to SSA by SAA staff, and in hind sight, now

I see there may be collusion to use SSA to oust identified SAA staff including Mr Bosc.

I ' was also not comfortable at the time, as there had been a ‘high level threat” to my
safety that | was made aware of around the same time by the SAA security department.
Now SSA wanted all our personal details and | did not feel safe in providing all this
information. | did not know what the reason for security vetting was. This was a general
query from SSA staff. Many SAA staff had been there for years and never been
requested to be vetted. It was also not a prerequisite when applying for posts, or in their

letter of appointment. I did not fill out the forms myself for these reasons.

| also recall that we were requested to attend a presentation by SSA in the SAA

auditorium, with SSA, which | attended. In their presentation, | used the example of the
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case above, requesting everything in writing and following protocol. The SSA staff

informed us this was a perfect exampie and responded to appropriately.

85. | am not sure if it was coincidence, but this was the same day that | was called to collect
my suspension notice on 19 January 2016. One of the allegations levelled against me

was that | had failed to provide information to SSA officials.
Disciplinary Matters of Executive Members of SAA

86. In a meeting, where | cannot recall the date, the Chair surprisingly showered praises on
me and then asked me to discipline Mr Wolf Meyer, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO),
based on the above mentioned ENS’s report findings, and the legal opinion which
recommended that Mr Meyer be disciplined. The Chair alleged there had been a
breakdown in trust after Mr Meyer was allegedly was found with a recording device pen
in one of the meetings with board members. | requested the Chair for both the ENS
report, and the legal opinion. Her instruction had been in writing, and my response had
been by email (Annexure TM41). | attempted to obtain the investigation report and legal

opinion to initiate the request, but to no avail, as can be seen in my email dated 9

November 2015.

87. | later received a telephone call from Mr. Nick Linnell, who was the private legal advisor
to the chair. He queried me and instructed me o discipline Mr. Meyer. He chastised me,
telling me | was incompetent and that | did not know what | was doing. He stated that |
could not differentiate the roles between “that of the CEO from that of a board.” | had not
received the forensic report or legal opinion, as requested, by that time. The call was

facilitated by the company secretary's office, as the Chair only trusted her. After a
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lengthy cail with Mr Linnell, and to my surprise, in my discussions later in the day with
the company secretary, she told me how Mr Linnell had said to her “SAA needs more
people like Thuli but, tough luck | work for Dudu”. Ms Ruth Kibuuka will have

reference to this statement made to her. This was after my requests for the investigation

report, which | had still not received.

30% BBBEE set-aside

88. Around February 2015, in his State of the Nation address, the then President, Mr JG
Zuma, had introduced the Black industrialists Scheme and 30% set aside as a new

intervention to promote the participation of black entrepreneurs in manufacturing.

89. There were subsequent transformation drives, in attempts to equip potential suppliers to
SAA in the form of presentations, which was rolled out across South Africa. As part of
this, SAA also signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Deputy Minister
of the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI) on the implementation of the Black

Industrialists programme (Annexure TM42). This was signed by the chair, but should

have been signed by Exco.

90. As Acting CEO in 2015, the Chair asked me to prepare a presentation on transformation
for a presentation to Umkhonto weSizwe (MK) Veterans. The presentation at the SAA
board room, which was presented by the SAA Transformation Manager, Mr Thapelo
Lehasa, and was attended by the Chair, Ms Kwinana, various SAA Exco members, Mr
Des van Rooyen), Mr Kebby Maphatsoe, (Deputy Minister: MK Veterans) and two ladies
from MK Veterans (whose names | cannot recall). The content of the presentation

focused mainly on opportunities in the up and downstream areas of the supply chain that
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was aligned to the Black Industrialists programme. It also focused on the requirements to

qualify as a service provider for SAA.

Immediately after the presentation, the Chair stood up and said “just look at her! These
people died for us (referring to the Mr Kebby Maphatsoe). They want to know what
the budget for Jet Fuel is, why don’t you tell them the budget?” | then attempted to
appropriately mention to the chair that it was inappropriate to mention the budgets with

any Service Providers or potential Service Providers.

The Chair then informed the meeting that “the budget is R20 billion. What is stopping
you from telling them the budget? They are not here to listen to your rules.” The
chair continued, saying “she (referring to me) is also in HR, and maybe 30% of the

vacancies should aiso be seft aside to the MK veterans’ children”.

My colieague Mr Wolf Meyer, who was the CFO, also told me that he was invited to a
meeting with Bid Air. He, together with Ms. Kwinana from SAA, were present at the
meeting. Ms Kwinana informed the present Bid Air executives that they had to give 30%
of their ownership to black people. Bid Air was already a BBBEE company. | have seen

the letter of response where Bidair mentions their BBBEE participation (Annexure

TM43).

As a result of the meeting’s demands from Ms Kwinana, Dr Anton Alberts, a Minister of
Parliament, allegedly wrote a letter to the BBBEE commission to register their concerns.
On 8 September 2015, with the Commissioner of the Broad-Based Black Economic
Empowerment {B-BBEE} Commission, Ms. Zodwa Ntuli, arranged a meeting with me

with regards this SAA matter. In the meeting held, Ms Ntuli spoke about the approach,
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policies and guidelines on BBBEE and advised us to_also consider _how we could
influence the Aviation sector code since the BBBEE codes were being reviewed. This
meeting was attended by Ms Ntuli, myself, Dr Dahwa, and Lusanda Jiya (GM:
Stakehoider). She advised that SAA must stop demanding the 30% set aside from
service provider as it is illegal. This resulted in the BBBEE Commission following up with
writing a letter addressed to me initially (Annexure TM44), with all the salient points
mentioned in the meeting. | then emailed and requested that a letter be addressed to the

chair of the Board, which was done (Annexure TM45), addressing Ms. Kwinana's

demands to Bid Air.

I then also gave feedback on the meeting and the process to the Chair and her response
was ‘I don't want to hear anything from that woman {meaning Ms Ntuli)!” Shortly after
that, on 28 September 2015, | received correspondence from National Treasury
{Annexure TM46) informing me that there was no support to any legal procurement
framework for setting aside 30%. The board also received correspondence (Annexure
TMA47) from the Chief Procurement Officer at National Treasury instructing the board to

stop continuing with its 30% BBBEE set aside in its current format.

The Chair, in turn, delegated Ms. Kwinana to respond to the BBBEE Commission
enquiry. Ms. Kwinana wrote a response to both the BBBEE Commissioner, and to
National Treasury. Ms. Kwinana responded in a very confrontational manner and asked
me to sign the letter, which ! rephrased, signed and sent to National Treasury copying
the board (Annexure TM48). Uitimately, the board ignored all of these instructions and
continued with their negotiations with Service providers, and instructions to SAA

personnel, to implement the board’s instructions and resolutions.
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97. | have perused the BBBEE commissioner's responses and communication between her

office and SAA. | confirm this is in line with my explanation above {Annexure 49).

98. On Friday 2 October 2015, (Annexure TM50), both the Chair and Ms. Kwinana were at
SAA. Whilst Ms. Kwinana was there, my personal assistant walked in my office, to tell
me that | had to urgently see Dr Dahwa as he did not seem to be well. Dr Dahwa who
was almost in tears informed me that he had just had a meeting with the chair and Ms
Kwinana, and was almost in tears. Dr Dahwa, a Zimbabwean national, was a
procurement expert who had been appointed on a skills transfer contract. He further
stated that he had just been humiliated and chastised by both the Chair and Ms.
Kwinana. They told him that he was an illegal immigrant, occupying a senior position, a
position which he could not even occupy in his own country. They also told him that if he
does not sign certain letters of award, they would hand him over to the political party

Economic Freedom Fighters (EFF). This was also arcund the time that there were

Xenophobic atiacks in South Africa.

99. These certain letters of award were two letters of award which Dr Dahwa was being

instructed to sign. These letters of award were for the following:

09.1 A Jet fuel deal to Engen, but with changes 1o the terms of contract, to give a 30% share
to a” yet to be disclosed consortium” acting on behalf of a consortium of about 60 fuel
suppliers (| still did not get the name of the consortium before | resigned). In addition,
contractually, 30% of the payments due to Engen would be paid by SAA, directly to the
consortium’s company. The contract would be for 10 years. This was all very irregular in

all instances and was highlighted by Dr Dahwa. | also seem to remember that the Engen
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contract was midstream, and not expired, where this too would be highly irregutar to

alter;

99.2 Changes to the terms of the Swissport ground handling tender in such a way that 30%

would be payable to a company called Jamicron, for a period of 5 years.

100.In my later discussions with Dr Dahwa, he pointed out that Jamicron was not registered

on the supplier database and that as Chief Procurement Officer, he had never heard of

the company before being asked to sign this letter of award.

101.Ms Kwinana stated, in an email, that she had already been to the legal department and
the legal department was ready to issue the contracts relating to the awards mentioned
above. They were merely awaiting the award letters to be signed, as she indicated in her

emails {Annexure TM51). | then advised Ms Kwinana about the risks involved.

Events leading to, and following my removal as Acting CEO.

102.A board Exco meeting was heid on 13 October 2015, SAA executives were invited to
attend the meeting. Present at the meeting was Ms Myeni and Ms Kwinana. The chair

started talking about how incompetent | was and then asked all other staff members

about what they had to say about my incompetence.

103.Mr. Musa Zwane, who was the CEO of SAA Technical (SAAT) at the time, was very
vocal, saying he did not understand why board resolutions were not followed. |

responded by outlining the policies and procedures SAA had to adhere to, and explained
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that | was not second guessing the board, but just following legal, guided policies and

processes.

| was then called to another meeting in Durban by the Chair. We met at Beverly Hills hotel,
on Monday 27 October 2015. During this meeting she informed me that the unions
were not happy with me regarding the Section 189 retrenchment processes. This was
news to me, as all the processes that | had played a role in in respect of Sec 189, had
been commended by all parties, even the Commissioner of the CCMA who was

facilitating the SAA process.

104. At the meeting, the Chair then enquired from me as to why | had not applied for the post
of the CEQ, as it had by now been advertised. | informed her that, as | had previously
indicated, | was not interested in the post. She encouraged me to apply for the post but |

declined.

105.0n 13 November 2015, | was contacted by the Company Secretary to inform me that the
chair had scheduled a meeting with Labour. At first | queried whether Labour had
followed due processes in place to call the meeting. Later the Company Secretary
responded informing me that the chair had arranged the meeting, and instructed that |
needed to be present. This was scheduled for the dining room .on the 6™ floor at SAA

Airways Park.

106.1 was not aware of this meeting, nor was it scheduled, but | went to the meeting, as
instructed. When | arrived, | saw that the chair was there, together with various role
players from the South African Cabin Crew Association (SACCA), which is the cabin

crew union. The meeting was aiso attended by Ms Kwinana, Realising the role players
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attending, 1 requested that the cabin crew manager, Mr Shaun Pillay, and Ms Yvonne
Mkefa from ER, also be invited to address possible issues to be discussed, as they were

the direct line managers of cabin crew, who were present at the meseting.

107.1 had some reservations concerning the meeting and began to discuss these
reservations with the chair. She became very irate, and scolded me, basically saying that
this was her meeting and that | must subdue myself. She then chaired the meeting which
entailed complaints of various employees, which technically should have been dealt with
by the line managers guided by the policies and forums in place. | am of the opinion that

this meeting was in order to validate reasons to find fault with me, and therefore relieve

me of my position as acting CEQ,

108.Later the same day, | was called by the chair-and requested to attend a board meeting.
This was actually an instruction, even though by now it was after hours. She informed
me that the meeting was at the Protea Hotel, Midrand. At the meeting | found Ms
Kwinana and Dr Tambi and the Chair was not in attendance. Ms Kwinana informed me
that they had been instructed by the chair to inform me that | was to be relieved of my
post as acting CEO. They also alluded to the decision to want to rotate the role of the
CEO and afford others an opportunity, as mentioned earlier in my statement. They

informed me that Mr. Musa Zwane was to succeed me as the ACEQ.

Appointment of Ms Phumeza Nhantsi

109.Ms Phumeza Nhantsi was seconded to SAA to serve as an interim CFO after the

resignation of Mr Meyer. She was an auditor at the firm Sizwe Ntsaluba Gobodo (SNG)
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and irregularly appointed, where she began with SAA on 27 November 2015. She was

firstly seconded, and then when the post was advertised, she then applied.

110.1 had returned, by that time, back to my original post at HR. Stanton Chase, a well-
known recruitment company was appointed to assist in the recruitment of the CFO. Mr
Musa Zwane and | were also part of the panel dealing with the short listings. The
requirements were that the applicant should have extensive aviation experience, but also
financial management and CFO experience, which Ms Nhantsi did not have. Ms Nhantsj
was removed from the list of candidates, as she did not meet the requirements. Mr.
Zwane then informed the panel that the chair wants Ms Nhantsi to be placed on the short
list and this instruction was adhered to. She was eventually appointed after the new

board members were appointed in 2016.

Suspensicn

111.0n 17 January 2016, | see an email was sent from Mr Linnell, to Mr Lester Peter, who
was ACPO, to Mr Zwane with an attached letter for my suspension (Annexure 52). On
19 January 2016, on my first day upon my return from leave, the Company Secretary,
Ms Ruth Kibuuka called me to her office where she presented me with two sealed
envelopes. She claimed that she was not aware of the contents thereof. She further

advised me that Mr Zwane, ACEOQ, had requested that | take leave

112.1 opened the envelope and found that it was a letter signed by Mr Zwane which
contained allegations of misconduct that | needed to respond to. The second envelope
was a copy of the same letter. | read the letter out to Ms Kibuuka, She was very

uncomfortable and alleged that she was not aware of the contents of the letter. | asked
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Ms Kibuuka who gave her the letter as Mr Zwane was out of the country. She responded
by saying it was given to her by Mr Lester Peter, who was the Acting Chief Procurement

Officer at that time. | took the lefters from Ms Kibuuka and went o my office.

113.1 wrote an email to Mr Zwane, and copied Ms Kibuuka wherein | confirmed receipt of the
said letters. | expressed my disappointment that he delegated the responsibility to the

Company Secretary who was below my level of seniority in the company hierarchy.

114.1 subsequently received numerous phone calls from the press and even National

Treasury asking me about my suspension even though | was not suspended and there

was no formal announcement to that effect.

115.1 wrote a second email to Mr Zwane informing him about the journalists’ enquiry in
respect of my suspension, and attached the enquiries | had received (Annexure 53). 1
expressed concern in that as far as | know the letter received tabling allegations of
misconduct was from him, given to Ms Kibuuka and what was the basis of the rumour of
my suspension. He responded by saying that he is not aware of the rumour and does not

know where the journalist received the information from.

116.1 finally met with Mr Zwane in February 2016. In the meeting | asked, him to provide
background context into the allegations. | highlighted the fact that he has been my boss
for two weeks at that time, so | needed to know what informed and prompted the
allegations. | was very upset; | informed him that | have been a model executive and
employee; | have worked very hard all my life. | pride myself.with honesty and integrity
as my values and | strive to live my values at all times. | told him | was at the peak of my

career and with a clean record and now these allegations.
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117.Mr Zwane never kept eye contact throughout the meeting. He said to me “It's the Board”.

| asked him who in the Board. He said the Chair.

118.After the meeting, my attorney responded to the allegations within the agreed, revised
time-frame. He forwarded the response to SAA’s attorneys, ENS (Annexure 54). This
was around mid Feb 2016. | continued to work diligently carrying out my responsibilities
in the company. We did not hear from the company’s attorneys for a while. My attorney

followed up and the attorneys said they had no response or brief from their client.

119.0n 5 May 2018, | received a call from the Acting CEO's office advising me of a one-on-
one meeting in the afternoon at 16:00pm. | requested to be provided with the agenda in
order to prepare for the meeting. | was informed that there was no agenda. At about
16:20pm, Mr Zwane and Ms Kwinana {a Board member at the time) arrived at my office.
Mr Zwane gave me a letter that | read in their presence. The letter was to inform me that
| was suspended with immediate effect. | refused to sign the letter and referred them to
my attorney. Ms Kwinana asked whether | always had to be difficult. They left my office. |
called my attorney and informed him of the contents of the letter; he advised that | leave

immediately.

On the 30" September 20186, my attorneys wrote to the Minister of Finance, Mr Pravin
Gordhan to highlight my plight to him (Annexure TM55). This was after the mid-term
budget vote of 2016 where he mentioned that the new board of directors at SAA have
been tasked to look into the suspensions of executives and address the matter,

Unfortunately, we did not receive a response from our letter.
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120.0n the 2 November 20186, | wrote to the Deputy Chairperson of the Board of SAA, Ms
Tryphosa Ramano and the Chairperson of REMCO (Ms Mgoduso) making them aware

of my plight (Annexure TMS56). Unfortunately, | did not receive a response either.

121.My attorneys wrote a further letter to the Minister of Finance on 6 December 2018,

requesting response to the email we sent on 30 September 2016 (Annexure TM57). We

never received response from the Minister.

122.1n January 2017, my attorneys wrote to SAA’s attorneys, BMK, requesting a date of the
disciplinary hearing. The attorneys informed us that they did not have a brief on the
matter. Around September 2017, | was informed through my attorneys that SAA had
requested that | prepare a representation on reasons why they shouid uplift the
precautionary suspension and review my case. | submitted the representation as
requested (Annexure TM58). it is my assertion that the allegations ang charges are

trumped up and an ulterior motive a&'a consequence of my refusal to cooperate and or

authorise the iilegal instruction.

wora

123. In the end, after 22 months on precautionary suspension, with such a long, stressful and
painful period for myself and my family, | ended up in accepting a mutual settlement with
SAA. | was not happy with having to take the settlement, but the legal expenses | had

incurred, together with the stress, just made it not worth my while in pursuing further,
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[ hereby certify that the deponent has acknowledged that he knows and understands the
congents of this affidayit, which was signed and sworn to before me, Commissioner of Oaths,

¢ 7l
aty. {ﬂVJ 5 A’Rén this the 5 day of ~_. .......@019 the regulations contained in
Government’ Notice No R1258 of 21 July 1972, as amended, and Government Notice No
R1648 of 19 August 1977, as amended, having been complied with.

>

COMMI;/SIO OF OATHS
NAMES:

ADDRESS:

:

EX OFFICIO:

MSANQA SIPHIWE MBATHA

EX c}mcuo COMMISSIONER OF OS%SE y
REGISTERED NON-PRACTISING ATT!

REPLBLIC OF SOUTH AFRECAK
1 JONES ROAD, AIRWAYS PAR
O.R. TAMEO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
JOHANNESBURG, 1627
5 Tl
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Andrew <anddrewkcommissions@flysaa.com>

Sent: Tuesday, 02 April 2019 14:03

To: Andrew A. Keartland

Subject: FW: FW: Acting CEO Documents

Attachments: 2015-11-13 Letter to Thuli Mpshe rotation of ACEQ position.doc; ATTO0001.htm:

2015-11-13 Letter to Minister re Rotation of the Acting CEO position.doc;
ATT00002.htm; ACEQ Delegation - Musa Zwane.docx; ATT00003.htm

— — - —_— - e ot

From: "Yakhe Kwinana" <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>
Date: 15/11/2015 at 13:32:42

To: "MusaZwane@flysaa.com" <MusaZwane@flysaa.com>
—«bject: FW: Acting CEO Documents

Best Regards

Yakhe Kwinana

Tel 012 807 0801
Sox C12 807 0633
Cell 079 9500610

Email yakhe@kwinana.co.za

Physical Address Alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street, The
Willows Ext 82, Pretoria, 0184



From. Dudu Myem [mailto: dudum@jacobzumafoundatlon org.za]
Sent: 15 November 2015 01:25 PM
To: Yakhe Kwinana <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>; Yakhe Kwinana <yakhekwinana@gmail.com>

Subject: Acting CEQ Documents

Appointment of Acting CEO
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South African Airways
Chairperson

6% Floor

A Block, Airways Park

OR Tambo Intemational Airport

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS Private Bag X 13
g(g?pton Park
7

Tel: 27 11978-2520
Email: Chairperson@fiysaa.com

Ms Thuli Mpshe

South African Airways SOC
OR Tambo Airport
Gauteng

Dear Ms Mpshe
ROTATION OF THE ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEQC) POSITION

Following the recent Board engagements that the Board has had with the Executive team at SAA,
it has been observed that the Executive team would benefit greatly from a rotation of the Acting
CEO position.

Consequently the Board has decided to appoint another member of the Executive team to act as
the Group CEO effective 14 November 2015. Your appointment as the Acting Group CEO will
therefore terminate on 13 November 2015.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank you for the diligent work you have performed during
your tenure as the Acting CEO.

Yours sincerely,

Ms. Duduzile Myeni
SAA Board of Directors Chairperson

Date:

Directors
DG Myeni™ (Chairperson), WH Meyer (Chief Financial Officer), Y Kwinana®, JE Tambi* (Sierra Leonean),
"MNon-Executive Director

Company Secretary — Ruth Kibuuka

South African Airways SOC Ltd Reg. No. 1997/022444/30
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SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS SOCLTD

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO ACT AS GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Ms Duduzile Myeni as the Chairperson of the Board, in accordance with the authority and powers
vested in me in terms of the Delegation of Authority approved by a resolution of The Board of
Directors of SAA (“the SAA Board”) dated 17 February 2011 on behalf of the Board of South African
Airways SOC Ltd (“SAA”} hereby delegate authority and power to Mr Musa Zwane, in his capacity as
the CEQ for SAA Technical, to act as the Group CEQ.

Mr Musa Zwane, is hereby authorised to execute the Delegation of Authority as the Acting Group
CEQ effective 14 November 2015. In terms of this delegation of authority, Mr Musa Zwane, is
authorised to sign and approve matters referred to the Group CEO, on behalf of the Board, subject
to adherence to the policies and procedures of SAA SOC Ltd.

I SANCTION, PERMIT and CONFIRM everything whatsoever that Mr Musa Zwane, may lawfully do or
cause to be done on account of this delegation, and | undertake and agree to sanction, permit and

confirm everything as aforementioned.

This delegation will remain in force until withdrawn in writing by the Chairperson of the Board.

Thus done and signed at on this of 2015.
"anature As witnesses:
1.
2.

I, Mr Musa Zwane, the undersigned, accept the delegation as set out abave.

As withesses;

Signature
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South African Airways
Chairperson

6t Floor

A Block, Airways Park

OR Tambo ntemational Airport

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS Privale Bag X 13
Kempton Park
1627

Tel: 27 11 978-2520
Email: Chairperson@fysaa.com

Minister Nhlanhla Nene, MP
National Treasury

40 Church Square

Pretoria

0002

By email: minreg@freasury.qov.za

Honourable Minister,

ROTATION OF THE ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) POSITION

in the past few weeks, the Board has had a number of engagements with the Executive team at
SAA. One of the observations from these interactions has been a realization that members of the
Executive team would benefit greatly from a rotation of the Acting CEO position. The experience
gained by individual members would greatly benefit the Executives concemed, and would also
provide the Board with a ready pool of available resources whenever a need arises for appointing
an Acting CEQ.

I would like to inform Minister that as a result of the above, the Board has agreed to rotate Ms.
Thuli Mpshe, from the Acting CEO position and to appoint Mr. Musa Zwane as the SAA Acting
CEQ, both effective 14 November 2015.

| hope the Minister will find this in order.

Yours sincerely,

Ms. Duduzile Myeni
SAA Board of Directors Chairperson
Date:

Directors
BC Myeni* (Chairperson), WH Meyer (Chief Financial Officer), Y Kwinana*, JE Tambi* (Sierra Leonean)
"Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary = Ruth Kibuuka

South African Airways SOC Lid Reg. No, 1997/022444/30
A STAR ALLIANGE MEMBER 7~
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MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE REMUNERATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES
COMMITTEE (2015/03) HELLD ON THURSDAY 09 JULY 2015, IN THE 6™ FLOOR BOARDROOM,
AIRWAYS PARK, JONES ROAD, KEMPTON PARK, AT 10HGO.
Resolution No/
For Attention
WELCOME, CONSTITUTION OF THE MEETING, APOLOGIES, SIGNING OF
ATTENDANCE REGISTER AND ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Present

Dr. J Tambi Non-Executive Director {Chairperson)
Mr. A Dixon Non-Executive Director

Ms. D Myeni Non-Executive Director (by telecom)

in Attendance
Mr. N Bezuidenhout Acting Group Chief Executive Officer (ACEQ)

Ms. T Mpshe GM: Human Resources (GM: HR)
Ms. R Kibuuka Company Secretary (Co Sec)
Ms. M Makhakhe Deputy Company Secretary

The Chairperson welcomed all present and a quorum being present, declared the meeting
open.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

The agenda was adopted with an amendment to indicate that items 4.2, 5.1 and 5.2 were
for approval,

The Acting CEQ was requested 1o clarify whether any of the items on the agenda were
discussed at the Executive Committee meeting (Exco).

He stated that only the creation of additional positions was discussed at Exco but all other
items were not discussed at the management meeting, as they were Board reserved

matters.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

All members declared that they had no personal interest in any of the matters tabled for
discussion.

MATTERS FOR APPROVAL /| RECOMMENDATION / DISCUSSION / NOTING
The Terms of Reference for Critical Executive L.eve] Positions to be Identified

The Chairperson of REMCO informed the meeting that he had written an email to the GM:
HR requesting her to drafi terms of reference for filling three positions which were:
{a) Group Chief Financial Officer; (ﬂ*_b-q

(b) Chief Operating Officer; and
REMCO 09 Juxﬂ- —

{c) Head of Depariment: Security and Risk.
Page 1 of 5

The REMCO chair indicated that he had not received these terms of reference.
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The GM: HR reported that she had responded to the REMCO Chairperson’s request and
she circulated printed copies of her response. In it, she indicated that her understanding of
terms of reference for the new positions was a reference to job descriptions. Her response
stated that she did not have sufficient information about the positions to be created to draft
job descriptions and in addition, there was not enough time to develop the job descriptions
for consideration at the special meeting. The Committee was informed that the jobs were

also not budgeted for.

Dr. Tambi stated that he had not received the email because the GM: HR had utilised a
Gmail address which he no longer used for official business as it was not safe. He stated
that all his correspondence should be routed to his Nepad email address.

The Chairperson of the Board confirmed that she had received the response from the GM:
HR and stated her observations as foliows:

(a) The length of time it wouid take to draft the terms of reference for these positions would _
depend on how seriously it was taken by the Board, REMCO and Management;

{b} It was the responsibility of the Board to ensure that there was succession planning in
the business. Taking from experience, SAA did not have identified potential successors
to the position of CEO and each time a vacancy arose in that position, the Mange CEO
had to be called to fill in the position. In another example, the HOD: Security Services
had taken ill and there was no replacement fo carry on his duties.

(c) She had received a letter from Labour indicating that SAA was not transforming;

(d) There was still no successor to the Chief Strategy Officer (CSO) position.

(e) The contract of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) was ending in July 2015 and there
were no clear successors.

The GM: HR stated that Management had instituted a succession programme almed at
creating a pool of successors for Level 2 management positions (SPP2). Successful
candidates were enrolled on a 36 months fraining programme, where after they would be
gligible for appeintment in Level 2 positions as they became available.

Mr. Dixon raised a concern that he did not receive any pre-wamning that there was an
intention to change the management structure, He stated that he only received a call from
the Chairperson of the Board indicating that there was a need to appoint a Chief
Operations Officer (COOQ). He stated that there was no motivation for the need to create
the proposed positions and the Airline stood fo be criticised heavily by Labour and Nationa!
Treasury for creating new senior positions during a headcount rationalisation process. Mr.
Dixon stated that there was already a perception that SAA was ‘top heavy’.

The Beard Chairperson requested that it be placed on record that new issues would arise
at Beard Committees because these were forums where members of the Board could raise
matters of concern to them and it could therefore not be argued that Members were not
pre-wamed about discussions.

Further, she stated that when she held one-on-one discussions with the ACEQ, it was to
highlight the cancerns of the Board to Management.

The REMCO Chair indicated that the aim was to consolidate some positions Whlch would

REMCOL0S Juzy 26185
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lead to cost saving. Mr. Dixon said he would be happy to support the initiative if it could be
demonstrated that there would be some cost saving.

It was reported that:
» The position of the Group CFO was established in anticipation of the holding company

structure;

« The position of COO would be created through the consolidation of some positions in
the Operations division;

» The position of Deputy HOD: Security and Risk was created to ensure succession in
the depariment.

it was noted that the South African Airways Pilot Association (SAAPA) had written to the
Chairperson of the Board complaining about the funds that would be wasted in creating the
proposed positions. The Chairperson of the Board highlighted that SAAPA was being
insincere in thelr concem for saving costs when issues of succession were being
addressed whilst on the other hand they had resisted the appointment of a black chief pilot
untit the position was split into two. She stated that SAAPA had not been concerned about

costs then.

The Committee stated that the Government of South Africa owned SAA and the
Government's imperative was to fransform the economy and it therefore followed that state

owned companies had to transform.

The GM: HR reported that she understood the importance of succession planning and she
was the one who had returned the extended confract of the SAAT CEO because it did not
contain succession planning KPis. She undertook to present the succession plan at the
following meeting of REMCO.

The ACEO stated thal it should be clarified that the creation of the position of Group CFO
was not because of incapacity on the part of the existing CFO.

It was concluded that the Executive should develop the job descriptions for the three
positions.

The Process to be Followed in Filling these Positions

It was concluded that Management should follow normal process in filling these three
positions and there should not be any deviation from the normal recruitment process.

The Pilot Training Program and its Rationalisation

The Commiitee stated that SAA needed to have a formal documented process for the
progression of Cadet Pilots.

Management reported that National Treasury had authorised the suspension of the cadet
pilot scheme and other training initiatives which cost money whilst the company was
striving fo return to profitability. It was reported that SAA was currently accommodating the
progression of frained cadets and incumbents who had been granted SAA bursaries to

COMPANY SECRETARY - CONFIDENTIAL
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GM: HR
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ensure that they accumulated the required hours through its partners.
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It was concluded that this issue would be comprehensively discussed at the HR Workshop. GM: HR
The Committee decided that HR shouid draft an agenda for the planned HR workshop.

GENERAL

The Commitiee was informed that two employees from the legal department had
approached the GM: HR with information about ane of the General Managers breaching
confidentiality rules and amending a legal opinion. The ACEO reported that he had
requested that the allegations should be reduced to writing so that he could address them

formally.

It was concluded that once the formal report was received, normal disciplinary process GM: HR
would be followed and the Committee would be informed about the outcome of the
discipfinary process.

The GM: HR and ACEQ feft the meeling,

Closed Session
A closed session was held. Refer to closed session minutes.

Staff Rationalisation

The ACEQ re-joined the meeting.

The ACEO reporied that HR had involved the CCMA throughout the staff rationalisation
process as independent observers. The CCMA commissioners had then requested a
meeting with the ACEO to highlight a few concerns raised by Labour:

(a) Labour indicated that Management was not fully transparent with the finances:
(b) Labour had queried the ACEOs statement in the media inferring that SAA was not yet

out of the woeds but was making steady progress.
{c) Labour wanted an explanation with regard {o the media reports around the SAA /

Emirates relationship.
{d) The SAAT Unions requested information around the AAR partnership.

The Committee was informed that the ACEQ would be meeting Labour the following day
between 4:00pm and 6:00pm and invited members of the Board to join him in the meeting.

The ACEO left the meeting.

CLOSURE OF THE MEETING

There being no further matters for discussion, the Chairperson declared the meeting
closed.

The ngxt meeting is on 07 August 2015
-
@L«M Sptalola
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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE REMUNERATION AND HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
(2015/02) HELD ON MONDAY 18 AUGUST 2015, IN THE ™ FLOOR BOARDROOM, AIRWAYS
PARK, JONES ROAD, KEMPTON PARK, AT 10H00.
Resolution No/
For Attention
WELCOME, CONSTITUTION OF THE  MEETING, APOLOGIES, SIGNING OF
ATTENDANCE REGISTER AND ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

Present

Dr. J Tambi Non-Executive Director {Chairperson) B
Mr. A Dixon Non-Executive Director

Ms. D Myeni Non-Executive Director

In Attendance

Ms. T Mpshe Acting Chief Executive Officer (ACEQ}
Ms. R Kibuuka Company Secretary (Co Sec)

Ms. M Makhakhe Deputy Company Secretary

Ms. N Moodley Acting GM: Human Resources (AGM:HR}
Mr. L Erasmus HOD: Employee Relations (HOD; ER)

The Chairperson welcomed all present and a quorum being present, declared the meeting
apen.

He informed Members that the meeting was postponed as he was part of the SAA
delegation attending the launch of the inaugural flight from Accra to Washington. He
reported that the flights were almost at full capacity and the launch was well attended. it
was noted that there was a lot of good will for SAA regionally and internationally which the
Airline should capitalise on.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

The agenda was adopted with amendments to include an update on the recruitment
process for the CEQ as item 7.3

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

All members declared that they had no personal interest in any of the matters tabled for
discussion.

The deciaration of interest file was circulated.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Minutes of the Meeting Held on 18 May 2015

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 May 2015 were approved without any
amendmenis.

Minutes of the Meeting Held on 09 July 2015 dqoe
The minutes of the meeting heid on 09 July were approved with the following amendments: ?
COMPANY SECRETARY - CONFIDENTIAL REMCO 18 Augug’ 15
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(a) ltem 4.1, page 3, second paragraph, third buflet, to include ‘Deputy’ before HOD:
Security and Risk;

(b} ltem 4.1, page 3, third paragraph, second sentence to be rephrased to read, ‘...SAAPA
displayed insincerity in their concern for saving costs when issues of succession were
being addressed whilst on the other hand they had resisted the appointment of a black
chief pilot until the poslition was split into two.’

MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Action List
Feedback on Employees Implicated by the Investigation Against Mr. Kalawe

The Commitiee requested the Acting CEO to expedite the receipt of the final report from ACEO
Edward Nathan Sonnenbergs (ENSAfrica) on employees implicated by the investigation
against Mr. Kalawe.

It was noted that ENS as the investigators would be beiter placed fo be disciplinary officers
whilst SAA would appoint presiding officers who would either be internal within the SAA
Group or external depending on the level of the employee being disciplined.

Mr. Kalawe's Settlement Agreement

It was reported that Mr Kalawe handed over all SAA electronic equipment, including the Matfer Close:
company cell phone to ENSAfrica attorneys in Cape Town.

Annual Review of the REMCO Charter

It was reported that the REMCO Charter was approved by the Board on 10 July 2015, Matter Close:

Academy of Learning

it was reported that SAA launched an Academy of L.earning in 2013 and had partnered
with several institutions to offer accredited programs to its learners.

It was reported that the first steps in achieving the fully-fledged Academy that oftered
aviation studies were taken by ensuring that the organization was recognised as an
accredited Learning Organization. To this point, SAA was accredited with CAA to offer
various compliance courses at various levels for in Flight, Flight Operations, Cargo, Aimort
Operations, Safety and Security. In addition, SAA was in the process of seeking
accreditation with [ATA to offer Airline courses for the region. SAA had also been granted
accreditation by the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants to offer Finance related

courses.

it was reported that SAA was exploring partnerships with univarsities in the United States
and this process would be explored further once the rationalisation process was

completed. 5:‘ Q
7

Members welcomed the initiatives but requested Management to also seek opportunities '
for collaboration with local and regional institutions and in particular Ethiopian Airlines IO~

COMPANY SECRETARY - CONFIDENTIAL REMCO 18 Au l’fsl 2015
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which had a fully-fledged training academy.

Appointment of the Company Secretary

It was reported that the Company Secretary had been appointed and commenced duties Matter Close

on 01 June 2015,

Training, Funding and Absorption of Cadet Pilots between the three Airlines (SAA,
SAX and Mango)

It was reported that SAA and SA Express signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
on post cadet development at the end of April 2015, which was attached to the meeting
pack. SAA reporied that a similar Mot) was being negotiated with Mango.

STANDING ITEMS

HR REMCO Report

The HR report was noted and Members addressed the specific issues included in the
report below.,

Exit Interviews Report

The Committee noted that the prevalent and recurring reason for leaving stated by many of
the exiting staff was lack of advancement at SAA. Management stated that one of the
greatest challenges was that staff did not improve themselves once employed despite SAA
offering bursaries for staff to obtain primary qualifications and a range of other educational
opportunities,

The Committee concluded that Management should make a concerted effort to inform stafi AGM: HR

of the need for self-improvement and the interventions and opportunities offered by the
Airtine in this reqard.

HR LTTS Themes - Feedback on Progress made by Management in Implementing
the Pilot Strategy

The HOD: Employee Relations (ER) reported that National Treasury had submitted a list of
queries on the Pilot Strategy and SAA had sent is response 1o the Shareholder at the end
of July, however there had been no indication from National Treasury whether the

responses were satisfactory.

It was reported that Management was stilf in salary negotiations with the Pilots and had to
finalise those negotiations before commencing with discussions on the conditions of
employment,

Management was requested to ensure that the Committee and the Board were kept AGM: HR
abreast of the developments as they were ultimately accountable for the Pilot Strategy. It &h@

was agreed that Management should forward all the correspondence between SAA and
the Shareholder on this matter to REMGO.

COMPANY SECRETARY - CONFIDENTIAL \[\ REMLO 18 Aug/%‘!sf
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Members enquired abaut progress made in applying for SAA to be declared a national key
point and for aviation to be declared an essential service. Management stated that a legal
opinion was obtained from ENSAfrica which stated that the declaration of SAA as a
national key point would not be feasible. Management was requested to approach the
relevant Government Department starting with the Shareholder Ministry to get a direct
response on whether SAA’s application would be feasible or not. The Committee
requested a copy of the legal opinion.

Feedback on Staff Rationalisation

The HOD: ER reporied that the Airdine had concluded a collective agreement with SAA
Labour unions on the rationalisation process on 25 July 2015 whilst none was concluded
with SA Technical (SAAT).

However, subsequent to conclusion of the collective agreement, Labour Unions, AUSA,
NUMSA, SATAWU, Solidarity, and others sought to prevent SAA from proceeding with its
retrenchment exercise pending compliance with a fair procedure. The Committee was
informed that the Labour Court had ruled against all Unions with regard to both SAA and
SAAT. In relation to SAA, the Court held that the collective agreement concluded between
SAA and its recognised frade unions was valid and binding. In relation to SAAT, the Court
found no substantial procedural failure in relation to SAAT that would warrant the
intervention of the court.

The Labour unions had since been informed that all parties had 5 days to come to the
table before consultations were terminated.

It was noted that SAA’s win over the Labour unions was a landmark case which would
create precedence.

The HR Team and Management were commended for the good work done during the
rationalisation process and Members requested an update by end September.

Employment Equity

Members noted SAA's performance against EE targets and highlighted that there was a
need to focus on achieving the targets for African males across all staff categories as well
as targets for disabled peopie.

Management was requested to establish the percentage of Economically Active Persons
(EAP) who were disabled to ascertain whether the target set was realistic and achievable.
That being said, Members stated that there were a number of falent sourcing companies
which specialised in placing disabled persons which Management should engage. it was
further stated that there were jobs which could be earmarked for disabled persons such as

receptionist jobs.

Members noted the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) concluded with SA Express on
the post cadet development program and enquired about the MoU with Mango.
Management reported that the MoU with Mango was still being negotiated.

ACEO

AGM: HR

AGM: HR

\/\ REMEO 18 Augu 15
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Employment Equity Plan

The Commitiee noted SAA's 2014-2017 Employment Equity Plan. The Acting CEO
reported that the report was included for information purposes.

Employment Equity Report
The Committee noted the 2014 Employment Equity report.
Succession Planning Update

Appaintment of Chief Strateqy Officer

The Acting CEO stated that she had approached the HOD: Project Management Office
(PMO) to act in the CSO's position during the recruitment process. She stated that the
HOD: PMO had written a letter accepting the acting role but setting a number of conditions
which the Acting CEQ sought to discuss with the Chairperson of the Board.

't was RESOLVED that:

(a) The process for the appointment of a Chief Strategy Officer (CSO) should commence 2015/04/01
immediately and timelines provided to the Committee for the filling of the position. AGM: HR
Members stated that internal candidates should be given preference.,

In a related discussion, the Committee RESOLVED that: 2015/04/02

(a) 2 understudies should be identified and appointed to the GM: Commercial and Chief AGI: HR
Financial Officer positions and the timeline for the selection and appointment
communicated to REMCO;

(b} All Executive Managers and subsidiary CEOs should each select and appoint 2
understudies within a specified timeline to be communicated to REMCO,

Performance Management

It was reported that contracting for the 2015/16 financial year was at 72%, however, there

was a need to inculcate an understanding within the Group that fine management was

respansible for performance management, not HR. It was concluded that Executive AGM: HR /
Management should be invited to the HR REMCO Workshop during discussion of Co Sec
performance management.

MATTERS FOR APPROVAL / RECOMMENDATION / DISCUSSION
The Issue of the Chief Pilot and Head of Flight Operations

Members stated that the position of Chief Pilot and Head of Flight Operations should be
combined to reduce costs in iine with the cost compression programme.

The ACEO stated that she had to guide the Committee to ensure that Members took &%@
decisions from an informed perspective. She reporied that the two positions had always
been split and the only exception was the previous Chief Pilot, Capt. Johnny Woods. She
stated that during his time the roles were combined because the Head of Flight Operations %,,
Aulfust 2015
ageSofg
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was seconded elsewhere.

She indicated that currently the two pilots were paid their salaries including a management
fee for their management duties; therefore, there would not be a significant saving should
the roles be combined. She cautioned that there would be employee relations and labour
relations implications shoutd the roles be combined. The Committee was informed that the
combined job would have to be evaluated, profiled, evaluated and adveriised before it

could be awarded.

The Committee indicated that it was not making ifs recommendations from an uninformed
perspective. It was reported that the current Head of Flight Operaticns was groomed and
earmarked by the erstwhile joint Chief Pilot and Head of Flight Operations to take over the
joint porifolio and at the time there was no intention of splitting the portiolio. The
Committee highlighted that there was never any indication that Capl. Woods had been
inefficient or inundated by the combined porifolio. Therefore, unless it could be proven that
the erstwhile Chief Pilot was unable to perform the two roles efficiently there was no need

to revert to the historic position.

Members observed a reluctance to transform SAA in accordance with Government's
transformation imperatives, and a general undermining of Black people in the organisation.
The Chairperson of the Board indicated that she had pursued the appointment of the first
Black Pilot at SAA and had been met with extreme resistance which had culminaied in the
splitting of the position as a compromise. in addition, there was a deterioration of respect
between the Board and Management.

The ACEO stated that it was against proper governance principles for Members of the
Board to accept complaints from staff members and act on them. She stated that when
such complaints were received they should be directed to Management to address. Mr.
Dixon reiterated the ACEOQO's sentiments that the Board should not get involved in

Management issues.

It was reporied that the Chief Pilot was on a flight with the Chairperson of Audit and Risk
(ARC} and had voiced his frustrations. The ARC Chairperson had then referred the
complaint to the Chairperson of REMCO for discussion at the meeting. Members
acknowledged that the Chief Pilot should have tabled his complaint with the GM:
Operations and / or the Acting CEO, however, in the case where the two managers were
part of the problem as the advocates for the division of the position it was difficuit for the
Chief Pilot to approach them.

The AGM: HR and HOD: ER left the meeting.

The ACEO declared that she supported transformation but recognised that it shouid be
implemented through appropriate processes.

After lengthy deliberations it was RESQLVED that: 2015/04/03
(a) The role of Chief Pilot and Head of Flight Operations should be combined; AGM: HR
(b) HR shouid draft a report highlighting the advantages and disadvantages of combining d? LB‘Q

the role and any perceived risks;
{c) The report from HR should outline how any identified risks would be mitigated fo

facilitate combining the two roles.
COMPANY SECARETARY - CONFIDENTAL AEMC uguet 2015
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Preparation for the AGM
Confirmation of Directors’ Fees for the year ended 31 March 2015
The Committee noted Directors’ Fees for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Noting of the Remuneration of the members of the Group Executive Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2015

The ACEO undertook ta circulate the remuneration of the members of the Group Executive
Committee for the year ended 31 March 2015 to REMCO members as it was not included
in the mesting pack.

Recruitment Process for the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) Position

The Committee considered a submission to select the preferred service provider to
conduct the recruitment process of the SAA GEO. It was highlighted that the selected
service provider would be used to conduct the process for both interal and external

candidates.

It was noted that the submission of the service providers had been circulated to Members
prior to the meeting, however, the Chairperson had not received the documentation as the
wrong email address was used. The Chairpersan undertook to review the submission and
revert with his vote by Friday, 21 August 2015,

The Terms of Reference for Critical Executive Level Positions Identified

The Acting CEO reported that she had emailed draft job descriptions for the positions of
Chief Operations Officer, Group Chief Financial Officer and Deputy Head af Security to
REMCO members. The Chairperson of the Committee stated that he had not received
same and alerted the ACEQ that she may have sent the documents to the wrong email

address again.

Mr. Dixon highlighted that he was of the impression that the proposal to fill these positions
was abandoned. The ACEO reported that she had only submitted the job specifications
because the Committee requested her to and because she did not want to be charged with
insubordination for stupid things. The Committee objected to the ACEQ's reference to
Member's instructions as stupid and she explained that she meant that if she had not sent
the job specifications the Board could deem her insubordinate for not honouring their
instructions.

She continued to state that the draft job specifications were drafted so that the Committee
and Management could engage on them. She stated that in developing the draft
specification HR had incorporated elements from generic specificatians, however, REMCO
would have to provide guidance with regard to the uniqueness of the roles in line with the

Committee’s vision for the roles.
COMPANY SECRETARY - CONFIDENTIAL QL@J\ REMC! August 2015
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The Committee highlighted that the Board was responsible for ensuring that there was
succession planning within the organisation, particularly at the executive level and this was
the motivation for the creation of these positions. It was emphasised that the lack of
successors to senior positions was part of the reasons the Aifline was in such a poor state.

CLOSED SESSION
The ACEO left the meeting and the Committee went info a closed session.

CLOSURE OF THE MEETING

There being no further matters for discussion, the Chairperson declared the meeting
closed.

The next meeting is on 02 November 2015

/éhAmP RSON SECRETARY
// Date: //’QQ};;/ A0NS Date: o] Ans
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Mote - See paragraph (6) for more information on the SOC.
(6) With respect to the SOC, for each operator or applicant -
(a) & 50C is required whether applying for domestic or international authosity;

{b)} the SOC shall be in the form of a complete iisting of all parts of the regulfations,
including technical standards, as applicable to the aperation the applicant is propasing,
with space for the applicant to show hew each reguiation applicable to kim or her has
bean met through specific reference to the operator's pperations, maintenance or other
required manuais;

{c} the SOC shall be updated by operators to reflect amended regulatory requirements or if
the references showing the means of compliance In the 50C change as a result of
amendmants to the operator's manuals: and

{d) the Director may require the completion of a SOC by an operator ai any time deemed
necessary in the interest of public safaty.

2. Reguirad management positions

(1) An operator shall employ the management personne! required by CAR 121.06.2{5} on & full
time basis to ensure proper control and supervision of its personnel and oparation. Section 3
of this TS states the minimum qualifications and regsponsibilities of the Incumbents,

{2) The application forms for the required managerial positions will be reviewed to ensure the
minimum quatifications are met. The assessment process may involve the use of quizzes or
interviews to establish the suitability of each nominee. Where a nominee is known within
SACAA, the Director may approve such nominee without the need for further assessmient.

{3) 'An operator may use whatever title deemed necessary for its managers and ‘may assign some
of the responsibilities for a given position to another person or persons or the responsibifities
of more than one position to one person; however, all the responsibilities noted:in section 2
shall"be assigned to a nominated manager and such assignment clearly identifled in the
operations manual: Furthermore, ‘every’ person assigned any responsibility assaciated' with a
required  position  shall ‘aiso - meet. the qualification requirements ' associated “with the
responsibifitfes assigned,

{4} An operator shall develop a methoH of ensuring that, in the absence of a responsible manager
for any reason, ali the responsibilities of that manager are assigned to another individual. Such
individual shall meet the qualifications required for the responsibilities assigned except that the
knowledge requirements may be demonstrated to the operator rather than the Director. Any
assignment issued for a period greater than 30 days must be acceptable to the Director.

3. Approved positions, minimum qualifications and responsibilities
{1} Chief Executive Officer {CEO)
{a) Qualifications

The CEO shall not have had any conviction or administrative sanction under the Act or
these Regulations which, in the view of the Director, was sufficiently serious to render
such person not fit and proper to exarcise the respensibilities of such position,

{b} Responsibilitias
The CEC shall -
(1) have full authority for all human resources;
{i) have authority for major financial decisions:

{iil} have direct responsibility for the conduct of the company's affairs: and

(iv) have final responsibility for all safety and segurity issues,

htip:7caa mylexisnexis.co.z4'Content:Content Tnayi gationSiring~ {"Domainid":"ehesd... 2016/08/19
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{2} Person Responsible for Flight Operations {PRFQ}
{8) Quailfications: The PRFO shall, as a minimum -

{{) hold or have held the pitot licence and ratings appropriate to the aeroplanes being
operated; or

(ii} demonstrate adequate knowledge of the operation of such aeroplanes; or

(i) have acquired not less than 3 vears suparvisory experience in the flight operations
department of an operator whose flight operations are similar in size and scope or
acceptable siternative experience;

Notes ~

1. In determining similar size of fiight aperations, the grouping of operators is based upon the
following categories -

{2} large asroplanes having & maximum certificated passenger seating capacity of 20 or
more up to and including 56; and

(b) large aeropianes having & maximum certificated passenger seating capacity of mors
than 50,

2. The PRFQ of an operator acquiring larger aeroplanes or increasing the complexity of its
operations may continue in such position: Provided -

() the operator is not acquiring seroplanes more than 1 category higher than presently
operated; and

{bY he or she becomes conversant with the new aegroplane or new operations, as appticabie,
within 2 months of the change.

. A PRFO leaving an operator to take a PRFO position with another oparator having & fleat of
farger aeroplanes may do so; Provided —

(8) the new operator does not operate aeroplanes more than 1 cagiggory higher than those
with which the PRFO has experience;

{8}  he or she had at jeast 3 years’ experience as the PRFO of the operator having smaller
aeroplanes; and

{c} ke or she demonstrates adequate knowiedge of the agroplanes and flight aoperations of
the new operator prior to acting in the position.

{lv} demonstrate knowledge o the Director of the content of the cperations manual,
the operator's certificate and operations specifications, as well as those provisiohs
of the regulations and technical standards necassary 1o carry out his or her duties
and responsibiiities to ensure safety; and

{v) not have had any conviction or administrative sanction under the Act or the
Regulations which, in the view of the Director, was sufficiently serious to reader
such person not fit and proper to exercise the responsibilities of such position.

{B) Responsibilities -
The PRFO is responsible for safe flight operations, in particular ~
(i) the control of operations and operational standards of ail aeroplanes operated;

(liy the ldentification of operations co-ordination functions which impact on
operational control {e.g. maintenance, crew schaduling, load caentrol, eguipment

scheduling);

{(iii} the supervision, organisation, manning and efficiency of the following -

hitp:‘caa.mylexisnexis.co.za/Content/Content InavigationString~ {"Domainld" 'ehesd .. 2016/08/19
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(iv)

(v}
(vi)
{wii}

{viii}
{ix)

()

(xi}

{xil)

{xii)

£xiv)

MEM-060
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{as) flight operations;

{bb} cabin safety;
{ce) crew scheduling and rostering; and
{dd} training programmes;

the timely resclution of safety issues;

the contents of the operator's operations manual;

the supervision of and the production and amendment of the operations manual;

ifaison with the regulatory authority on all matters concerning flight operations,
inciuding any variations to the operator's AQC;

Hlaison with any external agencies which may affect the operator's operations;

ensuring that the operator's operations are conducted in accordance with current
regulations, standards and the operator's policy;

ensuring that crew scheduling complies with fiight and duty time regulations and
that all crew members are kept informed of any changes to the regulations and
standards;

the receipt and actioning of any aeronautical information affecting the safety of

flight;

the dissemination of aeroplane safety information, both internal and external, in
conjunction with the safety management system;

the qualifications of flight a2nd cabin crews; and

the maintenance of a current operations ltorary.

(3) Person Responsible for Aircraft (PRA)

(@)

Qualifications

The PRA shall, as & minimum -

(i}

{1}

(i}

{iv}

http:f;’caa.mylcxisncxis.c0,zafCanacnthontem?navigaticnString. " Domainid"

have or have held an aircraft maintenance engineer (AME) licence, issued in terms
of Part 66, or -

{@a) at least have training and experience that may qualify the individual two
obtain an AME Heence;

hold or have held a pliot licence and ratings appropriate to the asropianas
being operated or demonstrate adequate knowledge of the maintenance of
such aergplanes; or

(bb}

hold an engineering degree in aeronautics, electrical, mechanical or avionics
or ather studies relevant to aircraft maintenance with 5§ years experience in
the aviation domain after obtaining that qualification ;

{ce)

have at least two years’ experience in an executive position within aviation, or at
least as a Quality Assurance Manager within the aviation domain;

have worked directly with the SACAA for at jeast one year and have not baen the
Quality Manager of the assigned maintenance organisation; and

within the preceding 5 vears, have not held a similar position at any different
aviation-relsted organisation where the approval isstred by the Director has been
suspended or cancelled by the Director or the Minister as a result of the
organisation failing to comply with the requirements of the Act,

sd
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{b} Responsibifities
The PRA Is responsible for safe aeroplane operations, in particular -

(i} is responsibie for all maintenance and inspaction personnel and slgning of Part D
of the operations speclfications;

(i} ensures that company alrcraft are malintained in an alrworthy condition;

(i} ensures that all inspections, repairs and component changes are accomplished In
accordance with the manufacturer's approved procedures;

(iv} ensures compliance with maintenance procedures, sirworthiness directives,
service bullatins, service letters and the regulations;

{v} ensures all maintenance technicians are trained and current on the types of
aircraft for which approved;

(vi) ensures that all maintenance technitians are certified and supervised according to
the requirements specified in the regulations;

{vii} is responsible for the production and amendment of the policy and procedures
manual;

{viii} co-ordinates with maintenance contracting agencies when maintenance activities
are being performed on company aircraft;

{ix} provides the aperations manager with the current airworthiness status of the
aircraft and the forecast down times to facifitate maintenance scheduling and
insure timely deferral or correction of sircraft discrepancias;

{x} malntaing a ¢lose liaison with manufacturer’s representatives, parts supply
houses, repair facilities and the SACAA;

{xi} makes available te maintenance personnel the necessary overhaul manuais,
service bulleting, service ietters, airworthiness directives, applicable sections of
the MCM/MPM and any other required fechnical data;

{xil} maintains all necessary work recerds and logbooks, including certification in the
aircralt permanent maintenance records that the aircraft is approved for eeturn to
service:

{(xlii) maintains the mass and balance records for all aircraft; and

{xiv) completes ail required reports and submits them to the operations manager for
forwarding to the SACAA.

{4} Chief Pilot

Nole - Where an pperstor appoints & chigf pitot for each aeroplane type operated, it must
ARmMe one persan in its operations manual who is responsibie for the overali Right standards of
the operator's aeroplane fleet. Notwithstanding, the ogualifications and responsibilities
stipuiated befow shall apply Fo all chief pifots,

{a} Qualifications
The chief pilot shall, as & minimum -

(i} hold a valid ATPL, a valid multi-engine asroplane instrument Fating and a type
rating for at least one of the types of aeroplanas operated;

(i} have at least 3 years aeroplane experience as piot-in-command of a multi-engine
agroplane of a iype opsrated by the operator and In the type of operations
contemplated (domestic, international, Cargo, passenger};

{1} be qualified for line flying on one of the types of aeroplanas onerated;

261 6?085»{&__.
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Memorandum

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS
Human Resources

To: Chairperson of the SAA Board
From: General Manager: Human Resources
Cc: Acting CEO

Date: 1 October 2015

Subject: APPOINTMENT OF MR. KENDY PHOHLELI

Dear Chairperson
APPOINTMENT OF MR. KENDY PHOHLELI

The resolution of the Board regarding Mr. Kendy Phohleli's appointment in the Manager of the
Chairperson’s Office and the Chairperson’s request that Mr Phohleli's contract be extended for a
further period of 3 years in the Commercial Division refers.

1. Extension of Mr. Phohleli contract for a further period of three years

In terms of our fiduciary duty as management, it is important to highlight our concerns with regard
to the request that Mr Phohleli’s contract be extended for a further period of 3 years in the
Commercial Division. The request contradicts the Company’s, policies and governance
procedures on the following grounds:

a. Contractual compliance and Labour budget deviation

i. Mr Phohleli's contract expired on the 30th September 2015. As such there is no valid
and approved position in Commercial to accommodate the extension

ii. As such no budget for the remainder of the financial year has been provided for an
extension of the contract and a significant deviation from the approved budget would
materialize.

i In any event, the addendum to Mr. Phohleli’s fixed term contract states that there shall
be no further extensions of his contract, which terminated on the 30th September 2015,
following the previous 6 extensions of his contract

b. Section 189 Rationalisation Process in SAA
i. Key to the section 189 notice submitted to Labour and employees, the Company

committed to ensuring that retrenchments would be mitigated or minimised by not

Directors

DC Myeni* (Chairperson), M Katawe (Chief Exgcutive Officer), WH Meyer (Chisf Financial Officer), A Khumalo™, N. Kubeka*, ¥ Kwinana*,
R Lepule®, A Mabizela*, B Mpondo*, R Naithani*{Indian), C Roskruge*

*Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary — Sandile Dlamini W Y
South African Airways S0C Lid Reg. No. 1997/022444/30
-
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renewing fixed term contracts in existence so as not to compromise permanent

employees who may be affected.
i. If the Company were to extend Mr. Phohleli’s contract, the Company would attract an

adverse response from Labour.

c. Conclusion
i. For these reasons any extension of Mr. Phohleli’s current contract would compromise

the Commercial Division's labour costs and contravene SAA’s compliance and

governance principles and would have the following implications:

» SAA will demonstrate that it does not respect Labour as a key social partner

* SAA does not abide by its undertakings

e The good strides and progress made by the Company with Labour in developing
and sustaining a respectful and sound relationship will erode.

+ SAAwould face potential disputes which would be adjudicated at the CCMA or even
the Labour Court.

2. The resolution of the Board refers.

The Board resolved that Mr. Kendy Phohleli be appointed in the office of the Chairperson with
effect from 01 October 2015 to replace Mr. Barry Parsons.

The process and timelines described below will be followed in executing the Board resolution. The
process below is informed by the consuitations that were held with labour parties under the section
188 Rationalisation process. As an outcome of the consultations, collective agreements were signed
with Labour parties and the appointed Management representatives representing Managers in
consuitations in July and August 2015. The collective agreements, inter-alia, specify the process of
advertising and appointments within the Company in the execution of the Rationalisation Process,
including any existing vacancies that must be filled.

In compliance with the agreements, the following process will be embarked upon to ensure that the

matter is dealt with speedily as the urgency is understood:
¢ The governance process in terms approval will be completed tomorrow, 02 October 2015

¢ The advert will be placed on Monday , 05 October 2015 and this will run for 8 days

e Mr. Phohleli may apply for the position

e The shortlisted candidates will be interviewed on the 13" October 2015

» The process will be finalised by no later than the 16" October

e It should be noted that as per the agreements reached with labour, preference will be given
to affected employees

The above process will not be a deviation from what has been agreed to with labour and will in no
way compromise the section 189 process currently under way.
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3. Recommendation

It is recommended that the position be advertised. Mr. Phohleli can apply and may be appointed
within the process agreed to with Labour. This will minimise the risk of potential disputes which would
be adjudicated at the CCMA or even the Labour Court.

Compiled by Date: Recommended by Date:
Lourens Erasmus Nivy Moodley
Head of Employee Relations Acting GM: Human

Resources

Approved by

Ms Dudu Myeni
Chairperson of the SAA Board Date:
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Ruth Kibuuka <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>

Sent: Monday, 05 October 2015 13:04

To: Nivy Moodley; Thuli Mpshe

Cc: Siyakhula Vilakazi

Subject: RE: Board Resolution - Re: Extension of the Contract Kendy Pholeli
Attachments: FW Appointment of Mr. Kendy Phohleli in the Office of the Chairperson
Hi Nivy,

Thanks for the attached.

Please see my comments in Red below. | think it is important for all parties mentioned to agree on the accuracy of the
sequence of events,

Regards

Ruth Kibuuka | Company Secretary

4 Mobite: +27 083 531 6004 | e Phone: +2711-878-6553 | B Eax #2711 978-1085 | 24 E-Mail: RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com
Floor 6,Block A Airways Park,OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Nivy Moodley

Sent: 05 October 2015 12:08 PM

To: Thuli Mpshe; Ruth Kibuuka

Cc: Siyakhula Vilakazi

Subject: Board Resolution - Re: Extension of the Contract Kendy Pholeli

Dear Acting CEO and Company Secretary

Further to the instruction to execute the Board Resolution of the 28 September 2015 with respect to the Extension of
Mr Kendy’s Pholeli’s contract, | wish to record | have not yet received the minutes of the said meeting. The minutes of
the meeting in question were not requested, rather an extract from the minutes on the matter regarding Kendy's
appointment. This was provided to the Acting CEO on 01 October as per the attached email.

Notwithstanding the above, based on the request of the Acting CEO to respond to the Chairperson of the Board in this
regard, Memo 1 dated 1 October 2015 was submitted to the Office of the Acting CEO.

Mrs Nivy Moodley was subsequently invited to a meeting on 2" October by Yolanda Barron. At this meeting the
Chairperson of the Board, the Acting CEQ, the Company Secretary and the Chair of the Internal Audit and Risk
Committee were present. The Chairperson of the Board thanked Mrs Nivy Moodley for the Memo 1 and proceeded to
issue a directive to Mrs Nivy Moodley to implement the Board Resolution of the 28 September 2015 in respect of the
extension of the cantract of Kendy Pholeli. In response to this instruction, Mrs Nivy Moodley reiterated to all parties
present that in the line with HR governance processes and in terms of Section 189 process the following is required to
be signed off by the Chairperson of the Board as there is no valid and approved position in the Commercial Division to
accommodate the extension:

1. Approval of the amended organogram

2. Confirmation of budget for the extension of Kendy’s contract.

| ya—
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Subsequently, Mrs Nivy Moodley hand delivered Memo 2 dated, 2 October 2015 to the Company Secretary who
presented it to the Chairperson of the Board. You will recall that you requested me to present the memo to the
Chairperson, which | declined as this was a matter between the two of you, and she was waiting for you to provide her
with your response. You then proceeded to leave it in my office to go collect your bags. On your return you found the
Chairperson in my office and the two of you discussed the Memo. The Chairperson of the Board declined to sign the
memo and instructed Mrs Nivy Moodley to prepare the contract as follows:- (attachment Minutes — Ruth}:- The list of
items mentioned below, does not comprise minutes as defined. Rather it is a list of items that the Chairperson
requested you to carry out. Referring to this list as minutes may be misleading.

1. Extend the contract to 3 years, if need be add to the contract new assignments

2. Nivy to sign Kendy’s contract and provide copy to the chair on Monday , 5 October 2015,

3. Unblock Kendy’s access card to enable him to have access to the buiiding, in order to report to the

Chairperson’s office
4. Reinstate Kendy’s email and cell phone facilities.

| wish to record the above instruction is contrary to SAA’s Governance processes.

In terms of Corporate Governance, the position of Acting GM :HR reports to the Acting CEO. | am therefore not in a
position to execute an instruction outside my reporting line.

Should | be instructed to execute the Board Resolution | would like to lodge my concerns and reservations with all
Jarties,

Kind Regards
Nivy Moodley | HOD Learning and Development | SAA Academy of Learning

oy Phone: +2711-978-3084 | 24 E-Mail: NivyMoedley @flysaa.com
Room 102, Corporate Development Center- Johannesburg- South Africa

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mai]
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.fl ysaa.com/za/en/policies_and Disclaimers.action#Email
Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent to you.
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Thuli Mpshe «<ThuliMpshe @flysaa.com>
Sent: Friday, 21 August 2015 21:42

To: Thembi Mngomezufu

Subject: FW: Employment Contract Status
Sensitivity: Private

fyi

Thuli Mpshe | GM: Human Resource | Human Resources

¥ phone: +2711 978-2525 i ME-MaiI: ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com
8th Fioor,C Block, Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

-rom: Kendy Phohleli

Sent: 21 August 2015 04:33 PM

To: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: RE: Employment Contract Status
Sensitivity: Private

Dear Thuli,

Thanks for the discussion foday.

Fwill discuss further with Suretha as per your recommendation as she is Acting ¢n behalf of
Sylvain,

As | mentioned to you, | do have my concerns if this is the appropriate channel as Suretha
is uniikely to make long-term decisions and the issue is beyond the contractuai side only.

I have listad out my concerns, the background and the possible solutions below. | will have to
consider what other options are available to me after the discussion with Suretha.

{nd regards

Kendy Phohleli | Executive Africa Hub Project | Commercial

‘9 Mobile: +27-71-898-1325 | ¥ phone: +27 11 978-9936 | xd E-Mai: KendyPhohleli@flysaa.com
Airways Park, OR Tambo international- Jochanneshurg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Kendy Phohieli
Sent: 19Aug15 16:52

To: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: Employment Contract Status
Importance: High

Sensitivity: Private

Dear Thulli,

| am looking forward to meeting with you in person this as | would like to highlight the issue of

a4
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my current employment contract with SAA.

At present my role within SAA has been to coordinate, review and implement our West Africa
Hub Strategy, a role | took on in September 2014.

Parallel to the progress and success of the West Africa Hub Strategy, | have over the past 12
months also started getting involved with SA Technical, Cargo, Mango and the Board itself to
identify and develop other African growth opportunities.

Specifically | amiwas involved with Dr Tambi and Barry Parsons to develop an updated Africa
Growth Strategy and am working on current business opportunities in Ghana, Nigeria, Ivory
Coast and in East Africa on behalf of the SAA Group.

My current fixed term contract comes to an end on 30 September and | was expecting this to
be reviewed and renewed. Given the consistent experience | have had where my role and
contributions to SAA are not valued by the GM Commercial Sylvain Bosc, the contract is
unlikely to be renewed uniess there is intervention.

I have applied for 2 permanent roles within Commercial over the past year, none for which |

was interviewed for or received any feedback for. This was disappointing considering that |
successfully ran the entire Commercial Department for 8 months and have lots of measurable
achievements to display which the prior GEQs and Boards have acknowledged and appreciated.

‘he unfortunate outcome and consequence of not having both a accountable person for the
Africa Growth Strategy and not having a Chief Strategy Officer to oversee implementation,

will likely result in all current efforts and ongoing focus on Africa expansion quickly come to an
end despite this being one of our most critical opportunities to get the airline back to profitability.

| would therefore kindly request for your consideration for myself to be considered for the vacant
role of Chief Strategy Officer, a role which will ensure focus is retained and momentum is
expedited for the SAA Groups expansion plans in Africa, something | am already closely familiar
with. As you are aware, | also have a host of other experience on the Commercial, Aero Political
and Stakeholder Relations aspects of the airline industry where | am equally able to contribute.

I look forward to discussing the above with you in person and at your earliest convenience.
Kind regards

Kendy Phohleli | Executive Africa Hub Project | Commercial

3 Mobile: +27-71-898-1325 | P phone: +27 11 978-9936 | wE-MaH: KendyPhohleli@flysaa.com
Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof,
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies and Disclaimers.action#Email
-Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent to you.
2 Q@J\ %
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From: Thuli Mpshe

Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2015 3:52 FM

To: Sylvain Bosc <SylvainBosc@flysaa.com>; Thembl Mngomezuly <ThembiMn'gomezulu@ﬁysaa.oom>- Nivy
& Relations) <LourensE@flysaa.coms.

Moodiey <NivyMoodley@flysas.com>; Lourens Erasmus (Employe
Subject: FW: Africen Growth Strategy and Implementation Plan,

‘. Near Colleagues
" Jease note my response to the chair on the subject matter,

Regards.

Thull Mpshe { Acting Group CEQ

& phone: +2711 978.2525 | B E-mait: ThuliMpshey
6th Floor,C Block,Afrways Park, OR Tambo Infernafion

ysaa.com
al Airpori- Johennesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Thuli Mpshe
Sent: 16 September 2015 03:49 PM
To: Dudu Myen! ,
Ce: M Dudu (dudumyeniitelkomsa.net); Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana; Tony Dixon (tonydie
bonvdixonGitel Kgimsaet); John Tambi ; Ruth Kibuuka
= bject: FW: African Growth Strategy and Implementation Plan.
) )
Y. _kar Chair

Thank you for your trailing e-mall regarding the above matter.

Further to the July 2015 Board meeting where the African Growth Strategy (the “Strategy”)
was provided to the Board; SAA management formally submitted the Strategy for the
August 2015 Board meeting, which was a matter for noting. The Strategy submission was
compiled and headed by Barry Parsons with input from the SAA Management teams from
Strategy, Commercial, SAA Technical and SAA Cargo. The submission furthermore

contained input from Dr Tambi.

The African Growth Strategy provides an overview pertaining to competition and the
applicable aero political landscape. The Strategy, furthermore, identifies the priority

markets for growth and also highlights the specific initiatives which urfently underway 4
i |
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TOr NETWOrk growtn (ied by Lommercial) and the strategic growth initiatives of SAA v "W

Technical and SAA Cargo.

s per the Board meeting of 26 August 2015, members of the Boa rd deferred the subject
rategy session scheduyledfor

‘a meeting held at Airways Park on 7 September 2015, that Commercial has been

4 unavaiiable to further discuss points raised by Dr Tambi. My office has subsequentiy

| requested the GM for Commercial to schedule a mutually convenient time between py
Tambi and himself, should any matter, not already addressed directly between Dr Tambi
and Kendy Phohleli, require further deliberation. | am advised that the GM for
Commercial’s office has directed requests to ascertain to Dr Tambi's availability for sucha

meeting.

"1 wish to assure members of the Board that this matter is receiving top priority within SAA

should also be noted that Kendy’s fixed term contract expires on 30 September 2015
- Ithough his last day In the office will be prior to this due to untaken leave, His curren.
f{position (Executive Africa Hub Project) is/fwas “mission-relateq” (related to the now
f|established operation between Ghana and the USA). Clause B (1) of the addendum to his

l| Fixed Term Contract states that “there shail be no further extension of the Main Agreement
His current contract, thus, cannot pe extended for the

{l.for any reason whatsoever”,

1) termination clause as per his current contract from a governance and compliance
perspective; It is important to note that Kendy's contract has been extended 6 times

since the first engagement in October 2013; and__
2) no provision has been made, following the headecount rationalisation Process, for his

current role to further exist as the purpose of his role has been completed and
further operational and execution activities will reside within the ambit of the GM for

Commerecial.
i

»vly office has in the interim been advised that Kendy applied for the Chief Strategy Officer

} vacant position; a position currently following due recruitment process, as resolved at the

[ last REMCO meeting of 18 August 2015. He will, furthermore, be provided with a list of a|
' advertised HoD positions within SAA currently open for applications and his interests will

be considered in line with company requirements.

| 1trust that you find the above in order and be assured of our best intentions.

Regards,

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CED

¥ phone: +2711 6782525 | B E.pat ThuliMpshe@fhisaa.c
8th Floor,C Block,Afrways Park, OR Tambo Intsrations] Abport
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K

Ce: Yakheijnm‘-; akfek o,

Richeliovinana co. :

Dear Acting CEOQ
Africa strategy and implementation pian

¥'s (who is pert of the Africa IDAnagement team), contract

1 am also informed that Mr Kend
expires tormorrow and is not to be renewed. I am not comfortable thai we are letting
resources leave the compauy who might be a necessary element of the Africa strategy

implementation,

Until such time we have considered the comprehensive implementation Plan, and what
) i cannot possibly make a rationa] decision of the

day that Mr Kendy will not be released until a

Please can I have your assurance before end of
een approved by the board,

- proper assessment of our requirements have b
e end of the month, we shalj request forg

Please note, at the Board strategy review at th
special board meeting for 2 hours to consider outstanding matters and g dry run for ag AGM

) <‘ Kind regards

Ms Dudn Myeni
Phone :035 789 5499
Email: g Yenifz
Ms Dudu Myeni
Executive Chairperson
Phone: 035 789 5499
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>

Sent: Tuesday, 06 October 2015 23:12
Duduzile Myeni; Dudu Myeni; Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana; Tony Dixon

To:
{tonydixon@telkomsa.net) (tonydixon@telkomsa.net): John Tambi (johnt@nepad.org);
Wolf Meyer

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: FW: Board Resolution

Attachments: IMPLEMENTATION OF BOARD RESOLUTION.docx; FW Appointment of Mr. Kendy

Phohleli in the Office of the Chairperson

Dear Board Members

Trust this email finds you well.
It is our humble request that we comply with the governance and policies of the

~ company as per the attached submission. We are willing to action the board
' 2solution In respect of the appointment of Kendy on the proviso that we are
compliant. The necessary documentation will be forwarded to Ruth for
completion and thereafter the request will be actioned.
We humbly request your support in this regard,
Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEQ

& phone: +2711 978-2525 | ® £_pMail: ThuliMpshe @flysaa.com

6th Floor,C Block, Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johanpesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

. "’-nm: Nivy Moodley
{{ nt: 06 October 2015 07:06 PM

“ro: Thuli Mpshe
Subject: Board Resolution

Dear Acting CEG
Please find attached my response with reference to the implementation of the Board Resolution.

Regards
Nivy Moodley | HOD Learning and Development | SAA Academy of Learning

& Phone: +2711-978-3084 | o E-Mail: NivyMoodley@flysaa.com

Room 102, Corporate Development Center- Johannesburg- South Africa

Nivy Moodley | HOD Learning and Development | SAA Academy of Learning

1 ’
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& Phone: +2711-078-3084 | B E_ptait NivyMoodley@flysaa.com

Room 102, Corporate Development Center- Johannesburg- South Africa

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted, Any disclosure of confidentia] or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its

intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
olicies_and Disclaimers.action#Email

Disclaimer which may be found at hitp://www.flysaa.com/za/en/p
-Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to w@w and a copy will be

sent to you.
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Ruth Kibuuka <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>

Sent: Thursday, 01 October 2015 16:21

To: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: FW: Appointment of Mr. Kendy Phahleli in the Office of the Chairperson
Dear Thuli,

Please see trailing email for your attention.

Regards

Ruth Kibuuka | Company Secretary

I Mobile: +27 083 531 6004 | = Phone: +2711-078-6553 | % Fax: +2711 978-1056 I = E-Mail: RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com
Floor 8,Block A Airways Park,OR Tambo intemnational- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Mabana Makhakhe

Sent: 01 October 2015 03:32 PM

To: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: Appointment of Mr, Kendy Phohleli in the Office of the Chairperson

Dear Mrs. K,

There were extensive preceding comments about expiring contracts which were extended at the behest of the
Chairperson for Mr. Meyer and Mr. Parsons and thereafter the resolution below was taken.

It was RESOLVED that Mr. Kendy Phohleli be appointed in the office of the Chairperson to replace Mr. Barry
Parsons effective 01 October 2015,

Kind Regards,
Mabana Makhakhe | Deputy Co. Secretary | Company Secretary

9 Mobife: 083 278 8488 | L Phone: +2711-978-5812 | & Fax: +2711-978-6161 | 2] E-Mail: MabanaMakhakhe @flysaa.com
Reom 110, 1st Floor, Block F, Airways Park OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- South Africa

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or docs not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and_Disclaimers.action#Email
-Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent to you.

L
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***important communication where Mevyer and Bosc discuss disagreements with board resolution

From: Sylvain Bosc

Sent: Friday, October 09, 2015 11:06 AM

To: Wolif Meyer <WolfMevyer@flysaa.com>

Subject: Fwd: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

FYI
Envoyé de mon iPhone

Début du message transféré :

Expéditeur: Viwe Soga <ViweSoga@flysaa.com>

Date: 9 octobre 2015 09:37:50 UTC+2

Destinataire: Sylvain Bosc <SylvainBosc@flysaa.com>
Objet: Rép : Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

Hi Sylvain
Sorry just to go back to this e-mail from yesterday.

The Companies Act {section 74) requires that any decision by a Board which takes place outside of a
formal and properly constituted Board meeting may only be adopted by written consent of a
majority of the directors, provided that each director has received notice of the matter to be
decided. These practices are unfawful.

From: Viwe Soga

Sent: 08 October 2015 09:40 AM

To: Sylvain Bosc

Subject: RE: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

Ruth’s explanation here is ridiculous. If a matter has not been circulated 1o all directors then one
cannot say that a lawfully constituted meeting was heid in the first place!

From: Sylvain Bosc

Sent: 08 October 2015 09:38 AM

To: Viwe Soga

Subject: FW: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

Viwe, FYl ; we will have to challenge some “resclutions” that have been made unlawfully, | believe,
by the Chair without proper consultation.
'l keep vou posted.

Syivain Bosc [ Chief Commercial Cfficer | Commercial

Phone: +2711-978-9935 /17321  E-Mail: SylvainBosc@flysaa.com
Room 323, Block A, Airways Park, OR Tambo Intermational- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

N 2z
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From: Ruth Kibuuka

Sent: 06 October 2015 04:30 PM

To: Wolf Meyer; Sylvain Bosc

Cc: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: RE: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

Dear Wolf,

You are quite right that all directors have a right to agree or disagree with any resolution that may
he raised at a sitting of a Board or Committee meeting. However any disagreement/disapproval and
for comments on the resolution can only be taken into account if raised during the course of the
meeting whilst the item is being discussed, so that they are properly recorded in the presence of all
present. Any comments or afterthoughts outside the meeting unfortunately cannot be considered
as part of the official record of the meeting.

Hope the above clarifies.

Regards
Ruth Kibuuka | Company Secretary

Mobile: +27 083 531 6004 | Phone: +2711-878-6553 |  Fax: +2711 §78-1055 | E-Mail:

RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com
Floor 6,Block A Airways Park,OR Tambo international- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Wolf Meyer

Sent: 06 October 2015 04:15 PM

To: Ruth Kibuuka; Sylvain Bosc

Cc: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: RE: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

Dear Ruth

Surely such resolution must be circulatad to all directors in order for all directors to express their
vote, whether agreeing or disagreeing to the resolution. | think it is important to have on record
which directors agree and which do not agree. | certainly have not had the opportunity to vote on
any of all these newly imposed resclutions. | am quite positive that this practice is not in iine with

good corporate governance.

Bast regards

Wolf Meyer | CFO

Mobile: +2771-171-2345|  Phone: +2711-878-15156|  E-Mai: WolfMever@flysaa.com
4th floor, block C Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- South Africa

From: Ruth Kibuuka

Sent: 06 October 2015 04:10 PM

To: Sylvain Bosc

Cc: Thuli Mpshe; Wolf Meyer

Subject: RE: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

Dear Sylvain, ' - [ Z
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We can confirm that the Delegation of Authority was discussed on 28" September as indicated on
the extract.

In terms of the Board Charter, the quorum necessary for the transaction of business of the Board of
directors is a majority of directors. The AA Board currently comprises of 5 directors, making 3
members the majority.

Regards

Ruth Kibuuka | Company Secretary

Mobile: +27 083 531 6004 | Phone: +2711-978-6553 | Fax: +2711 976-1055 | E-Mail:

RuthKibuuka @flysaa.com
Floor 6.Block A Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SCUTH AFRICA

From: Sylvain Bosc

Sent: 06 October 2015 03:57 PM

To: Ruth Kibuuka

Cc: Thuli Mpshe; Wolf Meyer

Subject: Re: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

Dear Ruth

If I'm not mistaken, this conversation on the Delegation of Authority was held on Tuesday Sep 29
(and not 28 as stipulated on the attached document ).

On that particular day | don't think the meeting can technically be called a Board meeting, given that
we only had 3 Board members in attendance and no formal vote was organized.

Can you please confirm what the company governance says on this?
Thanks a lot for your help
Best regards

Sylvain

Envoyé de mon iPad

Le 6 oct. 2015 a 15:47, Dikeledi Raboroko <DikelediRaboroko @flysaa.com> a écrit :
Dear Exco and Manco Members

Kindly find attached Board decision on the DOA for your attention.

Kind regards
Dike
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Dikeledi Raboroko | Personal Assistant to Company Secretary | Company Secretary

Mobile: 0763000063 | Phone: +2711-978-2763 | <image003 jpg=E-Mait:

DikelediRaboroko@flysaa.com
Room 801, Floor 8, Block A, Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is
intended solely for the addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy,
distribute or disclose the included information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted.
Any disclosure of confidential or privileged information transmitted herewith may result in
legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof. While all reasonable steps
have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted clectronicaily,
SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the
standard SAA E-mail Disclaimer which may be found at
http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and Disclaimers.action#Fmail .Should you not have
access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be
sent to you.

<Reduction of the Delegation of Authority.pdf>

A
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Fwd Draft special Board Minutes-20150929

From; Sylvain Bosc
sent: 03 November 2015 05:17 PM

To: Viwe 5So0ga

Ccc: wolf Meyer; Thuli Mpshe

Subject: Fwd: Draft Special Board Minutes-20150929
Attachments: special Bod Minutes-20150929.doc; ATTO000L.htm
Dear Viwe

-2 out of 5 Directors were missing, 2 out of 4 non exec Directors
- there was no agenda (the Chair rejected the one we proposed)

- there was no vote on any of the "discussions”

- no document was prepared or submitted for consideration.

I believe we should qualify it as a "meeting with Board members" but not a

"Board meeting”. It is of '
utmost importance that proper gavernance is followed and enforced at all times

Can you please liaise with wolf and ensure that coSec make the appropriate
changes to reflect the true
nature of the discussions ?

I m also going to review the actual notes now.
Best regards,

Sylvain Bosc

Envoyé de mon iPhone

Début du message transféré :

Expéditeur: Mabana Makhalkhe <mabanamakhakhe@flysaa.con-

Date: 3 novembre 2015 16:54:22 UTC+2

Destinataire: buduzile Myeni <dudumyeni@telkomsa.net>,
"'dudum@jacobzumatoundation.org.za' (dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org.za)"
<dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org.za>, "vakhe Kwinana2" <vakhe@kwinana.co.za>,
"tonydixon@telkomsa.net" <tonydixon@telkomsa.net>, John Tambi
<johnt@nepad.org>, wolf Meyer <wolfMeyer@flysaa.com>

Cc: Josua du Plessis <Josuaduplessis@flysaa.com>, Lusanda Jiva
<tusandaliya@flysaa.com>, Martin Kemp <Mmartinkemp@airchefs.co.za>, Musa Zwane
<Musazwanel@fiysaa.com>, Nico Bezuidenhout <NicoBezuidenhout@flysaa.com>, Nivy
Moodley <NivyMoodley@fliysaa.com>, Ruth Kibuuka <Ruthkibuuka@flysaa.com>,
Sigakhula vilakazi <Siyakhulavilakazi@flysaa.com>, Thuli Mpshe
<ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>, Ursula Fikelepi <UrsulaFikelepi@filysaa.com>, Tleli
Makhetha <TlelimaMakhetha@flysaa.com>, zuks Ramasia <ZuksRamasia@flysaa.com>,
pPhinda Ncala <PhindaNcala@flysaa.com>, Sylvain Bosc <SylvainBosc@flysaa.com-,
Bev

Kok <BevKok@flysaa.com> )
Objet: praft Special Board Minutes-20150929

Dear Board Members,

Kindly find attached for
meeting held on 29 Septémber 2015.
monday 09 November 2015.

éw, the draft Board minutes for the special
May we please have your comments by

we would T1ike to apologise for the late circulation of the minutes.

Kind Regards,

Mabana
Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally

privileged. It is intended solely for the addressee. If this e-mail is not

intended for L ) ) ] .
you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclese the included information to anyone

and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or
privileged . . ) .
information transmitted herewith may result in Tegal proceedings being

Page 1
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Fwd Draft Special Board Minutes-20150929
instituted
against the recipient hereof. while all reasonable steps have been taken to
ensure
the accuracy and inteﬁrity of all data transmitted electronically, SAA does not
accept Tiability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach
1ts
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is
subject to the standard SAA E-mail Disclaimer which may be found at
http://www.f?ysaa.com/za/en/po1icies_and_nisc1aimers.action#Emai1 .Should you
not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisciaimer@flysaa.com
and a copy will be sent to you. ’

Page 2
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SOUTH AP AWATS
A Privale and Confidential

__For intamal use only

[TO: | SAABOARD OF DIREGTORS
[FROM: __'.Act':hg Chief Executive Officer

TDATE: |20 AUGUST 2015

FOR THE SAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO NOTE THE AWARD OF RFP/GSM044/2015
FOR THE PROVISION OF CATERING SERVICES FOR SAA PREMIUM LOUNGES AT
OR TAMBO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (ORTIA) TO LSG SKYCHEFS SOUTH AFRICA

(PTY)LTD.

PURPOSE

To notify the BAA Board of Directors of the awarding of the Provisioning of Cafering Sarvices
for SAA Premium Lounges at OR Tambo inlemational to LEG Skychefe South Afilca {Pty}
Ltd, for & peried of three years (l.e. from 01 September 2015 to 31 August 2018), et an
estimated amount of R85 818 783.66, Inclusive of VAT, further to the finalisation of a due
tender process. Nolwithslanding that the award is within the Acting CEQ's DoA, the Board is
duly nofified of the award due to the fact that a third party will be parforming servives
previously rendered by S8AA's subsidlary company, Alr Chels.

BACKGROUND

SAA’'s lounge customer value proposition (product and service) has 1o date been provided
by EAA's subsidiary, Alr Chefs, The food and beverages on offer ara specified In line with
customer needs, preferences and expectations. Over fima, SAA has experienced a ssvere
delerioration In the quality and standard of product and service delivery offered by Air Chets,
based on premium ousiomer complaints In respect of the cuslomer value proposition at
ORTIA's lounges, which are ranked as high-value customas touch pointe.

The negaiive customer experience has not only detimentally affeclsd SAA from a
reputational and commercia] perspective, but has also resulted in S8AA'e premium customers

beginning io use the SLOW lounge (British Airways customer value propasftion), which is
SAA's competitor,

Considering thet the SAA Voyager member base spand was B 3.99 billion in FY15 fwhich
constifted 23.18% of SAA Fassenger Revenue, excluding fuel levies and surcharges, i.e,
the base fare), from a stratagic risk perspective, it bacame necessary for declsiva aclion to
be taken io addrass tha customer value proposition shortfalls for this premium customer
segment In order to ensure customer retantion. Several Interactions were held between SAA
and Alr Chefs to find means to improve the level of service delivery achieved howaver, and
notwithstanding these efforts, no improved results were racorded. BAA was, accordingly,

Diractars
DE Myeni* {Chelparsen), WH Moyer (Chie] Firensdgt Dificar, Y Kwinang®, JE Tambl"(Slerss Leonsan), AD Ulon®
4 BTAR ALLIANGE MEMBER £

*Nan-Exacullve Direcior
Company Seorslaty - Ridh Kiniia

Bouth Aftcan Alracys SOC Led HAep. No. THI02242400
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faced with no option but to take a daclslon to go out on a confined tender to achieve the
desirad customar value proposition expeciad for this premium custemer sagment.

The declsion was further anhanced by the need to present a world-class product, same
which was & critical deliverable in the agreemant with between SAA and investac Bank

{SAA's partner who provided the necessary capital Investment for the overhaut and upgrade
of the SAA premnlum lounges).

Hasponses o this RFP ware received from Air Chels, L5@ Skychels and Dnala - Newrest.
Food Direction and Plnnacls Inoubator Hub declined the request to bid.

Due procursment process was followed in respect of which ali recelved responses were
evaluated. In this regard, the incumbent current service pravider, Alr Chefs, falled to meet
ihe Initial minimum threshold In the tender and was uneble to proceed to furlher evaluation

stages.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

MEM-092

Inc VAT Inel VAT

Score for Pricing {S0) &;1' ing) VAT lnol VAT

Bid Price {negoliated) :; A8 358 480.76 | RE5 B18 703.66 | A111 336 838.17 | R111 336 938,17 |

+ The final offar presentad by LSG Skychefs South Africa (Pty) Lid is inclusive of VAT.
« CPI increase In year two of the contracl; the impact is to be shared equally 80%

{average of the preceding 12 monihs}.
» CPIl increase in year three of the contract; LSG Skychefs South Africa (Piy) Lid wilt cover
o5e of the CPl Impaclt whils SAA will cover the remaining 75% {averags of the

praceding 12 months),
A saving of A2 538 £87.10 was echieved after negaotiations with the recommended bidder.

SAA has projected approximately 474 500 paesengers in loungas per annum. There is &
possiblity of growth in lhe passenger number year on year should naw airiines coniract to
use SAA foungss. Should this take place; L8G Skychefs South Africa (Ply) Lid has offered

the following paasenger Volume Discount;

Annual Base _ | 474 500 - e ]
 Discount Percentage . | PaxFrom _ Paxto T M |
2% Disoount 480000 . . 1 B0B 000 '
3%Dlscount | S00001 520 000

| 4% Discount “|'sapool 1540000

| 5% Discount Ise0001 " (560000
B%Di&ount 550001 Onwarms

Note: The disecunt will enly ba spplicable ta the per passenger price.
Diratiare

£ Mperd* Gheliperson), WH Meyer {Chiel Financial Officar), Y Kulnang®, JE Tambi*{Siern Leonesn), AD Dixen’
* ABTAR ALLIANDE MEMBER 2"

“Non-Exesiutiva Dimetor

Company Seerelary - Ruth e
Snuth Afican Alrways SDC Ud

fleg. Mo, 199702344430
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Directors Leoaean), AD Dlan
DG Myon! (Chalmessen), WH Mayer {Chiel Rinensial Olficar), v fntnana’, JE Tambl{fiera Leopean), w
A STAR ALLIANCE MEMBER >~

It shoufd also be noted that, as a resuit of the award to LSG Skychefs South Africa {(Pty) Ltd,
thare will be a revenus loss to Air Chefs (estimaled at R18 million per annum) as well as a
negligible negative net profit impact of A1.8 million per annum,

STRATEGIC IMPACT

in glacting to go out on fender, the business carefully consldered the sirategic implications of
Air Chefs possbly nol belng selected as the successful bidder vis-awis the business
imperative of the retention of premium oustomers in a highly competltive market. In addition,
dus consideralion was given to any adverse market parceptions craated through electing to
tender for lounge services, thus carving out & small portion of services randerad by Alr Chefs

In relation to the total BAA account,

FINAL RECOMMENDATION

It is hereby requested that the SAA Board of Directors note the final award to LSG Skychals

South Africa (Ply} Lid, for a period of three years {I.e. from 01 September 2016 to 31 August
2018), at an esimated amount of R85 818 793.66, inclusive of VAT. In this regard, and
furiher 1o a lawlul tender procsss, & third pary will be performing services previously

rendered by SAA’s subsidiary company, Air Chefs,

*Non-Expeutve Dimotor
Conparny Secrelory ~ Ruh Kbuuke

Bouth African Alewveys 500 L4 Rag N 105A0R2430 /\
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Finance Standing Committee

South African Airways (SAA) on Turnaround
Strategy and performance

Create an alert

Get free email alerts when we add new information for this commitiee.
Chairperson: Mr Y Carrim (ANC)

Date of Meeting: 02 September 2015

Summary

The South African Airways (SAA) briefed the Committee on its Long-Ternm Turnaround Strategy (LTTS),
which was implemented in April 2013 in order to address the challenges that SAA had been experiencing. The
implementation of the LTTS had slowed down in 2014, but picked up more recently. There had been
challenges in the implementation, particularly the delay in cancellation of routes and new fleet and lack of
equity injection. The 90 day plan put more focus on the implementation of commercial and financial
interventions, and SAA managed to achieve the cost reduction measures and the network remediation in
Beijing, Mumbai and Abu Dhabi. The LTTS had been refined with a focus on reviewing assumptions, such as
those relating to the fuel prices, and on making adjustments for current internal and competitive realities.
Certain areas needed to be addressed and adjusted in the LTTS. These included an adjustment of the financial
plan, based on the revised exchange rate and fuel price assumptions, the equity injection was no longer
assumed, the headcount rationalisation was included, and there would be more focus on implementation and
performance management, and the reviewing of the Fleet and Network Plan. The Board suggested that the
foeus on cost reduction must be seen 1n the context that the airline unit costs had been permanently under
pressure. SAA had been driving 2 cost compression programume since 2013, and had achieved R2.2 billion
savings to date. and would be continuing to try to reduce by 13% for the next three years. Some of the main
areas had been renegotiation of lease agreements to cut costs, current lease extensions, a people cost reduction
prioritised on headcount rationalisation, savings on procurement and maintenance contracts, and imprevements

in using aireraft.

The 2015 year was marked by a difficult financial environment with external pressures such as the Ebola
crisis and xenophobiz, weakened currency, legacy impairments and financial costs. The current financial year's
challenges included the weakened currency, unintended consequences of the new immigration regulations ,and
more competition. It was still making a loss to the operating results had improved, with revenue levels having
dropped with fares reducing because of oil prices, but it had also succeeded in cutting expenditure.

Several Members were very critical of the current leadership, and some suggested that the current Chairperson
should resign because she had caused some of the difficulties. It was noted that the delegation did not appear to
be particularly well prepared, having failed to anticipate many of the questions that Members had asked, and
the point was also made that these questions had been raised before, with unsatisfaciory answers being
provided. Specific questions were asked about the Emirates deal which was terminated in the last minute, and
it was alleged that a specific instruction 1o do so had been given by the Chairperson after political interference.



MEM-096

This deal could have contributed R1.7 billion to the revenue of SAA. Members said that the Committee should
have been provided with the financial plan for the turnaround, specific timeframes that included financial plans
to generate profit. They wanted to check if SAA had a shareholder compact and whether this shareholder
compact was carefully monitored. There was a growing concern about the fact that most of the officials at
SAA were in acting positions, which did not assist to rectify its instability. Members asked if SAA had
negotiated the fuel price with its supplier as the fluctuation of fuel price was likely to impact on the
expenditure of the institution. Some pointed out that it would be impossible for SAA to rely on further bail-out
from the National Treasury (NT), and suggested that it needed to do projections prior to getting an equity
injection, and work out how it could survive in times of limited capital injection. They questioned the
reasoning behind some of the challenges enumerated, pointing out that the visa regulations could not have
made a substantial different, and SAA was in crisis already before these were introduced, but SAA countered
with detailing the costs lost through having to refuse a seat to passengers. They criticised the lack of any
marketing strategy, wanted a full breakdown of the black industrialists that were doing business with SAA and
the possibility of availing opportunities to women-owned corporations or those with disabilities. They were

also particularly concerned that SAA failed to explain how this current turnaround strategy as different from
the other turnaround strategies that had been implemented in the past, and felt that a hierarchy of cost drivers
should have been presented. They were also upset that the catering tender, instead of being awarded to 2 local
company, had been outsaurced ta a German company and asked how this could happen. The Chairperson
confirmed that it would be necessary o look more closely as to what exactly had been done and suggested a
meeting befween the Minister of Finance, SAA, the l@aﬁmﬁm of Public Enterprises to address the issues
raised. In the meantime, SAA was also asked to respond in writing to the issues.

Minutes

South African Airways (SAA): Long Term Turnaround Strategy briefing

Ms Dudu Myeni, Chairperson of the Board, SAA, indicated that a Long-Term Turnaround Strategy (LTTS)
was implemented in April 2015 and this strategy was created to address the challenges that SAA was
gxperiencing. The implementation of the LTTS slowed down in 2014 and the main challenges that were
experienced then were mainly on the implementation, particularly the delay in cancellation of routes and new
fleet and lack of equity injection. The 90 day plan paid more focus on the implementation of commereial and
fi nancial mterventmns and SAA mnaged to achieve the cost reduction measures and the network mmadi&tmn

SAA had also managed to correct the governance defects, including the revision of the Memorandum of
Incorporations (Mol) and the reviewing of the Materiality and Significance Framework. The LTTS had

Ms Myeni stated that there were still certain areas that needed to be addressed and adjusted in the ETTS. These
included:

- The Financial plan was adjusted, based on revised exchange rate
- The Equity injection was no longer assumad

- A Headcoont Rationalisation was included

- There was increased focus on implementation and performance management
- The Fleet and Network Plan was reviewed

- Provision was made for the current competitive landscape

The refinement was done in consultation with National Treasury {(INT} as well as other government
departments, but - <1 concluded that SAA needed to Zrow
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revenue and reduce costs in order to achieve long-term sustainability.

Mr Joshua du Plessis, Head of Department: Project Management Office, SAA. mentioned that the network
plan was reviewed and refined based on current and forecast demands. According to an Oxford Economics
Study, SAA’s operations had a positive impact on the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of South A frica. The
Fleet Plan was developed, based on the Network Plan, and the Fleet and Network Plans formed the basis of the
strategy and were refined with the support of external specialists. SAA was planning to increase the revenue by
right-sizing capacity and using correct brands in the different markets. The focus would also be on the SAA
brand, on African growth and network optimisation and on growth in regional market, by redeploying SAA
capacity from the domestic market. It was important to take into consideration that there was a potential for
growth in the domestic market by using the low cost segment like Mango. The revenue forecasts were
significantly affected by external factors like market and policy impacts.

Ms Yakhe Kwinana, Chairperson of Audit, SAA, stated that the focus on cost reduction should be looked at in
the context that airline unit costs were permanently under pressure, especially with the “commoditisation” of
the market. SAA had been driving a successful cost Compression Programme since 2013, with R2.2 billion
savings achieved to date. SAA had also achieved a 17% reduction in non-fuel unit costs over the past three
years and would continue its drive to achieve an additional 13% reduction in the next three years. She
described some of the key focus points on cost reductions. Thise muatnly inefuded aircrafi Bost rediliciion by
negotinting o naw fenses and current lease extensions, and a people cost reduction prioritised on headcount
rationalisation, which was still in progress. There had been a realisation of significant procurement contract
savings and maintenance contract negotiations, and there had been improvement in aircraft utilisation. SAA
was planning to save an additional R2 billion or more, for the next three years, as part of its plan to convert the
current Cost Compression Programme into a cost compression culture.

Ms Kwinana indicated that SAA had been operating in a difficult environment in the financial vear ended on
31 March 2015. This year was marked by increased competition, revenue pressure {caused by Ebola and
xenophobiaj and the weakened currency, legacy impairments and financial costs. The challenges in the current
financial year comprised of weakening currency, and the new immigration regulations that were likely to have
unintended negative consequences, as well as intensified competition.

Although SAA was still making a loss, its year-to-date operating results had improved by 43% year on year,
The revenue levels were 11% below the prior year, caused by a significant drop in average fares across the
industry on the back of the fower oil price, competition and the operating environment. The operating cost was
lower and well controlled as expenditure was 9% lower year on year, and this was again assisted by continued
Cost Compression and lower Brent price. The interest charge had increased significantly, due to increased
reliance on debt to meet working capital requirements.

Ms Myeni concluded by saying that SAA was still facing challenges, as indicated in the presentation and these
included weakened currency, intensified competition in the industry and unintended consequences of the
immigration and visa regulations, current capital structure and leadership instability. However, there was also a
good story to be told, and this included the fact that SAA has been rated as the best full service airline in
Africa, whilst Mango had been rated as the best Low Cost Carrier (LCC). There had been an optinisation of
network and fleet, a cost compression culture has been embedded, and operating performance was

improving. The LTTS was refined and its implementation still continued, in a quest to ensure that SAA was
able to operate sustainably,

Discussion

Mr D Maynier (DA) welcomed the presentation on the SAA corporate strategy. One of the main issues that
came out strongly was leadership instability and it seemed that the Chairperson of the Board was “ground-
zero” on the leadership at SAA. He suggested that it would be in the public interest and in the interests of SAA
for the Chairperson to resign. He wanted to know if the Chairperson was willing fo anrounce her resignation
today, as he asserted that all the challenges at SAA emanated from leadership instability. He asked if there was
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a process under way to recruit a permanent Chief Executive Officer (CEO) who had experience and expertise
in the airline industry, so as to be able to turn SAA around.

Mr Maynier

. Everyone wanted to know whether what had been alleged, in the public domain, was
indeed correct, and if it was correct, then the Commitice should know about the reasons for the termination of

the deal.

Mr A Lees {DA) wanted to know about the financial plan on the turnaround strategy, with specific time lines.
All the plans included the financial plan for the generation of the profit. The high cost of bringing the aircraft
conditions up to scratch after the end of the aircraft life needed to be explained. He wanted to kniow more about
the financial impact of the new visa regulations on the operation of SAA, and how large this problem was

likely to be,

Ms P Kekana (ANC) welcomed the presentation and highlighted that the Commitice needed to base every
argument on solid facts and not on rumours and media tabloids, _ . The
cost-cutting measures seemed to focus on factors that largely contributed o the losses, including the
retrenchment of personnel or workers, but did not seem to pay sufficient attention to the smaller points, like the
value for money on the outsourcing of food and beverages, especizglly wine and bottles of water. It was
tmportant to check if there was a shareholder compact at SAA and whether this shareholder compact was
carefully monitored. There was a growing concern about the fact that most of the officials at SAA were in
acting positions. She pointed out that an ailing institution like SAA needed to have permanent officials to

rectify the problem of leadership instability.

Ms Kekana said that it was evident that Mango was becoming profitable at the expense of SAA, especially on
the route between Cape Town and eThekwini, and there was a general feeling that SAA could also become
profitable in this route. It was impressive to hear that SAA was plamming a route to the African continent but it
was not clear at the moment on how this vision could be realised in order {o increase the revenue, She
suggested that the Committee should have a meeting with the Minister of Finance, together with the Board of
SAA, on the issue of the shareholder compact and stable leadership, so that the institution could be able to
operate sustaably.

Ms T Tobias (ANC} mentioned thai the main difficulty about governing was the need to
prioritise implementation. Others could question what had been implemented, and it was possible to encounter
probleras during the implementation. Members' questions were directed to trying to assist SAA in unlocking
the crippling challenges, and it would not be helpful io pretend th Were no cha]lenge% in 1he mqtltutlon
at the moment. ! ap | cfation

: 1t was 1mp0'§31ble for bAA to rely on the
NT for the equlty injection, in order to be operatlona] as the institution needed to do its own projections even
before the equity injection and work out how to survive in times of limited injections. [t must draw a financiai

plan in the event of economic meltdown.

Ms Tobiss thought that the reduction in the outsourcing of food and beverages would be likely not to have »
major impact on the instinztion, but the Committes should be provided with the financial expenditure on that
zspect. There should be a marketing strategy that would entice the consumers to choose 8AA out of other
airlines, including having a stable clientele. 1t was absurd that British Airways was not just running
international flights but also local flights, whilst the same could not be said about SAA in Britain, It was still
unclear how South Africa came to enter into such nonsensical agreements that sought to undermine the
operation of local airlines, as the country was losing the market share. The issue of visa regulations was a new
phenomenon and she questioned whether it could really be having a major impact on SAA, as the institution
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had already been losing billions in the past financial years. She pointed out that the presentation was silent on
the marketing strategy to be nsed by SAA. The reality was that the institution was losing money and its
customers. it was impressive 10 see that Mango was offering free wifi, but the downside was that no food was
included in the fare.

e S e S S NGR =1<! then asked about

the impact of the equity injection on the balance sheet of the institution, and the adequacy of the stop-gap

measures that had been implemented, especially in ensuring that the tumaround envisaged was in fact realised.
In a simplistic form, his question was asking if it was possible for SAA to be turned around without the equity
injection from government. The presentation was particularly silent on the cost that had been incurred as a
result of not partaking in non-commercial activities,

Mr F Shivambu (EFF) asked about the number of personnel who were tikely to be retrenched because of the
cost-containment ieasures that had been introduced. It would be important for the Comniittee to get clear
information on the content of the Emirates deal, and the reason for its termination, as the presentation was
disappointingly silent on the matter. He wanted to know if there was any truth to the story that SAA was
seliing its cargo to Bidvest and if there was a possible retrenchment in this section as well. The Committee
needed to know about the internal procurement policy of SAA, as most of the goods and services that were
utilised in the flights were imported from Denmark, and the priority of SAA shouid be to source those services
inside the country. The presentation should have provided a breakdown of the information on the black
industrialists that were doing business with SAA, and the possibility of availing opportunities to women-
owned corporations or those with disabilities. It might be true that there were challenges of weakened
currency, visa regulations and external matters that could be taken into consideration. However, there were
also internal factors, including the fact that the Chairperson of the Board of SAA was too powerlul and was
capable of firing and hiring anyone as if SAA was a private company. This was the person who was supposed
to be held accountable for the leadership instability in the institution. It seemed that the Members of the ANC
wanted to defend the institution, despite evidence that it was ailing.

Dr M Khoza (DA) doubted if the leadership and management of the SAA was aware of the magnitude of the
problem at SAA, and said that the turnaround strategy was unlikely to succeed without identifying the root
causes of ali the challenges that had been identified. The presentation was not olear as to exactly how the
current tarnaround strategy was different from the previous turnaround strategies that had been implemented in
the past. The presentation should have provided a hierarchy of the cost-drivers in SAA so that Members could
really understand the intensity of the problem. It would have been useful if Members were provided with at
least five key root causes of the problems at SAA and the strategy in place to address those specific challenges.
SAA was operating in a highly competitive environment and therefore it was imperative for the Commistee to
know about the areas that needed to be prioritised ,so as to maximise on profit. It was really disappointing to
see that the presentation largely focused on the symptoms and not the real causes, and the turnaround strategy
usually comes after realisation that the institution was operating at a loss.

Ms D Mahlangu (ANC) mentioned that perhaps part of the reasons why SAA leadership seemed 1o be
eblivious to the magnitude of the problem in the institution was because there was a guarantee from
government that SAA would be bailed out. The issue of leadership instability was the main problem that
needed to be addressed. The current Board was an interim one and the National Treaswy needed to do the
honourable thing and appoint competent and experienced people who would take the institution forward. She
wanted to know if there was a strategy in place to execute the cost-cutting measures that had been
implemented in the context of possible job losses. SAA was operating in a highly competitive environment and
it was iimpossible to only rely on loyaliy of consumers in order to generate sustainable profit. It was high time
that the Board looked at things that had been done by other profitable airlines like Mango. There was a general
sense that the Board was less worried about the problems in SAA, despite the fact that it mentioned that there
would be a reduction on the cost: but there should be a focus on the improvement of the quality of service that
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is offered to its consumers.

The Chairperson appreciated that there was an overwhelming consensus from Members on the number of
challenges that had been mentioned today around SAA. It was indeed correct that the leadership and the Board
of SAA seemed 1o be unaware of the gravity of the challenges at SAA and this was the matter that needed to
be addressed. It was completely unacceptable for Members to be briefed on the fwrnaround strategy without
any mention on the difference between the previous and the current turnaround strategies. to be able to ses
what relationships or differences there were between these strategies. He supported the suggestion to write to
the Minister of Finance on the finalisation of the shareholder compact, as the shareholder compact was used to
evaluate the progress that had been made by an entity. It would be impossible io evaluale the perforrnance of
SAA without the strategic plan and Annul Performance Plan (APP) of the previcus financial year.

The Chairperson wanted to make it clear that it was not possible to blawe the current leadership for the
problems that had been created by the previcus Board members, and government and Parliament needed to
take some measure of responsibility, especially on the failure to carry out the oversight role effectively, The
Committee would need to know about the progress that had been made on the Shareholder Management Bill,
1o define the respective roles of Parliament and the Executive of the State-Owned Euntities (SOTs), as it was
difficult to exercise an effective oversight at SAA at the moment. The Board was certainly not properly
prepared for its appearance before the Committee today. Some of the questions that had been asked by
Members should have been addressed in the presentation itself and it was irrelevant whether those questions
came from the media or the public domain. He agreed that it was indeed absurd that British Alrways was not
Jjust operating international flights but also local flights but the same could not be said zbout SAA operating
locally in Britain. It was still unclear how South Africa had got itself into such agreements that sought to
undermine the operation of local airlines, as the country was losing a market share,

The Chairperson said that Mango had been a remarkable success and part of the reason for this was not
because this was a low cost carrier, but because of the way the carrier was managed and governed. He
suggested that Members of Parliament (MPs) needed to use Mango as part of the cost-cutting measures that
had been infreduced by NT. The issue of visa regulations was indeed very recent and therefore it was unlikely
to have had a significant financial impact on SAA, and Members had correctly pointed out that the institution
had been operating at a loss even before the introduction of the visa regulations. The statistics that had been
released by the Department of Tourism (Do) pointed out that tourist arrivals in the country were higher than
the previous year.

Ms Myeni assured Members that the Board was concerned about what was happening at SAA and the
presentation was based on the instruction that had been provided by the Committee as to what matters should
be covered, including those that were in the public domain or media. There was a general understanding of the
fact that SAA was operating under & competitive environment, She wanted to correct the statement that the
current Board was an interim board, for this was a Board that was taking decisions with the understanding that

there were responsibilities to be executed. There were capable individuals within the Board and it did have the
potential to execute the mandate of — The turnaround
strategy was developed by the leadership of SAA in consultation with the Board. The diagnostic review that

was done by the Department of Public Enterprises {DPE) focused on leadership issues, historical agreements
that were signed in the past and other factors that that were crippling the institution,

Ms Myeni indicated that SAA was paying almost R2 billion per annum for the salaries of the pilots and this
was part of the agreements that the Board was trying its utmost fo unbundle, as they were crippling the
operation of the institution. However, it was almost impossible for the Board to try to review those agreements,
as they were private arrangements. It must be pointed out that SAA had a non-Executive Board, meaning the
Board met four times a year and also met from time to time when there were commitice meetings. The
delegation was to management, to run the business. The airline had always been bailed out by government,
through cash injections, and the institution was dealing with a depleted balance sheet which remained the

major concern of the Board.
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Ms Myeni highlighted that the decisions that had been taken by the previous Board had an impact on the
operation of the airline and these were some of the issues that the current Board also needed to deal with
moving forward. The SAA used to own two aircraft but in 2001, the previous Board took the decision to sell
those aircraft and then leased them back to SAA, in order to generate more revenue and this was stiil one of
those decisions that were affecting the cwrrent Board. It was clear that this decision had a crippling impact on
the airline, as it has already been indicated that one of the major cost drivers at SAA was the leasing of the
aircraft, more so since this was paid in a foreign currency and the market fluctuation was impacting badly on
the operation of the institution. The majority of the challenges at SAA were legacy issues and it would be
unfair to blame the current Board for the decisions and agreements that had been taken and ratified by the
previous Board. The Board had sat down and applied its mind and decided fo negotiate with the aircraft leasing
company, owned by South African companies, and the Board had already started negotiations in order to
ensure that SAA operated in a sustainable manner.

Ms Myeni assured Members that SAA was paying its bills without any default and the airline was payving one
of the highest land costs on a monthly basis, a good premium for the Air Traffic Control (ATC), and was
servicing all the debts, under these difficult conditions. The Board would still require the Committee to discuss
the State Aviation Policy Framework, especially on the next engagement that was suggested by Members. The
whale State Aviation Policy Framework came about when the Board was developing the turnaround strategy.
This was to address the fact that government departments were operating in isclation of each other. The visa
regulations, the landing fees, the fact that the Department of Transport (Do'T) was able to offer licenses to the
competing airlines, and bad landing slots, and support to Brazil Russia India China and South Africa (BRICS)
were all challenges that could be addressed through cooperation between government departments.

Ms Myeni indicated that SAA would be doing its business in an unusual way. In regard {o the analysis on the
Beijing-China route, it was discovered that the airline was losing R30 million per month. There should be a
requirement to undertake an approval process. South Africa benefited immensely from the Beijing-China
route, especially on tourism, and there were many investors from China, therefore the rouie had a
developmental agenda for South Africa, but not as subsiantial a benefit on the operation of the airline. The
Board had requested that the airline needed to also get a share of the benefits from the route, as the country had
made more than R90 billion in terms of development and tourism. SAA was not only operating to be profitable
but in order to be able to break down all the boundaries that were hampering the development of the
institution, in order to facilitate tourism and development for South Africa,

In regard to the impact of the new regulations, Ms Myeni noted that SAA has denied seats to about 400 people
in August who were departing from the country, because of the new visa regulations but the amount that was
{ost by SAA on the visa regulations was unkpown at the moment, There were other airlines who owned
airports, and other airlines that co-owned jet fuel plants, and others had tax leases. SAA was contributing about
R9 billion to the country’s GDP but still paid over R6 billion to the Receiver of Revenue without any defauit.

Mr Maynier interrupted at this point and questioned whether Ms Myeni was answering questions asked by the
Comunittee. Members had asked specific questions and they were expecting specific answers.

The Chairperson indicated that the Chairperson of the Board was at this point giving an overview of the
questions and concerns that had been raised by Members, and all the questions that had been asked would be
responded to, as this was an obligation.

Ms Myeni continued that the Board was cognisant of the fact that the issues in the public domain needed to be
attended to. The changing of leadership was likely o impact on the turnaround strategy that had been
implemested and the challenge had always been on the impfementation of the tumaround strategy. The current
Board had taken into consideration all the previous turnaround strategies that had been implemented and had
taken into account all the relevant matters which could be used in the new turnaround strategy. The new
turnaround strategy was done in consuliation with the stakeholders of SAA, and there had been a workshop as
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part of being inclusive, The Board received the proposal of Emirates airline in January 2013 and the
management was running the whole process. [t must be appreciated that SAA already had a refationship with
Emirates. The Board had raised a concern about the fact that the Emirates deal fell within the own space that
was delegated to Emirates, but this was to ensure that there are all the approval processes that are entered frto.

Mr Maynier wanted to know if the Chairperson did receive a call from President Zuma and then instructed the
Acting CEQ, Ms Thuli Mpshe, to terminate the deal hours before it was due to be signed, as had been alleged
ir: the media.

Ms Kekana interrupted and stated that this was not a commission of inquiry and therefore it was improper to
reduce the engagement to statements based on rumours.

Dr Khoza asked whether the question that had been asked by Mr Maynier had any relevance to the agenda that
was being discussed today. The understanding was that the Comumitiee was focused on the turnaround strategy
of SAA.

Ms Tobias corrected that the executive was supposed to respond to all the questions that would be asked by
Members, and it was irrelevant whether thev were directed to what was on the agenda or not.

Ms Myeni added that SAA was operating in the same competitive space as other airlines Hke Mango but the
institition continued to operate at a loss, and this was the major concern from the Board. It was indeed a
concern that British Airways was allowed to operate in local flights but the same could not be said about SAA
in Britain, and this was where the Department of Transport needed to introduce regulations which would
protect the loeal airlines.

. SAA did have a shareholder compact and the management had provided its view of the
impact on the matter as well as the comments, and the NT would be getting the sharcholder compact before the
end of this week. There was no way that the institution could operate without the sharcholder compact, SAA
would be receiving cash injection of R8.5 billion and this would assist in ensuring that the airline was able to
operate in a fair environment and profitable way.

The information on the sponsoring of events like festivals, rugby and soccer tournaments was within the
knowledge of management and not the Board, but it was important to highlight that SAA was no longer
sponsoring soccer and rugby tournaments or the Jazz Festivals, as this was part of the cost containment
measures. The cost containment measures that had been implemented by the Board were not focused on the
retrenchment of personnel, but on trying to ensurc that SAA was able to operate in a sustainable manner,

Ms Kwinana responded that the Board was happy that Mango was part of SAA and was doing very well and
this could be attributed to favourable conditions, like the fact that Mango was partly subsidised by SAA. There
were also contracts between SAA and Mango which were favourable to Mango. The question that still needed
to be answered was whether Mango could be able to operate independently without SAA, especially when
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considering all the favourable contracts and subsidies. The Board was not complaining about the fact that
Mango was doing well as it was a shareholder of SAA.

She neted that the defegation was responsible for the procurement procass of food and beverages and there was
a catering tender that was awarded 1o s German company. The procurement process for awarding the tender
for food wes focused on prices and other tochnicalities.

Mr Shivambu expressed a concern that SAA had awatded a catering teuder to 2 German company as the fender
was supposed 1o have been awarded to a local compaty.

D Masia

mba Dahwa, Chie roment Officer. SAA, responded that die process was foliowed in the
awarding of the tender for foad to be served on the airtine and there were varions issues that were fooked at
which informed the decision to award the o a German conparny.

1 1

d 10 the question on the

equested the Board to be clear and precise on e response in ¢
bt was alleged to have been awarded to & CGerman corpay.

The Chei BOR
catering fender, ¢
Dr Dahwa replied that the Board started by putting iogether a business case, which is the main driver of any
procurement process. chuwwmmﬁgmmihemdafﬁwmm&meﬁemmwmmpmevzss
wati ihe tender was awarded to 8 German campany, as the tender did mot favour its own susbsidiaries. The

Ms Myenj clarified that the tonder that had boen awarded 1 the Germoany Company :
serviges from SA Cheft, as this company still contiied to provide catering services 1o SAA. on board and orf
Nlight. This new tender was a single one. thal was confined to servicing the loange in ORT fnternati

Adrport.

provided with the samne responses. It was
uggestion that there were no Sauth African

The Chairperson agreed that it was indeed correct that some of the questions that had been asked by Members
were asked before, when SAA was under the scrutiny of the Portfolio Committee on Public Enterprises. The
Board of SAA was stili providing the same responses. The Committee would like to meet with the Minister of
Finance, the Portfolio Committee on Transport and Public Enterprises in the next engagement with SAA. in
order to discuss issues that had been raised by the Board. The Commiitee would also Hke to see the
shareholder compact that had been signed, before the next engagement. The Board would be given all the
questions that still required clarity from Members and these should be responded to in writing. He concluded
that the reason the Presidency had moved SAA from being overseen by the Department of Public Enterprises
to being overseen by the NT was to ensure that NT could exercise an effective oversight role. However, this
was not happening at the moment,

The meeting was adjourned.

O/
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@ftysaa.com>

Sent: Thursday, 03 September 2015 17:34

To: Duduziie Myeni; dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org.za

Cc: Tony Dixon (tonydixon@telkomsa.net) (tonydixon@telkomsa.net); John Tambi
(johnt@nepad.org); Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana; Wolf Meyer

Subject: FW: Notification to the Board on Catering Services award toSkychefs August 2015.pdf

Attachments: Notification to the Board on Catering Services award toSkychefs August 2015.pdf

Dear Chairperson

| refer to the e-mail trail below and | would like to address the points raised, as follows:

1.

“First and foremost, this is not in line with what we are doing at AirChefs / AirChefs is
struggling and [ announced my concerns as the Shareholder”

The award of the lounge catering contract to LSG does not in any way affect the current process
being undertaken to “divest” Air Chefs. The lounge service contract represents 4.265% of Air
Chefs’ total annual revenue. As per the attached notification to the Board, there will be negligible
revenue loss for Air Chefs with an estimated R1, 8m net per annum to Air Chefs as per the
current CVP and rates related thereto.

“As the Shareholder, we have to review this submission which was not submitted to the
Board for noting” and “Acting CEQ, kindly hold this process until the Shareholder of
AirChefs apply it's mind”

The procurement process was initiated during May 2014. A letter of award has already been
issued to LSG dated 21 August 2015 and SAA's investment partner (investec Bank) for the
refurbishment of our lounges, has been notified. LSG has therefore commenced with the
implementation of the operational requirements as per the services required effective 1
September 2015. The latter is in preparation for the launch of the ORTIA domestic lounge,
scheduled for 29 September 2015. The afore-mentioned was pursuant to the recommendation
made by the BAC after due process has been followed and approved by myself in line with my
delegated authority. Any holding and/or cancellation of the award could result in litigation and
financial exposure against SAA.

Further to the above response and should it be requested by the Board, a further submission can be
made available highlighting the legal, reputational and business continuity risks presented by the
suggested holding and/or cancellation of the award.

| sincerely hope that the above points raised shed light on the circumstances in question.

Regards,

Thuli Mpshe | Acting CEQ | Corporate

& phone: +2711 978-2525 i 2 £ pail ThuiiMpshe @flysaa.com
6th Floor,C Block, Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

| y N
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From: Duduzile Myeni
Sent: 01 September 2015 10:07 AM

To: Tony Dixon; Yakhe Kwinana2; johnt@nepad.org; Thuli Mpshe; Yakhe Kwinana; Wolf Meyer
Subject: Notification to the Board on Catering Services award toSkychefs August 2015.pdf

Colleagues

I am sending this to you. First and foremost, this is not inline with what we are doing at AirChefs
As the Shareholder, we have to review this submission which was not submitted to the Board for noting,
AirChefs is struggling and I announced my concerns as the Shareholder,

Acting CEO, kindly hold this process until the Shareholder of AirChefs apply it's mind.

Regards

Ms Dudu Myeni

Phone :035 789 5499

Email : dudumyenij@iteikomsa.net

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the

ddressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies and Disclaimers.action#Email
-Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent 1o you.
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SOUTH AFIUCAN AHWAYS
B A ATt A A SAA Submission
A Private and Coenfidential
For internal use only

TO: | SAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: | Acting Chief Executive Officer

DATE: | 20 AUGUST 2015

FOR THE SAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO NOTE THE AWARD OF RFP/GSM044/2015
FOR THE PROVISION OF CATERING SERVICES FOR SAA PREMIUM LOUNGES AT
OR TAMBO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (ORTIA) TO LSG SKYCHEFS SOUTH AFRICA

(PTY) LTD.

PURPOSE

To notify the SAA Board of Directors of the awarding of the Provisioning of Catering Services
for SAA Premium Lounges at OR Tambo international to LSG Skychefs South Africa (Pty)
Ltd, for a period of three years (i.e. from 01 September 2015 to 31 August 2018), at an
estimated amount of R85 818 793.66, inclusive of VAT, further to the finalisation of a due
tender process. Notwithstanding-that the award is within the Acting CEO's DoA, the Board is
duly notified of the award due to the fact that a third party will be performing services
previously rendered by SAA’'s subsidiary company, Air Chefs.

BACKGROUND

SAA’s lounge customer value proposition (product and service) has to date been provided
by SAA's subsidiary, Air Chefs. The food and baverages on offer are specified in line with
customer needs, preferences and expectations. Over time, SAA has experienced a severe
deterioration in the quality and standard of product and service delivery offered by Air Chefs,
based on premium customer complaints in respect of the customer value proposition at
ORTIA’s iounges, which are ranked as high-value customer touch points.

The negative customer expetience has not only detrimentally affected SAA from a
reputational and commercial perspective, but has also resulted in SAA's premium customers
beginning to use the SLOW lounge {British Airways customer value proposition}, which is
SAA’s competitor.

Considering that the SAA Voyager member base spend was R 3.99 billion in FY15 (which
constituted 23.19% of SAA Passenger Revenue, excluding fuel levies and surcharges, i.e.
the base fare), from a strategic risk perspective, it became necessary for decisive action to
be taken to address the customer value proposition shortfalls for this premium customer
segment in order to ensure customer retention. Several interactions were held between SAA
and Air Chefs to find means to improve the level of service delivery achieved however, and
notwithstanding these efforts, no improved results were recorded. SAA was, accordingly,

Directors
DC Myeai® {Chalmerson), WH Mayer (Chiel Financial Officer), Y Kwinana®, JE Tambi*(Sierra Leosgan), AD Dixon®

.
*Non-Executive Director ASTAA ALLIANCE ME@{(

Companry Secretary — Ruth Kibuuka
South African Airways SOC Lid Reg. No, 1987/022444/30
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faced with no option but to take a decision to go out on a confined tender to achieve the
desired customer value proposition expected for this premium customer segment.

The decision was further enhanced by the need to present a worid-class product, same
which was a critical deliverable in the agreement with beiween SAA and Investec Bank
(SAA's pariner who provided the necessary capital investment for the overhaul and upgrade
of the SAA premium lounges).

Responses to this RFP were received from Air Chefs, LSG Skychefs and Dnata - Newrest.
Food Direction and Pinnacle Incubator Hub declined the request to bid.

Due procurement process was followed in respect of which alt received responses were
evaluated. In this regard, the incumbent current service provider, Air Chefs, failed to meet
the initial minimum threshold in the tender and was unable to proceed io further evaluation

stages.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Bid Price (negotiated)
Score for Pricing (90)

R88 358 480.76
Incl VAT

R85 818 793.66
incl VAT

R111 336 938.17
Inci VAT

R111 336 938.17
incl VAT

¢ The final offer presented by LSG Skychefs South Africa (Pty) Ltd is inclusive of VAT,

» CPI increase in year two of the contract; the impact is to be shared equally 50%
(average of the preceding 12 months).

= CPlincrease in year three of the contract; LSG Skychefs South Africa (Pty) Ltd will cover
25% of the CPI impact while SAA will cover the remaining 75% (average of the

preceding 12 months).

A saving of R2 539 687.10 was achieved after negotiations with the recormmended bidder.

SAA has projected approximately 474 500 passengers in lounges per annum. There is a
possibility of growth in the passenger number year on year should new airlines contract to
use SAA lounges. Should this take place; LSG Skychefs South Africa (Pty) Lid has offered
the following passenger Volume Discount;

Annual Base 474 500

Discount Percentage Pax From Pax to
2% Discount 480 000 500 000
3% Discount 500 001 520 000
4% Discount 520 001 540 000
5% Discount 540 001 §60 000
6% Discount 560 001 Onwards

Note: The discount will only be applicabile fo the per passenger price.

Directors

DC Myeni™ {Chairperson), WH Meyer (Chief Financial Oficer), ¥ Kwinana®, JE Tambi*(Slarra Leonsan), AD Dikon*
A STAR ALLIANCE MEMBER ¥

“Non-Exacutive Director
Company Secrelary ~ Ruth Kibuuka
South Alrigan Airnays SOC Ltd

Reg. No. 1997/022444/30
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it should also be noted that, as a result of the award to LSG Skychefs South Africa (Pty) Lid,
there will be a revenue loss to Air Chefs (estimated at R18 million per annum) as well as a
negligible negative net profit impact of R1.8 million per annum.

STRATEGIC IMPACT

In electing to go out on tender, the business carefully considered the strategic implications of
Air Chefs possibly not being selected as the successful bidder vis-a-vis the business
imperative of the retention of premium custorners in a highly competitive market. In addition,
due consideration was given to any adverse market perceptions created through electing to
tender for lounge services, thus carving out a small portion of services rendered by Air Chefs

in relation to the tetal SAA account.
FINAL RECOMMENDATION

It is hereby requested that the SAA Board of Directors note the final award to LSG Skychefs
South Africa (Pty} Ltd, for a period of three years {i.e. from 01 September 2015 to 31 August
2018), at an estimated amount of R85 818 793.66, inclusive of VAT, In this regard, and
further to a lawful tender process, a third party will be performing services previously
rendered by SAA's subsidiary company, Air Chefs.

il Finance Officer

Directors
DC Myeni* {Chalrparson), WH Meyer {Chief Financial Officer), Y Kwinana*, JE Tambi*{Slera L.eonean}, AD Dixon® M{é
MBER ¥F -

*Non-Exscutive Director A STAR ALLIANCE

Company Secretary ~ Auth Kibuuka
South Afican Afrways S0C Lid Rag. No. 1897/022444/30
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5/27/12019 Personal Portal

Trust you find this in order.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEO

| Phone: +2711 978-2525 || [E-Mail: ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com

6th Floor,C Block,Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Duduzile Myeni
Sent: 09 September 2015 05;13 PM

To: Thuli Mpshe
Cc: Dudu Myeni; Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana; Tony Dixon (tonydixon@telkomsa.net)

(tonydixon@teikomsa.net); John Tambi (johnt@nepad.org); Ruth Kibuuka
Subject: Notification to the Board on Catering Services award toSkychefs

Dear Acting CEQ
Thank you for your response,
I think it is important to make the Board’s intentions on this matter quite clear.

The Board does not want to interfere with due process which belongs and is better managed by the executive. The Board is
however particutarly more interested in the principles applied in this contract and award.

Having said that, where the Board feels that implementation does not take proper consideration of pertinent principles, then it will
bring these to your attention as the Acting CEO. At the meeting the Board did precisely that. Tt raised a concern that the awarding
of this contract might have unintended consequences that affect certain strategic considerations. Examples could mean, Supporting
South African businesses, enhancing local employment, considering the impact on our own subsidiaries, here being (Air Chefs) are
amongst these.. At the Board meeting you were not then able to provide assurance on these matters. You did not even bring any fact
to the discussion pertaining this contact. Hence the Board asked that to the extent possible we would like the executives to suspend
further consideration on this process until we were provided with information on these concerns. This was on 26 August at the

Board Meeting. No one was on site,

If, as you now inform us, that a contract has been awarded then the Board does niot wish to interferepvith that legal process. We did
not have that impression at the Board meeting, /é/

https:ﬂlogin-za.mimecast.oomlmlportaIlapplprint.jsp?sid=AAAAlAQsrgwRTap—IOErjUWivrnxUjZXbDOnZTSemeMvHVdVAAAAQJLchNYEngs... 2/3
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Regardless however of the state of this tender the Board requires answers to its concerns. Some of these you have provided answers
to below. There are other questions outstanding and your answers have raised others.

These must be provided urgently. The Board requires a comprehensive review of the awarding of this tender. [ am now particularly
interested on what grounds Air Chefs failed to meet the initial threshold and was eliminated from evaluation further. Regardless of

the outcome of this tender that must surely be a major concern of the Board.

I also believe that we need to be quite clear on another issue raised by you in your email. The Board delegates authority to the
executive to implement certain activities. The Delegations Policy is a Board Policy. The Board remains legally (per the PFMA)
accountable for the implementation of decisions under that policy. Having delegated this authority does not limit the Board in
addressing issues arising from the execution of these and it does not mean the Board may not review the delegation limits if
necessary. The fact that this matter was within your delegation of anthority does not prevent the Board in questioning the matter,

In conclusion if the company has lawfully committed itself to the successful bidder then we do not wish to interfere with that
process. However the Board urgently requires a comprehensive review of the awarding of this contract and to better understand the
application of the decision making process. Would you please arrange for that to be provided before end of day 15" September
2015. If you require any clarification of what is required please do not hesitate to contact me.

AirChefs did raise many objections, questioning the motive of this. But were defeated. We have to get answers as to why, and by
who was this being done.

Regards

Ms Dudu Myeni
Phone :035 789 5499

Email : dudumyeni@telkomsa.net

hitps.//login-za.mimecast.com/m/portal/app/print. jsp?sid=AAAAIAQsrgwR Tap-IOEfUWIvmxUj2XbDOnZTSemWxMvHVAVAAAAG LcFdNYEpgOs... 313






MEM-114

Andrew A. Keartland

From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>

Sent: Monday, 28 September 2015 16:33

To: Duduzile Myeni; Dudu Myeni; Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana; Tony Dixon
(tonydixon@telkomsa.net} (tonydixon@telkomsa.net); John Tambi (johnt@nepad.org)

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka; GROUP EXCO COMMITTEE; Sylvain Bosc; Wolf Meyer; Lusanda Jiya; Tleli

Makhetha; Phinda Ncala; Nivy Moodley; Bev Kok; Zuks Ramasia; Mabana Makhakhe;
Masimba Dahwa; Ursula Fikelepi; Siyakhula Vilakazi; Josua du Plessis
Subject: FW: Notification to the Board on Catering Services award toSkychefs August 2015.pdf
Attachments: Legal Memorandum - Lounge Catering (7 Sept 2015).pdf; Lounge Catering Services
ORTIA Annexures A to G.pdf; Lounge catering services legal opinion fnl signed.pdf

Dear Board Members and Colleagues

Please note the trailing emails in respect of the lounge discussion today.
Please familiarise yourself with the contents thereof in particular the legal
"niplication and risks associated with the decision.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEO

= Phone: +2711 978-2525 | s E-Mail: ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com
6th Floor,C Block, Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Thuli Mpshe

Sent: 08 September 2015 08:56 PM

To: M Dudu (dudumyeni@telkomsa.net); 'Dudu Myeni'

Cc: Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana; Tony Dixon {tonydixon@telkomsa.net) (tonydixon@telkomsa.net); John Tambi

(johnt@nepad.org); Ruth Kibuuka; Ursufa Fikelepi
Subject: FW: Notification to the Board on Catering Services award toSkychefs August 2015.pdf

sear Chairperson,

At the outset, | wish to assure the members of the Board that my responses to date, in respect of the subject matter,
were guided and submitted after thorough internal consuftation with all relevant SAA stakeholders.

The concerns raised by the Board in the preceding e-mails have been duly and respectfully noted. Without derogation, |
wish to further respond as follows:

1. Management acknowledges and appreciates the board’s right and prerogative to overturn and or rescind
management’s decisions. Before management can lawfully proceed with a cancelation of the awarded tender to
LSG Sky Chefs South Africa (Pty) Ltd, the Board will need to take a formal resolution, in accordance with the
prescribed SAA governance framework.

2. There is no governance directive and/or policy in place necessitating a matter reserved for the SAA Group CEQ
{as per the Company Delegation of Authority) to be circulated for prior notification and/or approval to the SAA
Board, prior to the commencement of a tender process, for services performed by any SAA subsidiary.

-

1
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3. Notwithstanding the latter, on 20 August 2015, in my capacity as acting CEO, | formally requested that
notification of the award be prepared and submitted to the Board for completeness and transparency.

4. As per the Board notification of 20 August 2015, in electing to go out on tender, the business carefully
considered the strategic implications of Air Chefs possibly not being selected as the successful bidder vis-a-vis
the business imperative of the retention of premium customers in a highly competitive market. in addition, due
consideration was given to any adverse market perceptions created through electing to tender for lounge
services, thus carving 4.265% of services rendered by Air Chefs in relation to their total SAA account.

5. Asthe Board has correctly noted, there is no indication that the Board was notified of the tender process prior
to its formal initiation on 2 November 2014. In this regard, the acting CEO of Air Chefs attempted to notify his
Board in November 2014, but was unsuccessful due to being unable to proceed with a duly constituted meeting
of the Air Chefs Board. It is, however, on record that during February 2015, the acting CEO of Air Chefs reported
to his Board of SAA’s intention to proceed with a confined tender process and, further, that Air Chefs will
prepare a response thereto.

6. As per the Board notification of 20 August 2015, responses to the RFP were received from Air Chefs, LSG Sky Chefs
and Dnata - Newrest. A lawful and duly constituted procurement process was followed in respect of which all
received responses were properly evaluated. In this regard, it must be noted that Air Chefs failed to meet the
initial minimum threshold for evaluation in the tender and was lawfully precluded from proceeding to further
stages of evaluation.

7. There are no job losses emanating from the award of services to LSG Sky Chefs as any impacted Air Chefs
employees would be transferred to the successful bidder {as per the conditions set-out in the tender document),
in accordance with Sectiocn 197 of the Labour Relations Act, 1995 {LRA)}.

8. Notwithstanding that the LSG Group is a collection of companies under the German registered LSG Lufthansa
Service Holding AG (a 100% subsidiary of Deutsche Lufthansa), the lounge catering services have been awarded
to LSG Sky Chefs South Africa (Pty) Ltd, a South African registered entity which locally sources and produces
products procured by SAA.

9. Accordingly, and in disposing of its obligations to the Board, management wishes to highlight the iegal
implications inherent to the Board’s decision to cancel the award of the services — having regard in particular to
the legal requirement for the Board to be fully apprised of all relevant details in reaching a decision of this nature.
Please kindly refer to the attached Legal Memorandum and Annexures thereto.

We trust you find this in order.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEQ

& Phone: +2711 978-2525 I i@Ed\ﬂail: ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com
6th Floor,C Block,Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Duduzile Myeni

Sent: 03 September 2015 10:59 PM

To: Yakhe Kwinana

Cc: Thuli Mpshe; dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org.za; Tony Dixon (tonydixon@telkomsa,net)

(tonydixon@telkomsa.net); John Tambi (johnt@nepad.org); Yakhe Kwinana2
Subject: Re: Notification to the Board on Catering Services award toSkychefs August 2015.pdf

Dear Colleagues

The previous Acting CEO knows well what we wanted, as the Shareholder! and this process which was started

in May is contrary to our decision.
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The Board, in February and March discussed outsourcing AlrChefs to an outside company. The reason why
we did not advertise the CEO position was based on this.

Secondly, before the commencement of the LSG, at the Board Meeting, no one made any submission or raised
these things to us at the Board meeting.

A thorough investigation is fully supported as per the Audit and Risk Comm Chairperson.

The contract, without the shareholder noting this submission, should be nullified.
As the Sharcholder we have a responsibility to ensure that our subsidiaries are assisted, and our decisions must

be 10 the best interest of SAA and South Africa.

Also Acting CEQ please, since you are new in your position, please consult so that you are advised correctly.

Ms Dudu Myeni
Phone :035 789 5499
Email : dudumveni/wtelkomsa.net

On 03 Sep 2015, at 6:31 PM, yakhekwinana <yakhekwinana@gmail.com> wrote:

Dear A: CEO

I note that AirChefs also responded to this bid meaning that if it is not what they do, which I
doubt, is something that they would be able to do.

Why was the Board not notified of this decision as per the submission.

I recommend that the award be cancelled and if they claim for damages, the letter was written on
the 20th and what is it that they would have prepared between the 20th and today the 3rd, unless

they knew that the tender is theirs.

I must take this opportunity to say I am very disturbed by this decision which is killing SAA
subsidiary.

As the Chairperson of SAAT is is making me very nervous where one day I will wake up and
find out that SAA fleet is serviced and maintained by a foreign company that competed with

SAAT.

My simple rhetoric question is :- if SAA and it's subsidiaries were owned by you, would you
give business to your competitor even if you do exactly the same business.

Chairperson, this looks like treason and I request this to be investigated by the SIU's.
Thank you

Yakhe Kwinana

Sent from my Samsung device \
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-------- Original message --------

From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>

Date: 03/09/2015 17:33 (GMT+02:00)

To: Duduzile Myeni <dudumyeni@telkomsa.net>, dudum(@jacobzumafoundation.ore.za

Ce: "Tony Dixon (tonvdixon@telkomsa.net) (tonvdixon@ telkomsa.net)"
<tonydixon/atelkomsa.net>, "John Tambi (johnt@nepad.org)" <johnt'@nepad.org>, Yakhe
Kwinana2 <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>, Yakhe Kwinana <yakhekwinana @ email.com>, Wolf
Meyer <WoltMever/a;flysaa.com>

Subject: FW: Notification to the Board on Catering Services award toSkychefs August 2015.pdf

Dear Chairperson

| refer to the e-mail trail below and | would like to address the points raised, as follows:

1. “First and foremost, this is not in line with what we are doing at AirChefs / AirChefs
is struggling and | announced my concerns as the Shareholder”

The award of the lounge catering contract to LSG does not in any way affect the
current process being undertaken to “divest” Air Chefs. The lounge service
contract represents 4.265% of Air Chefs' total annual revenue. As per the attached
notification to the Board, there will be negligible revenue loss for Air Chefs with an
estimated R1, 8m net per annum to Air Chefs as per the current CVP and rates

related thereto.

2. “As the Shareholder, we have to review this submission which was not submitted
to the Board for noting” and “Acting CEO, kindly hold this process until the
Shareholder of AirChefs apply it's mind”

The procurement process was initiated during May 2014. A letter of award has
already been issued to LSG dated 21 August 2015 and SAA’s investment partner
(Investec Bank) for the refurbishment of our lounges, has been notified. L SG has
therefore commenced with the implementation of the operational requirements as
per the services required effective 1 September 2015. The latter is in preparation
for the launch of the ORTIA domestic lounge, scheduled for 29 September 2015.
The afore-mentioned was pursuant to the recommendation made by the BAC after
due process has been followed and approved by myself in line with my delegated
authority. Any holding and/or cancellation of the award could result in litigation and
financial exposure against SAA.

Further to the above response and should it be requested by the Board, a further
submission can be made availabie highlighting the legal, reputational and business
continuity risks presented by the suggested holding and/or cancellation of the award.
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| sincerely hope that the above points raised shed light on the circumstances in question.

Regards,

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEO

Phone: +2711 878-2525 | E-Mait: ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com

6th Floor,C Block, Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Duduzile Myeni

Sent: 01 September 2015 10:07 AM

To: Tony Dixon; Yakhe Kwinana2; johnt@nepad.org; Thuli Mpshe; Yakhe Kwinana; Wolf Meyer
Subject: Notification to the Board on Catering Services award toSkychefs August 2015.pdf

Colleagues

I am sending this to you. First and foremost, this is not inline with what we are doing at AirChefs
As the Sharcholder, we have to review this submission which was not submitted to the Board for noting.

AirChefs is struggling and 1 announced my concerns as the Shareholder.

Acting CEQ, kindly hold this process until the Sharcholder of AirChefs apply it's mind.

Regards

Ms Dudu Myeni
Phone :035 789 5499
Email : dudumyeni@telkomsa.net

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof ts subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.flvsaa.com/za/en/policies_and Disclaimers.action#Email
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-Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be
sent to you.
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[Tor [ Acting Chief Executive Officer o ==men)
"And To: [ Chief Procurement Officer

" From: "Legal Department o — ——— -
‘Date: 07 September 2015 e e 71

1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this memorandum is fo advise on the legal implications of the
requested cancellation of the award to LSG Skychefs South Africa (“LSG”) to provide
catering services at the OR Tambo International Airport (“ORTIA") domestic lounge. It
is not the purpose of this Memorandum to review the tender process that was followed

to appeint LSG.

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 SAA entered into a Marketing Barter Partnership Agreement (the “Agreement”)
with Investec for the refurbishment of the SAA ORTIA domestic lounge. In terms
of the Agreement, Investec committed capital investment in the sum of R15
million towards the refurbishment of the domestic lounge in exchange for the use
of the lounge by Investec private banking clients. Over and above the capital
investment provided by Investec, the cost of the lounge access by their private
banking clienis is reconciled and paid to SAA on a monthly basis as additional
revenue to the airline. in addition, Investec is currently paying SAA a cost-per-
head fee (same which was implemented with the conclusion of the capital
investment agreement) and which amount will increase once the refurbishment

has been completed.

2.2 It is SAA's obligation under the Agreement to oversee the refurbishment of the
lounge and to deliver an operational lounge to accommodate Investec's private
banking clients. SAA and Investec have since agreed that the lounge will be open
to the public on 29 September 2015.

»
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2.3 One of the core service offerings at the lounge is the provision of catering
services to passengers. To date, SAA has utilised the services of its subsidiary,
Air Chefs, to provide catering services at all its South African domestic and
international lounges. The Air Chefs contract for the provision of the catering
services expired on 31 January 2015 and has since been extended on a month
to month basis. Prior to the expiry of the Air Chefs contract, SAA took a business
decision to issue a tender for a service provider to provide catering services in its
domestic lounge at ORTIA. The reasons and motivation for the business decision
are succinctly set out in an SAA Exco submission dated July 2014, same which
was duly approved by the SAA CEO on 01 September 2014 (Annex A).

2.4 Upon approval of the Exco submission as aforesaid, an open tender was issued
on 02 November 2014 , however, due to a change in the specification, the open
tender was cancelled on 27 March 2015. Subsequent thereto, a new confined
tender process was issued on 11 May 2015. Air Chefs, Dnata Newrest and LSG
responded to the confined tender. A duly constituted evaluation process was
undertaken in which Air Chefs failed to meet the minimum set threshold as per
the criteria prescribed for the tender. Consequently, Air Chefs was disqualified
from further participation in the process and Driata Newrest and LSG proceeded
to the last phase of tender evaluation (that being price and BBBEE (see Annex

B)).

25 LSG emerged as the highest scoring and preferred bidder and was
recommended for appointment by the Cross Functional Sourcing Team (Annex
C). On 14 August 2015, the SAA Bid Adjudication Commitiee evaluated the
CFST's recommendation and resolved to support the appointment of LSG for
final appraval by the Acting CEO (Annex D) in accordance with the applicable
SAA procurement framework. On 19 August 2015, the Acting CEO approved the
appointment of LSG, in accordance with her Deiegation of Authority (Annex E).
Pursuant to the Acting CEO's approval, a letter of award, dated 21 August 2015,
was communicated to LSG (Annex F). A kick off meeting was then held with LSG
on 26 August 2015 and a project plan developed and adopted by SAA and L8G
to ensure the successful opening of the lounge on 29 September 2015.

2.6 Further to approving the appointment of |.SG (and on 20 August 2015), the
Acting CEQ made a submission to the Board of SAA to note the appointment of

Pane 2 nfQ [\/\
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LSG (Annex G) further to the completion of the procurement process. We are
informed by the Acting CEO that two (2) members of the Board have requested,
for various reasons, that the award be eancelled. Herein below we deal with the
applicable legal framework pertaining to the requested cancellation and provide

our views in respect thereof.
3 LEGISLATIVE AND LEGAL PROVISIONS

The following legislative provisions are periinent to the proposed suspension or

cancellation of the appointment of LSG.
3.1 Promotion of Administrative Justice Act 3 of 2000 (PAJA)

3.1.1 The purpose of PAJA is to promote an efficient administration and good
governance and create a culture of accountability, openness and
transparency in the public administration or in the exercise of a public
power or the performance of a public function, by giving effect to the

right to just administrative action.

3.1.2 “Administrative action” is defined under PAJA tc "mean any decision, or

any failure to take a decision, by-

{a) An organ of state, when exercising a public power or performing

a public function in terms of any legisiation” -

(b} A natural or juristic person, other than an organ of state, when
exercising a public power or performing a public function in terms

of an empowering provision.

3.1.3 A “decision" is also defined under PAJA to mean “any decision of an
administrative nature made, proposed to be made, or required to be
made, as the case may be, under an empowering provision, including a
decision relating to making, suspending, revoking or refusing to make an

‘ Y-

order, award or determination”.
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3.1.4  Any person whose rights have been materially and adversely affected by
administrative action is entitled to adequate reasons for such an. action
or decision. The Court held in the case of Moletsane v Premier of the
Free State and Another’ that what would amount to “adequate” reasons
shall depend on the “degree of seriousness of the adminisirative act’.

3.15 The requested suspension or cancellation of the award to LSG falls
squarely within the definition of administrative action which requires
adequate reasons to be given to a party affected by an administrative
action. In order to meet the requirements of ‘adequacy’, the decision
taken must have a factual and legal basis, a reasoning process should
have been followed which led to an objective conclusion and there must
be evidence of a fair procedure having been followed. SAA is an organ
of state, taking a decision on a tender awarded by it (which thus
constitutes administrative action) and the proposed decision will, if
implemented, have an adverse effect on LSG as the awarded service
provider. To the extent that it cannot be shown that ‘adequate reasons’
existed for the action being taken, then LSG shall be entitled to take
legal action against SAA for damages. This action is not limited to actual
damages suffered by LSG but can even be for an order campelling SAA
to award it with the business andfor damages for the value of the

contract unlawfully cancelled.

316 In the case of Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association of South
Africa and another v The President of the Republic® the court held that
decisions must be rational and cannot be made arbitrarily or
capriciously. In the case of Goodhope Plasterers v The Independent
Development Trust and GVK-Siza Zama Building Contractors the court
agreed with requirement for rationality being a requirement for any
decisions taken and in that matter found that the decision to cancel a
tender after the issue of a letter of award to the successful hidder, a
legitimate expectation on the part of that bidder had been created and
the decision taken to unilaterally cancel the award was unlawful. In this

' 1996 {2) 5A 95 (O)
2 2000 (3) BCLR 241 %/, -
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regard, any decision taken to cancel an award can only be justified if the
said decision was based on a material error of law or fact and/or after
the affected bidder has been provided with the opportunity to be heard
prior to that decision having been taken.

3.1.7° It is thus of critical importance to note that any decision to cancel the
award to LSG can only lawfully be taken to the extent that the award
was based on a material error of law or fact by the authority making that
award and/or after LSG has first been given the apportunity to discuss
the reasons for the proposed cancellation.

3.2 Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (5 of 2000)

3.2.1  Section 217(1) of the Constitution® provides that the award of tenders by
govemment or public entities must be made in accordance with a
system that is “fair, equitable, fransparent, compelitive and cost-
effective.” Section 217(3) of the Constitution provides that national
legislation must prescribe the framework for the implementation of any
preferential  policy. This is achieved through the Preferential
Procurement Palicy Framework Act (‘PPPFA").

3.22  Section 2(1) (f) of the PPPFA provides that once bids have been scored
in terms of the PPPFA, the contract “must be awarded to the bidder who
scored the highest points, unless objective criteria....justify the award to
another bidder." Regulation 9 of the PPPFA Regulations, in addition,
states that an award can be made to a bidder other than the highest
scorer “on reasonable and justifiable grounds.”

3.2.3  Any decision taken by SAA, accordingly, has to be taken on reasonable
and justifiable grounds and is contingent on that decision-making
authority to adduce proof that all applicable considerations were taken
into account during its deliberations. More 80, as set out in the
Constitution, any such decision has to be fair, equitable, transparent,

competitive and cost-effective.

3 Act 108 of 1996

Pase 5 0f9
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324 We have not been provided with any information that applicable
considerations have been provided by the Board to address the above
statutory requirements. In this regard, and having followed a lawfu!
tender process, SAA is bound te award the tender to the highest scoring
bidder (LSG) unless there are reasons {which should be able to be
proven) which justify an alternative decision. This duty is, furthermore,
particularly strict once an award has been communicated to a party as
per the doctrine of legitimate expectation set out above.

CEO’S Delegation of Authority

3.3.1 The SAA Delegation of Authority Framework (the ‘Framework”)
provides for the delegation of authority to the Group Chief Executive
Officer of SAA from the SAA Board of Directors.

3.3.2 Section 3.2 of the Framework provides that “the DOA applies to the
authority to exercise decisions which bind (our emphasis) SAA or a
subsidiary company. It is therefore the “Master Policy” guiding decisions
within the SAA Group. If there is any conflict between this DOA and
other SAA policy, the provisions of this DOA will prevaif”.

3.3.3 In terms of the Framework, therefore, the Acting CEO of SAA has the
delegated authority to award the tender to LSG (as she did). Further to
the conclusion of the tender process, a letter of award was issued by
SAA, which action created a legitimate expectation on the part of LSG.

'3.3.4  The decision taken by the Acting CEO is legal, valid and binding on SAA

and is consistent with the approved DOA.

Companies Act’

341 The Companies Act recognises the management of a company's
business as being vested in its board of directors. In accordance with
section 66(1) of the Act, the business and affairs of a company must be
managed by or under the direction of its Board, which has the authority

71 of 2008

é/.
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to exercise all of the powers and perform any of the functions of the

company.

3.4.2 There a2 number of duties and obligations on the directors and officers of
a duly constituted board which are owed to the company they serve. The
members of a board are deemed {o be fiduciaries of a company which
means that they have a duty to protect the company’s interests {known

collectively as fiduciary duties’).

34.3 These fiduciary duties include the following:
3.4.3.1 The duty to exercise care, skill and diiigence;
3432 The duty to act in the best interests of the company;

3433 The duty to act within their powers and for a proper

pUrposes;
3434 The duty to exercise independent judgement; and
3.4.3.5 The duty to avaid conflicts of interest.

344  These duties in turmn mean that the directors of a company have common
law liabilities which (in terms of seclion 77 of the Act) render them
personally liable for losses sustained by the company. It ig thus of critical
importance that a board of directors, in taking any decision, is sufficiently
informed and acts in good faith, taking into account the appiicabie

legislative and legal framework as set out hereinabove.

4  APPLICATION

4.1

The decision to cancel the award of the tender to LSG would amount to
administrative action in accordance with PAJA. The decision must accordingly be
based on a factual or legal basis and must not be made arbitrarily or capriciously.
At the outset, no formal board resoiution exists for the decision to cancel. Any
decision taken, thusly, has not been properly made in accordance with the

applicable legal prescripts and is to that extent uniawful. \
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4.2 Without derogating from the above, and to the extent that a valid board resolution
was made in this regard, the board will need to be able to show proof that there
are adequate reasons justifying the cancellation of the tender, failing which the
decision (and SAA in turn) will be exposed to judicial review. This
natwithstanding, any decision to cancel the award to LSG can only lawfully be
taken to the extent that the award was based on a material error of law or fact by
the authority making that award and/or after LSG has first been given the
opportunity to discuss the reasons for the proposed cancellation.

4.3 The issue of a letter of award created a legitimate expectation on the part of LSG.
This action, accordingly, fimits SAA’s right to cancel or suspend the award. Based
on the communication of the award, LSG has been vested with an expectation to
be the contracting party upon the fulfilment of any applicable condition or, at the
very least, an expectation to be heard before any adverse decision can be made.
SAA thus cannot, lawfully, unilaterally cancef or suspend the award made to LSG
without at the very least communicating the reasons for the requested
suspension and/or cancellation and without exposing itself to patentia) iegal
challenge by LSG.

4.4 The Acting CEO was, in accordance with the provisions of the Framework,
empowered to make the decision to approve the award of the tender and the
decision taken by the Acting CEO is thus legal, valid and binding on SAA.

4.5 Having regard to the legal risks which SAA will be exposed to in the event of a
decision to cancel the award being made, the Board will need to bear in mind its
fiduciary duties to the company insofar as it pertains to their duties to exercise
care, skill and diligence as well as to act in the best interests of the company. The
Board is thus obliged to pay careful consideration to the tangible legal principles
(set out in this memorandum) which caution against proceeding with the
proposed cancelation of this award, further to the completion of a fawful tender

process.

&  CONCLUSION

5.1 The tender for catering services at SAA Lounges was procedurally and lawfully
awarded to LSG. This award was in line with the PFMA and the PPPFA

Page 8of %53\ ﬁ/ .
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Regulations as well as SAA’s procurement policies and procedures. As
highlighted above, the cancelation and or putting on hold of the award may result
in possible legal action and financial exposure against SAA.

5.2 Any decision to suspend or cancel the award of the tender by SAA would amount
to administrative action, which action would need to be objectively fair, equitable,
transparent, competitive and cost-effective. No duly constituted meeting of the
Board was held regarding the subject matter hereof and as such any decision
taken in this regard would be considered invalid and stands to be set aside.

5.3 We recommend that the Acting CEO engages with the Board and to provide the
Board with the background information in this memorandum with annexures to
assist the Board in making an informed decision based on all the available

information on the matter,

SIGNATURES:

0% -0 -20\§

Date
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EXTRACT FROM THE DRAFT MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL SAA SOC LTD BOARD OF
DIRECTORS MEETING NO 2015/08 HELD ON MONDAY 28 SEPTEMBER 2015 AT THE
INTERCONTINENTAL HOTEL, ORTIA, KEMPTON PARK AT 09H00

ORTIA LOUNGES CATERING TENDER

it was Resolved that:
(a) the SAA domeslic lounges tender award be retracted; and
{b) the catering contract be awarded to Air Chefs without going through the bidding process.

Ruth Kibuuka

Company Secretary /
Date: <% {o zals
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From: Mabana Makhakhe

Sent: Friday, 02 October 2015 14:30
To: Ursula Fikelepi; Fikile Thabethe
Cc: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: Fwd: SAA Lounges Tender

Hello,
Please find extract below. This is a short version of the discussion. I have just captured the resolution. I will

send the comprehensive extract a bit later because the matter was discussed twice in one meeting.

Regards,
Mabana

-------- Original message --------
From: Mabana Makhakhe
Date:02/10/2015 14:22 (GMT+02:00)
To: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: SAA Lounges Tender

Dear Mrs, K,

Please find resolution below. Took a while to type on my phone. Still don't have Vodacom 3g card.

Extract From Special Meeting of the Board of Directors Meeting Held on 28 September 2015 at the
Intercontinental Hotel, ORTIA, Kempton Park, at 9:00am

It was Resolved that:
") the SAA domestic lounges tender award be retracted; and
(o) the catering contract be awarded to Air Chefs without going through the bidding process.

The Board stated that there should have been an exit clausc on the letter of award and if not, there should be
consequence management for the ommission.

Kind regards,
Mabana

Sent from sy Samsung Galisy smariphone,

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted

| /@f\ K
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electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and Disclaimers.action#Email
-Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be
sent to you.

/
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From: Dikeledi Raboroko <DikelediRaboroko@flysaa.com>
Sent: Tuesday, 06 October 2015 15:47
To: Josua du Plessis; Lusanda Jiya; Martin Kemp; Musa Zwane; Nico Bezuidenhout; Nivy

Moodley; Siyakhula Vilakazi; Thuli Mpshe; Ursula Fikelepi; Wolf Meyer; Bev Kok; CEO;
Phinda Ncala; Sylvain Bosc; Tleli Makhetha; Zuks Ramasia

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka
Subject: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority
Attachments: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority.pdf

Dear Exco and Manco Members

Kindly find attached Board decision on the DOA for your attention.

Kind regards
Dike

Dikeledi Raboroko | Personal Assistant to Company Secretary | Company Secretary

4 Mobite: 0763000063 | o Phone: +2711-978-2763 | 2 E-Mail: DikelediRaboroko@flysaa.com
Room 501, Floor 6, Block A, Airways Park, GR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and Disclaimers.action#Email
.Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent to you.
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EXTRACT FROM THE DRAFT MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL SAA SOC LTD BOARD OF
DIRECTORS MEETING NO 2015/08 HELD ON TUESDAY 28 SEPTEMBER 2015 AT THE
INTERCONTINENTAL HOTEL, ORTIA, KEMPTON PARK AT 09H00

Review of the Delegation of Authority

It was RESOLVED that:

(a) The delegation of authority for approval of new contracts should be reduced by
50% for SAA, with the effect that all new contracts with a value above R50 million
should be recommended to the Board for approval through the Finance,
Investment and Procuremeant Commities (FIPCO),

(b} The delegation of authority for subsidiaries should alsc be reduced by 50% and the
Shareholder resclution tabled at the respective Boards for nofing;

{c} Ali matiers above the delegaied powers of subsidiaries should be recommended to
the Shareholder jor approval;

(d) The reduction in delegated authority excludes operational payments arising from
existing contracts.

Certified a true extract of the draft minutes,

Ruth Kibuuka
Company Secretary
’,.-"""_‘\
i Som
Date: atliol2als /g@n\j 8Cry S
@@ e,
{ e
"? ) 2, SQUTH ATRICAN
AIRWATS
“% >l
“39,«
sy gjfgﬁ B %ﬂg@;ﬁg / \/\
- J_

DL Myeni® (Chalrperson), WH Meyer (Chief Financial Ofiicer), ¥ Kwinana®, JE Tambi*{S.ema Leonsan], AD Dixon*
“Mur-Exesuiive Dlvector
Company Secretary - Ruth Klbuuhka

South Alfican Always SOC Lid Reg. No. 1997/022444/30
A STAR ALUANGE MEMBER v}
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From: Ruth Kibuuka <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>
Sent: Tuesday, 13 October 2015 15:43

To: Martin Kemp; Dikeledi Raboroko

Cc: Lioyd Hudson; Mduduzi Nyoni; Thuli Mpshe
Subject: RE: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority
Hi Martin,

Clause {(c) refers to matters above the delegated powers of subsidiaries {including the subsidiary board). In effect the
process remains the same where the values to be approved are above the limit as indicated in the Significant &

Materiality Framework.
Hope the above clarifies.

Regards

“uth Kibuuka | Company Secretary

B Wobile: +27 083 531 6004 | ¥ Phone: +2711-078-6553 | % Fax: +2711 678-1055 | 2 E-Mail: RuthKibuuka@*lysaa.com
Floor &,Block A Ainvays Park,OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Martin Kemp
Sent: 12 October 2015 09:40 AM

To: Dikeledi Raboroko; Ruth Kibuuka

Cc: Lloyd Hudson; Mduduzi Nyoni; Thuli Mpshe
Subject: RE: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

Hi Ruth,

| require some clarity. My understanding that all approvals are reduced by 50% {In the case of Air Chefs from R50m to
R25mj}. Above R25m must go to the Air Chefs board. | cannot recall a discussion that stated the everything above this

limit {R25m} must go to the shareholder board.

Rgds,

Martin Kemp | Acting CEO of Air Chefs | Chief Executive Office

U Mobile: + 27 (0) 83 308 4060 | 2 Phone: +27 (0) 11 978 3516 | W rax: +27 (0) 11 978-6328 | 24 E-Mail:

MartinKkemp@airchefs.co.za
Room 1, 1st Floor, Air Chefs Building, Jones Rd- Johannesburg- South Africa

From: Dikeledi Raboroko
Sent: 06 October 2015 03:47 PM

To: Josua du Plessis; Lusanda Jiya; Martin Kemp; Musa Zwane; Nico Bezuidenhout; Nivy Moodley; Siyakhula Vilakazi;
Thuli Mpshe; Ursula Fikelepi; Wolf Meyer; Bev Kok; CEQ; Phinda Ncala; Sylvain Bosc; Tleli Makhetha; Zuks Ramasia

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: Reduction of the Delegation of Authority

Dear Exco and Manco Members
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Kindly find attached Board decision on the DOA for your attention.

Kind regards
Dike

Dikeledi Raborako | Personal Assistant to Company Secretary | Company Secretary

Y Mobife: 0763000063 ! X prone: +2711-978-2763 i M pai: DikelediRaboroko@flysaa.com
Room S01, Floor 8, Block A, Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at hitp://www.flvsaa.com/za/en/policies_and Disclaimers.action#Email
Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer(@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent to you.
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From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe @flysaa.com>
Sent: Sunday, 11 October 2015 12:14

To: Kim Thipe; Sylvain Bosc

Subject: Fwd: Complaint about new VIA lounge

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Tlali Tlah <TlaliTlalit@flvsaa.com>

Date: 11 October 2015 at 11:56:11 SAST

To: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe/@flvsaa.com>, Zuks Ramasia <ZuksRamasia@flysaa com>,
Lusanda Jiva <Lusandaliva@flvsaa.com>, Daicy Demas <DaicyDemas/@flysaa.com>
Subject: Fwd: Complaint about new VIA lounge

Colleagues,

Please take note of the email below.
This happens when he SABC has just agreed to broadcast from the new facility on Thursday

morning, free of charge.

I need your guidance on whether the lounge challenges can and will be resolved immediately.
The could impact negatively on our efforts to spread some good news stories.

The customer feedback in the email below is such an indictment.

Kind regards,

Tlali Tlali
South African Airways

Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone.

-------- Original message --------

From: Daniel Silke <info@danielsilke.com>
Date: 11/10/2015 11:01 (GMT+02:00)

To: Tlali Tlali <TlaliTlalii@{lvsaa.com>
Subject: Complaint about new VIA lounge

Sirs
Please do pass on to the relevant parties.
As a frequent flyer, I was excited to try out the new VIA lounge at OR Tambo this last week.

The lounge is beautifully fitted out and makes for a substantial improvement.

(=
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However, the food offerings were simply awful. The catering was sub-standard and best
avoided. Even the staff seemed embarrassed by what was offered.

I will be reporting this to Investec as well as a shareholder in the renovations.

Pity that for all the money well spent on the physical environment, the food offering were a
deterioration.

I will be lounging elsewhere until this is resolved!

Regards

Daniel Silke
Cape Town
082-5548538

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended
solely for the addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or
disclose the included information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure
of confidential or privileged information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings
being instituted against the recipient hereof. While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure
the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted electronically, SAA does not accept liability if
the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its intended destination. Please note
that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail Disclaimer which
may be found at http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and_Disclaimers.action#Email .Should
vou not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer(@flysaa.com and a copy

will be sent to you.
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From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>

Sent: Tuesday, 06 October 2015 20:39

To: Duduzile Myeni; Dudu Myeni; Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana; Tony Dixon
(tonydixon@telkomsa.net) (tonydixon@telkomsa.net); John Tambi (jchnt@nepad.org);
Wolf Meyer

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka; Siyakhula Vilakazi

Subject: FW: ENS addendum

Attachments: ENS.docx

Dear Board Members

Trust you are well this evening. The Company Secretary forwarded a request from
the board as per the trailing email dated 01 October 2015. The request was to add
an addendum to the ENS contract, the addendum was to extend their scope to
sylvain’s investigation.

| sought the guidance of the Chief Audit Executive; Siyakhula in this regard.
Attached is the Chief Audit Executive paper explaining that the appointment of
ENS is irregular; the SCM process was not followed.

| am therefore not able to extent the ENS scope as requested.

It is my humble and considered view that we assist the board in regularising the
ENS appointment.

| request Ruth to seek the correct documents from Procurement to condone ENS
appointment and thereafter we will action the request.

Trusting that you find this in order.

Regards.

Thuti Mpshe | Acting Group CEO

¥ prone: +2711 978-2525 | 24 E.ait: ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com
Sth Floor,C Block,Airways Park, OR Tambo Internationai Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Ruth Kibuuka
Sent: 01 October 2015 03:44 PM
Ta: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: ENS addendum :
1 ,é -~
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Dear Thuli,

The Board has agreed that an urgent investigation be conducted by ENS {as they are still on site) into
the allegations against Sylvain. We are busy preparing a round robin to formalise this decision. In the
meantime, due to the urgency emphasised by Board members we have drafted the addendum which
should be provided to ENS under your signature as indicated below:

Addendum to the ENS Contract:

The Board of Directors has agreed to extend the current scope of work for ENS to include an
investigation into the allegations levelled against Mr Sylvain Bosch which are contained in the whistle
blower report provided by Deloitte on or about 11 September 2015, and any other allegations that may

be brought to light by the investigation.

Regards

Ruth Kibuuka | Company Secrefary
<irmage001 jpg>Mobile: +27 083 531 6004 | <image002 jpg>FPhone: +2711-978-8553 | <image005.jpg>Fax: +2711

978-1055 | @E-Mail: RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com
Floor 6,Block A Airways Park,OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended
solely for the addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or
disclose the included information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure
of confidential or privileged information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings
being instituted against the recipient hereof. While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure
the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted electronically, SAA does not accept liability if
the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its intended destination. Please note
that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail Disclaimer which
may be found at hitp://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and_Disclaimers.action#Email .Should

you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer(@flysaa.com and a copy
will be sent to you.
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From: Chief Audit Executive 1

To: Acting Chief Executive Officer
Company Secretary
Date: 05 October 2015

APPOINTMENT OF EDWARD NATHAN SONNENBERG AFRICA (ENS) TO
INVESTIGATE ALLEGATIONS IN A CERTAIN WHISTLEBLOWER REPORT

1 PURPOSE

internal Audit was requested by the Acting CEO (ACEQ) to provide an opinion on whether
the process followed in appointing ENS to conduct an investigation of allegations in a
certain Whistleblower report was aligned to the SAA SCM Policy and PFMA.

2 BACKGROUND

The CAE received a Whistleblower report from the SAA official Whistleblower line on in
September 2015. The Whistleblower report contained allegations against a certain SAA
EXCO member. As per the Internal Audit Charter, the CAE sent the report to all three
Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) members to deliberate on the report and advise the CAE
on the next step. The same report must have been presented by the ARC to the Board.
Having considered the Whistleblower report, the Board took a resolution that the report
must be investigated. Consequently, the Board recommended that ENS must be
appointed to conduct the investigation. The recommendation was sent to the ACEO for
her approval. Before approving or declining the recommendation, the ACEO requested
Internal Audit to conduct a high level review of the procurement process and provide an
opinion on whether the process followed in appointing ENS to conduct an investigation of

allegations in a Whistleblower report was aligned to SAA SCM Policy.

;)_,_.
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3 APPLICABLE LEGISLATIVE AND LEGAL PROVISIONS

The following legislative provisions are pertinent to the opinion sought.

3.1

SAA Supply Chain Management Policy (the Policy) and the Treasury

Regulations

3.1.1  The Policy provides that SAA shall apply section 217 of the Constitution of
the Republic of South Africa by contracting for goods and services in
accordance with a system which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive

and cost effective.

3.1.2 In order to give effect to the above constitutional imperatives, SAA has
adopted the Policy in accordance with the Public Finance Management Act,
Act 1 of 1999 (the PFMA), the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the
PFMA and the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, Act No 5 of
2000 (the PPPFA).

3.1.3 Paragraph 11.2 of the Policy deals with the “Procurement of Goods,
Services and Works”. The paragraph provides that “Goods, services
and works shall only be procured in accordance with authorised
policy. Procurement of goods, services and works, either through
quotations or through a bidding process, shall be within the threshold

values, in line with the DOA”.

3.1.4 Paragraph 11.12.1 provides that a “competitive open bidding shall be
used for procurement above the quotation threshold”. The quotation
threshold is currently R500 000 (five hundred thousand rand).

3.1.5 Regulation 16A6.4 states that “if in a specific case it is impractical to
invite competitive bids, the accounting officer or accounting authority
may procure the required goods or services by other means, provided
that the reasons for deviating from inviting competitive bids must be
recorded and approved by the accounting officer or accounting

Aj\ ya 2
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authority”.
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The Policy deals with the provisions of the above Regulations. Paragraph
11.13 deals with Limited / Confined Bidding and states that SAA shall
use limited bidding onily in the following exceptional circumstances:

3.1.6.1 In cases of where it becomes impossible or impractical to follow

the standard procurement process;

3.1.6.2 In cases of emergency which are defined as serious, unexpected
and potentially dangerous circumstances requiring immediate
rectification such as a threat or interruption in SAA’s ability to
execute its mandate or an immediate threat to the environment or

human safety;

3.1.6.3 where there is proven limited competition in the market and there
is good reason to restrict it to only those few bidders such as
standardisation on a certain brand and product;

3.1.6.4 where, after a thorough analysis, there is good and justifiable
reason to restrict the process to oniy one bidder such as where
you enter into a maintenance contract with only the bidder who
supplied the product otherwise the product loses its guarantee;

and

3.1.6.5 where no competition exists and is proven that only one bidder

exists.

3.1.6.6 Paragraph 11.14 deals with Emergency Purchases and defines an
emergency situation “as one that is serious, unexpected and
potentially dangerous where significant financial loss may
occur or a serious disruption to business may resuit. In these
instances the established procurement policy may be
circumvented. Poor planning on behalf of business is not

deemed to be an emergency”.

3.1.6.7 Sub-paragraph 11.14.2 lists the following examples of emergency

situation: L
) 3



MEM-155

"%
»>
SOUTH A#RW:EAN AIRWAYS
A STAR ALLIANGCE MEMBER ¥¥~ SAA Submission

SAA Private and Confidential
For internal use only

+ Disasters (e.g. damage from cyclones, floods, fire etc.).
+ Customer service impacting conditions.

s System failures.

* Aircraft on ground or potential on ground situations.

¢ Jeopardising the safety and health of others.

3.1.7 | was advised that SAA did not follow any competitive process when the
resolution was taken to appoint ENS to conduct the investigation. In the
absence of any competitive process to appoint ENS, one has to turn to the
Policy provisions on exceptional circumstances as amplified by Regulation
16A6.4 to establish if the ACEO will be justified in appointing ENS without

following a competitive process.

3.1.8 From the quoted paragraphs of the Policy, there are two recognised
deviations from a competitive procurement process, namely limited or
confined bidding and emergency purchases. It appears that SAA has
appointed ENS using the limited or confined appointment process. As
indicated above, the use of the limited or confined procurement process
may be warranted in certain circumstances and justified under the
Regulation however; limited or confined procurement has the potential to
defeat compliance with all the principles of section 217 of the Constitution.
A limited or confined appointment suggests there is only one provider for
the particular goods or services and an appointment thereof should be fully
justified and supported by compelling evidence. For SAA to justify the sole
appointment of ENS it must prove that no reasonable alternative or

substitute exists for the goods or services in question.

3.1.9 Further, in the leading case on Regulation 16A6.4 of Chief Executive
Officer, South African Social Securities Agency and others v Cash
Paymaster Services (Pty) Ltd'. The Supreme Court of Appeal had to decide

12012(1) SA 216 (SCA) A@N ;j/
4
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whether the entering into an agreement between SASSA and the South
African Post Office for the provision of banking services with indigent
citizens to facilitate the payment of social grants, was invalid for deviation
from the normal process. In that instance no competitive process was
followed and thus the Court turned to Regulation 16A6.4 to answer the

question.

3.1.10 Tshigi JA wrote the unanimous judgement which dissected and interpreted
this Regulation. The judge found the Regulation to contain two elements:
one material and the other formal. Firstly, there must be rational reasons for
such deviation (material). Secondly, the reasons for deviating must be

recorded (formal).

3.1.11 Based on the above legal jurisprudence in order for any appointment which
deviates from a competitive process the two elements must be fulfilled i.e. a
rational reason(s) for the deviation must be provided and the reason(s)

must be recorded formally.

3.1.12 SAA has not supplied nor recorded any cogent reasons for deviating from
the peremptory statutory provisions of its Policy, the PPPFA and the PFMA
in resolving to appoint ENS o conduct the investigation. Therefore SAA
cannot rely on the provisions of the Regulation nor the Policy to justify the

appointment.

3.1.13 On the background provided and documents not presented to me it
appears there are no cogent reasons for confining the appointment for ENS
in exclusion of all forensic audit firms in the approved SAA panel of forensic
auditors and there were no reasons recorded for this decision. In its failure
to follow a competitive procurement process, SAA has breached
peremptory statutory prescripts which are designed to ensure a
transparent, cost effective and competitive tendering process. The resultant
appointment is therefore invalid and sin contravention of the Policy, PPPFA
and the PFMA.
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4, OTHER RELEVANT FACTS

» ENS used to be in SAA panel of legal firms that provide Legal advisory services. | did
not see evidence that the same legal firms could provide forensic audit/investigation

services as part of their scope.

¢ In addition to a panel of Legal firms, SAA appointed a panel of forensic audit firms. One
of the reasons for appointing a panel of forensic audit firms was because the scope of

legal firms in the then panel did not include forensic audit investigations.
e ENS was not part of the forensic audit firms' panel.

e The panel of Legal firms expired sometime in April 2015. That means ENS is not part

of any panel currently.

e | have not received a contract which ENS has with SAA to provide forensic audit
services. That therefore means there can be no “addendum” of a contract that does not

exist.

o At the meeting in May 2015, the ARC recommended that the CAE will appoint a
forensic audit firm from the approved panel of firms to investigate Whistleblower reports
on EXCO and Board members. ENS is not part of the current panel of forensic audit

firms.
5. APPLICATION

5.1 From the summation of the above factual background, iegislation and case law, the
ENS's appointment was conducted in deviation of and contravention of the SAA
SCM Policy and the Treasury Regulation. An award of a contract for provision of
goods and services to SAA must follow an open and transparent process as per
section 217 of the constitution and not taken arbitrarily or capriciously. At the
outset, no formal or documented process has been supplied supporting the
decision to award the assignment for forensic audit services to ENS. The award to
ENS has not been properly made in accordance with the applicable legal

prescripts.
6
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5.2 Without derogating from the above, and to the extent that a single source
appointment process was followed and documented, SAA will need to be able to
show proof that there are adequate reasons justifying the confinement of the award
to ENS, failing which the award may be cancelled as a material error of law or fact

rendering the appointment unlawful.

5.3 The appointment of ENS cannot be carried out as an extension of any of the
previous contract, if any. That might actually be interpreted as an “evergreen
contract™. | have no evidence to convince me that this is not a new appointment. An
extension can only be concluded if there is a current appointment with enabling
provisions for an extension of the agreement; | have no seen such an appointment

contract.

6. CONCLUSION

Uniess there are rational reasons for deviating from the normal procurement process
and the reasons for deviating are recorded (as required by TR16A6.4):

6.1 The recommended appointment of ENS is in violation of the SAA procurement
policy, the PPPFA and the PFMA and therefore invalid and cannot be enforced.

7. RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that SAA follow the applicable process to appoint a forensic audit
firm to investigate the allegations in the Whistleblower report by following its Policy on
procurement of services, comply with the peremptory statutory prescripts by placing the

services on a competitive procurement process.
6.1 If extension of a previous contract;

+ The ACEO must be furnished with such a contract. Internal Audit has not seen the

contract.

e The existing contract must have enabling provisions for an extension of the

\

agreement.

7
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e If the contract exists, it must be investigated whether or not that appointment was
aligned to the above prescripts. To date, Internal Audit has not been furnished with

evidence.
6.2 If a new appointment;

s If the emergency procurement was followed, the ACEC must be furnished with

the following:
o A recorded decision made to follow an emergency procurement process.

o Motivation to follow an emergency procurement process and evidence that
there was alignment with the SCM policy.

+ [f the confined or limited procurement process was followed, the ACEO must be

furnished with the following:

o The recorded decision to follow an confined or limited procurement

process

o Motivation to follow a confined or fimited procurement process and

evidence that there was an alignment with the SCM policy
If Treasury Regulation 16A6.4 was followed,
e If TR16A6.4 was followed; the ACEO must be furnished with the following:

o A recorded decision made to follow TR16A6.4.

o The recorded motivation to follow TR16A6.4 and evidence that there was

an alignment with the SCM policy

In the absence of the information as recommended under this paragraph, the appointment

2

will be classified as irregular and will require condonment as SCM policy.
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OTHER ENS APPOINTMENTS

| recommend that each assignment should be looked at on its own merits. This report is only
on the appointment of ENS to investigate the Whistleblower report.

Similar prescripts however apply to all other assignments for which ENS was appointed.

SIGNATURES:

1. Compiled by:

Siyakhula Vilakazi (CAE) Date
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Yakhe Kwinana <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>

Sent: Wednesday, 07 October 2015 07:16

To: Thuli Mpshe; Duduzile Myeni; Dudu Myeni; Yakhe Kwinana; Tony Dixon
(tonydixon@telkomsa.net) (tonydixon@telkomsa.net); John Tambi {jchnt@nepad.org);
Wolf Meyer

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka; Siyakhula Vilakazi

Subject: RE: ENS addendum

Dear A:CEQ

t understand that ENS is now doing their 7% assignment since they were appointed to do the Kalawe investigation and
they have been appointed on exactly the same modus operandi. Out of the 7 assignments, the Chicf Audit Executive
needs to tell us which ones are regular which ones are irregutar and how is this particular assignment different from the

previous b.
Best Regards

Yakhe Kwinanag

Tei 012 807 0801

Fax 012 807 0633

Celi 079 950 0410

Email yakhe@kwinana.co.za

Physical Address Alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street, The
Willows Ext 82, Preforia, 0184

From: Thuli Mpshe [mailto:ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com]

Sent: 06 October 2015 08:39 PM
To: Duduzile Myeni <dudumyeni@telkomsa.net>; Dudu Myeni <dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org.za>; Yakhe Kwinana

<yakhe@kwinana.co.za>; Yakhe Kwinana <yakhekwinana@gmail.com>; Tony Dixon (tonydixon@telkomsa.net)
(tonydixon@telkomsa.net) <tonydixon@telkomsa.net>; John Tambi (johnt@nepad.org) <johnt@nepad.org>; Wolf

“teyer <WolfMeyer@flysaa.com>
€ Ruth Kibuuka <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>; Siyakhula Vilakazi <SiyakhulaVilakazi@flysaa.com>

Subject: FW: ENS addendum

a
)=

SOUTHATRICAN AIRWAYS £y peRigNCE ATTENTION TO BE
: = vEmRER 72 THAT MAKES ALL THE DIFFERE

Dear Board Members
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Trust you are well this evening. The Company Secretary forwarded a request from
the board as per the trailing email dated 01 October 2015. The request was to add
an addendum to the ENS contract, the addendum was to extend their scope to
Sylvain’s investigation.

| sought the guidance of the Chief Audit Executive; Sivakhula in this regard.
Attached is the Chief Audit Executive paper explaining that the appointment of
ENS is irregular; the SCM process was not followed.

I am therefore not able to extent the ENS scope as requested.

It is my humble and considered view that we assist the board in regularising the
ENS appointment,

| request Ruth to seek the correct documents from Procurement to condone ENS
appointment and thereafter we will action the request.

Trusting that you find this in order.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEQ
& Phone: +2711 978-2525 | 2 E-Mail: ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com

6th Floor,C Block, Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Ruth Kibuuka
Sent: 01 October 2015 03:44 PM
To: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: ENS addendum

Dear Thuli,

The Board has agreed that an urgent investigation be conducted by ENS (as they are still on site) into
the allegations against Sylvain. We are busy preparing a round robin to formalise this decision. In the
meantime, due to the urgency emphasised by Board members we have drafted the addendum which
should be provided to ENS under your signature as indicated below:

Addendum to the ENS Contract:

The Board of Directors has agreed to extend the current scope of work for ENS to include an
investigation into the allegations levelled against Mr Sylvain Bosch which are contained in the whistle
blower report provided by Deloitte on or about 11 September 2015, and any other alfegations that may
be brought to light by the investigation.
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Regards

Ruth Kibuuka | Company Secretary
<imageQ01.jpg>Maobile: +27 083 531 6004 | <image002.jpg>FPhane: +2711-878-6553 | <image005.jpg=Fax: +2711

978-1055 | P £-Mail: RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com
Floor 6,Block A Airways Park,OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended
solely for the addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or
disclose the included information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure
of confidential or privileged information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings
being instituted against the recipient hereof. While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure
the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted electronically, SAA does not accept liability if
the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its intended destination. Please note
that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail Disclaimer which
may be found at http://www.{lysaa.com/za/en/policies_and_Disclaimers.action#Email .Should

you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer(@flysaa.com and a copy
will be sent to you.
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Nkosana <nkosanascommissionsc@flysaa.com>
Sent: Tuesday, 26 March 2019 11:59

To: Andrew A. Keartland

Subject: FW: FW: Draft letter for your consideration
Attachments: LETTER OF ENGAGMENT SAA-2.docx

From: "Yakhe Kwinana" <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>
Date: 01/09/2015 at 15:51:54

To: "Thuli Mpshe" <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>

Ce: "Yakhe Kwinana" <yakhekwinana(@gmail.com>
“abject: FW: Draft letter for your consideration

Dear Ms Mpshe
Please find attached do hope it is in order.
Kind Regards

Lana Lourens

KWINANA AND ASSOCIATES INC.

PERSONAL ASSISTANT TO YAKHE KWINANA (MD)

=13 .: o i . | | g ~ .
Pres .“ Kwinana & Assaciates
g @i Incorporated
AUCHE ~ ARK s s RY

Tel 012 807 0801
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Cel 072 456 8107
Fax 012 807 0622

Email i tnune uon

Physical Address Alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street,
Die Wilgers Ext 82, Pretoria 0184

Postal Address FO Box 74423, Lynnwood Ridge, Pretoria 0040

Frw pripileged i confidonpiat infor mesion inpeded only for de of Hie aidresses.

Fhis ensage

3 T wtaeiieptensnanad Fecrifscrs pimirriifa Fii s sa e e
Fracse con Sl S SUTREmERE Bopowy priitilg Uiy el

From: Luvo [mailto:luvo24(@yahoo.co.uk]
Sent: 28 August 2015 12:19 AM

To: Yakhe Kwinana <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>
Subject: Draft letter for your consideration
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Johanmburg Office

1% Floor, 357 Rivonia Boulevard
ia

P O Box 3056

Rivonia

T: 427 (0) 11 234 9515

To: SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS F2E: +27 (0} 86 770 8460
Also & Cape Town & Port Ellzabeth

Per email:yakhe®:

Gur Ref: Luvo Makasi

Your Ref:Y Kwinana

Date: 21 August 2015

Email; luvo@bogwanaburns.com
brettm@bogwanaburns.com

The above matter refers.

(1) Introduction

This letter serves to confirm your appointment of Bogwana Burns Incorporated to act as
your attorneys, the main terms of instruction being to investigate the conduct and
allegations made against the cument CFO and former acting CEO of South African Airways
and to make appropriate recommendations to the Board of SAA, pursuant to the

investigation.

(2)

The Bogwana Burns Incorporated terms of business recorded herein are an integral part of
our appointment. All work carried out by Bogwana Burns Incorporated Is subject to those
terms except to the extent that changes are expressly agreed to In writing.

Directors: Irvine Armoed, Max Bogwaniz, Bob Makukunzva, Luvo Makas), Ricky Stone \__;/ '

Assoclates: Brett Murison
Candidate Aftorneys: Nonzaliselo Mahambehiala
Consultsnt Denver Bumg Z
Finance Manager: Lisa Grobler -
Practice Development Maneger: Paresh Raga

Company Reglstration Numbar: 2012/684818/21
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(3) Scope
You have instructed Bogwana Burns Incorporated to:

3.1 to investigate the conduct and allegations made against the current CFO and
former acting CEO of South African Alrways, which includes but not fimited to:

a) a loan facliity procured or about to be procured by SAA without the
appropriate approvals being oblzined;

b) opinion on the conduct of the CFO in relation to the procurement of
the loan funding referred to above and the alleged unlawful recording
of meetings by the CFO;

€) Allegations made by an anonymous whistieblower with regards to a
possible conflict of Interest existing in respect of the erstwhile acting
CEO of the South African Airways which may have caused financial
losses to South African Airways, possible anti-competitive behavior
andfor possible corruption In relation to various decisions,
arrangements and agreements between South African Alrways and
Mango Altiines;

d) Review the agreements between South African Alrways and Mango
pursuant to the aliegations made against the former acting CEQ of

South African Airways; and

3.2 to provide necessary advice generally in all matters relating thereto.

(4) Professional team
Mr. Luvo Makasl shall be responsible for the overall supervision of your instructions.
Additional resources will be made avallable to meet your requirements, as necessary. We

will, where possible, keep you up to date In this regard.

865 anad expense!

(5) . and expenses
Our fees will be calculated by reference to the time spent by the professionals (including

Candidate Attorneys) dealing with your matter, in accordance with our terms of business,
At this stage we estimate that our fees to conduct the preliminary investigations,

J\“L
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information gathering and opinion will not exceed R 200 000-00 (two hundred thousand
rand) exclusive of VAT, note that this is an estimate only. Should we determine that our
fees will exceed this estimated amount based on actual time spent and/or work carried out
In order to carry out the instruction and scope of work as referred to above we wil
communicate with you before charging such fee. In the absence of agreement we wil
charge for the time spent andfor work carrled out having due regard to the amount

referred to herein,
Our fees are exclusive of VAT which is charged at the prevailing rate, They are also

excluslve of travel, subsistence and all cther disbursements. Any disbursements will be

charged in addition to our fees and will be itemized separately on any Invoice. Billing and
payment of our invoice is to take place fortnightly or immediately after conclusion of the

instruction, whichever happens first.

(6) Payments in Advance

We may ask you to pay sums on account of fees and expenses which are anticipated as the
matter progresses. At this stage we may require R 50 000-00 (fifty thousand rand) as a
security deposit, unless otherwise agreed upon between Bogwana Burns Inc and South
African Alrways. This amount will cover the initial cost of necessary consultation to gather
relevant information and discussing the particular detalls of your instruction in order to
provide the necessary advice, perform due diligence of the available documents and to

taunch the investigation.

You are responsible for the payment of our fees and disbursements incurred whilst

attending to your instructions.

(8) EICA
We refer you to our obligations in terms of the Financial Intelligence Centre Act, 2001. We
require the following FICA documents from yourself:

-« See terms of business form attached hereto

Should you have any querles In relation to this Appointment, please do not hesitate to
contact the writer hereof. :

(9) Agreament



(10)

MEM-172

If you have any queries in relation to this Appointment Letter, please do not
hesitate to contact us.

Our banking details for purposes of payment of the security deposit as well as our

fees in the future are as follows:
-

BOQWANA BURNS INCORPORATED

BANK: NEDBANK

ACCOUNT NO. 1055268006

BRANCH CODE. 198765

REFERENCE. L Makasi/South African Alrways

(Please sign the enclosed duplicate of this letter and return it to us as soon as possible).

Yours Faithfully

Per: Luvo Makasi
Bogwana Burns Inc.

Enclosed — Terms of business for Bogwana Burns Incorporated

Per: Acting- CEO of South African Afrways

Ms Mpshe
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Annexure “TM22”
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Nkosana <nkosanascommissionsc@flysaa.com>
Sent: Tuesday, 26 March 2019 11:59

To: Andrew A. Keartland

Subject: FW: FW:

Attachments: LETTER OF ENGAGMENT SAA-2.docx

From: "Thuli Mpshe" <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>
Date: 01/09/2015 at 13:16:39

To: "Ruth Kibuuka" <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>
Cc: "Yakhe Kwinana2" <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>
“ubject: FW:

Dear Ruth
Please note and action.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | GM: Human Resource | Human Resources

® prone: +2711 978-2525 | 2 £_Mait: ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com

sth Flooar,C Biock Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Yakhe Kwinana2

Sent: 01 September 2015 12:36 PM
To: Thuli Mpshe

Subject:

Dear Thuli
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Please get the Board Resolution in respect of this appointment from Company Secretary.

Yakhe Kwinana

Seat from my Samsyng device
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Nkosana <nkosanascommissionsc@flysaa.com>
Sent: Tuesday, 26 March 2019 11:57

To: Andrew A. Keartland

Subject: FW:

Attachments: LETTER OF ENGAGMENT SAA-2.docx

From: "Yakhe Kwinana" <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>
Date: 01/09/2015 at 12:09:51
To: "Ruth Kibuuka" <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>

Subject:

Sent from my Samsung device
Please print and get Thali to sign

Yakhe Kwinana
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Nkosana <nkosanascommissionsc@flysaa.com>
Sent: Tuesday, 26 March 2019 11:57

To: Andrew A. Keartland

Subject: Fw:

Attachments: LETTER OF ENGAGMENT SAA-2.docx

— P —

From: "Yakhe Kwinana" <yakhe@kwinana.co.za™>

Date: 01/09/2015 at 11:45:02

To: "Dudu M" <dudumyeni@telkomsa.net>," Thuli Mpshe"
<ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>,"tonydixon@telkomsa.net" <tonydixon@telkomsa.net>,"johnt@nepad.org”
johnt@nepad.org>

subject:

Sent from my Samsung device
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Andrew A. Keartland . . _
From: Thuli Mpshe

Sent: Wednesday, 30 September 2015 19:48

To: Ursula Fikelepi

Ce: Masimba Dahwa

Subject: RE: Draft letter for your consideration

Hi Ursula

As discussed earlier we will do a telecom with Ms Kwinana tomorrow.
Regards.

Thuali Mpshe | Acting Group CEO

& phone: +2711 978-2625 | ® E-Mai: ThuliMpshegifiysaa.com
6th Floor,C Block,Airways Park, OR Tambo intemational Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

PanE—

From: Ursula Fikelepi

Sent: 30 September 2015 04:55 PM

To: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: RE: Draft letter for your consideration

Dear Thul

The Supply Chain Management Policy allows for deviations in paragraphs 4.1 and clause in the following instances:
1. Exclusions: listed as
a. Petty cash purchases;
Professional members and subscriptions;
Water and electricity
income generating contracts;
Rates and taxes from local authorities or provincial administrations;
Landing and navigation service fees;
Goods/services provided by SAA Divisions/Bus/Subsidiaries;
Letting and hiring and acquisition and alienation of land and fixed property where the bidding process
cannot be utilised;
i. Sponsorships and denations;
j.  Studies through specific institutions.
Limited or confided bidding;
Emergency purchases;
One quote process;
Acquisition and leases of aircraft; and
Condonements.

T e o

Qe W

The list of the exclusions is a closed list and thus anything falling outside of the list stipulated in paragraph 4 of the SCM,
does not constitute an exclusion, as allowed under that paragraph. Based on the facts of the current matter presented,
the services procured from &r Makasi do not form part of the list of Exclusions specified in the SCM.

L
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With respect to the other deviations,  addressed limited or confined bidding and Emergency purchases in my previous
email on 7 September 2015 and concluded that these do not apply to the facts of this matter {see attached). Similarly,
this matter is not an acquisition or lease of an aircraft.

The only other ground allowed for deviating from the SCM is the “one guote process”, which allows for “only one quote
to be oblained from an end-user with circumstances duly motivated and submitted to the relevant SCM officiof to
compiete the gpproval process in line with the Doa”

Paragraph 11.15.1 lists examptles of services where a one quote process can be followed and these include:
- Specific training;
- Venues and conference facilities;
- Latering in aspecific ares;
- Tender and promotional adverts in newspapers; and
participation by SAA in pariner marketing events.

¥

The above list of examples is quite specific to training, marketing, advertisements and catering. Since a deviation
constitutes an exemption to a policy of general application which requires g stipulated process to be followed for ali
procurement, it is interpreted narrowly and the exempted instances listed would of a specific nature or dass (ejusdem
generis rule). Procurement of the services stated in the facts of this matter do not form part of this class or natyre listed
in this exemption. Accordingly, the One Quote process would not be the applicable process in this area.

The SCM does not define SCM Official, but defines “ Supply Chain Management Practitioner” as “o person who proctices
supply chain management as o profession or any other official practising or involved with supply chain monagement”. i
can be inferred from this definition that the SCM official referred 10 in clause 11.15.1. To my knowledge and

understanding

As stated previously, paragraph 11.17 of the SCAM authovises the CEO to condone |, the SCM also allows for
condonement for irregular purchases where due process has not been followed. Due process referred to is the process
relating to the procurement of Mr Makasi’s services, in respect of which paragragh 11.2 of the SCM references
“Procurement of goods, services and works, either through quotations or through o bidding process”, In line with section
217 of the Constitution and section of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act which require open, fair,
competitive and transparent procurement process.

| also reviewed the DoA to determine if there is any provision for deviations. This would be an anomaly since the Board
would typically reserve powers to itself for matters that it wishes to address directly, as is the case with the current

DoA.

.since you advised that the consultant Mr Makasi is already appointed, the condonement seems a mofe neat and
elegant solution,

It may be more useful to engage face to face with the Chair of Audit and Risk so we can understand wheare she is coming
from and also Invite the Chief Audit Executive and even the CP( to the discussion so we can resclve and close the

matter.

Kind regards,
Ursula Fikelepi | General Manager | Legal Risk and Compliance

3 Mabile: 0837960899 '[ & Phone: 2711-978-5279 | &4 E-Mail: UrsulaFikeleoimidfivens rom
Room SUITE 2, Floor &, Alrways Park, OR Tambo Intemational- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Thuli Mpshe
Sent: 11 September 2015 04:40 PM

ya
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To: Ursula Fikelep!
Cc: Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana; Dudu Myeni; Dudu Myeni; Tony Dixon (tonydixon@telkomsa.net)

(tonydixon@telkomsa.net); John Tambi (johnt@nepad.org); Ruth Kibuuka
Subject: FW: Draft letter for your consideration

Dear Ursula
Please note the trailing email ana advise.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEO

& Phone: +2711 978-2525 | & E-Mail: ThuliMpshe@iflysaa.com
Bth Fioor,C Block,Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Yakhe Kwinana
Sent: 11 September 2015 02:20 PM
To: Thuli Mpshe; Yakhe Kwinana2
. €e: John Tambi (iohnt@nepad.org); Tony Dixon (fonydixong telkpmsa.net) (onydiongielkomsa. net); Ruth Kibuuka
-Subject: RE: Draft letter for your consideration

Dear Thuli

Can you get an opinion from Legal because I am advised that if a service provider is approved by the board, it
is not irregular, it falls under "deviations".

Thank you

Yskhe

Bont foin my Samsung device

----—-- Original message ------v

From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshet flvsaa.com>

Date: 08/09/2015 22:01 (GMT+02:00)

To: Yakhe Kwinana? <vakhe@kwingna.co,za>, Yakhe Kwinana <y skbekwinana ¢ gmail com>

Cec: "John Tambi (johni@ 1.0rg)" <johnt@nepad.otg>, "Tony Dixon (lonydiscn o iclkonsaaet)
‘(onvdixonitelkomsa.net)” <tonydixonw telkomsa net>, Ruth Kibyuka <RuthKibwukad flvsaa com>
Subject: RE: Draft letter for your consideration ) ' s

]

Dear Ruth

Please note the trailing email and action.
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Thanks and regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEQ | Corporate

hone: +2711 $78-2525 f-MaH: ThulidMpshe@fysaa.com

6th Floor,C Block,Airways Park, OR Tambo Intermational Alrpori- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Yakhe Kwinana2

Sent: 08 September 2015 03:55 PM

To: Thuli Mpshe; Yakhe Kwinana

Cc: John Tambi (johnt@nepad.org); Tony Dixon (konydixonditekomsa.net) Gonvdixonételkomss.net); Ruth Kibuuka
Subject: Re: Draft letter for your consideration ' . '

Thank you Thuli. You may as well get the others condoned eg:-

Intervistas

Others 1 may not be aware of.

g%'.Sl’akhe Kwinana

Sent Bon my Semsung device

-------- Original message ------—
From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe:; flysaa.cor>

Date: 08/09/2015 15:35 (GMT+02:00)
4 AN
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To Y akhe meana <y ahhe a} cwinana, cc: xa> Yakhe meana <y akhekwmanaw? 5 lmi.l Con

(tonvdﬁ RO teikcmsa i )" <‘£0m mxo;f’z iﬁlk(}f’”iSd m’i? Ruth Kibuuka <R§‘{}3Kwuuka it ﬂwaa cc;m‘;-
Subject: RE: Draft letter for your consideration

‘Dear Ms Kwinana

Following the meeting yesterday where you advised that the service provider has
been engaged by the board.

I have since investigated the options available to regularise this transaction.

’Fhe applicable process will be a condonement The forms for the cendenement are

the p%mbx!m’ m‘ Cony ;»Eciaz*»r mf*h ot
#iscussions aod wesolmtion,

Trusting that you find this in order.

Régards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEO | Corporate
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From: Ruth Kibuuka

Sent: 04 September 2015 03:30 PM

To: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: FW: Draft letter for your consideration

Dear Thul,
Please see the attached drafi Board resolution as requested.

Regards

Ruth Kibuuka | Company Secretary

obite: +27 083 531 6004 | hon: +2711-978-6553 | ax; +2711 978-1055 | -Maﬂ: RuthKibuukaia flvsaa com

Floor 6,Block A Alrways Park,OR Tambo Intemational- dohannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Thuli Mpshe
Sent: 03 September 2015 04:46 PM

To: Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana -
Ce: M Dudu (dudumyeniatelkomsanet); dudumelacobzumafoundation.ord.za; Tony Dixon (tonydixon@telkomsa.net)

(tonydixpnia tetkomsa.net); John Tambi (ohnt@nepad.org); Masimba Dahwa; Ursula Fikelepi
Subject: FW: Draft letter for your consideration

Dear Ms Kwinana

Apologies for the delayed response. I have reviewed the attached and requested
legal and procurement departments to provide guidance in this regard.

N\




MEM-189

I am informed that the legal firm in question is not in our panel of i?'f_egal service
providers furthermore procurement informs that the procurement process was not
followed in line with the SCM policy.

We are not certain if the value quoted is a fair one for the services to be rendered. A
competitive bid process would have given us an idea of the value of the services by
other service providers and provided us with a basis for comparison and therefore
confirm that the value quoted is a fair.

In this regard, 1 would advise we follow the similar procurement process as was
followed with the recent procurement of the other forensic auditors, namely an
RFQ process where the value is below R500, 000 and an RFP where the value is
above R500, 000. This will ensure that there is compliance with applicable iaws
and regulations, including the PFMA. Kindly provide me with the confirmation
that the appropriate process was followed, otherwise this may result in a declaration

of PEMA non-compliance.

Management is happy to provide the required assistance to ensure that there is full
compliance.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting CEQ | Cofporate

6th Floor,C Block, Airways Park, OR Tambo Intemational Airpori- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Yakhe Kwinana2
Sent: 01 September 2015 03:51 PM

N,



To: Thuli Mpshe
Cc: Yakhe Kwinana
Subject: FW: Draft letter for your consideration

Dear Ms Mpshe

Please find attached do hope it is in order.

Kind Regards

Lana Lourens

'KWINANA AND ASSOCIATES INC.

PERSONAL ASSISTANT TO YAKHE KWINANA (MD)

Tel 012 807 0801

Cel 072 456 8107

Fax 012 807 0622

Email | Raters

Physical Address Alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street,
Die Wilgers Ext 82, Pretoria 0184

Postal Address FO Box 74423, Lynnwood Ridge, Pretoria 0040

MEM-190
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From: Luvo [mailte:luvo24iyahoa.co.uk]
Sent: 28 August 2015 12:19 AM

To: Yakhe Kwinana <vakhe@kwinapa.co.za>
Subject: Draft letter for your consideration

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
“information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hercof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at hits://www flysza.con/za/en/policies_and Disclaimers action#Email
.Should you not bave access to the internet, send an e-mail to fggﬂeSLél.sC aiyperiy flvsaa.com and a copy will be

sent to you.
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Johannesbury Office .

1% Figor, 357 Rivonia Boulevard
Rivonia

P O Box 3056

Rivanfa

T: 427 (0y11 234 8519
To: SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS F2E; +27 {(03)86 770 8460

Also @ Cape Town & Port Elizabeth
Per emall:yakhe@kwinana.co.za 00

Our Ref: Luvo Makast

Your Ref: Y Kwinana

“Date: 21 August 2015

Email: luvo@bogwanaburns.com
brettm@bogwanaburns.com

Dear Sirs,

- LETTER OF ENGAGEMENT: INVESTIGATION OF CURRENT SAA CFO &
FORMER SAA ACTING CEO

The above matter refers.

(1) Intreduction

This letter serves to confirm your appointment of Bogwana Burns Incorporated to act as
your attorneys, the main terms of instruction being to investigate the conduct and
allegations made against the current CFO and former acting CEO of South African Aliways
and to make appropriate recommendations to the. Board of SAA, pursuant to the
investigation. .

(2) Yerms of business

The Boqwana Burns Incorporated terms of business recorded herein are an integral part of
our appointment. All work carried out by Bogwana Burns! Incorporated is:subject to those
terms except to the extent that changes are expressly agreed to in writing.

v

Directors: [rvine Arrmoed, Max Bogwana, Bob Makukunzva, Luvo Makasi, Ricky Stone :
" Associates: Brelt Murisen

Candidats Attomeys: Nonealissko Mahambehizla
Consuitant, Denver Buns
Finance Manager. Lisa Grobler

Praciice Development Manager: Paresh Regs
Company Registration Number: 2012/084819/21 C%\
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(3) Scope

You have instructed Bogwana Burns Incorporated to:

3.1 to investigate the conduct and allegations made against the current CFQ and
‘ former acting CEQO of South African Airways; which includes but not limited to:

a) a loan facility procured or about to be procured by SAA without the
appropriate approvals being obtained;

b) cbinion on the conduct of the CFO in relation to the procurement of
the loan funding referred to above and the alleged unlawful recording
of meetings by the CFO;

¢} Allegations made by an anonymous whistieblower with regards to a
possible conflict of interest existing in respect of the erstwhile acting
CEC of the South: African” Airways which ‘may. have .caused financial
josses to South African Ainﬁays,"pbssiibie'. anfi%édmp'etitive behavior
andfor possible corruption in relation to various decisions,
arrangements and agreements between South African Airways and
Mango Aifnes; B

d) Review the agreements between. South African Airways and Mango
pursuant to thé ‘allegations- made against the former acting CEO of
South African Alrways; and

3.2 to provide necessary advice generally in all matters.relating thereto.

(4)  Professional team

Mr. Luvo Makasi shall be responsible for the ‘overall supervision of your instructions.
Additional resources will be made available to meet your requirements, as necessary. We
will, where possible, keep you up to date in this regard.

{(5) Ourfees and expenses

Our fees will be calculated by reference to the time spent by the professionals (including
Candidate Attomeys)dea_iing with your matter, in accordance with our terms of business.
At this stage: we estimate that our fees to -conduct the preliminary investigations,

N
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information gathering and opinion will not exceed R. 200 000-00 {two hundred thousand
rand) exclusive of VAT, note that this is an estimate only. Should we'determine that our
fees will exceed this estimated amount based on actual time spent and/or work carried out
in order to carry out the instruction and scope of work as referred to above we will
communicate with you before charging such fee. In the absence of agreement we will
charge for the time spent and/or work carried out having due regard to the amount
referred to herein.

Our fees are exclusive of VAT which: Is. charged ‘at the prevailing.rate. They are also
exclusive of travel, subsistence and all other disbursements. Any disbursements will - be
charged in addition-to our-fees and will be ltemized separately on any invoice. Billing and
payment of our invoice is to take place fortnightly or immediately: after conclusion of the
instruction, whichever happens first.

(6) Pavments in Advance

We may ask you to pay sums on account of fees and expenses. whlch are antncnpated as the
matter progresses. At this stage we may require R 50 000-00 (fifty. thousand rand) as a
security deposit, uniess otherwise agreed upon: between Bogwana: Burns Inc and South
African Alrways. This amount will cover the initial cost of necessary consultation to gather
relevant ‘information and discussing the particular details of your instruction in order to
provide the necessary advice, perform due diligence of the available documents and to
faunch the investigation.

(7) Your responsibility for our invoices

You are responsible for the payment of our fees and disbursements incurred whilst
attending to your instructions.

(8) FEICA
We refer you to our obligations in terms of the Financial Intelligence Centre Act, 2001. We
require the foliowang FICA documents from yourself

e See terms of business form attached hereto

Should you have any queries in relation to this Appointment, please do not hesitate to
contact the writer hereof.

(9) Agreement

s
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If you have any queries in relation to this Appointment Letter, please do not

hesitate to contact us.
(10) Payment of security deposit and account details

Our:banking details: for purposes of payment of the security deposit as well as our
fees in the future are as follows:

BOQWANA BURNS INCORPORATED

BANK: NEDBANK ..

ACCOUNT NO. 1055268006

_BRANCH CODE. 198765

REFERENCE. L Makasi/South African Alrways

(Please sign the enclosed duplicate of this letter and return it to us as soon as possibie).

Yours Faithfully

Per: Luvo Makasi
Boqwana Burns Inc.

Enclosed - Terms of business for Boqwana Burns Incorpurated

‘Mmam MM&@
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CONFIDENTIALITY AND NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

Between
SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS (SQOC) LIMITED

(Registration Number 1997/022444/30)

e

BOQWANABURNS INC.

S

D e T S —

e ————————
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1 PARTIES

1.1 The Parties to this Agreement are —

1.1.1 South African Always (SOC) Limited (*SAA"); and
1.1.2 BOQWANA BURNS INC.

1.2 The Pariles agree as sst out below.

2  INTERPRETATION

2.1 In this Agreement, unless the context indicates a contrary intentlon, the following
words and expressions bear the meanings assigned lo them and cognate
exprassions bear corresponding meanings ~

2.1.1 "Agreement” means this confidentialily and non-disclosure agreement;

21.2 “"Associated Companles” means any company that the Discloser hes a
direcl or indirect Interest in which includes all subsidlaries and/or related
companies;

2.1.3 "Confidential Information” means

2.1.3.1 all and any information or data in whatever form {including In oral, writlen,

electronic and visual form) ralating to the Discloser;

£.13.2 which by its nature or content is identifiable as, or couid reasonably he
expacled lo be, confidential and/or proprielary lo the Discloser:

2.1.3.3 provided or disclosed In confidence by the Discloser Lo the Recipisnt, and

2.1.3.4 which the Discloser or any person acling on ils behalf may disclose or
provide to Reclplent or which may come 1o the knowiedge of the Reciplent
by whatsoaver means. Withoul limitation, the Confidentiat Information shait
include the following:

2.1.3.4.1 information relating to the Discloser's stralegic objectives and planning;

2.1.34.2 information  relating to Discloser's business activities, business
relailonships, products, services, customers and personnhel;

2.1.3.4.3 the Discloser's technical, scientiflc, commerclal, Snancial and market

'*’Wc@
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Informaticn, jet fuel volumes, jet fue! prices and trade secrels; and
2.1.3.4.4 agreements to which the Discloser is a parly:

The determinalion of whether information s Confidential infarmation shall
not be affected by whelher or not such information Is subject to, or
protecled by, common law or statule relaled o copyright, patent,
trademarks or otherwise

2.1.4 "Discloser” means South African Airways {SOC) Limiled (SAA), a state.
owned company duly incorporated in accordance wilh the company {aws of
the Republic af South Africa, and for purposes of this Agreament shall include
including the Assoclated Companies, harein represented by Ruth Kibuuka

21.5 "Exclusions” means the circumstances in which the undertakings given by
the Recipient in this Agreement are not applicable, as described in clauses
6.3.1106.3.4;

2.1.6 “Parties" means the paries Io this Agreement and *Party” shali mean either of

them as ths conlext dictates:

2.1.7 ‘Purpose” means investigation in respecl of the fong term debt funding,
whislle biower allegations & secret fecondings

218 "Recipient” means Bogwana Bums Inc. and
219 "Slgnature Date" means the date of signalure of this Agreemen! by the Party
last signing.

2.2 In this Agraement -

2.2.1 clause headings and the heading of the Agreement are for tonvenience only
and are not lo be used in its interpretation;

222 an axpression which denotes -

2221 any gender includes the olher genders;

2222 a nalural person Includes a juristic person and vice versa;

2223 the singutar includes the plural and vice versa: and

2224 & Parly includes a reference to that Party's successors in title and assigns

allowed at law. k | UM
£ S
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2.3 Any reference in this Agreement lo -

2.3.1 "busginess hours” shall be construed as being the hours batween OBh30 and
17h00 on any business day. Any refersnce to time shall be based upan South
African Standard Time; and

2.3.2 "days" shall be construsd es calendar days uniess qualified by the word
"business”, In which inslance a "business day" will be any day ather than a
Saturday, Sunday or public holiday as gazetted by the governmenl of the
Republic of South Africa from time to time,

2.4 The words “include” and “including” mean “include without limitation” and
“including without limitation®. The use of the words "Include” and *"Including"
followed by a specific example or examples shall not ba consirued as limiling the
meaning of the general wording preceding it.

25 Any subslantive provisicn, conferring rights or imposing obligations on a Parly
and appearing In any of the definitions in this clause 2 or elsewhera in this
Agreemant, shall be given effect lo as if it were a substantive provisian in Lhe
body of the Agreement.

2.6 Words antd expressions defined in any clause shall, unlass the applicalion of any
such word or expressian is specifically limiled to that clause, bear the meaning
assigned to such word or axpression throughout this Agresment.

2.7 Unless ctherwise provided, defined terms appearing in this Agraement in tille
case shall be glven their meaning as defined, while the same terms appesaring in
lowar case shall be inlerpreled in accordance with their plain English meaning.

28 Unless specifically otherwise provided, any number of days prescribed shall be
dstermined by excluding the first and including the last day or, where the last day
fails on a day that Is not a business day, the nex! succeeding business day.

2.9 Where figures are referred to in numerals and in words, and there Is any conflict
between the two, the words shall prevali, uniess the context indicates a contrary
intention.

210 Any reference in this Agreement to “this Agreement” or any other agreemant or
document shall be construed as a reference lo this Agreement or, as the case
may be, such other egreemenl or dacument, as amended, varied, novated or

supplemented from iime lo tme. [ﬁ
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211 In this Agreemenl the words “clause® or "clauses” refer g clausas of this

Agreement,

3 RECORDAL

3.1 Itis the intenlion of the Discloser to enler into discussions with the Recipisnl in
relation fo the Purpose.

3.2 During the course of the aforesaid discusslans, the Discloser will be disclosing
certain Confidential Information io the Reclplent periaining 10 various aspeels of
lts business, The Recipient acknowledges the Imporlance of the Confidential
Information fo the Discloser and recognises that the Discloser andfor third party
proprietors may suffer imeparable harm or loss in the event of such informalion
being disclosed or used oiherwise than in accordance with this Agreement.

3.3 In the circumstances, ke Recipient Is willing o provide the Discloser with an
undertaking in regard to mainfaining tha confidentiaflly of any Confidential
Informalion {and not disclosing ii) and In regard to matters related thareto, on the
terms and conditions set out herein.

4  DISCLOSURE AND USE DF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

4.1 The Discloser undertakes to disclose o the Reciplent such Confidenlial
information as may ba in the possession of the Discloser and as will, in the sole
Bnd absolule digcretion of the Discloser, be necessary for the Recipient to
conduct the discussions conlamplated in clause 3.1,

4.2 the Reciplent acknowledgas ihaf -

4.2.1 the Confidential Information is a valuable, spacial and unique assel of the
Discloser; and

422 the Discloser may suffer irreparable harm or substantial econemic and other
foss in the event of such Confidential Information being disclosed or used
olherwise than in accordance with this Agresmenit.

43 All Confidential informalion disclosed by the Disclosar to the Reclpient or which
otherwise comes fo the knowledge of the Reciplen, is acknowledged by the
Regipient ~

4.3.1 to be proprietary of the Discloser; and

4.3.2 not o confer any rights of whalsoever nature In such Confidential Information

%ﬁ;% 10
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on the Recipient.
4.4 the Reclplent irevocably and uncondiionally agrees and undertakes -
4.4.1 lo treal and safeguard the Confidential Information as strictly private, secret
and confidential;
4.42 nol to use or permil the use of the Confidential Informaticn for any purpose

olher than In relation o the Purpose and as contemplated under ciause 3,1
above and, in paricular, not to use or permil the use of the Confidential
information, whether directly or indirectly, 1o oblsin @ commercia), trading,
Investment, financial or other advaniage over the Discloser or otherwise use it
to the detriment of the Discloser:

4,43 except as parmitled by this Agreement, not lo disclose or divuige, direclly or
indirectly, the Confidentiat Information in any manner to any third party for any
reason of purpose whatsoever without the prior written consent of ihe
Discloser, which consent may be granted or withheld in the scla and absolule
discretion of the Discloser;

4.4.4 fol to copy or reproduce the Confidential Information by any means without
the prior writlen consent of the Discloser, It being recorded that any copies
shail be and remain the property of tha Discloser; and

4.4.5 to keep all Confidential Informalion safely and securely and to take all such
sleps as may be reasonably necessary to prolect il against thef, damage,
loss, unauthorised access (including access by eleclronic means) and to
prevent Confidential information from faliing inlo the hands of unautharised
third parlies.

5 RETURN OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

5.1 The Recipient shall, where applicable, al ils own expense, within 7 (seven)
business days of terminalion of the Purpose, and in eny event within 2 (two)
business days of written demand irom the Discloser —

8.1.1 relurn or destroy (as stipulated by the Discloser), and procure the return or
destruclios.of all Confidential Information and all copies of il (whether in paper,
elactranic or other format) held by the Reciplent, without keaping eny toples
or pariisl copies thereof;

5.1.2 destroy, and procure the destruction of all analyses, compilations, noles,

NP
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siudies, mamoranda or other documenls prepared by the Recipien!, which
coniain ar otherwise reflact or are generated from the Confidential Information;

513 delele or procure the deletion of all Confidential Information from any
computer, word processor or other device in the Possession or control of the
Recipienl; and

5.1.4 confirm in writing to the Discioser thal the Reciplent has complied with the

provisions of clauses 5.1.1 {0 5.1.3.

5.2 For the avoidance of doubt, the obligafions of tonfidentiality contained in this
Agreement wiil continue to apply 10 such retained Confidential Information,

6  EXCLUSIONS

6.1 The determination of whether Information is Confidential information shall not be
affected by whether or ot such information is subject to, or prolected by,
common iaw or statute related io copyright, patent, trade marks or otherwisa.

6.2 If the Recipient &5 uncertsin as o whelher any Information s Confidential
Information, the Recipient shall ireat such information as confidential enfil the
contrary is agreed by the Discloser in writing.

6.3 The underiakings given by the Reciplant in this Agreement and in particular in
clause 4 shall not apply Io any informafion which -

6.3.1 Is or becomes generally avaliable to the public other than by the negligence or
default of the Reciplent, or by the breach of this Agreement by any of them;

6.3.2 the Discloser confirms In writing that such information is disciosed on a non-
confidential basis:

6.3.3 is disclosed pursuant lo a requirement or request by operation of faw,
reguialion or courl order; or

6,3.4 has lawfully become known by or come into the possession of the Recipient
©h a non-confidential basis from a source other than the Discloser having the
legal right to disclose same, provided thal such knowledge or possession is
evidenced by the wrilten records of the Recipient existing at the Signature

YH
S,

provided that —
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6.3.5 the onus shalt at all imes rest on lhe Recipient to establish that such
informalion faiis within the Exclusions;

6.3.6 information will nol be deemed to be within the Exclusions merely because

such information is embraced by more general information in the public
domain ar in the Recipient's possassion; and

6.3.7 any combination of features wilt nol be deemed lo be within the Exclusions
merely because individual fealures are in the public domsin or in the
Recipient's possession, but only if the combination ilself and its principie of
operation are in he public domain or in the Reciplent's possession.

7  FORCED DISCLOSURE

In the event that lhe Recipienl is required (o disclose Confidential Information
pursuanl {o a requiremant or requesl by operation of faw, regulation or court order, it
wili —

741 advise the Discloser thereof in wriling prior (o disclosure, if possible:

7.2 take such slepe lo avoid and to iimil the disclosure to the minimum extent
required to satisfy such requirament and to the extent that it lawiully and
reasonably can;

7.3 efford the Discloser a reasonable opportunity, if possible, to inlervene in the
proceedings;

7.4 comply with the Disclosar’s reasonable requests as fo the manner and terms of
any such disclosurs; and

7.5 nolify the Discloser of the racipient of, and the form and extent of, any such
disclosure or ennouncement immediately sfier it is made.

8 DURATION

The obligations of the Recipient with respect o each item of Canfidential Informalion
in its possession shall commence on the date on whish such Information Is
disclosed or otherwise recelved {whelher before or afier the Signatuse Date) and
shall endure unlil withdrawn in writing by South African Alrways S0OC Ltd.] The
obligalions referred 1o in clause 4 shall endure notwithstanding any termination of
Ihe discussions referred to in clause 3.1 or eny subsequent engagement enlered
Into belween the Parties as a result of the Purpose. 14 Z L‘
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BREACH AND INDEMNITIES

Without prejudice lo the other rights of the Discloser, in the event of any
unautharised disclosure or use of the Confidential Information which is or is
rassonably likely to conslitute a breach of any provision of this Agreement, tha
Recipient shall -

Immediately nofify the Disclaser in writing and fske such steps as the
Discloser may reasonably require in order to remedy or mitigate the sffects of
such actual or threatened breach: and

use all reasonable commercial endeaveurs io assist the Discloser in
recovering and praventing the use, dissemination, sale or other disposa! of
guch Confidential Informalion.

The Parlies acknowledge and agrea thal —

cancellation is notl an appropriate remedy for breach of lhis Agreement and
this Agreement may not be cancelled or terminated save by written agreement
betwaen tha Parties: and

damages alone may not be an adequale remedy for any breach of the
obligalions set oul in this Agreemeni and that the remedies of interdict,
specific performance and any other equilable relief are appropriale for any
threatenied or actual breach of this Agresment. The Discinser will be entitled
to apply for such remedy, in addilion fo any other remedy o which it may be
entilied In law (other than the remedy ol cancellation).

Without prejudice to clause 9.2, the Recipieni accapts full liability for the
maintenance of the confidentizlity of the Confidsntial information and hereby
uncenditionally and irrevocably indemnifies and holds the Discloser harmless
against any and all loss, aclion, expense, claim, harm or damages of whatlsoever
nalure suffered or sustained by the Discloser pursuant lo a breach or threatened
breach by the Recipient of the provisions of this Agreement.

Should any unauthorised disclosure of Confidential Information take place in
breach of the provisions of this Agresment, the Discloser shall, in addition to the
aforegoing, be entitied by written nofice to the Reclplent to terminate alj
obligations to provide information (o the Recipient with immediate effect and no
further information will be disclosed io the Recipient in terms of this Agreemant,

LM
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it NOWARRANTY
Unless otherwise spacifically staled In writing, the Discloser —

10.1  does not give or make any warranty, represeniation or undertaking, express or
Implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of any of the Confidential Information
or other informalion received by the Recipient as fo lhe reasonableness of any
assumptions on which any of the same is based;

10.2  does not accept any responsibilty or labilily for the use of the Confidential
information by the Recipienl; and

10.3  is under no obligalion lo update or correct any inaccuractes which may bacome
apparent in any of lhe Confidentiat Information.

11 BENEFIT

111 The underiakings glven by the Recipient in this Agreement shall be for tha benelit
of and may be enforced by the Discloser, any of its Associated Companias and
any successors-intitle. Ths undertakings shall be deemad to have been
Imposed as a stipulation alteri for the benefit of any Associated Companies and
any successor-in-litle and such benafit may be accepled by such person at any
Ume. The lact that any underiaking may not be enforceable by ene of them will

not affecl ils enforceabilily by any other party.

1.2 For the purposes of clause 11.1, tha term "successors-in-tille” shall inelude any

fhird party which acquires —

1821 the business of the Discloser, or any of its associated enlilies or any pant

thersof: or

11.2.2 pursuant to any cesslon, tha right to enforce the underlakings embodied in this
Agreement.
12 NOTICES AND DOMICILIA

12.1  The Parlies select as their respeclive domicilia citandi et executandi the following
physical addresses, and for the purposes of giving or sending any nolice
provided for or required under this Agresment, the sald physical addresses as
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well as the following (elefax numbers -
Name Physical Address Talofax / Emaijl
the Discloser Air ways Park (011} 978 1055/
OR Tambo Internationa! Airpori tuthkibuuka®flysaa
Jones Road LCOm
Kempton Park
1827
Marked for the attention of: Ruth Kibuuka: Company Secretary
Name Physlcal Address Telefax ! Email
the Recipient 1* Floor, luvo@bogwanabums,
357 Rivonia Boufevard com

Marked for the altention of: Luvo Makasi

provided that a Party may change ils demiclium or iis address for lhe purposes
of nolices 10 any other physical address or felefax number by written nolice 1o the
other Party fo that effect. Such change of address will be effeclive § (five)
business days after recelpt of the notice of the change,

12.2  All notices to he givan in terms of this Agreement will be given in writing and will -
j2.2.i be delivered by hand or sent by telefax:

12.2.2 f delivered by hand during business hours, be presumed ic have been
received on lhe date of delivery. Any nolice defivered afler business hours or
on a day which is not 2 business day will be presumed to have been received
on the following business day; and

12.2.3 il sent by tefefax during business hours, be presumed to have besn recpived
on the date of successiul transmisgion of the telefax. Any telefax senl after
busingss hours or on a day which is not a business day wili be piesumed to
have been received on the foliowing business day.

12.3  Notwithstanding the above, any nolice given in writing, and aclually received by
the Pariy lo whom the notice is addressed, will bs deemed lo have been properly

OB
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given and received, notwilhstanding that such notice has not been given in
accordance with this clause 12.

13 APPLICABLE LAW AND JURISDICTION

13.1  This Agreement will in all respects be governed by and construed under the laws
of the Republic of South Africa.

13.2  The Partiss hareby consenl and submii to the non-exclusiva jurisdiclion of the
South Gauteng High Court, Johannesburg in any dispule arising fram or in
conneclion with this Agreement.

14 UNDERTAKINGS BY PERSONNEL

Notwithstanding the Discloser nol requiring a written undarteking from each of the
Recipienl’s personnel with access to the Confidential Infarmation, the Reciplent
warranis that it's personnel, who have access to the Discloser's Confidential
Information, shall enswre the confidentialiy of the Discloser's Confidential
Informatlon on substantially the same terms and conditions contained within this
Agreement,

15 GENERAL
15.1 Whole Agreement

15.1.1 This Agreement conslitules lhe whole of the agrasment between the Parties
refaling to the matters deall wilth hersin and, save to ihe extent otherwise
provided herein, no underlaking, representation, ierm or condition ralating to
the subject maller of this Agreement nol incorporaled in this Agreement shall
be binding on either of the Partias.

15.1.2 This Agreemenl supersedes and replaces any and all agreemesnls betwesn
tha Parties {and other persons, as may be applicable) and undertakings given
to or on behalf of the Pariies (and other persons, as may be applicahle} in
relation to the subject malter hereof,

15.2  Variations to be in Writing

No addition to or variation, delstion, or agreed cancellation of all or any tlauses
or provisions of this Agreament will be of any force or effect unlass it s reduced
to writing and signed by the Parties.

153  Noindulgences ﬁ/’ wl{,
b
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No latitude, extension of time or other indulgence which may be given or allowed
by any Party to the olher Parlies in respect of tha performance of any obligation
hereunder, and no dalay or forbearance in the enforcement of any right of any
Party arising from Ihis Agreement, and no single or parfial exercise of any right by
any Parly under this Agreetent, shall in any circumsiances be construed to be
an implied consent or election by such Party or operate as a waiver or a novation
of or otherwise affacl any of lhe Parly’s rights in terms of or arising from ihis
Agreement or estop or preciude any such Party from enfarcing at any time and
without notice, stricl and punctual compliance with ezch and avery provisioh or
term hereof.

15.4 Provisions Ssverable

All provisions and the various clauses of this Agreement are, notwithstanding the
manner in which Ihey have been grouped together or linked grammatically,
severable from each other, Any provision or clauss of this Agreement which is or
becomes unenferceable In any Jurisdiction, whether due to voldnass, invalidity,
illegality, unfawfulness or for any other reason whalever, shall, in such Jurisdiclion
only and only fo the extent thal Il is 5o unenforceable, be treated &s pro non
&criplo and the remaining provisions and clauses of this Agreement shall remain
of full force and effect. The Parties declare thal il is their intention that ihis
Agreement would be axscuted wilhout such unenforceable pravision if they were
aware of such unenforcesbllity at the time of execution hersof,

155  No Assignment

Nellher this Agreement nor any part, share or interest herein nor any rights or
obligations hereunder may be ceded, delegaled or assigned by either Party
without the prior wrilen consent of the olher Party, save as otherwise provided

herefn.
18  COSTS

8.1 Each Party will bear and pay ils own legal costs and expenses of and incidenial
to the negoliation, drafling, preparation and implemeantation of this Agreement,

16.2  The Recipient agrees and underlakes to reimburse the Discloser on demand with
any and all costs and expanses {including iegal cosis on the scale as batwsan
aliorney-and-own client) which the Discloser may al any time incur in or about the
exercisa of any of the Discloser's rights in lerms of this Agreament, including
colieclion commission, tracing fees and other expenses in conneclion therawilh,

e g0
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17 ADVERTISING AND MARKETING

Neither Parly shall make or issue any formal announcement, advariisement or
statement {o the press in connection wilh this Agreement or otherwise disclose the
exislence of this Agreement or the subject matter hereof to any other person without
the prior wrliten consent of the other Parly.

18  SIGNATURE

18.1  This Agreemenl may be exsculed in counierparts, each of which shall he
deemed an original, and all of which logether shall constitute one and the same
Agreement as al the dale of signature of the Party last signing one of the
countarparis,

18.2  The Parties record that it Is not fequired for this Agreement 1o be valid and
enforceable that a Party shall have its signature of this Agreement verified by a
wilness.

183  The Parties acknowledpe thal the signalories e this Agresment ars duly
authorised represeniative of each Party and as such any subsequent discovary
lhat the Reciplent's representative is nof duly authorised shall not affect the
enforceabifity of this Agreement and the attached remedies avallable o the
Discioser,

SIGNED at WU ’4‘4— on_ T %‘6@_ 2015

For and on behalf of
SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS {S0C)

LIMITED /

Signalure

obre Kusinang
Ngze of iliinea}t%%h /7"_ g ___J_’ ?_ 9‘-

Designation of Signatory

Vel Lomnatte

& S
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SIGNED al &ﬂ’:ﬁ/@ » @&I 2‘7 & Cﬁw 2015.

For and on behalf of

SOUTH AFRICA) AIRWAYS (SOC)
LIMITED Q :

Eg?atzl}e M/U/né?r’:q
Neme of Signaiory %0&?‘ N ’62?

Desig natinn of Signatary m
@mﬁ’”

SIGNED at_3 4 HANNE SRuLG on 19 Octopep 2015,

For and on behalf of
Bogwana Burns

padl
Signalure e —"
=) MAEUEL NZ VA
Name of Signatory T
By
Deslgnauon of Signalury
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\ South Afritan Alveays
- Company Sccretary
Suite 2, 6% Floor
Abways Park

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS e

FLYSAACOM Privale Bag X13
DORT intematinnal Arpor,
1527

Tek 27 11 9786553
Fex: 27 11 976-2545

Emall, pompanysecretary@iysan com

EXCERPT FROM THE DRAFT CLOSED SESSION MINUTES OF THE SOUTH AFRICAN
AIRWAYS SOC LTD BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING NO 20%5/05 HELD ON FRIDAY 26
AUGUST 2015 IN THE BOARDROOM, 6™ FLOOR AT SAA, AIRWAYS PARK, JONES ROAD,

KEMPTON PARK, AT 08H0O

Other Investigation Matters

it was RESOLVED that:

(@) Mr. Luvo Makasi be appointed to investigate the allegations against the Mango CEQ arising
from the whistle-blowers report, the R15 billion funding RFP issued by the CFC and the CFQO's
recording of the Chairperson using a hidden recording device;

(b) Mr. Makasi should be appointed for a period of two weeks;

{c) The Board hereby authorises deviation from the normal procurement process and in the
appointment of Mr. Makasi as resolution of the issues to be investigated was of paramount

impartance to the Board and exiremsly urgent.
(d) The process to be jollowed in appointing Mr, Makasi should be the same process utilised to
appoint ENSAfrica to investigate the GECAS whistle-blowear’s report.

Ceriified a true extract of the draft minutes.

-,

Ruth Kibuuka
Company Secretary

Date: i%‘ L 9‘ P0lS

Rizagiors

DG Myani* (Chairperson), WH Meyer (Chief Fingncin) Offleer): ¥ Kninana®, JE Tambi{Sierm Leonaan), AD Domoa® \\\h i /
*Norn-Executive Direclor

Company Secreiary ~ Ruth Kibuuka }(

Bouth Alrican Alrways SOC Ud Reg. No, 1987/022444/30
A STAR ALLIANGE MEMBER v.Y
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5/27/12019 Personal Portal

RE: Extract of the Board resolution

Ruth Kibuuka <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>
13/10/2015 at 12:09:16

From: Ruth Kibuuka <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>
Sent: 13/10/2015 at 12:09:16

To: Yakhe Kwinana2 <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>,
‘nickl@theprojectoffice.com' <nicki@theprojectoffice.com>
Cc:

Q 1 Attachment(s) Total 20.8 KB View ~

Other Investigation Matters_pdf (29.8 KB}
Dear Yakhe,

Please see attached Board resolution as requested.

Regards

Ruth Kibuuka | Company Secretary

| IMobile: +27 083 5316004 | Phone: +2711-978-6553 | . Fax: +2711 978-1055 | | E-Mail: RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com

Floor 8,Block A,Airways Park,OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Yakhe Kwinana2

Sent: 12 October 2015 07:06 PM

To: Ruth Kibuuka; 'nicki@theprojectoffice.com’
Subject: FW: Extract of the Board resolution

Dear Ruth
Can you provide information.

Best Regards

Yakhe Kwinana

Tel 012 807 0801

https:/login-za. mimecast.com/m/portaliapp/print.jsp?sid=AAAAlIrD8dJ B_JfFgltYcdmPvQnal GraKR6eGCevzWsqiyu LAAAAQHMOSK2mwC2wZ...  1/4
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512712019 Personal Portal
Fax 012 807 0633

Cell 079 950 0410
Email yakhe@kwinana.co.za

Physical Address Alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street, The
Willows Ext 82, Pretoria, 0184

From: Nick Linnell [mailto:nickl@theprojectoffice.com)
Sent: 12 October 2015 07:00 PM

To: Yakhe Kwinana <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>
Subject: RE: Extract of the Board resolution

Hi Yakhe
Do we have a resolution appointing Luvo?

Thanks nick

Nick Linnell

Le-Description: cid:image001.jpg@01CC80C6.770814C0
email: nickl@theprojectoffice.com

cell: 083 488 1000

tel: 021 447 0154

fax: 086 272 1456

www.theprojectoffice.com

The Project Office

Company Registered Office 22 Melkhout Crescent | Plattekloof 3 | 7500
Directors: N H Linnell] M Green

Postal Add PO Box 15813 | Panorama | 7506

From: Yakhe Kwinana [mailto:yakhe@kwinana.co.za]
Sent: Monday, 12 October 2015 9:52 AM

To: rashidwally@gmail.com

Cc: 'nickl@theprojectoffice.com’

Subject: FW: Extract of the Board resolution

Please find the Resolution

Best Regards /C

hitps:/login-za.mimecast.com/m/portal/app/print.jsp?sid=AAAAIIDSdJB_JfFgitY cdmPvQnal GroKR6cG ChvzWsy IYULAAAAQHMOBIKZmwC2wZ... 2/4
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5/27i2019 Personal Portal

Yakhe Kwinana

Tel 012 807 0801

Fax 012 807 0633

Celi 079 $50 0410

Email yakhe@kwinana.co.za

Physical Address Alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street, The
Willows Ext 82, Pretoria, 0184

From: Ruth Kibuuka [mailto:RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com]
Sent: 12 October 2015 09:22 AM

To: Yakhe Kwinana <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>

Subject: Extract of the Board resolution

Dear Yakhe,

Please find herewith the Board resolution an the whistle-blower report as requested.

Regards

Ruth Kibuuka | Company Secretary

3: " Mobile: +27 083 531 6004 | " Phone: +2711-978-6553 | | ~Fax: +2711 978-1055 | [""”gE-Mail: RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com

/o

Floor 6,Block A,Airways Park,OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

https:/ﬂogin-za.mimecast.comlrn!portallapp/print.jsp?sid=AAAAIIrDSdJB_JnglthdmPinaLGroKRGcGCszquiyuLAAAAQHmijKZmWC2wz.. .3
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5/27/2019

Personal Portal

A

https:llrogin-za.mimecast.comlmfportallapp/print.jsp?sid=AAAAIIrD8dJB_JfF gItYodmPinaLGmKRScGC6vstqiyu LAAAAQHmOBIK2mwC2wZ...  4/4
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Nkosana <nkosanascommissionsc@flysaa.com>
Sent; Tuesday, 26 March 2019 12:45

To: Andrew A. Keartland

Subject: FW: RE: Appointrment of Boqwana Burns

From: "Thuli Mpshe" <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>

Date: 07/11/2015 at 20:18:33

To: "Wolf Meyer" <WolfMeyer@flysaa.com>

Ce: "Siyakhula Vilakazi" <SiyakhulaVilakazi@flysaa.com™,"Yakhe Kwinana2"
<yakhe@kwinana.co.za>,"Duduzile Myeni" <dudumyeni@telkomsa.net>,"Masimba Dahwa"
~MasimbaDahwa@flysaa.com>,"Ruth Kibuuka" <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>

subject: RE: Appointment of Bogwana Burns

Dear Wolf

Trust you are well this evening. The email below and the contents thereof are
noted.

We will revert to you in due course.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEQ

@hone: +2711 878-2525 | @—Mail: ThuliMpshe ®flysaa.com

6th Floor,C Block Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

Sent: 07 November 2015 12:27 PM

To: Thuli Mpshe
Cc: Siyakhula Vilakazi; Yakhe Kwinana2; Duduzile Myeni; Masimba Dahwa; Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: FW: Appointment of Bogwana Burns
1 \B /4
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Dear Acting CEQ

It has come to my attention that Bogwana Burns (BB) had approached SAA staff members for information
under the following brief - “Request for Information in respect of Long Term Debt Funding, Whistle Blower

allegations and secret recordings.”

Notwithstanding the fact that the investigation is aimed against the CFO and that I would not interfere in such
investigation, I would like to bring to your attention that it appears as if there exists irregularities in the
appointment of BB which could later prove to be embarrassing for SAA should it be reported by auditors as a
governance transgression by the Board.

irstly, there is no evidence that a proper procurement process had been followed. Normally, in terms of the
company’s SCM policies, an open tender would have to be followed which is preceded by an RFI process. The
policy does allow for a confinement tender based on certain criteria. However, it cannot be proven that BB is
the only supplier that can provide these services. I am not sure how this service provider was selected. The
SCM Policy and normal good corporate governance principles certainly do not provide for non-executive board
members to directly engage with potential service providers and, without involving the Procurement

Department, award services contracts.

Secondly, engagements with BB commenced and the service contract awarded without the signing of the
appropriate Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA). This means that information about the company was divulged
to an external party before entering into any NDA agreement which could prove extremely risky. This only
transpired after BB had approached SAA staff advising them of the appointment and requesting some
information. It was confirmed by the Company Secretary’s Office that the request had been approved by the
Board and that there was no signed NDA, and that one would be drawn up and signed. On 4 November 2015,
the Company Secretary’s office sent through a copy of the NDA, which was signed by BB on 19 October 2015
and by Ms Yakhe Kwinana on 29 October 2015, a non-executive board member in her capacity as Chairperson
of the Audit and Risk Committee. The NDA requires two different signatures, however, Ms Kwinana opted not
to involve anybody else from SAA and to sign twice on the agreement. It is, once again, highly unusual for a
non-executive board member to sign documents which normally fall within the executive responsibility of

management.

A call for an investigation of this nature is, no doubt, well within the powers of a board and may well be
initiated and mandated by the Board. However, it could be deemed inappropriate that the selection and actual
awarding of such assignment be done by a non-executive board member without following the company’s SCM
policies in procuring such service. It is certainly a gross transgression of the company’s procurement policies

and procedures.
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I therefore recommend that, prior to allowing BB to proceed with this investigation, Internal Audit conducts a
review and comment on the appropriateness of the process followed in the appointment of Baqgwana Burns.

I trust that my recommendation meets your approval.

Best regards

Wolf Meyer { CFO

4 Mobile: +2771-171-2345 | ¥ phone: +2711-978-1515 § = E-Mait: WolfMeyer@flysaa.com

4th fioor, block C Airways Park, OR Tambo Internaticnal Airport- Johannesburg- South Africa

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and Disclaimers.action#Email
.Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent to you.
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Transcription: Meeting with Yakhe Kwinana: 30 August 2016

Y: Yakhe Kwinana

I: lvan

R: Rethabile

Transcription:

(Y enters boardroom.)

I: Hello Yakhe, how are you?

Y: Fine thanks and How are you?

|: Pleased to meet you, have a seat. Have you ordered anything, water?
Y: Pleased to meet you, yes | have ordered water, but | need to first go to the bathroom
(Y shown out by R, returns 5 minutes later)

I: Y this is my colleague, have you met Rethabile?

Y: Pleased to meet you

Y: (Nervous laughter): The reason why Fm here is because of your article in Fin24

I: Which date?

Y. Saturday, the 27'th. Basically this article | might not quote it as it is, but this article,
ok my name is Yakhe Kwinana, former non-executive Director of SAA

i Head of Audit and Risk
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Y: Chairperson of Audit and Risk, yes. And this heading is saying that “l can run away
but I cannot hide” yes, and then you said “of course we are going to take me and Dudu

Myeni to court
I: Amongst others

Y: Amongst others yes, and then you are aiso going to report me to my organisation’s
professional bodies. Now what | am here for is | want to find out what is the reason,
and what is it that | need to do. | don't mind you taking me to my professional bodies,
because | will not incur any costs in respect of you taking me to the professional
bodies. But obviously, if you take me to court, | will have to incur the legal costs, which
basically my company will not be able fo finance those expenses. And especially that
like for instance if | was still at SAA, maybe SAA would be able to pay for us to defend
against you, but now the reason that | am here and | am here alone is that | know that
our company is such a small company, and it will not be able to pay for the defense.
Not that [ have got anything fo hide, but I'm looking at the Iegal implications, and the
cost that my company would have to incur to try and defend this whole thing, so

basicaily that is why | am here.

I: Ok good, ja, thank you for calling. Rethabile actually said that she expected that you

were going to call, she had a hunch.
R: That's the women, we always do that. That's the intuition.

I: So ok, Y as you know, we've been looking into SAA for a few months now, this is
not an isolated event, we have interviewed just short of 50 witnesses relating to SAA,
various persons, various contracts, various events, we have a lot of documentation,
there are a lot of versions of what happened, who failed to do what, what the board
was doing, what internal controls and functions within the board have not been
working, we've consulted with very senior lawyers and advocates, we have a team put
together at this stage. 1 can tell you know that some of the failures by the organisation
and by yourself as chair of audit and risk and as a board member border on criminal.
Its funny seeing you, I've been reading about you and thinking about you ahd talking

about you for a while now. ,
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Y: What have you been saying?

I: You've seen what I've been saying. We had a call together on SAFM the other day,
and | actually hoped, | specifically asked them if we could talk to each other instead of
me saying my say and you saying your say, because then we never confront each
other, and it's not me as a person, it's our mandate, our organisation’s mandate is to
fight the abuses of taxes. We see the abuse of tax funds as any person in any position
of power not exercising their role diligently, prudently and with skill when they are
required to do so to protect the country and to protect the companies of this country.
There were a lot of allegations in the news, we started broad and started following up,
and then people starting coming forward. We know everything, from the EY reports,
to the BNP Capital thing. Everything isn't out there that we know. We know of the
connections with Mr Mngadi. We know about Mr Mngadi and Inline trading, we know
how they muddled behind the screens. As we are speaking now the national
prosecuting authority are investigating behind the scenes, people very high up. Of
course | cannot tell you who they are so they cannot be reached. I've heard rumours
that you and Dudu are not seeing eye to eye any more. | don't know if that's true, |
don’t know if you want to talk about that or not. | can tell you that one of the
considerations for us is that if you want to talk, and you want to be candid and you
have things to say that we can discuss the way forward. It doesn’t need to he every
single... remember your position as chair of audit and risk is seen as a direct
correlation to your professional capacity. Every single public finance management or
company failure in that position Is going to be drawn directly to your professional body.
| can promise you now that it could result, and will most likely result in you losing your
professional accreditation. Furthermore because your company does audit, and in
your capacity as chair of audit and risk, you failed to exercise your duty to function as
Internal control over such a protracted period it is likely to result in treasury putting
your company on the restricted supplier database as long as you are still involved with
the company. That's where we are now. If you want to discuss the way forward, | have
nothing against you as a person, Rethabile has nothing against you as a person. Our
primary concem is that those controls that should function for Government to protect
the peaple, and to save costs for South Africa so we can do other projects, so we can
help people and serve this country the best we can, function at high levels, that’s it.
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No personal vendetta. | know you as a human being, you're a fellow human being and
that's it, that's what | have to say at this stage, the floor is yours.

Y: Of course, what you have said | have read it somewhere, and you've had
(mumbling) to me, but as [ said, my only concern, my only concem, is the legal costs
I would have to incur, and more especially that | no longer work at SAA, therefore, and
as | said, I've got nothing to worry about, and also have nothing to worry about in terms
of discharging my responsibilities as chairperson of audit at the time, | did the best i
could do under the circumstances. You say how do we take this thing forward? | am
pleading with you, to remove my name in your court documents. You can continue
reporting me at SAICA. You can continue reporting me at IRBA. | don't have a problem
with that, because I've got with them | don't have to defend the case, how they operate
they will write to me and say “these are the aliegations against you.” And then | can
say yes this is correct and this Is not correct and maybe they will state all of that. And
then, if the response is not satisfactory, they will send their own people in the office to
investigate that, at no cost to our company. But the court one, to say | am against that
I am not agreeing with what OUTA is saying, that will have to be proven in court, and
can you imagine the cost implications of going to court, then | would be liquidated.

I: 's not going to be less than RS Million.

Y: Exactly. Exactly.

I: So look, we differ, we differ from you that you don’t have a case to answer. The

case will be put forward to you and you will have...

Y: Of course, of course the case will be put forward to me, for instance if we look at
BNP. Maybe they can say as we have been saying | appended my signature, but you
are not going further to say | appended my signature with conditions, which basically
is the condition that | thought was also a safe, so to say, that in the event that there is
anything wrong, then the legal process will make sure that whatever is wrong, that we

do not see in the (inaudible), where we take care
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R: Which one exactly are we referring to? Are we referring to the round robin for the
confinement, or the suggested round robin with regards to the cancellation?

Y: No that one where | approved with a condition (the confinement), and then the

cancellation, | disagreed.

R: So in as far as the conditions are concerned regarding the confinement, are we at
liberty to be presented with the conditions as you stated.

Y: No the conditions | said as long as legal requirements are met, legal requirements
meaning that, is it fine for us to give BNP capital, is the confinement fine. Yes, the
confinement is fine. Do they have a license? Are they in a position to give us this
money. So basically as long as everything is fine, legally, then we are happy.

R: Are we talking now verbally in as far as these conditions (interrupted)

I: She wrote it in brackets, she wrote it in brackets next to her signature. Ok, you see,
the unfortunate thing is, the law holds you to a higher standard when it comes to that.
The law requires that you, especially a person of your calibre, to actually see in front
of you that those requirements have been met, before anything can continue, that's
what the law requires. |t would not help, Pm a lawyer, you're not, we can’t debate law
here. So | understand your concern, and it is a major concern, it will have an enormous
impact on your life, your business, your family, everybody. But you know there have
been a lot of families of people within SAA, of people who have been victimised, in my
opinion, and in their opinion, by yourself, by the board, by people drumming up charges
against them. All of those people will be proven innocent. And the pain caused to their
families, and | know, my mother used to work for government, the same happened to
her, and it hurts, it hurts people in their homes. And that's what happened, to a few
people. There’s been a purging exercise, and this is our opinion, there’s been a
purging exercise by Yakhe Kwinana and Dudu Myeni and for some reason John Tambi
that's his signature every time. Behind the scenes there have been conversations and
things have been said to get these people out, for acting lawfully, and it will be proven,
and that information will be revealed soon as well. And it's not looking good. Is there
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anything you would like to share with us? Do you have anything you would like to, if |
could use the analogy, come clean about?

Y: {Laughter)
I: That you would like to talk about, that you would like to discuss with us.

Y:What are the conditions? | don’t want a situation where you will write and say ‘Yakhe

confirmed this’

R: The standard practice in as far as how we function, we do not necessarily quote
whoever comes to us verbatim. So in as far as you expressing that statement it's

definitely not going to happen.

I: 1 don't, as | said, there are things happening behind the scenes, and | have a very
very strong suspicion and a lot of people have a very strong suspicion that you know
what's happening, and you know where the levers of power are being pulled, and
those things are busy making the company make decisions that are not optimal for the
company (SAA), are causing interferences, are causing things to happen, are pushing
things in a certain direction for reasons that do not always make commercial sense.

And | think you in all probability know what it's about.

Y: (Laughter)
L I'd be very surprised, Yakhe (interrupted}

Y: Iif | don’t know

I: If you don’t know, I'd be very surprised. If you don't know, 'm going to pull your tests
from the university where you passed, and I'm going to pull your board examination

tests to go see if they are empty.

Y: (Laughter) Tell me about debit and credit. Wake me up in the middle of the night
(inaudible, interrupted)
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[ Don't talk to & lawyer about finances, you're going to come to the conclusion I'm

actually a very stupid man if you continue that. (laughs)
R: You could dial a lifeline in as far as that goes

I: Yakhe, it depends what the nature of the conversation would be. If your request is
that we possibly look at not involving you in this case, then, it wouid have to be

information that can be confirmed. As | said we are working with the prosecuting
authority so, they have the ability to also confirm this information. The information

should be not about financial misconduct, the information should relate to people
having corrupt discussions behind the scenes, people trying to rig bids, people trying
to, that's the kind of information I think you know or you know how to confirm, or you

know you know a lot more about that, I'd be surprised if you don't.
Y: You know { know a ot more about that, but...

I: Are you scared?

Y: No, of course, of course number one | am scared because | was warned, | was

warned by some good friends of mine that... {interrupted}

I: Danger

Y: Yes, there’s a danger, because | would be talking to this person, and there’s a whole
lot of power behind, yes, and in fact, one of the reasons why is because much as |
know a lot, but if you say proof, it's difficult, because of how Dudu operates.

I. She has a go between?

Y: She has a go-between, and in fact, she doesn’t write down anything, including BNP
capital, she did not write down anything, and when she responded, 1 think, item no 4,
I think she responded to you and wrote 4 items, or it's either (inaudible, interrupted)

ENS, ENS % -
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I: She specifically said she is the only one not involved, she said ‘Dudu Myeni is not
involved,” she did not say the rest of the board are not involved.

Y: Yes, exactly, exactly. We noted that, that was item no 4.

I: Did that make you nervous?

Y: No, it also did-not make me nervous, because, there are recordings at the board,
their minutes and everything, and everything. But now, It shows the type of a person
you are dealing with, because, when the pawpaw hits the fan...

I: She throws you under the bus

Y: Yes, she throws everybody under the bus. That is that. And then, there’s been
circumstances where she’s thrown people under the bus, that is one of them).

I: Yakhe can | ask and you can tell me candidly, has she been using you to do some
of her dirty work? It appeared, people have been saying that they have a suspicion
that you have been used to do some of her dirty work.

Y: She may have been using me to do some of the dirty work without me knowing that
the reason why she’s canvassing that | do this is because of that. That is a possibility,
like for instance, in the board meeting when we are told, like for instance like obviously
how she operates she will go from lower levels up, and when it comes to the board it's

already motivated. It's already motivated, everybody has...
I: Does she have these conversations behind the scenes with people?

Y: Yes

I You can see that, you can see that from the whole paper tralil, it's so obvious it's just

| know that it's probably something that's difficult to prove.
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Y: Yes, and then, then when it comes to the board, it's almost done, and then, so.
I: So all the paperwork is in place for the board just to stamp.

Y: Yes, exactly, and then now, when you, you decide otherwise, when you are on her
wrong side, because now, the outcome is not exactly what she was looking for

I: What's the effect of that if you, if you, | mean say for instance let's take the
cancellation, her decision with the cancellation fee is so preposterous, it blows the
mind, it's so far removed, that is a criminal act in terms of section 86:2 of the public

finance management act, up to five years (slams table) just for that. When you voted
against it, did she, did she approach you, did you talk about it, did she... | mean she

must have been fuming with you.
Y: Umn
I: Or did she just leave it?

Y: When (nervous laughter), when | voted against it, our relationship was at a stage

where she cannot confront me.
R: Why did you vote against it?

Y: It's obvious that, if, there is a cancellation fee, when they bring in the proposai, the
cancellation fee should be included as part of the evaluation, because we find that for

instance... {interrupted)
R: Evaluation meaning adjudication in as far as (interrupted)

Y: Yes, evaluation meaning adjudication. Yes, because like for instance the other
companies would say that the fees is 80 million, others would say 70. But now if you
include the cancellation fee of 50, then that ends up being more expensive, so I'm

saying that should have been, that should have been included.




MEM-236

I: But was your relationship already at a broken down level at that stage where you

weren't seeing eye to eye any more?

Y: Um, the relationship was, was starting to show the cracks, so to say. Um

I: Do you, do you know anything about any of the, especially, you know in South Africa
and you can see it: Prasa, Eskom, all of these places, it's about jobs, and it's about

procurement,
Y: Of course, of course, even at SAA.

I: it's about jobs and procurement, and the levers of power are pulled by jobs and
procurement, because if you put the right people in the right jobs, you can get the

procurement of goods and services

Y: Of course, of course

I: What do you know about, | mean, let's first, should you provide us with very solid
information, very solid leads, that we could consider, we will consider, taking your
name off these papers. | honestly believe | will prove a case against you. Um, | almost
believe it with my whole heart, can | tell you people have been declared delinquent

directors for not holding annual general meetings,

Y: No, in terms of the annual general

I: No no not that, I'm just making an example. Go look at the Msimang case, Msimang
in the South Gauteng High Court, courts take director's duties very very seriously, their
fiduciary duties, and even the threshold is high with state owned institutions. So, I'm
not, we're on different sides of the table at this stage, but I think we can move to the
same side of the table, because this is going to be a long and painfut experience if
we're not on the same side of the table, and it doesn't have to be that if we can start
talking about what's really really going on, who’s really really involved, how do we
know this, what can we get to prove this, who will be willing to come forward before
this ship sinks, can we rather get the people who have been used as instrurments in

N
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this process, working together, to get the people who are really puppeteering behind
the scenes, and | know you said you are scared, I've received death threats.

Y: No, no, I'm, the reasons, one of the reasons why | am scared is that | do not know
the powers beyond, but the other reason is that, it's difficuit to bring a proof, like for
instance, Dude has her hit list of the people that she wants to remove and bring her
own people. We've got that, and how she operates, how she operates, she goes fo
internet cafe, and write whatever information that she knows are correct and incorrect
information, and then she will email it, to SAA whistieblow from the internet cafe.

[: Which information

Y: Like for instance, like for instance she will write, ok let me make an example, she
will go to internet cafe and type whatever she knows about me, she will add the correct
information together with incorrect information, and then ok if I'm an SAA employee,

she will send that to whistlebiow, that's how she operates, she will send that to
whistleblow. And after sending it to whistleblow, it will go through the process.

I: And those people will get tied up?

Y: Yes, and those people like for instance she will say ‘let’s investigate, because we

cannot leave this thing hanging. And then.
I Is Nico one example?

Y: Yes. Ja. And Sylvain...

I: Sylvain

Y: Yes, and a lot of other people. And then

|: Thuli? (Mpshe) L@\i\

N
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Y: And Thuli, yes. And then now she will say

Recording: 56:59

Y: And Thuli, yes. And then now she will say when it comes to the board, she will insist

that these must be investigated, of course.
I: Because there has been a trigger?

Y: Yes because there has been a trigger.
I: So it is her board responsibility.

Y: Yes that's fine, but now when we agreed that it must be investigated, the next thing
that foilows is the suspension. The Nico one was an isolated incident where she was
investigated when she was, when he was suspended. But now when we agree that a
person must be investigated because of the whistleblow, then the person will be

suspended or be taken on special leave.

I: Is that the decision taken at board level to say that this person must be suspended
pending the investigation?

Y. Yes
R: Is that procedural? As in you have a procedure to foliow?
Y: Yes, depending on the level, because we would say the reason of course, we may

not necessarily put it as suspension. We can say special leave. So that he does not
interfere with the investigations. But now basically this is where I think maybe we have

p—
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been used without knowing that we are being used, because now when the person is
suspended, then the person that she wants will come on board. Or maybe that person

that was creating problems with her for whatever reason...

I: How does she know, how does she identify the characters who she wants to be on
board, do you think she has conversations with them behind the scenes saying

listen...(interrupted)

Y: | know two people that she promised. .. (interrupted)
I: Musa?

Y: No, not Musa

I: Phumeza?

Y: No. The people that she promised positions, in fact ended up not having the
positions because what she would do, she would promise a person at that level and

promise her a position at that level, and then now of course...

[: In exchange for obedience?

Y: Yes, something like that. So basically | could say of course, it is one of the reasons
why there is some difference between us, because now when she recommends a
person at this level, then | would not agree and say, if that person is suspended, but
now a person at that level must be, or a person a level below, but then not to take a
person and jump so many. So there are two people who I know were promised, Mpho

Mamashela, and ...
R: Eric?
Y: No. Mpho Mamashela, and Tamiso Basil? [Not sure of spelling of names]

I: Do you have any idea which internet cafe she goes to?
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Y: No she goes to different internet cafes, but she goes to the internet cafes that you

would not expect her to be in, like for instance Sunnyside.

R: Somewhere in town?

I: How do you know that? Yakhe, do you know this or do you think this?

Y: | know.

I Can | ask you to... You are a smart lady, you wouid have known that this thing is
starting to boil, and that you need to protect yourself, and one way of protecting
yourself is information. We all know that. Everybody knows that. You don't have to
tell me what, have you taken any steps to protect yourself?

Y: Against what?
I: Against been thrown out under the bus.

Y: You see where | am, the most fear that | have is that each and every step that she
does, that is her panic, 1 know that ... | know how she operates. In fact that is one of
my biggest fears. You see if you have got that information, yes, like for instance, when
she brought a whistleblower to me, against Musa and Nontsatsa, but because | knew
how she operates, | was able to deal with it in a manner that is against her [wish],
because | know how she operates, so then she does this and | know that she... You
see whatever she does, | know she Is going to do this, and when | resigned, | knew
that she was going to send that media statement to Tladi Tladi, which was returned by
[Nikki Nel] or whoever. Yes. So basically | ended up knowing exactly how she thinks
and how she is going to deal with this and so on and so on.

I: Who else knows how she operates? Is there anybody close to her? Why was

Phumeza pushing BnP so hard? What does she have?
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Y: One of the ways in which she operates, she dangles the carrot, that's what she
does. Then with me she would say, you know | am motivated for you to be on this
board. Of course with me, whether | am at SAA or not, it really doesn't matter. And
more especially that | know that she dangles the carrot, one of the laws of power that
she practices. So Phumeza, what she will do, there are many people in active
positions, and we would set up the interviews, and she would cancel at the last minute,

R: I would like to ask actually, how was Phumeza roped in in her capacity as acting
CFO. I mean she has pretty much an audit background, she is a partner at SMG, and
in terms of experience, how did you... did you short list? How did she come there?

Y: No, we asked the companies to give us the names of the people. But what
happened that | wanted to talk about, is that many people are in active positions, of
course other positions, she's supposed to not be responsible for that, but because she
is all over then it is convenient for her for those people to be in active positions. So
that she can say.. she once said tc someone, at some stage, you know, how do we
put you in a permanent position if you are not doing A,B,C,D,E, and then of course,
Musa did not apply for the CEO position, and Musa does not want the position at
SAA. He is not interested, but now, Dudu will act such that, Musa has an expectation,
and therefore maybe he would think that, maybe | can be a CEQ. But now she finds
it also difficult with Musa, in the sense that Musa does not have the intentions of being
the CEO. Hence now she wants to remove him with the whistleblow. Then the same
with Phumeza, in fact she would say your [KPI Phumeza is A,B,C,D,E, and then she

doesn't write it down.
I: Where would she be saying these things? Just corridor talks?

Y: Yes, corridor talks, maybe in the CEO's office, maybe in the boardroom, not in the
formal written. So basically also with Phumeza, but Phumeza is very very smart, and
she does the work, she does her work, and she is doing a very good job, and also in
terms of this thing that came out in the newspapers, the 15/16 Billion. You see if there
was no ulterior motive behind, it would be a good thing. Now the profile of the 16
Billion, when it is presented, of course SAA will be paying of 4% vs the interest of 8%,
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and therefore on the face of it, assuming there are no shenanigans behind, it is a good

thing. Yes.

R: So just from that statement, you are saying from the 16 Billion Deal that was

advertised on Sunday, there is an ulterior motive.

Y: No | am not saying that. But it could be. But | am saying that if it was clean, it is a

good thing.

I: Yes | am in agreement. do you really believe that Thuli [Mpshe] was not doing her

job?

Y: You know of course, in terms of the board, Thuli was not doing her job, but | have
been saying to Dudu, | see why the executives are not implementing the board
resolutions, because Thuli was just not implementing anything, and therefore of
course, in the things that she needs to implement, there could be good things, and
there could be bad things, there could be things that have got some skeletons
somewhere, but now ... of course | also didn't know that she wants to place a specific
persen in thuli's place, you see. So that's why | am saying ! may have been usad
without knowing. so now | am also frustrated with Thuli, in one meeting where there
were executives and the board with all these resolutions for implementation, | said at
some stage, you know chairperson, if we [sourced] from the head, if we are not
implementing what is supposed to be implemented, or we are not... Do we take
disciplinary that is necessary for people to act, because the resolutions were not
happening. But now looking back, | see why executives were not implementing
resolutions, if for instance Dudu has a hitlist of 8 executives, and those 8 executives
know that Dudu wants them to leave, now how do you say to [Zukes Ramasia??],
Zuks we need to do this and this and this, and then we expect Zuks to do that, but

then we know Zuks is on our hit list

R: He is a target

Time: 1:12:18

I: And do you think that all the instructions you gave these people were lawful, because
I can tell you now that | disagree with you, that all the instructions that you were giving
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Dr [Dharwal], that the instructions given to Thuli, that the instructions given to Stimple,
these weren't lawful instructions. There are governance procedures and laws that
prohibit them from making decisions when they are not satisfied that they are lawful,
and there is reason for them to believe that many of those instructions did not comply
with the laws of this country, and that it was not correct for them to sign off on it, and
then they questioned that, and then they sit in a suspended position. And do you know
how that works? do you know what these people's families have been
through? Yakhe, you have no idea how much pain has been caused in people's
homes. | can tell you now, that these are not crooks. They are not dishonest people,
they are not people who want to ruin your or Dudu's life. They want to do solid work
within the confines of the law. That's it. | have no doubt about that. We have spoken
to all of these people in extreme detail. We wentthroughit. We said didn't you maybe,
wasnt it maybe unlawful. Didn't you maybe resist an absolutely lawful
instruction. Would you ask them the incorrect questions? front to back. Just
maybe? For instance [Dr Dharwa?], has a doctor's degree in procurement. when he
questions whether an instruction on procurement is lawful or not lawful, he does it from
a position of a person who has a PhD in procurement, not from a position of a person
who is trying to snag Dudu and snag Yakhe. If you could see what the hell that man
has been through, you would cry. And | don't know if you don't like him because he is
a foreigner, or if you don't like Sylvain because he is a foreigner. There is nothing
wrong with being a foreigner. South Africa is supposedly a country that embraces
foreigners. People come here in search of a better future, that's what | believe. |am
not saying that you should believe that, everyone has their own personal
views. Would you be willing to cooperate, because these people are still out there,
going under the guillotine, and they are going to prove their cases, and be found
innocent, but is there any way you would be willing to cooperate with these people's
disciplinary cases, with their cases going to the CCMA, to possibly... Or do you truly
believe these people were obstructive, insubordinate people not acting in the best
interest of the organisation when they refused to implement board decisions? Maybe,
| know you have had some time to think about this, and a lot of time has passed, but
do you still come to the same conclusion that those specific board decisions that they
were not willing to implement, were in fact lawful instructions.
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Y: 1think they were lawful. The only thing that | understand now, is the reason for the
non-implementation of those instructions. from where | am sitting, | think they were
lawful, but the implementation of them, or the lack thereof, | now understand why they

were not implemented.

R: My question to you is, you have been serving on the board since 2009 with Dudu
Myeni. What brought everything to light now? We are in 2016, she only became chair
in 2012, so between September 2012, and up until the moment when you decided that
you wanted out, were there not signs for you to say look, this just might not be it. Given
some of the various decisions that were taken from a board level.

Y: No you know what, as | told you, when something comes to the board, it is already

[cooked]?. Itis already prepared.

I: But if you knew this. If you knew it was being prepared from the bottom up, then you

should be asking a lot of questions.

Y: No. How did | get to know that it was being prepared? 1 got to know about that
when, basically the beginning of this year, 1 got to know.

R: | am talking in terms of a specific contract, that surely there must be something that

pulls the trigger...(interrupted)

I: The modus operandi

R: ... in your mind, that said look, | need to look back at everything. To say so this is
how things work. Which contract specifically triggered that thought in you?

Y: Of course this BnP one was a very big eye opener.

R: Prior to that, have there been any others that you have been partially suspicious, in

as far as operations are concerned?

I: FDC? ?
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Y: FDC basically was a clean one, that's what | think. For us to be funded by
FDC. The reason why | think it was a clean one is because FDC is a government
entity basicaliy, it is the Free State Development Corporation.

I: You didn't think Ace was meddling behind the scenes?

Y: No [ didn't think that he was meddling behind the scenes. | realily did not think S0,
because of course, if you are used to private sector functioning, of course, even if you
could think that this one, maybe there is something beyond. But Ace, how would he
feature in this whole thing. Yes, even if it can cross your mind, you would ignore it.

l: The unsolicited proposal received from Nedbank, or the document that purports to
be an unsolicited proposal by Nedbank last year, that was annexed to the section 54
application. Where did that proposal come from? Did it really come from
Nedbank? Do you even know of that proposal?

Y: 1 know of that proposal. That proposal - | don't know who signed it, | cant

remember.

I: Masotsha Mngadi???

Y: But that proposal was done by [Masho?). Of course did it come from Nedbank? |
don't know, but it was on Nedbank letterheads.

I: When did you receive that? Was that received by email? Did Dudu bring that to the
board? Because it was directed - it said the board of directors - so it was directed to
the board directly, which is strange. For an unsolicited proposal to be directed directly
to a board, it is not how government works and we found that very very strange. Do
you know anything about that? Who brought that to the board, because abviously you
would have had to sit as a board and say ok, we have received this proposal, we
believe this to be technically correct, we are satisfied that the information in the
proposal should be incorporated into our amended section 54 of the application, and
the amended section 54 of the application should be forwarded to the minister. Now
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that Nedbank proposal - it had to reach the board somehow. Was it by email? By
hand? How did it land up before the board?

Y: | think it came from Thuli, because | don't remember seeing it in the board pack

through the company secretary.

I: So Ruth would have put in in the board pack if it was part of the board pack. So it
would have been minuted at that meeting that she had introduced it at that meeting.

Y: Now you know the other way that we do operate is that, they will not be having

meetings sometimes

I: Board meetings?

Y: There would not be like these special meetings, or format meetings, hence you find
out sometimes, she will say something, and then she says the board approved, and
then | would say, Ruth can | get the minutes, because [ don't remember us having this,
and then Ruth would say no there are no minutes because there was no board meeting

that was convened.

I: Was this one of those? Because that amendment could not find its way up to the
minister without board approval. There is absolutely no way. | mean it is an
amendment, it is a serious amendment, with enormous implications. We have a
actuary assisting us at this stage to quantify the damage to SAA because of those
delays, and it is something, it feels to me, that you as a board member would have
had to sit with this and say listen, this is very very technical, | am only a chartered
accountant. Do you... you do not have the technical expertise to evaluate this. John,
do you have the technical expertise to evaluate this? We need to get somebody with
technical financial skills fo tell us what this thing is. Do you understand? that would
be the proper government process, to say | cannot make a decision on this.

Y: | don't think ... you mean the A330 and A320 swap?

&
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I: Yes, the section 54 proposal sent to the minister with the unsolicited proposal of
Nedbank. There is technical stuff in there, and the arguments [Masotsha] are making
are very very technical, so one cannot simply accept those arguments as been true,
as the implications for the business, should Masotsha be wrong, could be
devastating. And a good governance process to my mind would be to say, look this
is one person saying it. | need to have somebody look at the technicality...

Y: Of course that document, we engaged on it. But what | am saying, that the many
times that we find out that sometimes, it is not like a board meeting where there would
be a board pack, there would be so many days, 7 days, and so on. But that document,
I understand what it meant, and | was also in support of it, and basically it was not
difficult for all of us to sit together and understand what it means and also what the

implications are.

I: So you are saying that you understood exactly.

Y: Yes

I: So was there a board approval that said send this section 54 application to the

minister, their revisement.

Y: In fact, that revised section 54, we were all involved. | remember that. | think it was
Musa's [serving??] day, acting, but he and the legal and finance team, were required
- in fact we had a deadline to submit that section 54, so they worked flat out for that

section 54.

I: See my concem is with the timeline. So we have Dudu writing to Airbus saying that
the deal will be done differently. Then after that, she receives this magically
unsolicited proposal. So she has decided to do the deal differently already. The
decision has already been made. And now you are deciding after this, to find a reason

to continue with this.

R: To find a supporting motion, from somebody who is not thoroughly familiar to a
point, with the operations. An independent person, being Masotsha in this
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instance. So at first you have Dudu saying that the deal is going to be done
differently. And thereafter, there is a supporting motion based on this decision that

she took here.
Y: (agrees)

R: There is somewhat some form of & correlation in as far as you describe, in that she
works from the bottom up in how she operates, so there is a clear demonstration in

the bottom up approach.

I: First making the decision, and then finding the reasons.

R: Then finding somebody to support it.

Y: But you know also that thing of saying that this will be done differently. We had
been having numerous meetings in respect of Airbus, and in fact ...

I: Just the board?

Y: Yes. Us and people from Airbus. Yes.
I: With the executive there as well?
1:30:07

RETHABILE

2:00:00
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Y: There is only one thing that | am going to follow up when | leave SAA, is the issues
of the [growing concem of the guarantee] [7}. Untif today, this morming, Dudu had not
signed the letter. She said it seems as if this letter is intended to discredit her. It
seems that now it looks like Yakhe is a member of democratic.

R: Wow ok, that's quite serious.

I: Sounds like ancother conspiracy

R: | am just thinking in terms of the implication in as far as the timing is concerned. The

31st is tomorrow.

Y: | am not worried about that. In my letter of resignation that | sent to National
Treasury, | brought it to his attention, all these things, so even if the Chairperson did
not like the letter because of her issues with the minister, the minister knows.

R: | think we could sit here for the whole day basically going through this. Is there a
possibility that you can engage with us going forward?

Y: Sure

I: We are going to need a lot of your time.

Y: You can take my number, | don't have a business card. My number at the office
- you can arrange with Lana at the office. 012 807 0801. Cell 079 950 0610. If lam

not available, leave an sms.

I: Yakhe where we are now, we are going to see our advocates after this, and | am
going to ask them for more time. So we can keep talking, so we can keep
engaging. We have a lot to talk about. We have a whole timeline.

Y: But | am worried about SAA under Dudu's watch.

| &R: We all are. K
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I: I am very worried about the people out there, I'm worried about Thuli, about
[Masimba?], I'm worried about Cynthia, I'm worried about all these people. | know
they will be cleared of their charges. But as you said and as we know these charges,
they pop up from different places, and people are left in the dark as a result of them,

and | personally....
R: Martin is also on that target list.

Y: Let me give you that whole list. Can you give me a page - let me give you the hit
list:

Martin Kemp - Acting CEO of [AshX]

Zooks Ramasia

Moosa - Acting CEO of SAA

Phumeza Nhantsi - Acting CFO SAA
Y: You know what Phumeza does, in terms of procurement. She submits all these

things to the board, knowing very well that she is going say can [??7] can you [eut?]
for this and this and this, so that | protect her, and oppose if necessary. So that is

what she does.
R: Zooks, what is his capacity?

Y: GM operations. And then in respect of Thuli. There is no one to testify against

her.

I: Who would have testified against her? You? Because it seems that they get you to

testify.

Y: No. | only testified in [Sylvians]. Of course they got me to testify, which | opted at,

and then...

I: They requested you to testify against Thuli.

Y: Yes, and then ... (% i



I: Who is them...
Y: | don't know who the lawyers are.

I: Kolisi?

Y: Yes, and then the person on now is Musa, and Moosa is not going to testify.

I: Has he refused to testify

Y: Yes.
R: So you say that you were requested to testify by?
I: Kolisi the lawyers.
Y: We are still on the list:
[Lusanda gia] - GM Communications 7777
Tlali Tlali -

[Ashraf??7] - GM Legal

Time: 02:07:00
Phinda Ncala [77?] GM IT

I: Can | just ask where does this list. when you say this list..
Y: | am thinking in terms of the layers

Nontsasa Memela Procurement at SAA

and then...Lester Peter - Acting Procurement

I: When you say the hit list, how do you substantiate this?

Y: You can see. Of course... call the name and | will tell you if she told me:

MEM-251

Martin Kemp - Yes
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Musa {(Zwane) - yes
Phumeza - No - the reason why we are saying that is because she has been

complaining a lot about her non-performance. And then Phumeza has been
saying, write it down, let's have a performance agreement. So | know she is

now on the hitlist.
I: Are you still in contact with Phumeza?

¥: | am in contact with all of them. 1 just left when ... and then who else?
Zuks - yes everybody knows. In fact | tried to make peace between the two of them.

Lusanda - Yes she told me.

I: When you say she told you, what does she tell you?

Y: She saying Lusanda Iis responsible for stakeholder management and
communication, so she is saying that we are being lambasted by the media, and

Lusanda is not doing anything. It seems as If she is taking instructions from National
Treasury, and therefore she has been wanting to outsource the communications

function of SAA.

I: She is actually trying to set up a deal.

R: She is trying to set up a procurement deal. And Tladi?

Y: He reports to [?7]. But now specifically Tiadi, he is an ABZ - Anybody but Zuma
I: [s that a real term?

Y: No it is a slang term.

R: Ursula?

Y: In addition to Lusanda, Ursula and Lusanda and Phinda were brought in by Kalawe

R: Nontsatsa. §§ @-
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Y: Nontsatsa There is this deal that has gone horribly wrong according to her, that is
the components tender at SAA technical. She got Nontsatsa, that's the AR1, she got
Nontsatsa to make sure that that tender was awarded sither to Air France or HA
Walters. Now that tender came and came and came and came, until it got to the board
where Air France was recommended. But Air France was number 3.

Time: 02:12:50
R: In the adjudication.

Y: Yes.
R: They stopped that scoring in the adjudication.

Y: Yes. And the AJ Walters did not make it to number three or number four, so
seemingly things had gone, and now at the board, we approved against the
recommendation of Air France. Seemingly she had a deal with Air France and AJ
Walters, but now things did not go her way. And then now she is bringing Nontsatsa
followed making sure that this thing happened.

R: Ok, you mentioned something about AR, and you said that there was a
recommendation. | am just trying to play a big picture here. We have Air France
bidding, we have AJ Walters bidding, we have AR bidding.

Y: Yes and then we have Lufthansa.

R: Ok we have Lufthansa. In your opinion since you were a part of the adjudication...

(interrupted)

Y: No | was not a part of the adjudication.

R: Ok, specifically why were you not? ‘\ ﬁ
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I: No it reaches board level...(interrupted)

R: Ok so by the time it gets to your level it is pretty much... Why was AR then

recommended?

Y: AR was number 1 in specifics... There were two requirements, three including BEE.
So the first requirement is the technical. AR was number 1 in technical aspects...

I: Is that what the BAC said.

Y: Yes, infact we audited that because [Nontshaha?} wanted that, and then we looked
at everything, so the BAC, the technical aspects, AR was number 1.

R: Sorry when you say technical, | was about to ask.
Y: There is technical, and then there is [7?7] and then there is BEE.
R: Ok, BEE scoring. Ok Technical, are we talking in terms of...

Y: Knowing the actual performance of the job.

R: And in as far as performance on the job, who from SAA evaluated this and go to
the conclusion that they were better than Air France and AG Walters?

Y: There is the... in fact there are about how many teams, there is a specification

team...
R: Who sits on the team?
Y: It depends on different people.

I: Depending on the bid and scoping
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R: So they are basically knowledgeable of the products that are required. Engineers

perhaps?

Y: | don't know what their expenrtise is. But it is the people who will use the [??7] at the

end of the day.

R: It would be interesting to know how that conclusion was reached at the end of the

day. Something to substantiate...
Y: No, they have it documented. And each person had his or her own scoring. So |

don't know who the team members are. So there is the bid specification committee,
and then there is bid evaluation committees, and bid adjudication. And then from bid

adjudication, then it goes to the board.
R: Ok so those are the various steps that need to be fulfilied.
I: People who sit on these committees, like Ms Mamela.

Y: | know that Nontsatsa is chairing the bid evaluation. | know that she is chalring the
bid adjudication. | do not know the other people that chaired the other

committees. Yes.
I: is she friends with Dudu?

Y: | wouldn't say they are friends. They are colleagues basically. But Dudu had
several meetings with Nontsatsa in respect of this, and hearing...

I: Separate mestings with her?

Y: There was one separate meeting that | know of. And Dudu’s chiid.

R: Sorry Dudu's child??

Y: [Thalente?] C ?\J\
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R: Is he a part of SAA?

Y: No

R So how does he become a part of this meeting?
Y: No this was private.

R: Ok.

Y: So now the adjudication recommended Air France to the board. And then
Lufthansa... You see after the technicality is decided, it is put aside. Itis not longer a
factor. Now you look at the price, and then after the price, you look at BEE.

R: So in terms of ranking, technical comes first, and then price and then BEE.
I: It's a disqualifier.

R: | just wanted to understand the process.

Y: So now it seems as if therefore, the reason why she go to the hitlist is that she did
not convince board enough to give these to Air France or AG Walters.

I: Nick Linell
Y: (Laughs)
I: How did they appoint Nick? | mean did you ask for this, we need a Nick in our lives?

Y: Nick came at the time of Monwabisi Kalawe, and then of course he was
recommended by Dudu to give advice to the board.

I: No procurement? ’ﬂ_/
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Y: No procurement.
I: No quotes?
Y- There are many things where there is no quote and no procurement.

R: So is that his role, basically giving advice to the board?

Y: Yes.
R: What kind of advice does he give? | mean I'm sure you have sat in ...

Y: What he did with me, was the Ernst and Young report. Ernst and Young was

reporting to him.
I: 10th of December

Y: Yes. And thereafter reporting to me. So basically that is what he did. But there is
an issue at the moment, which i threw out of the board meeting that | attended on
Tuesday. The issue with Nick Linell is that he was given a budget. Now he finished
that budget, and now there was an extra that was paid now. Now that extra is irregular
expenditure. Now in addition to that, he continued to work when he knew that there
was an over expenditure. And now Phumeza doesn't want to pay, and that is the also
the reason why she is on the target list (laughs). So Phumeza, what she said, she
needs the board to condone the irregular expenditure, and then she also needs the
board to approve a further budget, if we are going to use him again. Now | am saying
that Nick is supposed to be the advisor of the board, but who is he advising?

I: Because you don't meet with him?

R: | was about to say, why were you by passed in as far as you being chair of audit
and risk, regarding the E&Y report? Why does the first have to go through him,
because he goes on a consultancy basis to the board. Shouidnt, | think that
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procedurally, feel free to correct me, but shouldn't it be that the report runs through
you, as the audit and risk chair, and then he get oversight?

Y: No basically he only worked in respect of EY. He worked basically sort of as an
executive. He would be there to unlock whatever was locked, or is not working. So
basically he was there almost on a full time basis. | did not have a problem with

that. But the problem that | had was that that exercise was finished. | don't know what
it is that he is still doing, because there was a specific budget for that that was

finished. Now, but what | know....

I: But that was December last year already. Orwas he busy with the report afterwards

looking at it?
Y: No the report was done by Emst and Young.

I: Yes | know but the report was delivered to Nick on 10th of December last year.

Y: Yes

I: Then what did the board do with the report?

Y: You know also that that report was intended to get just about everyone.
I: How do you know that. Did she teil you that it was part of the plan?

Y: No. |didn't know it was part of the plan when it was started. [ gotto know that there
was an ulterior motive when 1 go along and EY report is made reference in respect to

this person and this and this...

R: Individuals, naming and shaming sort of?

Y: (agrees)

N AL
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I That report, was it served before the board? What has the board done about
it? There were a lot of recommendations in that report.

Y: You know, in that report, it did not serve in front of the normal board, but all the
board members know about that report, but it did not serve in front of the normal board.

R: Ok so there was a meeting convened with that report on the agenda, to say part of

our agenda, part of our items will be....

Y: Acceptance of the report. But of course EY gave us a presentation, sort of sign off

to say here is the report.
I: Didn't that concem you?

Y: You know that report at the moment. You know from where | am sitting, that report
did not concern me because | see that it was not done for the intended purpose. There

was an ulterior motive.

I: But it backfired.

Y: (Agrees)

I: But | mean there are things in that report, and allegations in that report and
recommendations in that report. Why didn't it ever serve before the board? | mean

did she have the whole report? Do you have the whole report? And Ruth have the

whole report? and John have the whole report?

Y: (Agrees to all names)

I: Are those the only people who have the entire report?

Y: | don't know who else has the report.
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I: That is my understanding, that those are the only people who have the whole
report. And Nick. But as chair of audit and risk, surely you should have demanded
that fisten, this report needs to be served before the board. We need to discuss what
has been said in this report, because there are some serious allegations in this report.

Y: No before that report, we sit in front of the board. It was supposed to go to Exco,
because the implementation there must be done by Exco. And in fact, there were
things that Exco were not in agreement with that report.

I: And how did you deal with those concerns?

Y: No we haven't dealf with those concemns.

I: When Dudu goes on TV saying we are busy taking care of the recommendations
that were in the EY report, but it is going to take some time, is she lying?

Y: You know Dudu, how Dudu operates, Dudu takes herseif as the board...
I: So she is ... I've seen that, many people have said that yes.

Y: Yes, so if she is saying that she is doing something about the report, or that the
board is doing something about the report, definitely Dr Tam[?] doesn't know..

R: Basically it means Dudu Myeni is doing something. Board means basically one

person.
Y: (agrees)
I: So that report came in and then just died a silent death almost.

Y: The report, how it was supposed to flow. It was supposed to be accepted. OK,
basically when we do an audit, let's say a forensic audit, of course you discuss that
report with the most senior person, like for instance in the case of IT findings, Phinda
[??] would be the last person to discuss those findings with. Then when it goes to the
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report, any items of disagreement have been cleared, because it may happen that
they say, we were not given access to invoice number 50, then Phinda [?77] picks up
the invoice number 50, and then that gets cleared. So whatever is taken to the board,
it is the case that has not been cleared. That is how it was supposed to be. Hence
now the executives wanted to disown that report when it got to them, and therefore,
before the executives accept the report and say | agree that this is what is happening
in my depariment, because remember that Emst and Young is auditing {Man?], So
[man?] must be given an opportunity, technical must be given an opportunity, Air

Chefs, Cargo, operations....

R: To respond as far as the findings are concerned.

02:31:19

i: And all those people, they have been given an opportunity.

Y: Exactly that is what they are saying that they were not given an opportunity. There
are things that they do not know.

R: What do you think the motive of the report was. In retrospect. Would you look at it
and say it was meant to make certain people look as if they are not doing thelr jobs,

and they are not good.

Y: Of course

I: You said just now, that Dudu goes to strange places in Sunnyside and all of this

stuff. Yakhe, how do you know this?

Y: (Laughs). | know because she told me, and at some stage | once accompanied

her.

I: For which one was that. \ /&/'
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Y: [ can't tell you that. Not yet. (Laughs)

I: Let's close it for today, I'm going to put things.on ice. You have been cooperating

well, so let's keep talking.

Y: Let's keep talking.

I: I still have a lot... | am going to start working with this, because there is a team of
about 6 people working on this. Investigators and everything. So | am going to get
input from them so we can start getting through this.

R: And as far as her request earlier with regards to applications of legal costs, that is
something | don't know, from a board perspective you are better equipped than | am.

I: I have to go to my board and discuss this.

Y: Tell them that | am going to cooperate, and also tell them that it is in my interest to
save the airline. And also, one of the reasons why | resigned, is that | wanted to force
the minister and the president to talk, because now they are not talking. The other
person is there, and the other person is there, and the guarantee is required, and this
is what we hear, we hear that the minister has got his own list, and Dudu has got her
own list, and the minister’s list does not have Dudu.

R: In terms of the new board

Y: In terms of the new board yes, and the president is keeping this list, because it
doesn't have Dudu, and then now the guarantee is not being given, and the airline is
going to go down. So basically | was emphasising the importance of the two bulls to

talk.

I: | can tell you that | am putting things on ice whilst we are talking and whilst we are
cooperating, and | will report to my own board. | have to report to Ms Gumede, to
Wayne and to Tiaan. So | am going to discuss with them in a private meeting. | am

not using any of this information. Z/
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Y: But now there is also the information that | had, is that the board members, it seems
as if the minister and the president have come fo sort of a compromise that the new
board members will be announced soon. But now it seems as if soon will be
tomorrow. So it seems the new board members will be announced tomorrow, and
therefore maybe the guarantee will therefore be issues. But what we heard is that the
compromise is that Dudu will still continue to be the chairperson. Which basically is a
concern, and | know definitely how she operates is that, she will congcentrate on the
board as usual, and she is going to fight with whoever the new board member
is. Maybe the board members will not know the ulterior motives, because | also | got
to know how she operates, by working closely with her by observation.

I: We will be in contact with you, and | will not make any more statements in the media
about you. | can tell you | have been contacted by the investigators from syco? 1am
going to tell them that our investigation is still ongoing, but | will not provide them with

my report yet. So we keep talking.

Y: Thank you very much. So basically | am concerned that the president.is going to
continue to put Dudu there, | am very much concerned, and in fact you know SAA
hasn't sat for a strategy session for this current year, -that is in operation. And that
strategy was already supposed to have been approved by 1st of April, so that 1st of

April people know what their KPI's are.

R: After year end basically

Y: Yes, but there was a disaster in January, 14th or 16th of January, where the
executives were supposed to present the strategy, and then the strategy... and then
myself and Dr [...] were driving from Midrand towards the airport for the 8:30 meeting,
strategy session. At 8:15 | received a phone call from Dudu to say the meeting is
off. No, that one is much better, she is change the meeting to Midrand, Protea
Hotel. Now we must go back closer to home. And then now all the people, about 30
executives of SAA, having to drive from Protea Hotel Airport, to Midrand, that is

AN A
¢
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R: In terms of traffic going into Sandton.

Y: Yes, and then now she calls and say, this is not going to be a strategy session, it is
going to be a special board meeting. Oh ok, but not everybody there is a board
member. So it will be a special board meeting with executives invited. Oh ok that's
fine, then we go. Then at 10:30 she says, oh can you chair the meeting. No, | am not
going to be able to chair the meeting because | do not have an agenda. | don't have
a pack. (Dudu) I will give you an agenda. (Y) No we will wait for you. We waited. She
arrived at 15:00. And then she stayed for about 5 minutes, and said she was called
by the minister of finance. She was just here to apologise. And there were also going
to be people from SSA. And then SSA did their presentation and left at 16:00. And
now Ruth is saying that Dudu is saying the board members must wait for her. And
then I said no, 1 don't live far from here. You will call me when she has arrived, but |
am going home now. And then she called around about 18:30 - Ruth - the company
secretary and said that the chairperson is no longer coming, she is at the airport. And
the other board members were waiting.

R: If you can, draw us a timeline of events that stand out for you.

02:41:26

Y: You see that one, that one is a problem. People were smoking there, and they
were sitting. You see we are all brushed as if we are an irresponsible board.

R: So | mean, my réquest right now is that, if possible, the events have happened in
as far as your serving with Dudu on the board. If you can, perhaps you can draw us
a timeline of particular contracts that were decided in that point in time, from top of
your memory, if you have documentation to substantiate that, that would be great. In
our next meeting, if you could present us with that. | mean we are quite flexible, we
are willing to work around your schedule in as far as that goes. This means that we

have to pick it up from you somewhere,

Y: You know as | said, she is not writing. ﬁ

\N
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R: Well your recollection. We just need your recollection. And if there is any
substantiating documentation in as far as your recollection goes, that would help as

well.

Y: You know there are contracts that we know that she is involved in... she is involved
in this one and this one... but when we do like your little investigation as to who's this
company, her name is not there. So basically you cannot prove that she is involved

here.
R: We can. Seriously we can.

I: We can look at it. We are working on it. We just need the information on what is it
that you think is happening. And where procurement is not going through procedures,
of all things over this whole time. Start thinking on that. Because that's what | have
to present, and | have enough fo present almost already, | am just thinking that you

might be able to fill in some gaps.

R: But then also with your presentation coming forward and saying you need to
cooperate with us, | think that would go a long way in as far as basically detailing the
representations in respect of what has happened.

I: Placing everything into context.

Y: But you know this one that | am talking about in terms of the strategy, you know the

strat session has not been presented, even today.

R: Do we have a meeting request? if there is a meeting request to suggest that? A
meeting request basically is sent out to the executives, and there is a meeting request
the secretary would obviously be responsible for the register of who was meant to
attend, who had agreed to attend, that kind of thing.

Y: No what | have, | have got a two day meeting request, which is happening in the
future. Of course that is not for me now, but that is the strat session that was supposed

to determine the activities from 1 April this year going forward.

A
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R: Basically the 2017 financial year.

Y: Yes.

R: So | mean if we have a meeting request of the 1st, basically tying everybody that
was there, or meant to be there on the 1st, 1 think we have enough to basically

substantiate that.

Y: No not that meeting, that meeting was going to be held in January, rightly so,
according to the annual plan. Yes so that people can go and do the amendments, for
it to start operating from 1 April. To date we are in August, May June July August, 4
months into the year. Executives do not know where they are going.

R: Does it include budgets?

Y: Yes.

R: 1 think then from the angle of there not being planning, budgets and the like, that
would help the fact that initiative or steps to indicate the way forward, aiso feeding into
the LTTS, because given that the strategic program that needs to be drawn up for the
operations going forward, | think what would feed into the objectives of the LTTS, and
in the absence of any documentation in relation thereto, it means that there is a
deviation from what the LTTS requires in the curent year. So in as far as the
delinquency charges, [ think it does hold some substance.

Y: You see that one of the sirat session, and the people sitting there the whole day,
senior people, and then | am saying, the AG average charge out rate of a senior

person, they say R2500 per hour.

R: They spent what 8 hours or more? Per person?

Y: Per person. Times about 35 people.
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I: About 100 k an hour. Yakhe, let's pick it up later, Thank you for your cooperation. |

am not going to say anything more about you.

Y: Thank you very much. But what I will do, | will try and recall whatever | can, 1am
not disgruntled that | left SAA. In fact | am very very happy. Infact!am teliing people
that | am walking on eggs. You know when someone is walking on eggs, anything is
possibie at any time. and we do not know what is happening. Now you do not know if
what you have signed, in fact you start to think that whatever you have signed has got

something.
I: Super. Let's keep this conversation confidential.

Y: Yes, in fact | was also advised ic come to your organisation because | have been
telling them all about all of these froubles, and then we know that ANG hands are tied,

so basically we can't do anything..... [Audio fainf]

End of Interview.




TRANSCRIPTION 02/09/2016 — EXPLORATORY MEETING WITH YK

Note: Initial introductions and small talk,

IH: Did you see the new board? Interesting. Some familiar characters there.
YK: Who else do you know?

H: | know Peter very well

YK: Oh yes a legai professional.

IH: Can | get you something? YK: No I'm fine,

¥K: S0 what do you think of the new hoard?

IH: | have some concerns, but if we have enough time, we will try discuss that.

(Everyone settling into the meeting)
IH: How have things been Yahke, since you have been gone?

YK: You know they say the more things change, the more they stay the same. | thought |

would not be busy, butl am running around.
IH: Interesting times. Everybody’s cell phones on silent.?

IH: We have a bit of an agenda, so Marais and Lerissa are just taking notes etc..., Rethabile
and myself and Rudie will be the only one’s asking questions, 50... we have a bit of an agenda,
if 1 can put it that way, we are together so we can just actually start one topic at a time, just
start taking. Rethabile asked me just to once again firm up her position at this stage, where
we said that you know should these discussions gather any fruits, that we will keep
consldering whether her name will be included in the court application. That was where we
left it the previous time. So we said things are on ice for now and pending where these

discussions go. After our previous meeting the rest of us met, so we have a lot of questions,

so let’s get cracking.
¥K: You said you have made an agenda. Can | have the formal Agenda.

Tian: It's not a formal agenda it’s just topics for us to discuss. So | will read it cut. Events to

be discussed basically.
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RM: You need to go to the bathroom or anything,, just say 'l show you where it is. Oh, sorry,
SOrry,

YK: Sothe first one is the events to be discussed.

IH: Events being things we are going to discuss are people we are going to be discussing a
whole lot of things. | am going to leave you to do mast of the talking, just ask a question and
you can tell us what you think, what you know etc..., if you don’t know any more than that,
we move onto the next thing, and that's it, myself, Rudie and Rethabile will ask you questions

in between and we will see where it goes, but relax, these computers {laugh} people don’t

use the old, we still use paper to make notes. You are older than us, we are the tach

generation......

YK: You know that Is an insuit for woman nel.
IH: fsald you are older

RM: Wiser...

MD: We respect that.

IH: So all right let’s get cracking. Let me this time mention some interesting stuff for us, most
interesting to my mind at that stage was, that you talked about the abuse of the whistle
blower, you see | want you to just talk more freely about that, when, who, what, how, why, |
mean it would be great If you could get into the specifics of these exact events. You can talk
about the things you can prove and the things you cannot prove as well. So, ja, the floor is
yours.

YK: Why don’t you give me all of the clues that we are going to discuss, because some of
them [audio...] ...

fH: Ok, we are going to discuss the whistle blower line, how it was used, request for people
ta lie at disciplinary hearings, appointment of the disciplinary chairperson, {Masotsha Mgadi],
as a theme, there are a few questions we will discuss, Thabo Kwinana, [Mamwabisi Kalowl],

[Masimba Dowa), [Thuli Mtshe]. The listis quite long so we will go through them one-by-one

like that.

YK: Sorry what was number 2 a request for?
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RM: Disciplinary process in as far as [chairing] witnesses and after that ... befare the expo...
YK: [audio unclear] -.after the other one.

IH: Um... Mgadi,

YK: No, no. P've got that one.

'H: Thabo Kwinana.

YK: Yes 've got that. How would | miss that that one.

RM: It was a request for witnesses to ..., that’s the one, 5o | can't just Incorporate it with the

Tehiwa.. [audtio unclear].

fH: OK, [Thuli Mtshe], ... that one [Mamwibisi Kulawi]; [Masimba Dowa] then onto the next
one {Msiswani; Nico Bezuidenhout]. Okay, .... Appointment of Ernst & Young. Appointment
of {Nichola Nel]. The jet fuel conceptlon; AAR, appointment of ENS; AAR flights to the United
States. SwissPort and {Janicromb]; appointment of {Phumeza Nanzi]; Blue Valley Estate;
[Peter Setsebe]; [Thabeng Terniyenil; Ga_u!._'qu' Flims Commission; [BM Khulisi] (BMK); [....
Ngwane]; [Lynette Ntulil; [Pieter van der _Pg‘i:”e‘j;m're'."" 'What‘s Eric’s surname? Erlc Mbhedzi;
Sergey Pokusaev; jacobs Ma foundation Donations; EMIRATES Steel; and then Daniel

Mahlangy; and then Des van Rooyen,

RM: is that it.

IH: That's about it | will add as we go along if | see something else. 1 might jump In between
1 orthe 2 of them. All right Yahke you mentioned that the whistle blower line was abused on
various occasions by Dudu. You said that you considered today providing us with some

additional information on it.

YK: No, | did not say | would produce additional information. You said, um, maybe that is the
actual information that you are talking about where she would go to the Café Shop and the
Internet Café. Yes, and then any place that you really would not expect to see her, and |
mentioned for instance, outside..... So basically I do not have any further information to say
this is the News Café that | went to. | don't know if we have been to Sunnyside. So basically
there Is Esselen Street that has got [unclear audio] Just about everything and anything.
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RH: IfI may jJump in here, sorry, | Just got a briefing from Ivan and Rethabile, unfortunately |
missed the conversation on Tuesday, Just ta give you some background before we carry on if
I may Ivan, | have worked for the past 3 months on this SAA investigation. We have got a lot
of information, and some of the information that | am going to cross check with you, and
some of the information that we want from you. Most of the questions that | am asking will
be straight forward questions with a “yes” or a “na” ar a date, or a place, or a name, stuff like
that. To come back to the whistle blowers that you mentioned earlier and use of the whistle

blower line, when did this happen, when Ms Myeni went to the... was it over a period of time,

can you give us that period of time?

YK: Maybe about a year ago.

RH: A year ago, say mid last year. How many times do you know of that she visited these

internet café’s.
YK: There is one time that she went with me.

RH: She went with you or you with her. The ane time that you went along, can you remember

where it was, which one it was.

YK: That was Sunnyside.

RH: There in Sunnyside, | hear DTI Campus, Esselen Street, around about there and that
occasion obviously you were there, you were present. Can you recall on which person this

report was done and sent through?

YK: You know | don’t remember exactly which one, but what | can say in respect of this abuse
of whistle blow, is that when | was asking her why do you do those things, because you have
got authority and power to call a task team and say this is what is happening. But you know
the way Dudu operates, she doesn’t want her hands dirty. 50 she doesn’t want this to be

coming from her. So basically that is the abuse of fundear]...

RH:. Just, | must emphasize this, the day when you were in her presence, did you sit next to
her when she did this, what was the situation, because | mean you said to us that you were

present, | just want to find out what was the situation?
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YK: Okay, how she does it and in fact also the whistle blower you think that what she says is
true for instance she will have ali the information that she has In her book. Have you got
[unclear...] the information from lower level people and so on and so on. She will have all this
information. Se basically it will be the information from one sort of whistle blower, or she
will be collecting information from everybody else and then she will have it in her book, yes,
and then she will go to internet Café and type it from her book. So baskcally she may have
collected it from various people, but obviously | don’t know those people. So basically she
will have all this information about whoever and in fact she collects information about

everybody and anybody, maybe she uses it at the time she wants to use it.

fAH: But that specific date, did you enter the Internet Café with her? Did you see anything
that she was typing about somebady, who was the person that the whistle was blown on? |

mean was it Nico Bezuidenhout; was it, who was the person on that specific day?

YK: You see the way she has got a ot of whistle blowers in her baok, is difficult for me to say,

this was the whistle blower.
RH: Didn't you icok what she was typing and discussed it with her?

YK: Mo, remember that before we went there, she tole me that, she tells me about these
whistle blowers, about everybody, to say you know there is this whistle blower about Nico
and she will write # down or she will have written down and she will be reporting to me that

there this whistie blower, and this whistle blower about ...

RH: Dr Daba or someone......

YK: Yes, so there is this whistle blower, this is what the whistle blower said and then there is
this whistle blower, this is what this whistle blower sald and so on and so on. in fact, almost
all the whistle blowers, except of course there will be some whistle blowers about a person

wha is selling his or her benefits somewhere and so on, but Dudu is interested in the whistle

blowers of senlor peopie.
RH: 5o you cannot tell us, although you were there, you cannot telius,

Rr(d: In her book maybe? Didn’t you mean iike people, other people?
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YK: When she reports to me her book will be here, but now | am saying | can’t remember

that particular cne as to who's one was it, because that's [audio unclear]....
RH; You were there that day.

YK: Yes. | was there.

RH: Let me sketch this to you, she will inferm you, Yahke you know what | went to Sunnyside
yesterday and ! put In @ whistle blower report against Nico Bezuidenhous, for example, or is
that not the way that she communicated with you? Or will she just tell you, because you said
to me just now that she reported to you that she had done this but will she only say that |

have reported someone via the whistle blower line.

YK: No, she will not say she reported someone by the whistle blower line. She is going to say
there is a report submitted, it will appear as if somebody whistle blew to her and she

facilitated the whistle blower that to the whistle blower line.

RH: That I understand but | mean was it that she gathered the information, she put it
together, and she anonymously via the whistle blowing fine reported someone at the internal
whistle blowers forum. Is that how it worked? But she never reported to yau to say, Yahke

you know what, today | made this repart on Nico for example.
YK: Mo, she will not say it is coming from her.

RH: [ know that, but | mean you discussed it, that is what you sald. You discussed it but did

she say on who she is blowing the whistle.

YK: Of course | would be knowing, because each page has got the name of the person and

whatever she [audio unclear...]

RH: That Is exactiy what | want to know. Who was that rierson that she blew the whistle on?

YK: You mean the people in her book?

RH: That she reported through the whistle blower Hine. It is quite simple, what | want to
establish here Is that there was a lot of investigations done, there were a lot of people

suspended because of the whistle blowing report. | want to know which one she instigated.?

Upon whom?
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YK: | would say basically all the whistle blower executives are coming fram her and she said

the reason why they are coming to her is because people are calling her. Sothey don’t have....

RH: Did you believe her?

YK: if she had such information, of course, she may be getting it from somewhere.
AH: But she complled the report.

YK: Yes.

RH: If 1 understand you correcily, it was on the senior people that the whistle was blown,

those are the reports that she created at that Internet Café, is that correct?

YK: Sorry what did you say?

RH: The senior people that were suspended because of the whistle blowers report, like
[Dawa), ke [Bezvidenhout], can you mention the names, was that the reports that she
created?

YK: You see, that is the reports that she created, but | want to qualify to say, she has been
saying she has got the whistle blower from other people, so which means that the persen
would have come to talk to her and then she wrote it down to say this is the whistle blower,
which basically is samething { believe her, bacause there is no way that she will have that

information withaut someone telling her.
IH: Except if she requested it.

YK: She requested to be told that's [fine??]...

RH: So what you are saying is that she didn’t instigate the allegations against somebody.
Somebody told her, why did that somebody not go via the whistle blower line themselves? |
mean it is anonymous they could done it themselves, why did she take it on herself, why did
she tell you, why did she take you along?

YK: She said to rme, people have no confidence in the intemal whistie blower. Hence some of

the whistle blower she gets it directly from the Department of Public Enterprises when SAA
was still reporting to Public Enterprises and then she got it from Department of Finance. 50
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basically she Is saying instead of people using this whistle blower, they report directly to her

because they want action.
RH: They trusted her.

YK: Yes.

RH: You just said, nobody trusted the internal whistle blowing program. ) am jumplng a bit,
but why then was there a resolution that investigations of whistle blowing reports will be
done internally, then on one occasion there was a whistle blowing report that was stated on
[KULAWA] where the hoard decided, or where she said that listen, we must get an external
investigating team to handle this, because this is senior personnel, and you supported that
notion in the board and eventually an external investigating team was appointed. Why go

against the resolution that was taken about 3 months before that?

YK: Noin fact, | also did not agree with that resolution. The reason why | was saying senior

people upwards should be investigated externally.
RH: But why was it not said at the time when the resolution was passed?

YK: No no, remember that in a board, if the majority agrees with that, there is goes through.
50 | was in the minority In that audit committee that you are talking about, which basically is
something that [ did not agree with. That's fine if | don’t agree with, it is well and good, | am
not the only board person, but let me tell you the reason why| did not agree and in fact where
I am, | am still adamant that it is not right. You see the chief audit executive is below the exco
level, and the internal investigations are handled by him. So now ¢an you imagine him
investigating even the GM's without ... No, no, no, remember that you have got a right to your
own oplnion. 1 am telling you my own opinion and what | believe in. | am saying, and this is
what 1 also said in the meeting, it Is not proper for [Sivakula] to investigate his boss. 1t is not
right. Because what Iif his boss wins that case, how is he going to act against [Sivakula), so
that was my opinion there, so whether they agreed or not and whether you agree or not, it is

my opinicn, and it Is also your opinion.

RH: Yes ! understand that, it's true, everybody has an opinion. it is like a junior policeman

investigating Jackle Selebi.

YK: Exactiy.
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RH: So then after this Investigation disciplinary hearing who appoints the chairpersen of a

disciplinary hearing, what Is the process there?

YK: | don’t know. That is handled at HR.

RH: Whe is deciding who will be the witnesses at such a hearing?
YK: |think all of that process is decided at HR.

RH: Who is handilng, you say HR is handling this whole process, so you do not have inside
knowledge of how it was compiled, who was summansed if [ can use the word to testify, and

who was appolnted ISB chairperson of the hearing.

YK: No, in fact! don’t even know how the chairperson is appointed and how the weaknesses
are.

RH:. So from the board’s side and top management’s side, that’s a process that carries on it's

on the side, it is growing, and you guys just hear the cutcome of it, not invoived at all?

YK: Sometimes, like for instance, | have been involved as a witness, but now also my
involvement as a withess, like if there are alfegations and then they will say you need to testify

or you need to give evidence on this specific work.

RH: Anything else on that view...

IH: Because it seems to me that Dudu initiates, you are saying she is almost, she is the catalyst
in the process for getting these {audio unclear]... On the one hand she says she receives the
information from pecple independently, on the other hand we have a suspicion that she goes
hunting for the information. Either way, do you know of any times when she, or anybody
else, you aiso, had any discussions with any people that had to testify in some of these

disciplinary hearings where these people were told what to testify?
YK: Mostly | don’t even know who are the other people who were involved in testifying.
IH: Let's take [Sylvain Bosk] as an example.

YK: Sylvain, there Is a lady that | met at ENS, but | have forgotten the name of the lady and it

was my first time to see her,

IH: That also testified?
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YK: Who also testified.
IH: Was ENS just preparing the witnesses,

YK: Idon't know If lan prepared the witness, but | was not prepared as a withess. ! goton
the day of testifying.
fH: Was the hearing held at ENS’ offices, whistle blowing. There were allegations that some

of the evidence In [Sylvain Bosk] hearing was fabricated. Some of the evidence against him

for this specific purpose of having him dismissed. Do you know anything about that?

YK: No.

iH: Nothing? OK. The Sunnyside meeting, my timeline seems to indicate that it was about
the same time as the EMIRATES deal was called off by Dudu on the 16% June 2015 and on the
27t July Nico was transferred back to MANGO. It would appear that that whistle blowing
event took place almost around the same time then, Do you have any hunches about what

that Sunnyside expedition was about?

YK: No, | can’t remember, as | am saying, it was about a year ago, but remember that the
main whistle biowers so many whistle blowers,
IH: You said in the previous meeting that you can't tell me that, but you said it in a way that,

not that 't can’t remember that's why | can’t tell you’, you said | can’t tell you that as in we

are still feeling each other out, we’ll see whether | feel comfortabie teiling you that. I think

you remember,

YK: No, | don’t remember, but as | say there are many whistle blowers, so many of them.

IH: Do you know of even one example that you can peg down? This happened on this day, |
know the whistle blower line was used. Just any single event of all of these events because
you are saying there are so many of them, that you can say | know.

YK: No, | reafly want you know, because you see these deeds were not [audio unclear]... they
are in Dudu’s book,

RM: So when you say last year, can you even trace the month when you went to Sunnyside

with her, last year sometime ...... it was cold, was it raining, Was itlune?
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YK: That's going to ba difficult because we meet when there are meetings at $AA and then
50 or maybe when we are going to talk about SAA. Sa in my diary | will write SAA meeting

with the chairperson, so | wiil not 53y SAA we went to Sunnyside,

RH: But I think again you can make the presumption that most of these, if | understang you
correctly, these whistle blowing reports gaing through was about senior management peogle,
so we can go and have a look and see exactly that at this period of time these reports came

through and we can make to say that listen these we believe were prepared by Dudu,

iH: Right let's... Cynthia Stimple. The suspension of Cynthia Stimple was allegedly, and |
actually believe as a rasult of the removal of the Bnp Bid documents. What do you know
aboutthis? Was the matter ascalated to the board for discussion, because you said there was
a board meeting wherein there was a legal raply, and the ENS letter when George van Niekerk
wrote an item number 4 that said Myeniis not involved. Was the declsion to suspend Cynthia
Stimple, were you involved in that?

¥K: No.

IH: Who made that decision?

YK: In all Cynthia reports to the CEQ and | would think that all that, the decision is made ata
GM level, in GM, Finance and which is CFO, and the GM of HR.

{H: So that would mean that it was [Phumeza] who decided to suspend her. Was It discussad
with you or with Dudu... did Phumeza come and discuss it with any of you, saying this and this

Is what happened. The bid documents were removed,
YK: Yes, we were informed. We were informed of the events that led to that.

Tian: When about, before that, after that, | mean when were you informed, before the

meeting where..,

YK: No, ! don‘t remember before ar after, but | know the events led to that.
RH: Who informed you? You say that you were informed.
YK: [Phumeza).

IH: And what did she tell you guys?
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YK: About the whole thing of Cynthla coming there and me getting the documents and

bringing them in the morning, writing the sms message, yeah and all of that.

IH: Did she tell you about the $MS message at the same time she told you about the remaval

of the documents?

YK: Yes,
iH: 50 that would have had to have been quite a while afterwards.

YK: She told me about the SMS, but | didn’t say, you see when | tame here | did not have the
events to say ! got this on this on this date. If It is the case, If you want the specifics, then |
will have to go and check my [unclear] and say of | received this information about Cynthia’s
Stimple on this date, | merely am not going 1o say and | am also not comfortable to be asked
about the specifics in respect of the dates, and then you tell me that this is what I said. 1 said
i received the e-mail before or after, | don't have those specifies and if you want those
specifics, then i pack and go and come some other time to say then this is the details received
the e-mail from Stimple and this is what happened. Sofam really not goingtobe in a position
to tell you about the specifics,

IH: OK, then lat’s leave the dates for now then. Where you know the date, you know the
date, and when you don’t then we will move on, then we will also arrange a subsequent
meeting sa we just, because the dates are very important for the reason that depending on

who said what on what date. Either what they are saying is true or what they are saying is

nhot true. Some of it | know, sere of it | don't know, but OK, if you say you don’t remember

those specific dates, that's fine,
TEA /Bathroom BREAK, Small Talk. {Phillips; 05h04)
Restart at; 00:51:40 (Phillips: 04h59)

IH: We are going to tone down the specifics, so we don’t put you in a position where you just
really don’t know, not say 50, then we can see if we can get to that at a later stage. Sorry if

we made vou feel uncomfortable, it's hot the idea why we are here today, okay? Apology

accepted?

YK: {Laughs) It’s right, let’s continue.

MEM-279




tH: Right, if we can go to the Ernst & Young report.
YK: E & Y report. 5o it goes with their appointment and report.

IH: Yes, so, they were appointed on the 28% July 2015, Do you know, you said the other day,
{ speak under correction, that the purpose of this report you believe was to get some people.

Do you think it was... who wanted to get who? Do you know any of that?

YK: Eh, you see this report basically was intended to check where is SAA using losing money.
Where is SAA losing money? Of course the report was discussed and | think you all know the
contents of that report. So basically the reason why | was claiming that, you see it is very
"difficult to work with you in the sense that you will think that, like for instance when Ernst &
Younig was appointed to look at losses, it's fine, if you look at what you have, it’s fine, but now
you find out that whatever she says there is something behind that, that's what | said. Now
with the appointment of E & Y of course they were appointed in the proper supply chain
management process, and then the report, 1 think the report was also genuine in the sense
that this is what it said. There is this coritract that is accountable [unclear..] coatract and
therefore contract has been put in place and there Is these where they failed to negotiate
then we must go and negotiate, but the Ernst & Young report whenever they give a person
that Dudu wants to fire, she will make reference with the E & Y report and this Emst & Young
report s cutacross. You see in such a big organisation there is no way that you will come up
with a clean report, but now this report basically was used to say, oh, this is what is happening
in that department, then £ & Y report Is saying about that department, and then that person
must be disciplined, you see something like that. Instead of getting this report, sitting down
with whoever responsible, saying correct, but instead of that you used to correct, then | felt

that it is used to target certain individuals.

4: The recommendations in this report. How many of them, what happened to the

recommendations?

YK: You see, as | said in the [ast meeting, that report was not discussed with the executives

who were supposed to respond and after discussion with the executives, main issue, we

formally adopted the report.

IH: Was not discussed with a single executive?
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YK: No, the last time that was supposed to be discussed was when we meet again, | think
maybe a month ago when Nick Linel together with EY people, best at EXCO to discuss this
report and the executives defied him. The reason being that some of them it was their first
time to see it in EXCO, whereas generally when you audit ba it, normal audit or forensic
whatever audit, you will discuss it with the person, because some of it means that if you
require just an explanation and not find the EY report. So now Ernst & Young was required
to go back and discuss the findings with the relevant people and then it gets adopted at EXCO
having been accepted as {unclear]. 50 it has meaning to report but | know the contents

because | was leading that and also the whole board knows about it, because they were told

from time to time what Is in it.
IH: Whoicld you? Was it Nick? Your favourite.

YK: Yes

IH: So, am | right if | say to the best of your knowledge, none of these recommendations have

formerly been implemented?
YK: You see some of them may have been implemented.

{H: But not as a result of that panel board instruction to implement?

YK: No.

IH: Was there no board resolution, saying alright we are going through the process, we adopt

this report.
YK: Definitely not.

IH: Who was stopplng that process from happening? Let me rather ask why wasn’t that
happening?

YK: You know, | think maybe it's because of, maybe fack of proper planning, maybe confusion
in the sense that we will be having meetings where this report has been discussed and then

maybe, the chairperson talked about this was discussed in a proper board meeting.

IH: Do you think she was mistaken that it had been discussed and a decision had been taken?
YK: | think so, hmm.
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IH: And you, were you under the impression something had been done about this report? Or

that it had been discussed, or that it was no longer necessary to look inte it, or whatever...?

YK: Right, now all of course that Is supposed to be discussed at the board, is supposed to be
properly discussed and before the board it needs to be discussed by EXCO and then the

company secretary puts it in our board pack.

IH; And that never happened.

YK: No

IH: Didn’t you ever receive a copy of this report?

YK: t have a copy.

IM: At the time you left, was this report still on the table for possible discussion, later?

YK: Atthe time | left, that report was yet to be tabled at EXCO and remember that before

board to be included to go to EXCO.

RH: What was the cost to compile this report. What did it cost SAA?

YK: The cost for Ernst & Young was R1,2 million.

IH: That's not bad.

{H: Was this report, before this report, was there ancther report by ENS?

YK: [ don’t know.

IH: Because the infarmation we have Is that ENS did a report before this report and that the

reports are very similar.
YK: Similar in nature? ENS? No | don’t know.
iH: Do you know anything about the anti-corruption train that ENS provided.

YK: Yes, yes | heard about it.

IH: What's invalved in it. Do you know about ENS were appointed to provide that anti-

carruption train?
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YK: ENS, I don’t know how basically... You know ENS there will be some sort of urgency and
then the ENS name would come up in the board. Then this appointment of ENS report [audio
unciear] ... in fact 1 have using the [workload] contesting against ENS to say EMS has always
been parachuted because there would be an urgency to say this is happening, this is
happening, now, now, now, we need a quick report on this and 50 on and so on. S0 and in
fact he also the chief audit executive complained to me that he has got a panel of what is
belng investigated, but when we as the board keep appointing ENS without following a
pracess, and now seemingly this process of the board where it is urgent, that we need to
guickly appaint a legal firm and ENS is finding thelr weekly processes and we do not have to
go to tender for ENS and basically that's how ENS has been appointed, in fact considering that
your list is long maybe the appointment of ENS I can also take it with the appointment of Nick
Linel, when Nick Line! was appointed as the board advisor on [govern] specific and now
seemingly he ended up daing adviscr a board advisory, but not advising him and Dr [Dun?]
but advising the chairperson,

(Phillips: 4:41:25}) Npw the case, what is happening with the contract agreement with Nick

Linel when I left, is that Nick Linel had exceeded the budget, and now management wanted

the board to ratify the difference by which the budget exceeded, and also provided budget

for Nick Linel going forward.

IH: When was it performed?

YK: | think it was around [Decernber?]2014 [ think and the reason why | remember it was
related with {unclear].......

RH: You sald that ENS was appointed because there was an urgent matter ... the board says
appoint without going through due process. Can you make an example of such an urgent

matter where they had to be appointed on that urgent basis?

YK: You see all the now appointments which basically | said to management ! need to find out
how many appointments were done in respect of ENS and find out if for instance we had to
ratify because they were not properfy appointed, let’s do that. | don’t know but I'm thinking

that maybe an SD purpose 6 or 7 or 8 assignments on that basis.

RH: On anurgent basis.
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YK: Yes.

RH: And another guestion just before about Nico Nel the over extending of his budget, were

there any steps taken'to ratify that situation?
YK: Yes that was taken to the next board meeting that | attended on Tuesday.
RH: And the resuit on that discussion, was there a decision made?

YK: No, | didn’t allow to be Included in that meeting, because it was basically parachutad.

IH: How much was Nick Linel paid per month? What was his contract can you remember?

YK: | don’t know, ! believe his contract was basically was about 500, | am not sure. | think it
was about 500 but | was thinking that from the invoices that | am seeing, which | was not
aware whether they were monthly or not, but Nick Linel is claiming about 200,000.00 at any
pointin time, The reason why | am saying at any point in time is because | don’t know if it is
monthiy, but the invoices that [ am seeing are In that region.

iH: Sounds more fike a retainer kind of arrangement, rather than the number of hours working
for the board, by the sound of it, no due process in appointing of Nick

YK: When you were asking me that, wanting to see if there was anything wrong that you did,
you need to correct it, when we are asking that, because Nick was appointed by the board
collectively In a board meeting, although he ended up not working for the board, he ended

up working for Dudu, but he was appointed by the board to advise us on {unclear].
IH: Why did you think he would be able to advise you, he is not even South African lawyer?

YI: That is what we thought. When he was presented by Dudu, she presented him as the
lawyer,

IH: She presented him as a lawyer and did he say yes [ am a lawyer.

YK: Yes, of course we wouldn't ask bim if he was a lawyer. We can’t say a lawyer or not, If he

Is presented as such.

IH: You say he was presented, did she put on the agenda, the appolntment of an advisor.
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YK: It may have been put on the agenda. It may have been not necessarily as a line item to

say, here is his CV, here is the work that he has done,
IH: You did not see his CV.

¥K: Mo.
IH: Why did they appoint somebody without a CV that served the board?

YK: No, for instance that person is saying this is lvan and he is a fawyer by profession. He has
done this work over in this and this and this and this and we are only you believe me what |
am saying and then there is an [added..... [unclear]] that this person means to advise us on

this matter on the table, so basicafly it is also urgent and | believe that this person as he is

presented, Is a lawyer by profession.
iH: Seeing Mick Linel received this report, did he ever discuss this report with you?

YK: No he did not. There was no reason for him to discuss this with me because we would

have meetings with Ernst and Young and he would be present.

{H: About [Modisi Khulawa]. What were the circumstances, can you remember why was he

suspended?

YK: | can’t remember the facts.

RH: Too many suspensions. It was charges were alsc on the ground equipment, the Senegal
Route [unclear] if | remember correctly, or ...

YK: Senegal.

RH: And then the relationship with someone at Air Chefs.

YK: ... Air Chefs yes,

RH: Then basically the 3 main ... | think it was to do with the baggage wrapping system, was

also not done through due process.

YK: Yes, in partnership in baggage wrapping not following process, Senegai, | think that was
a level of representation (Philllips: 4:31:3) {unclear] where the minister spoke directly with

him instead of fallowing protocol [Audio is not very clear here).
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IH: [Masimba Dowal, can you remember why he was suspended?

YK: [Masimba Dowa) | would think the insubordination, in a nut shell.

Tian: Can you remember what the events were, why was he Insubordinate, what did you ask
him to do?

YK: [Masimba Dowal basically was going with us to the road shows for transformation and
[Masimba Dowa] of course in those road shows there would be some actions to be taken and
{Masimba] Dowa would say yes he would do these things and when Masimba would say, in

a funclear] | am going te do that. So basically that is in the nutshell in raspect of Masimba.
IH: Do you remember that letter you wrote to that Dudu, about Masimba?

YK: Yes [do,
IH: Is that the letter that led to his dismissal in the end?

YK: No, i don’t think so. | don’t think it was an action. | don’t think Dudu acted on the letter

that | sent about Masimba.

IH: It appears that your letter was sent and then the charges started coming in, the other
charges.

¥K: What other charges?

IH: Sho, | can’t remember, | have it scmewhere. OK.

RH: lust on that, you said the thing was that he did not perform tasks instructed to him,
especially on the road show. While we are at that, maybe we can touch on the procurement
situation regarding the 15% and 209, because | think the road show was there to attract smali

and medium businesses background for a specific percentage of the procurement of the Jet

fuel. Is that basically the...?
YK: No, not necessarily, it was for procurement in general.
RH: So where did that instruction come from?

YK: Instruction came from tha board, in fact that that one, | was the one who was asked to

lead and | agreed because I believed in it and | stil believe in it.
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RH: Who asked you to lead that?

YK: The chairperson.

RH: | hear you say you still believe in the transformation agenda. But at that stage Treasury
as well as DTI wrote letters instructing especially to the chairperson to say that this must be
stopped immediately. If | remember correctly, one of the letters of Mr Kenneth Brown. Why
didn’t the chairperson, why did she carry en, surely she shared the contents of these latters

and concems from National Treasusy with the board, why did it carry on?

YK: There was also & protocol challenge then, because Kenneth Brown, Kenneth met [unclear]
chairperson. The chairperson is reporting to the Minister, so what Kenneth Brown should
have done, he should have gone his DG, | don’t know the protocol levels there, but | knew
that Kenneth Brown is not a DG. So what Kenneth Brown should have done. He should have
gone to the DG and Minister and the Minister as a shareholder writes a letter to the

chairperson, and that did not happen. -

RH: So this whole Instruction from Treasury and DTl was basically ignored because of not

following the correct protocol.

YK: Yes, not following protocol and another thing, we responded to Kenneth Brown, if fact |
don’t know if you have got the response letter. We responded to Kenneth Brown saying if
there is anything wrong in terms of specific act and specific section of the PFMA Act, we need
te it down and meet, because we believe fn empowerment of small medium enterprises. He
did not respond to this letter. We also responded to [unclear] at DTl and she responded back
and her response basically was saying, of course | can’t quote her, | don't have It, but basically

her respanse was saying there was nothing untoward that she can point in what we are trying
t0 achieve.

RH: So basically she gave the “thumbs up” for, the okay for what is busy transpiring. Did the
Jet fuel deal with the beneficiaries, the small companies being put together in'a consortium
etc... etc.. all on procurement. What happened did it go through? Is it still in progress, wha

is driving that specific project?
YK: No it is still in progress,

RH: Who is driving that specific project now?
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¥K: Procurement is driving it.

IH: That Jet fuel deal. Do you remember, | think somebody asked, not sure if it was Dr Dawa

to sign an award for their company yet to be named.

YK: Yes, thatalso [unclear].... You see, what we said when there was [unclear]... Jet fuel was
due for renewal, we said 30% of this must be set aside because there are people who have
coming to SAA, small companies that have been coming to SAA, wanting to get involved. But
they are all closing all doors. Now what we mean what we said, we sald 30% let’s tast this
30% if for these companies that have been knocking to deliver 30% and then Engen eame and
said we are willing to give you a percentage, but we are looking at 30%. We will give you 15%.
We will only give you that and then we sald thank you very much Engen, but now because
there are so many companies in SAA database, what we need to do because this 30% we
wanted it to be set aside 1o benefit the BEE companies. So now what we did in fact | wrote
you that footnote, in the instruction for Dr Dowa, to say we have got s6 many companies |
think we are [unclear] database who said they are in @ position to supply let fuel, and then
we said instead of discriminating and give one company the 30% or 10% that was given by
Engen, let us give all these companies because the board resolved that the 30% or whatever
we agreed would set aside for BEE companies. Now we are saying all these companies that
are there, let them supply this 10% for example, this 10% of Engen. Now | am saying as | said
in tha roadshow, it is difficult for SAA to enter into the contract for supply [unclear]...
Therefore, what | know you should get, in fact | specifically said | will buy you a Shelf Company,
of course | am not a beneficiary in this shelf company, but ! am thinking, assume that this shelf
company R2,000.00. If we are going to call it 2000 from 60 [unclear] companies It Is going to
be administrating battle because | s0 much wanted Blacks to benefit from the supply chain
management processes of SAA which have been dominated by whites. | am going to buy this
company and ne costs at all to SAA and then all of these companles, 60 companies, are going
to benefit to be the co-owners of this one shelf company, and therefore instead of SAA
entering afl 60 of them | think | even said, for the purposes of administration SAA and another
thing also Engen was supposed to enter into this thing with this 60 companies, so instead of
saying let all of them sign a contract with Engen, to say Engen is giving them 10%, let them
sign with onfy one company, 5o basically that is where | said, | said to Peter {unclear] out

service provider. Can you please coordinate these people and find out and do all of this legal
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requirements? Make sure that this company enters into a contract with Engen to seek this
10%, so bagically that is what happened and [unclear] .... said basically is one of the companies
in our database who was going to make sure that this one company that benefit all 60
companies, is [unclearl.... but it never happened and in fact it is something that | still believe

would have made a big difference in the supply of Jet Fuel, sa that other peaple can benefit.

IH: Did you ever think of how 60 different people would have, who would have done the

Wwork.

YK: Mo, we also did think about that. Sixty companies of course you buy Jet fuel and then
you supply to SAA, so those 60 companies will put together money for the purchase of Jet

fuel, so it is not one company that buys 10 litres and then the other one buy, because all of

them will be coming from Engen...

IH: Didn't you think it would be .... Why didn’t you just wait 1o say okay here are the exact 60
companies, we have spoken to them, they know what they are in for, they know what is

coming for them, and say now we can possibly consider doing the audit. Why would you do

it the other way around,

YK: No, the reason why i recommended that all 60 of them should beneflt because all sixty
of them have been knocking on our doors, so basically instead of benefitting one company it

would be better for 60 companies to benefit,
RH: Whe would have run that “Mother” company? (01:32:05)

YK: What the instructions that | gave to [Peter), | said | would get you to buy the shelf
company and then [Dr Dowa] had, okay I'li gat you to have this company and these companies
are saying that they will provide Jet Fuel in whatever way, but now there is no need for them
to go back to the ........ ...... , but they wili put in money, ail of them together, and then help
this company, and then Pieter is supposed to arrange a meeting with them and then that
initial meeting that Is where they will be discussing as to who are going to be the board

members of this company and then after that, then Pieter would go because now this

company would have got them a facilitator.
??. Was there a board resolution passed.

YK: There was a board resolution for the .... to the sixty companies.
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?7: But you did not know which sixty companies.
¥K: Sixty companies in the database.

77: Are all sixty companies in the database. So if angther small company wanted to

participate in this and they had not yet contacied you, how would they have participated.

YK: We also did consider that. Remember the one that we are talking about was the one for
ENGEN who had aiready committed and we were still doing the roadshows, so now we were
saying and that was also for only one year, s0 we would stilf be waiting for a representative
from SASOL, BP and so on, all the other .......... So the others would also be able to benefit like
the new entrants would be able to benefit from the one that you will be given by ...............

and they would also benefit for the new one the following year.

Tian: if you didn’t put out an advertisement saying “If you are a small company that is
interested in providing fuel to South African Alrways, please come and talk to us, so that we
can vet you, check whether you will be able to supply it, that you meet the credentials etc.,
then we will draw a list of 60 companies or nominate?? the companies and then at the end
we will put it through the procurement process and you will form part of a holding company

that will.....” There is nothing like that, that has happened.

YK: It happened subsequently on the advice of the ..., Procurement office after Dr Dowa had
left. So that the acting procurerment officer sald, let us put this thing on tender and make sure

thatall ...ccoceereeene participate. So basically that Is the process that is still ......
Tian: Dr Dowa was suspended for giving exactly that advice.

YK: | don’t remember him giving that advice. If he gave that advice then mayke we did not
hear him, because ... Dr Dowa. Dr Dowa will say he Is going to do that and then he ends
up not doing that, because basically he advised that, that is also what we did a5 we did when
we got the advice.

Tian: So, lets say if Dr Dowa provided that advice, the same as Lester Peters, the same advice,

would you accept then that that advice was actually correct.

YK: Yes, sure.
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Tian: So, him not signing that award would have actually been the correct step to have taken,
because if Lester Peter's advice subsequently was correct and Dr Dowa’s advice correct, he

was actually within his rights not to sign that letter of award.

YK: If he advised us, of course if he advised us and then we say he would have advised us, but

you will still say this is what is happening, then maybe it will be different because we will not
be taking that as insubordination.
Tlan: OK

Ruan van Wyk: While we are on this tapic, the chairperson ako wrote to Dr Dowa ... to
include these eleven other companles for the Jet fuel supply recommendation contract,

basically to get them also to participate In this sixty companles with the ohe company etc.,

am | correct?

YK: So, what is your question,

Ruan van Wyk: The chairperson sent another letter being heard, for she CC'd you on that as

well, proposing a few extra ..... that was not on the list that was part of the ......

YK: Part that was not on the database.

Ruan van Wyk: Yes.

YK: Remember that our database was open because we were still doing the roadshow.

Ruan van Wyk: No that is not a problem. There was a request to do insight on the pecple
there. 1just wantto find out, to confirm this first, you sald now-now as well it is the promotion
of poor Black people to participate and who can, that you would uplift them through: this
process participating in this, is that correct.

YK: No, you can’t say poor Black people because some of them are not poor at all. Of course
there are poor Black people but you cannot say the promotion of poor Black people. We are

premoting the Black Economic Empowerment.

Ruan van Wyk: That is what | wanted to find out, because | now investigated thase names,

some of these companies are quite big and they are successful companies.

YK Yes, but that is why | am not agreeing with you when you say "Poor Black People”
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Ruan van Wyk: So it was not an upliftment, it was actually to broaden “Black Participation”,

that is actually the correct term. OK

Wayne??: Do you know, those eleven names, where would you have gotten those names,

because they were externals.

YK: Of course, you do as the ambassadar?? of transformation. Of course people will cail in

saying we are not the ... of SAA, 50 | think she would have gat those things through

people phoning her, because of the drive.

Wayne??: Do you know if any of these companies, not only the eleven that she added, also
the other 50 that was ..... on the list previously, do you know if she, or you, or anybody on the
hoard, or anybody had a relation with any of these companies, do you know.

YK: No.

Wayne??: You don't know or you don’t know.

YK: Fdon’t know if there is anyone who has a relatlonship with those companies, but | do not:
have any relationshlp with those companies.

Wayne??: CK

Tian: Isiza Zulu, his name appears an the list, do you know who he is.
YK: No

Tlan: Any other guestions.

Ruan van Wyk??: Just one last one. Why did you propose the extansion tc ten years Instead

of three years for the ENGEN contract.

YK: .... Years. You see when assuming that these companies benefit or these companies are
Involved when they go to the bank obviously there is supposed to be some capitzl cutlay we
S < - and so on and 5o on. So we would have to go to the bank and borrow maoney

for the trucks or whatever is involved in dealing ...... of the Jet Fuel, Therefore 10 years was

... and would assist them to be funded by the company.

Ruan van Wyk: It was not a shart contract.
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YK: Yes, it wasn't having that they need to put in capital.

Ruan van Wyk??: If you can assist me. Do you know if this procurement policy, what does

the procurement policy say around long-term contracts with one supplier, more than 5 years.

YK: U don't know, but from the top of my head, | think If it is more than 5 years. No | don’t
want to guess, but my thinking at the time was that if it is more than 5 years we will need a

Treasury concept which basically | was thinking is something we need to do when this thing

falls into place.
Ruan van Wyk: So this thing is still ongoing at this stage.
Tian: The Swiss Port,

YK: The Swiss POrt.. .o

Tian: Let me Just ask semething about the Jet Fuel thing. Do you know of any conversations
that tock place behind the scenes that somebody would have personally benefitted from the
awarding, that actually had nothing to do with it. Somebody who would have personally
benefitted from the awarding of the Jet Fuel contract that should not have benefitted, for
instance let’s say, ! took out a tender, ............ . is my friend, he gets the tender and afterwards

he gives me money because | gave him the tender. Do you know of anything like that

happening.

YK: Na, but I am also thinking that considering that there wili be 60 companies and then of
course | understand the marging what ..., , 50 | really do not think that there could
be any benefit for anyone.

Ruari van Wyk: Last question on this company. What Is the company's name, | just don’t

know.
Tian: Quintasencial Businesses.

Ruan van Wyk: The shelf company. Do you know Quanto Teralexor Ntua, he is the current

director of that company.

YK: No

26

MEM-293



MEM-294

Ruan van Wyk: 50 nothing happened with the company. The shelf company was transferre,

she got the directorship and it is still just going.

YK: Yes.

3:56:34

27







MEM-296

Annexure “TM32”



Andrew A. Keartland

MEM-297

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Best Regards

Yakhe Kwinana

Tel 012 8067 0801
Fax 012 807 0432
Cell 079 950 0610

Emacil yakhe@kwinana.co.za

Yakhe Kwinana <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>
Monday, 07 September 2015 09:47

Ruth Kibuuka; Mabana Makhakhe

FW: Whistleblower

Physical Address Alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street, The

Willows Ext 82, Pretoria, 0184

From: Yakhe Kwinana

Sent: 07 September 2015 08:45 AM
To: yakhekwinana <yakhekwinana@gmail.com>; Yakhe Kwinana <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>

Subject: FW: Whistlebliower

Best Regards

Yakhe Kwinana
Managing Director

SR
a

Tel 012 807 0801
Fax 012 807 0633
Cell 079 950 0410

Email vakhe@kwinana.co.za

Kwinana & Associates

Incorporated

AUDIT - TAX - ADVISORY

Physical Address alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street, The Willows Ext 82, Pretoria, 0184

\N
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From: Yakhe Kwinana

Sent: 07 September 2015 07:47 AM
To: John Tambi <jphnt@nepad.ore>
Subject: FW: Whistleblower

fyi

Best Regards

Yakhe Kwinana

fel 012 807 080!

Fax 012 807 0433

Cell 079 950 0410

Emall vakhe@kwinana.co.zq

Physical Address Alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street, The
Willows Ext 82, Pretoriq, 0184

“rom: Yakhe Kwinana

aent; 04 September 2015 11:05 PM

To: 'Siyakhula Vilakazi' <SivakhulaVilakazi@flysaa.com>
Subject: Whistieblower

Dear Siya

Please find an anonymous Whistleblower that was walked in :-

1.

Sylvain Bosch often visits Mr Roger Vorster in Knysna, stays in his holiday home and flown in his private jet
and failed to disclose this improper gift and a personal benefit and relationship.

Sylvain Bosch failed to disclose his relationship with General Sales Agency (GSA) that is operating in West
Africa as this contract was awarded and affected local 24 Senegalese employees of SAA who are now
without jobs. Their jobs ended on 29 April 2015. He hired a GSA which replaced these employees. He is a
current shareholder of this GSA.

Sylvain doctored the nhumbers for Abu Dhabi to favour the opening of this route and sold SAA out. He
knowingly misrepresented the board by overestimating the figures without substantiation and ignored
network specialist advice.

Sylvain’s unprofessional conduct leave much to be desired. His jokes around and in the corridors of SAA are
that Dr John Tambi, a board member of SAA, wants the position of a CEQ and that he doctors the
specifications that this job requires that a person must be a Doctor and must be from Sierra Leonne. This
Joke is distasteful and brings the reputation of all board members and SAA into disrepute.

Sylvain and/or his wife and children are possible illegal immigrants.

Sylvain continuously threatens to resign if things are not happening according to his plans and wish. For
Instance, he failed to honour his word that he would resign if the Emirates deal is not signed. This has an
effect of distabilising his division and he shows lack of commitment to SAA in a very fragile competitive
market.,




7. Germany Catering company was pushed by Sylvain

8. Matters arising not dealt with at the last Board meeting regarding Sylvain

Best Regards

Yakhe Kwinana
Managing Director

-
» “a
S
AT~

Tel 012 807 080

Fax 012 807 0433

Cell 079 950 0510

Emait xggﬁ_e_m@_kwinanq.co.za

Physical Address Alent Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Street, The Wiliows Ext 82, Preforig, 0184
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Andrew A, Keartland

From: Andrew <anddrewkcommissions@flysaa.com>

Sent: Thursday, 23 May 2019 12:36

To: Andrew A, Keartland

Subject: FW: FW: Projected losses of South African Airways operations between Johannesburg
and Abu Dhabi "

Attachments: AUH numbers with 79.5% Load factor.eml; FW SA_AUH.XLSX.emI; Fw

SA_AUHXLSX.eml; AUH PFMA.emi; AUH notes.emi; AlJH analysis.eml; FW DXB & AUH
fares.eml; FW SAA Strategy white papers.eml; Confidential EY preliminary numbers.emi;
SAA AUH Responsel.docx

B e - G s o e ———— g 3 avmern s,

Raﬁlokgobedi@ﬂysaa.com>

From: "Matome Ramokgobedi" <Matome
Nate: 14/10/2015 at 12:42:42

To: "vincent@ssa.gov.za" <vincent@ssa.gov.za>,"funim@ssa.gov.za" <funim@ssa.gov.za>

Subject: FW: Projected losses of South African Airways operations between J ohannesburg and Abu Dhabi

Matome Ramokgobedi | Manager: Network Planning | Commercial
{

obi!e: 082 451 5841 1@3hone: +2711 678-1903 | ax: +2711 978 1725 I&Maii: MatomeRamokgobedi@flysaa.com

Room 114, Fioor 1, Block A, Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Matome Ramokgobedi
Sent: 07 October 2015 03:19 PM

To: 'dmcmaster@ENSafrica.com!'
Subject: FW: Projected losses of South African Airways operations between Johannesburg and Abu Dhabi

| £ A\
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Matome Ramokgobedi | Manager: Network Planning | Commercial

@obiie: 082 451 5841 | @vhone: +2711 978-1903 |@ax; +2711 978 1725 ;@-Mau: MatomeRamokgobedi@flysaa.com

Room 114, Floor 1, Block A, Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Matome Ramokgobedi

Sent: 16 July 2015 05:00 PM

To: Sylvain Bosc

Cc: Barry Parsons; Louis Du Plessis; Lusanda Jiya; Viwe Soga; Siyakhula Vilakazi

Subject: RE: Projected losses of South African Airways operations between Johannesburg and Abu Dhabi

Dear Sylvain,

Attached in a word document is the response to the letter from the ministry and answers to the first batch of
questions are on the board submission business case and section 54 submitted to National Treasury.

o First four pages of the document are answers Gaurav Agarwal provided on request from you.

o The rest is the e-mail trail regarding Abu Dhabi to that that Network Planning was never in support of
launching Abu Dhabi without something having to give.

[ have spoken to Lusanda regarding the monthly NT minutes and we could not find anything that clarify the
statement from the letter.

Allow me to kindly reiterate that Network Planning will net and is net taking responsibility of the launch and
projections provided on Abu Dhabi as stated in the letter from the Minister :

“Tam also concerned about the lack of capability of the Neiwork Plarning and Finance divisions of SAA and
their capacity to provide reliable projections. These divisions both need to be strengthened to ensure that the
information the executive, board and myself use to make decisions is robust.”

The statement is a misrepresentation of our capability and in fact career limiting, thus request that the
management of South African Airways clarify any misunderstanding with the ministry or allow the team in our
own professional capacity and or through the leadership/management to clarify with the National Treasury.

2
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We had similar enquiries/query from the office of the Chief Audit Officer (Siyakhula Vilakazi) where not in so
many words Network Planning was blamed for Abu Dhabi and that we are using outdated tools, lack capability
hence InterVista was brought in with their advanced tools (lift plan). We have however clarified that with the
Chief Audit Officer that in fact the Network planning demand analysis tool we are currently using is used by
STAR Alliance to assess the entire STAR network.

Background on Abu Dhabi

In 2013 the South African Airways resolved to source the services of the consulting firm Oliver Wyman to put
together a turnaround strategy which gave birth to now the “LTTS” (see Attached “SAA Strategy white

papers”, and
*  Among some of the routes they recommended was own metal operations to Abu Dhabi

» SAA then went ahead to sign a codeshare agreement with Etihad even when Network Planning and
Alliance (Gwen can attest to this) advised against the codeshare as there was ne value in partnering
with Etihad on a codeshare agreement only

o Though I was an Analyst then and not responsible for long-haul operations, I vividly remember
the frastration on both Gaurav and Greg (in the beginning) when they were forced to justify the
case, as | was asked occasionally to run QSI to evaluate viability and there was no case from
QSI perspective, though QS1 is not a gospel however even based on the knowledge of the
market it did not make sense

¢  Network Planning did advise the management then that Oliver Wyman overstated the case as they
went against a QSI rule of thumb by raking the rating to make the case viable

¢ Almost everyone within SAA’s commercial and operations since Keith Green’s departure has been to
Abu Dhabi several times but Network Planning, and additionally contrary to the normally process the
Abu Dhabi route launch project was given to Brad Edwards instead of Network Planning.

o Also, we were never and still are not invited to any discussions with Etihad or any potential
partners as per normal process or industry practice.

®  The previous Network Planning was involved in all SAA decision making and represented
SAA/Network in all internal/cxternal forums, however that seem not to be the case with the current

Manager
®  As the manager of Network Planning I questioned Alliance’s request regarding the “rationale” of

codesharing with Etihad on MAN and other European points and was severely reprimanded/nearly
suspended (therc was a formal complaint launched — the then HOD Martin Aeberli advised) for

“undermining the leadership/management”.
3 /-
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Late February 20135, South African Airways resolved to source the services of a consulting firm InterVista to
review the Network Plan

The document produced was commended by the National Treasury as “the best piece of work™ ever produced
by the state owned company

InterVista gave all credit deservingly so to the current “lean” (in staffing) Network Planning team, in fact they
commended our skills in front of the acting CEQ, especially in light of almost exact figures regarding Abu
Dhabi — with different models

o It is really unfortunate that all credit is given to InterVista and zero to the team that provided the
intellect

We continue to allow Etihad access to our European network by giving them codeshare peints and Network
Planming still not consulted when such call are made

{On numerous occasion we have written to HR and Line regarding the urgency of filling the vacant positions,
submitted the request form to the HOD Human resource during Martin Aeberli” time and after, it was turned
down even after Lourens Erasmus said it is ok to fill those vacancies, however positions has been created from
aon-existence and filled even as low as customer care agent within our business area, and Network Planning

turned down

o We however remain professional and continue to excel even under such unsustainable conditions
(Only two resources supported by two Graduates)

Kindly advice if all in order and or additional information is required in this regard.

Regards

Matome Ramokgobedi | Manager: Network Planning | Commaercial

@\ﬂobile: 082 451 5841 f@vhone: +271% 978-1803 | 13 Eay: +2711 978 1725 I@-Maa: MatomeRamokgobedi@flysaa.com

Room 114, Floor 1, Block A, Airways Park, OR Tambo international- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Sylvain Bosc
Sent: 13 July 2015 09:50 AM é
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To: Matome Ramokgobedi

Cc: Louis Du Plessis
Subject: FW: Projected losses of South African Airways operations between Johannesburg and Abu Dhabi

Importance: High

Matome, can you start working on the attached letter ASAP please ?

Thanks

Sylvain Bosc | Chief Commercial Officer | Commercial

hone: +2711-878-8635 / 1732 | @-Mail: SylvainBosc@flysaa.com

Room 323, Bleck A, Airways Park, OR Tambo Intemational- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Moire de Vos

Sent: 13 July 2015 (09:48 AM

To: Nico Bezuidenhout; Sylvain Bosc; Noelia De Abreu; Barry Parsons

Subject: FW: Projected losses of South African Airways operations between Johannesburg and Abu Dhabi

Importance: High

Moire de Vos | Executive Assistant | Acting CEQ office

g Mobile: 6833084065 | ¥ Phone: +2711978-2520 f = E-Mail: MoireDeVos@flysaa.com

Floor 6, Block A, Airways Park, OR Tambo Internaticnal- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Ministry Registry [mailto: Minreq.Reqgistry@treasury.gov.za)
Sent: 13 July 2015 09:38 AM

To: Chairperson L/ )
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Cc: Moire de Vos
Subject: Projected losses of South African Airways operations between Johannesburg and Abu Dhabi

Dear colleagues

Please find attached correspondence for Ms Myeni’s attention.

Kind regards

Joanne Scott

Ministry of Finance

40 Church Square, Oid Reserve Building, PRETORIA
rivate Bag X115, PRETCRIA, 0001

Tel: +27 12 315 5158

Fax: +27 12 323 3262

E-mail for official correspondence: minreq@treasury.gov.za

DISCLAIMER:
This email and its contents are subject to our email legal notice which can be viewed at

http://www.treasury.cov.za/Email Disclaimer.html

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
mformation to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach is
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at hitp://www .flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and_Disclaimers.action#Email
.Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer(@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent to you.

[
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state security

State Security Agency
REPUBLIC OF SCUTH AFRICA

Brivaie Bag X87, PRETORIA, 0001 Stats Securily Agency Headquarters, Musanda, Delmas Road, PRETORIA
Tel: {12} 427 4000, Fax: {012) 427 4651, wwiv.ssa.gov.za

SSDB/DGO1! (VA10)B/1/14/5 Office of the Director-General SSA

2. Octaber 2015

Acting Group CEO SAA

Thuti Mpshe

6™ Floor C Block

Jones Road, Airways Park

0.R. Tambo International Airport
Johannesburg

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION REGARDING INVESTIGATION CONDUCTED AT SAA
OFFICE [N DAKAR SENEGAL BY SAA INTERNAL SECURITY

1. The above matter bears reference

2 The South Africa Ambassador to Senegal Ambassador Shilubane wrote a report dated
12/04/2015 to State Security Agency (SSA) Director ~ General (DG} Ambassador Kudjoe
requesting SSA to conduct investigation into the Scuth African Airways (SAA) Dakar
Senegal office.

& The State Security Agency (S5A) instituted an investigation fo probe among other things
questionable transactions or actions by South African Airways (SAA) in Dakar Senegal
including the closure of SAA Station in Dakar Senegal and allegation of corruption or
fraud against officials of SAA

4, SSA is aware that SAA Intemal Security has conducted investigations regarding
complaint or allegations raised by employees of SAA Station in Dakar Senegal against
some members of SAA Management.

5. S5A is hereby requesting to have access to the foliowing information:

5.1 The report of investigators whe went to Dakar Senegal to investigate complaints of
employeas SAA Station in Dakar

5.2 The report of investigation conducted against Mr Sylvian Bosch by SAA Internal Security.

53 Current employment status of Mr Sylvian Bosch and Mr Claude Sabre former Country of
Senegal.

Sikhungn Seiokuphepna Kwemboso  Staatsvaligheidsagentskap LArkente yokhuselo kaRhulurmente  Zrondadzi la Vhutsirsledz) fa Mavhuso

Seies sa Tihireleisn sa Msndo Sethes sz Tehireletse sa Pust Xiyenga xa Vihlayiseki bya Miumo Baemed|.[ia Tshiratgiso Pus
oG yeraxuFhepha kwelizwe Lifhiko Lwezokuphopha Kwerws K/_
. ~

\.
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. CONFIDENTIAL
SSDB/DGO1/ (VA10)/6/1/14/5

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION REGARDING INVESTIGATION CONDUCTED AT SAA
OFFICE IN DAKAR SENEGAL

B, The information requested will assist SSA to finalise its investigation on these matters.
7. Your assistance will be highly appreciated in this regard.

Kk you for your attention.

M‘fgLODLO

For Director ~ General SSA

CONFIDENTIAL
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Atbachpept 2

Sauth African Alrvrays
Acling CRO
Privala Bag X13

OR Tambo Intermationa)
Postal Address

1627
Tek 2711975 2525
Ew bl

12 November 2095

MV Dlodlo

Office of the Director-General SSA
State Security Agency

State Security Agency Headquarters
Musanda

Delmas Road

PRETORIA

Your ref: SSDBE/DGOI(VAI0)/6/1/14/5
Qur ref: L Acton

Dear Sir/Madam

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION REGARDING INVESTIGATION CONDUCTED AT SAA OFFICE
IN DAKAR SENEGAL BY SAA INTERNAL SECURITY

1. Yourlefter of 22 Oclober 2015 has referenca.

2. We nole that the State Security Agency's investigation Is at the request of the South African
Ambassador to Senegal, and although we are willing lo co-operate with your investigation,
do question whether this was the appropriale prolocolichannel for any question regarding the
closure by SAA of its station in Dakar, Senegal?

3. With regard to the spacific information requested, we can at this stage advise as follows:

3.1 The investigation undertaken by our Group Security Services {GSS) was
comumissioned by the then acting CEO of SAA pursuant to questions and allegations of
maladministralion and financial misconduct by the Country Manager, Mr Claude Sabre,
raised by SAA staff at Dakar slation.

3.2 The items raised and addressed by the GSS investigation are all related to SAA
internal governance considerations and the repart has recommended a disciplinary
process be instituted against Mr Sabre.

3.3 Discussion between line management and SAA's Employse Relations Department are

currently taking place regarding the disciplinary process and we can accordingly not
camment further at this time.

Dirsclors

OC Myenl” {Chalipzsson), WH Mayer {Che! Pnancial Officer}, ¥ Hwinana®, JE Tambl*{5iena Leonaan), AD Dison® \\
“‘Nen-Executive Director { %\\

Acting Company Gasrainry - Mabizna Makhakhy

South Afrlean Alrways SOC Lid Reg. No, 1997/022444130

oy wla
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3.4 The GSS report does not deal with any investigations in respect of Mr Sylvain Bosc
and has therefore no bearing on his current employment status.

4. We lrust the above has clarified the cument position in respect of your enquiry.

5. Your investigator is welcome to contact muv Legal or Employee Relations Department(s)
{with whom he has already had contact) directly regarding item 5.1 of your mall,

Saouth African Airways

L
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Attochua it 4

Leon Acton
e —
From: Ursula Fikelepi
Sent: 24 November 2015 01:34 M
To: __leon-Actori; Fundiswa Goduka e
Subject: e Re: SSA Request for information T
mh‘-:?“‘fi':,tt
= Ni::"'m.
- Ny
Dear L2on TN
e ]
T,His matter has nothing to do with legal as we arenot in dispute with the SSA. Therefore, ER as the r}/cvant
department should address this. /
7 4
[ Kind regards, f’ff
g Ursula T
e
Sent from my Samsung device Mﬁwﬁﬁf
x"‘-« Wﬁﬂﬂi"w T V
o .:MManwpa
f -—--—— Qriginal message ——-—-=

From: Leon Acton <LeonActon@flysaa.com>

Date: 24/11/2015 10:30 (GMT+02:00)

To: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@ flysaa.com>, Yolanda Barron <YolandaBarron @flysaa.com>, "Lourens
Erasmus (Employee Relations)" <LourensE@flysaa.com>, Thembi Mngomezulu
<ThembiMngomezulu@flysaa.com>

Cc: Ursula Fikelepi <UrsulaFikelepi @flysaa.com>

Subject: RE: SSA Request for information

Dear Thuli
Shall do.
Kind regards Leon

Leon Acton | Legal Advisor | Legal Services

 Phone: +2711-978-3042 i % Fax: +2711-878-1807 | = E-Mait: LeonActon@flysaa.com
Room 108, Floor 1, Block E, Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Thuli Mpshe

Sent: 24 November 2015 10:26 AM

To: Leon Acton; Yolanda Barron; Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations); Thembi Mngomezulu
Subject: RE: SSA Request for information

Dear Leon
Please do from your side.
Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | GMHR
& Phone: +2711 978-2525 | = E-Mail; ThuliMpshe@flvsaa.com

6th Floor,C Bilock,Airways Park, OR Tambo International Aimont- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Leon Acton )
Sent: 24 November 2015 10:21 AM A/
1
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To: Thuii Mpshe; Yolanda Barran; Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations); Thembi Mngomezulu
Subject: RE: 55A Request for information

Hi Thuli
Shall | prepare a letter accordingly on your behalf or do you want it to go directly from ER?

Kind regards Leon

Leon Acton | Legal Advisor | Legal Services

e Phone: +2711-978-3042 | i Fax: +2711-978-1807 | = E-Mail: LeonActon@flysaa.com
Room 108, Floor 1, Block E, Airways Park, OR Tambo Inigrnational- Johanneshurg- SCUTH AFRICA

From: Thuli Mpshe

Sent: 24 November 2015 10:02 AM

To: Leon Acton; Yolanda Barron; Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations); Thembi Mngomezulu
Subject: RE: S5A Request for information

Dear Colleagues

On hind sight please request the SSA to follow due process and the request
should come from the Min of DIRCO to our Minister.

Regards

Thuli Mpshe | GMHR

b Phoene:; +2711 578-2525 | M E-Mail; ThuliMpshe @flysaa.com
6th Filoor,C Block,Ainways Park, OR Tambo international Airport- Johanneshurg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Leon Acton

Sent: 24 November 2015 09:48 AM

To: Yolanda Barron; Thuli Mpshe; Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations); Thembi Mngomezulu
Subject: RE: SSA Request for information

Fine from my side, let me know the proposed time and date.
Tks Lean

Leon Acton | Legal Advisor | Legal Sarvices

X Prone: +2711-978-3042 | ¥ Fax: +2711-878-1807 | B E-Mail: LeanActon @flysaa.com
Room 108, Foor 1, Block E, Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Yolanda Barron

Sent: 24 November 2015 09:45 AM

To: Thull Mpshe; Leon Acton; Lourens Erasmus {(Employee Relations); Thembl Mngomezulu
Subject: RE: S5A Request for information

Leon, Lourens can | set-up meeting with 55A7

Yolanda Barron | Executive Assistant { Human Rasources

4 Mabile: +27718506364 | & Phane: +2711-978-2408 | A4 E-Mail: YolandaBarron@flysaa.com

Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA L :ii \E\
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From; Thuli Mpshe

Sent: 23 November 2015 09:00 PM

To: Yolanda Barron; Leon Acton; Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations); Thembi Mngomezulu
Subject: RE: 55A Request for information

| suggest that Leon and Lourens meet with them.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEO

& Phone: +2711 978-2525 | B E-Mail: ThuliMpshe@flysag.com
6th Floor,C Block Airways Park, OR Tambo Intemational Alrport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Yolanda Barron

Sent: 23 November 2015 03:23 FM

To: Leon Acton; Thuli Mpshe; Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations); Thembi Mngomezulu
Subject: FW: S5A Request for Information

Importance: High

They are asking far a meeting.

Please advise.

Yolanda Barron | Executive Assistant | Human Rescurces

a Maobile: +27718506364 | & Phone: +2711-378-2408 | EgE—Mail: YolandaBarron@flysaa.com

Airways Park, OR Tambao Intemnational- Johannasburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Vincenf V. Mnguni [mailto:Vincent@ssa.gov.za]
Sent: 23 November 2015 02:25 PM

To: Yolanda Batron

Cc: Funi Madlala

Subject: FW: SSA Request for information
Impaortance: High

Good afternoon Yalanda

After perusal of the responding letter from the office of the acting Group CEO dated 12 November 2015 Ref: L Action,
we (State Security Agerncy) are not satisfied with the response from the AGCEQ.

Manager Security Investigations will like to meet with Acting Group CEQ and Head of Employee Relations to discuss
this matter with aim of reaching an amicable solution.

Please advise on convinient date and time far the proposed meeting.
Thanking you in advance and hoping to hear from you soon.
Regards

Vincent Mnguni

State Security Agency

Investigator (Foreign Mission Investigations)

Tel: 012 427 5687
Cell: 076 480 6150
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From: Yolanda Barron [YolandaBarron@flysaa.com]

Sent: 13 November 2015 08:39 AM

Tos Vincent V. Mnguni

Cc: Funi Madlala; Leon Acton; Thull Mpshe; Thembl Mngomezuiu; Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations)
Subject: RE; SSA Request for information

o

Dear Mr Mnguni
Attached piease find a response letter from the Acting CEQ. This is based on the attached letter dated 22 October

sent from your office, see attached.

Kind regards.

Yolanda Barron | Executive Assistant | Human Resources

|

8 Maobila: +27718506364 | & Phone; +2711-878-2408 | =" E-Mail: YolandaBarron@flysaa.com
Airways Park, OR Tambo Intermaticnal- Johannasburg- SOUTH AFRICA

-----Qriginal Message-----
From: Vincent V. Mnguni [mailto: Vincent@ssa.gov.za]

Sent: 28 October 2015 02:01 PM
To: volandavarron @ flysaa.com<mailto: volandavarron @ flysaa.com>

Subject: SSA Request for information

Good afternoon Yolanda

As per our telephonic discussion.

Regards

Vincent Mnguni

State Security Agency

Investigator (Foreign Mission Investigations)

Tel: 012 427 5687
Cell: 076 480 6150

[cid:115102909333605003 @za-mta-3.za.mimecast,Jan]
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sent 1o you.

! "'."-Best Airline in Africa

| For the 13th consecutive year

'Sou"r-’ A‘chg-m A TRWAYS Bésfﬁi_rii_he’-_ Staff.Serv'ice in A”fr'iéa
R e For the 4th time - i
ASTARALLIANGEMEMBER S | =0

Dire—ct |

DC Myeni* {(Chalrperson), WH Meyer (Chief Financial Officer), Y Kwinana*, JE Tambi*(Sierra Leoneany, A
*Non-Executive Direclor

Company Secrelary -~ Ruth Kibuuka
South African Airways SOC Lid Reg. Mo, 1987/022444/30
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Oisdaimer. Tha information in this a-meil 5 confidanval and i 12gally privieged. H is ntendedt sololy for the addrassee. Il this 6-makk s not
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you,

| Best Alrhne in Africa.
i Forthe 13th consecutive },rear

' Best Airline Staff Service in Africa
'Fn;;he Athtime .

Q" ireclors
DC Myeni* (Chairperson), YwH Weyer (Thief Financial CHicen), ¥ Kwinana*, JE Tambi*{Sierra Leonean), AD Dixon®

*Mon-Executive Diractor
Company Secretary ~ Ruih Kibuuka

South Affican Alrways S0OC Lid Reg. Mo. 1997/022444/30
A STAR ALLIANC

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for
the addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient
hereof, While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data
transmitted electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does
not reach its intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the
standard SAA E-mail Disclaimer which may be found at

http:/fwww.flysaa.com/za/en/policies and Disclaimers.action#Email .Should you not have access to the
internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer @flysaa.com and a copy will be sent to you.
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Yolanda Barron <YolandaBarron@flysaa.com>

Sent: Wednesday, 09 December 2015 15:41

To: Vincent V. Mnguni (Vincent@ssa.gov.za)

Cc: Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations); Leon Acton; Thuli Mpshe; Thembi Mngomezulu
Subject: FW: SSA Request for information

Attachments: Letter to Mr Mnguni.pdf

Importance: High

Dear Mr Mnguni,

Apologies for the late response. Please find attached letter for your attention.
Kind regards.
Yolanda Barron | Executive Assistant | Human Resources

Mobile: +27718506364 | > Phone: +2711-978-2408 | 'ﬁ'E-Maif: YolandaBarron@flysaa.com
Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Vincent V. Mnguni [mailto:Vincent@ssa.gov.za]
Sent: 23 November 2015 02:25 PM

To: Yolanda Barron

Cc: Funi Madlala

Subject: FW: SSA Request for information
Importance: High

Good afternoon Yolanda

After perusal of the responding letter from the office of the acting Group CEO dated 12 November 2015 Ref: L Action, we
(State Security Agency) are not satisfied with the response from the AGCEQ.
Manager Security Investigations will like to meet with Acting Group CEO and Head of Employee Relations to discuss this

matter with aim of reaching an amicable solution.
Please advise on convinient date and time for the proposed meeting.
Thanking you in advance and hoping to hear from you soon.

Regards

Vincent Mnguni

State Security Agency

Investigator (Foreign Mission Investigations)
Tel: 012 427 5687

Cell: 076 480 6150

From: Yolanda Barron [YolandaBarron@flysaa.com]
Sent: 13 November 2015 08:39 AM
To: Vincent V. Mnguni
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Cc: Funi Madlala; Leon Acton; Thuli Mpshe; Thembi Mngomezulu; Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations)
Subject: RE: SSA Request for information

\_ FEEL TIME FLY BY.

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS Y0 KEEP YOU

NCE MEMBER 7/ TOP CLASS IN-

Dear Mr Mnguni
Attached please find a response letter from the Acting CEO. This is based on the attached letter dated 22 October sent

from vour office, see attached.

1d regards.

Yolanda Barron | Executive Assistant | Human Resources

) ;
- Mobile: +27718506364 | ~ Phone: +2711-978-2408 | ™ E-Mail: YolandaBarron@flysaa.com
Airways Park, OR Tambo Intemational- Johannesburg- SCUTH AFRICA

----- Original Message-----

From: Vincent V. Mnguni [mailto: Vincent@ssa.gov.za]

Sent: 28 October 2015 02:01 PM

To: volandavarron(@flysaa.com<mailto:yolandavarron@flysaa.com>
Subject: SSA Request for information

Good afternoon Yolanda
, per our telephonic discussion.

Regards

Vincent Mnguni

State Security Agency

Investigator (Foreign Mission Investigations)
Tel: 012 427 5687

Cell: 076 480 6150

[cid:115102909333605003@za-mta-3.za.mimecast.lan]
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sent 10 you

Best Airline in Africa
For the 13th consecutive year

R

Best Airline Staff Service in A
For the 4th time

SOUTH AFRICAN A IRWAYS

-3 w F
P

Directors
DC Myeni* (Chairpersc /VH Meyer (Chief Financial Officer Kwinana*, JE Tamb

‘Non-Executive [
~ompany Secretary — Ruth Kibuuka

South Affican Alrways SOC Lid reqg. No. 1987/022444
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South African Ainvays
Human Resources

& finor

Jones Road

Alrways Park

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS Pivvale Bag X1
OR Tambo Infernational Alport
Republic of Soulh Alrica

Tel: 27 11 57825725
Email GMUMRRAss

State Security Agency

State Security Agency Headquarters
Musanda

Deimas Road

Pretoria

BY EMAIL: Vincent@ssa.gov.za

8 December 2015
Your ref: SSDB/DGO1/(VAIDNGI114/5

Dear Wir Mnguni

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION REGARDING INVESTIGATION CONDUCTED AT SAA OFFICE
IN DAKAR SENEGAL BY SAA INTERNAL SECURITY

1. Thank you for your email of 23 November 2015 the contents of which are notad.

2. For purposes of observing due process, we respectiully request your requirement be
channelied through the Minister responsible for the Dapartment of international Relations
and Co-operation (DIRCO) to the Minister responsible for South African Always for
appropriate atlention.

3. We thank you for your understanding in this regard.

Cirecary
DC Myenl® (Chairperson), ¥ Kwinana*, JE Tambi” [Sierra Leonean)

“Mon-Executive Qirecior
Company Sacrelary - Ruth Kibuuda

South Alitcan Alrways S0C Lid Reg. No. 1897/022444/30
A BTAR ALLIANCE MEMBER v'2~
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Annexure “TM38”
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Dudu M <dudumyeni@telkomsa.net>

Sent: Sunday, 17 January 2016 11:50

To: Nick Linnell

Cc: Yakhe Kwinana; Yakhe Kwinana2; John Tambi; Musa Zwane; Ruth Kibuuka
Subject: Fwd: SSA Request for information

Attachments: ATTO0001.htm; ATT00002.htm; ATT00003.htm; ATTO0004.htm; ATTO0005.htm;

ATT00006.htm; Letter to DG SSA.pdf; ATTO0007.htm; Scanned from a Xerox
Multifunction Device.pdf; ATTO0008.htm

Please this report must be provided to the board urgently
Ms Dudu Myeni

Phone :035 789 5499
Email : dudumveni/@telkomsa.net

sgin forwarded message:

From: Funi Madlala <FuniM@ssa.gov.za>

Date: 14 January 2016 at 2:41:49 PM SAST

To: "dudumyeni(@telkomsa.net" <dudumyeni@telkomsa.net>
Ce: "Vincent V. Mnguni” <Vincent@ssa.gov.za>

Subject: FW: SSA Request for information

Dear Chairperson

Please find the communication from the office of the Acting GCEQ. We have not received a response up
to now.

Regards

Funokwakhe Madlala

From: Vincent V. Mnguni
Sent: 23 November 2015 02:25 PM

To: yolandabarron@flysaa.com
Cc¢: Funi Madlala
Subject: FW: SSA Request for information

Importance: High

Good afterncon Yolanda

After perusal of the responding letter from the office of the acting Group CEO dated 12 November 2015
Ref: L Action, we (State Security Agency) are not satisfied with the response from the AGCEO.

Manager Security Investigations will like to meet with Acting Group CEO and Head of Employee Relations
to discuss this matter with aim of reaching an amicable solution.

Please advise on convinient date and time for the proposed meeting.

Thanking you in advance and hoping to hear from you soon.

1 {

Regards
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Vincent Mnguni

State Security Agency

Investigator (Foreign Mission Investigations)
Tel: 012 427 5687

Celi: 076 480 6150

From: Yolanda Barron [YolandaBarron@flysaa.com]
Sent: 13 November 2015 08:39 AM

To: Vincent V. Mnhguni
Cc: Funi Madlala; Leon Acton; Thuli Mpshe; Thembi Mngomezulu; Lourens Erasmus (Empioyee

Relations)
Subject: RE: SSA Request for information

LN
)
MOVIES, TV SHOWS, GAMES AND MUSIC

SNV iAYs T0 KEEP YOU GLUED TO YDUR SEAT
A STAR ALLIAMCE MEMBE= % TOP CLASS IN-FLIGHT ENTERTAINMENT.
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>

Sent: Wednesday, 21 October 2015 16:22

To: GROUP EXCO COMMITTEE; SAAManCo; Kim Thipe

Cc: Yolanda Barron; Lourens Erasmus (Employee Relations)
Subject: FW. Letter re vetting of Executives and support staff
Attachments: doc00014120151021144423.pdf

Dear Colleagues

Please note the trailing email from the Chair.

| request that each GM and subsidary CEO compiles the list and forward to Ruth for consolidation. Not clear of support
staff and | suggest that it should be all levels 2 managers.

Thanks and regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEO

v none: +2711 978-2525 | E-Mail: ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com 6th Floor,C Block,Airways Park, OR Tambo Internaticnal
Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

----- Original Message-----

From: Dudu Myeni [mailto:dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org.za)
Sent: 21 October 2015 03:03 PM

To: Thuli Mpshe; Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: Letter re vetting of Executives and support staff

Ms Dudu Myeni

Executive Chairperson

Phone: 035 789 5499

Email: dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org.za

vegin forwarded message:

>
>

T e m——————— e ——

> TASKalfa 266c¢i

> [00:17:¢8:08:95:0a]

S e

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended salely for the addressee.,
If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included information to anyone and
request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged information transmitted herewith may
result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof. While ail reasonable steps have been taken to
ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for
whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents
thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail Disclaimer which may be found at

1
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http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and_Disclaimers.action#Email .Should you not have access to the internet, send
an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be sent to you.
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3. g South African Airways

™ h Chairperson

> 60 Floor
F ! r ﬁk A Bleok, Ainways Park
R =5 R Tamboe intemationa! Airport
f

FRIECAN AIRWAYS Private Bag X 13
Kempton Park
1697

Tel: 27 119782520
Emeail: Chaimperson@flysaa.com

The Acting CEO

South African Airways SOC
OR Tambo Airport
‘Gauteng |

Dear Acting CEO

RE: SECUQIW’ VETTING OF THE SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
AND SUPPORT STAFF

I would like to inform you that | am in receipt of correspondence from the Honourable Minister of
State Security dated 13" October 2015, addressed to the Minister of Finance and copied to me as
Chairperson of SAA.

The above mentioned letter relates to the security vetting of SAA’s executive management and
support staff. Subsequent to the receipt of the letter, | wrote to the Minister of Finance assuring Rim
that SAA will cooperate with the 8SA and will provide whatever assistance is required.

In view of the above, you are hereby requested to submit to or work with the Company Secretary to
compile a 4,53’{ of all the SAA Executives and its subsidiaries for submission to the Department. In
the letier it states that we should also submit the list of Support Staff.

Please ensure that all executives and support staff are informed about this process as per the
directive from the Department.

“{_gurs‘ sincerely,

/ 5
o m
| LR S P i
;o s &1,___/';: R
\.w'/ ‘m___.r—ryj
[N

Ms. Duduzile Myeni
SAA Board of Directors Chairperson

paw: (2013 [J 0[5

3

Directors

DC Myen™ {Chalmperson], WH Mever (Chief Financial Officer), Y Kwinanay, JE Tambi* {Swerra Leonean), AD Dixan”

*Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary - Ruth Kibuuka [
South Affican Airways SOC Lid Reg. No. 1987/022444/30

ASTAR ALLIANGE MEMBER 7
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[ WIGISTER OF FIRANCE |
.;»Q._, i

MINISTER
STATE SECURITY
REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA
ool 5 T B R S P s T e e e
e

MIN/M1/4/502

Mr NM Nene

MHonourable Minister of Finance
Ministry of Finance

40 Church Square

Pretoria

0002

Copy: The Chaiperson of the Board  (SAA)

Dear Collsague,

RE: SECURITY VETTING OF THE SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS EXECUTIVE
MANAGENENT AND SUPPORT STAFF,

1. The above matter refers.

2. nhasmmamuwauambnofmesme&cumywmatmuanumm
need for vetting and re-vetting of the State Owned Enterprises, given sensitive

information received on an ongoing basis.

SOC's as govemnment entities have a huge impact on the economy of the
country and the_rafomeﬁmlylmwtfmmeSSAmmwmw
veiting as per Section 1 of the National Strategic Intelligence Act (Aci 39 of
1994) as amended by Act 67 of 2002 states that: “The Nationg! infeligence
Agency (NIA) has the mandate to vet all other National, Provingial and Local

govemment department, parastatals and thelr service providers”, rl
CONFIDENTIAL ﬁ |

’ .!

i
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CONFIDENTIAL

RE: SECURITY VETTING OF THE SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS EXECUTIVE
MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT STAFF

4.  This should be undersiood from the background of chaflenges affecting most of
the State Owned Companies,

8. TheChakpemn(SM)MﬂbemquiredtomvideallﬂnfaﬂEmﬁve
Management and Support Staff

7. Anupdste will be provided on completion.

8. Yours Sincerely,

MINISTER OF STATE SECURITY

DATE: ;ﬂyd’]afﬂ/&"’

SECRET ‘{
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Thuli Mpshe | R .
From: Thuli Mpshe
Sent: 09 November 2015 12:37 pM
To: dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org.za
Ce: Ruth Kibuuka
Subject: FW: Request to Action
Attachments: Jacob Zuma Foundation-20151104141153 pdf
Dear Chair
investigation report and the legal opinion so that we can

I have tried to call you as promised, Please forward me the

start the process of formulating the charges..
| also need to know who the witnesses are and thair availabilit

on the availability of the witnesses,
Thanks.

y. The timing of the disciplinary hearing is depanded

i'huli Mpshe | Acting Group CEO

& Phone: +2711 978-2625 | B vai; ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com
| Alrpont- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

-

Fromy: Thuii Mpshe

Sent: 04 November 2015 09:26 PM

To: dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org.za
Le: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: FW: Request to Action

Dear Chair
I acknowledge receipt of the attached correspondence. The contents there of

are noted and will be actioned. Apologies that | have not signed the attached
returned to you by16hrs today 4™ November 2015 as indicated in the attached,

\ 1is will be done tomorrow morning. | had meetings external to Airways Park
and have just started catching up with my emails. | will action as requested.

Please provide me all the relevant information including the investigation
report and recommendations to enable me to start with the first step of this
disciplinary hearing being that of formulation of charges. We have 3 pane] of
law firms that assist us with presiding officers in specific cases where we
request such; I will follow the due process of appointing such. Will provide an
outline of key actions/activities with the relevant time lines to this effect.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEQ

B phone: +2711 782525 | B g pa: oshe@flysaa.com
orl- Jehannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA [

8th Floor,C Block Airways Park, OR Tambo Intemational Airp

i



From: Dudu Myeni [mallbo:dudum@jawbzumafaundat;on.arg.za]

Sent: D4 Novemnber 2015 02:50 PM
To: Thull Mpshe

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: Request to Action

Dear Acting CEO
Kindly receive attached.
Regards

Ms Dudu Myeni
Executive Chairperson
Phone: 035 739 5499

MEM-338
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From: Thuli Mpshe

Sent: 05 Novemnber 2015 09:32 AM

To: dudum@jacobzumafoundation.org za

Cc Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: FW: Request to Action

Attachments: Jacob Zuma Foundation-20151104141153.pdf: Disciplinary Hearing of CFO -
20151105.pdf

Dear Chair

Please find the signed letter as per trailing email.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe [ Acting Group CEO

& Phone: +2711 878-2525 | E-Maii:_ThuEng" she@flysaa.com

6th Floor,C Block,Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA,

From: Dudu Myeni [maﬂto:dudum@jacobzumafcundaﬁon.org.m}
Sent: 04 Novemnber 2015 02:50 PM

To: Thull Mpshe

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: Request to Action

Dear Acting CEQ
Kindly receive attached.

;;gard.«:

Ms Dudu Myeni
Executive Chairperson

Phons: 035 789 5499

Emeail: dudum @facobzumatoundation.ovg.za
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P AT PR R T2 e

South Aldean Almayy
. cumm'
| £ Tty QR Tambo infermationa) Alport
SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS Puivals Bag X 13
Kespton Pask
1627
Tek T 1978258
Emal: Chatperscn@ipsas.com
The Acting CEO
South African Ainvays S0C
Aftetion: Ms T. Mpshe
&” Floor A Block
Alrways Park
OR Tambo Airport
1627
Per email
Dear Acting CEO

DISCIPLINARY HEARING FOR THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

As you are awere, on the 03 July 2015 Mr, Wolf Meyer, when present ot a scheduled mesting with me
and Dr. Tambi had in his possession a recording davice which was used to record part of the mesting.
The circumstsnces of this was objected to by myself and the racording device which was undiscinsed

was removed from the mesting,

Foilowing the incident, we obitsined 2 lagal opinion in order fo sstablish the propriety of this action,
The legal opinion from ENS advises that the matter is of such & nature that the Board could consider
a disciplinary hearing to estabiish the facts and provide a finding on the matter,

This matter has been put before the Bosrd, and the broad agreement is that an internal discipfinary
hearing be held fo determine whether Mr Meyer's actions constitute wrongdoing, and if so what the

appropriafe sanction would be,

As the Chief Financhal Officer: reporis to you, | hereby request thal you institute the internai
disciplinary hearing a8 soon as possibla in line with the company's policies and procedures.

it is further proposed that you engage ENS or any other sultable firm of altorneys to implement the
hearing in an appropriate and fair manner, The Board will be avaitable to support and provide you with

any other assistance that may be required.

- Tﬂa}lm

D Wyon {Crakperson), WH Mayer (Glis! Financie) Oficer), Y Kudnana®, JE Tandy® {Sierm Leanngn), A

“NonExerutive Dimclar
Company Secstary - Ruh Kibauis L -
South Acan Altways 50G Lid Reg. No. 158IM22444120 -
ASTAR ALUANCE MEMBER 7 -

=
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| request that you advise me by 18:00 today 04 November 2015; on the process yeu are going to
follow to implement this request, as well as the expected fimelines,

it you are In agreement with the request outlined above, plesse sign In the #pace provided below and
return the signed letter to me,

Youss sinceraly,
Mg, Du!ﬂﬂ Myeﬂi

SAA Board of Directors Chairperson
Pate: _ =y C_}[}fb v

I, Tiliiinshe, the undersigned, accept to Garry out the request abova,

ETRIT

/
L

T e e A YT e et e m

s SRR T T S e,
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MEM-343

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

between:

THE DEPARTWENT OF TRADE AND INDUSTRY
(hersinafter referred to as “the d4),
herein representec by Mzwandlle Maslha in his capacity as the Deputy-Minister of the o,
& being duly authorised thereto

B

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS (SOC) LTD
(Hereinatter referred to as “SAX"),
herein represented by Dudu Myeni in her capacity as the Chairperson of the SAA Board, she
being duly authorised thereto.
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RECORDAL

1.1 the dtiis responsible for facilitating and prometing economic access to economic
opportunities in South Africa.

1.2 the di's key strategic objective is to facilitate broad-based and equitable
economic participation of small and medium-sized business through targeted
interventions and to provide grant funding to small businesses,

1.3  the dti aims fo expand opportunities of South African businesses to participate in
world markets.

1.4 5AA spands in access of R0 billion annually on the procurement of goods and
services, Ii's 'vigion it 1o advance businesses owned by historicaily
disadvantaged persons 1o become viable and sustainable players in the zvistion
sector.

1.5 8SAA'sintends to drive its transformation objectives by leveraging its procursment
spend. To this end, SAA has developed iis Transformation Palicy which is aimag

at the advanzemint of black economic smpowerment.

1.6 8AA aime io promote and support the development of Its supplisey through
cooperation betwesn the dti and SAA.

In furtherance of the above goals, the dtl and SAA seek to regulate their respective
roles and obligations as follows:

DEFINITIONS

2.1 In this MoU, unless the context otherwise indicates, the terms below shall bear
the meaning as follows:

211 “4he dti" means the Depariment of Trade and Industry, a national
department listed in Schedule 1 of the Public Service Act 103 of 1994;

212 “confidential information” means information that a party has been
identified in writing as confidential or Is of such naiure that it should be

considered as confidential.

£
¢

e



MEM-345

{i.e. the eiusdem generis rule) shail not apply, and whenever the word “including®
is used followed by specific examples, such examples shall not be interpreted so
&g to limit the meaning of any word or term to the same genus or class as the

exampies given,

3.8 The rule of construction that an agreement shall be interpreted against the party
responsibie for drafting of preparation of the agresment shafi not apply.

3.10 The expiration or termination of thig f#oU shall not affect the provisions whick
expressly provide to operate after any such expiration or termiriation, or which of
nscessity, must continue to have sffect after such expiration or termination.

DURATION

This MoU ehall come into force upon diate of last signature hereof and shall bs in effect
for an indefiniic pericd. It will however, be subject to pededic assessment by both
parties and termiqiable in accordance with provisions of clause 7 balow,

OBLIGATIONS OF THME PARTIES
5.1 The dil’s obligations are:

5.1.1  to provide training to SAA staff.

5.1.2  assist in the provision of funding to businesses owned by historically
disadvantaged persons.

5.1.3 facliitate discussions with the Airporls Company of South Africa (Pty)
Lid conceming licences to new participants.

5.1.4 assist SAA in its ofiorts to form partnerships with other govemment
departments and state entities in relation to the implementation of

transformation initiatives.

52 SAA’s obligations are:

5.2.1 todevelop a roll-out plan for selected goods and services.




o
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72 Wiihin seven (7) days of termination, each party shall retumn all properly and
materials in its possession that I confidential information of the oiher party,
Where such information is stored In electronic format, the party shall prgsure that
all such material is deleted within seven (7) days of termination.

GOOD FAITH

The parties undertake to perform their obligations in terms of this Mol lawfully and
with due diligence, efficiency and in good faith.

DISFUTES RESCLUTION

91 Ehould a disputs arise beiween the parties pursuant to this MoU, the paries
shall use thelr bast effoits to resolve the matter through their designated

representatives raferred to in clause 15.1 below.

8.2 I such disputs cannot be rasolvad in terms of Clause 9.1, the dispute shall bg
referred to the Minlster of Public Enterprises and the Minister of Trade ang
Industry or their duly authorised delegates for final resolution,

9.3 This clauro is severable from the remainder of this Mol aad shall survive the
tarmination of this MoU.

CONRDENTIAITY UNDERTAKING.

10.1 The parties acknowledge that In the performance of this MoU, either narty may
make available and/or disclose to the other, Information that is confidential,

10.2 Each parly agrees to maintain such information as confidential, except to the
extent the disciosure of such information Is required by applicable law, or is
required to be disclosed by order of the court, or to the extent such information is

in the public domain.

10.3 Either party may disclose confidential information to their advisors, subject to the
prior confidential undertaking in writing of the advisor,

10.4 No party shall issue any media statement regarding the subject matter of this
- MOU except with the prior written consent of the other party. This provision shall
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Contact persorvs:  Mashudu Mannds / Janeez Hafizulla

Emaik: MMannds @thedti.gov.za /
JHafizulla@thedti.gov.za
Address: 77 Meintjies Streat, Sunnyside, Pretoria, 0001

Postal Address:  Private Bag X84, Pretoria, 0001
Telephone No: (012) 012394 3588 /012 394 1627

16.1.2 SAA-

Contact person/s:
Email:

Address:

Postal Adress:
Telephone:

E‘ 15.2 Any notice given by a parly io the other will be deemed to be received by the
addressee:

1521 on the dele on which & is delivered to the addressee's address if
deliversd by hand: or

18.2.2 on the saventh (7th) day aitar the dete of posting if sent by pre-paid
regisiared past io the addressod’s addiess; or

15.2.3 if on the date of transmission I it is transmitted by elecironic mail.

15.3 A party may chenge it's domicilium address at any time by notite in wiiting to the
other pearly, such a change of address being effective seven (7) days after

(‘—{‘ } receipt by the addressee of such written notice.

The parties hereby, having read the contents which are acknowiedged and understood,
accept the terms by signing this MoU.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW)] .DCM
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Attention: Ms. Yakhe Khinana u

Non-Exec‘:utwe I?lrector Bidvest
South African Airways

Jones Road THE BIDVEST GROUP LIMITED
] Bidvest House
Airways Park 18 Crescent Drive
Johannesburg Melrose Arch
Meirose
Johannesburg, 2196
30 June 2015 South Africa
‘ Telephone: +27 () 11 772 8709
Dear Ms. Khinana Faesimile; +27 (@) 11 772 8970

Eraail; infol@bidvesi.co.za
www.bidvest.com

RE: SAA TRANFORMATION REQUIREMENT

The meeting held on 23 June 2015 with the BidAir Services management team refers.

SAA’s request for the transfer of 30% of BidAir Service’s SAA grooming, toilet and water contract fo
a SAA nominated black owned small business is noted. As indicated in your meeting with Kobus,
Blake and Bushy, BidAir Services is a 100% owned subsidiary of Bidvest Ltd. A decision that has a
change of ownership and shareholding implication can therefore only be made by Bidvest Lid. We
request that the proposed changes required by SAA be formalised and communicated in writing for

due considsration.

We further request your advice and guidance on how the following requirements will be addressed

in order to facilitate the proposed changes:

1. SAA Transformation Requirement
BidAir Services is currently 63.42% black owned (economic interest) and 24.85% black women

owned. This request for the transfer of 30% of the contract to a black owned small business
would result in the grooming, toilet and water contract being run a company with.an effective
74.39% black sharehoiding. Does this imply that SAA’s supplier black ownership requirement is
now closer to 75%7? Is the transfer of 30% of the contract 1o a SAA nominated black owned

small business a pre-requisite for the upcoming tender?

2. Company Structure
BidAir Services provides grooming, toilet and water services to other carriers outside of SAA,

therefore, in order to implement the proposed request, a new company (NewCo) would have to
be formed to tender for the contract. Kindly advise who SAA intends on nominating for the 30%

[// Registration number: 1946/021180/06

shareholding.
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3. License Requirements
NewCo would be the main bidder for the tender, however, NewCo does not have a license.

Whilst the one shareholder (BidAir Services) would be a license holder, this license is not
transferable to the new bidder, NewCo. How would this license requirement for NewCo be

resolvad?

4. Capex Requirements
The current SAA license requirements state that new equipment must be utilised by company's

awarded contracts for the first time. This implies that BidAir Service’s current equipment cannot
be transferred to NewCo. We anticipate the capex costs for the new contract to be
approximately R20million. Kindly advise whether the nominated small business will be in a

position to fund this capital requirement.

5. Tenhure
The norm for the depreciation of the capex required for a greoming, toilet and water contract is

10years. The contract term as we understand will be 3years. This short period will not enable
depreciation of the capex over the required longer term and will therefore impact NewCo’s ability
to submit a cost effective pricing model for the tender. Could you advise how this challenge

could possibly be addressed?

We will await SAA's formal written request and responses to some of the practical considerations
that would need to addressed in order to effect the proposed transformation reguirement.

| trust you will find the above in order.

Regardsm *"’""; /( /é/ : 4{

L— _ 7
MPUMI MADISA LINDSAY RALPIHS A
EXECUTIVE DIREGTOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

BIDVEST GROUP LTD BIDVEST SOUTH AFRICA
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Annexure “TM44”
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L theasi Al

Deparimeal
Trafe pod audlty N
REPUBLIC OF BOGTH AFRIGA

Private Bag X84, PRETORIA 0001, the dti Campiss; 77 Meififiies Street Sunnyside. 6002, Tel: (312) 394 0000
thedti Lustamer Contact Centre ivcal 0BG 843 384 Infermatinnal; + 7712 304 9500 www thadligov.za

OFFICE OF THE B-BBEE COMMISSIONER

Enquines: M Ramare
Email. MRamare@ihedli gov za
Telephone: +27 (127 394 1535

Ms Thuli Mpshe

Acting Chief Executive Officer
South African Airways

Private Bag X13

Kempton Park

1627

Dear Ms. Mpshe

CONFIRMATION OF THE ALLEGED DEMAND BY SAA FOR BIDVEST TO
GIVE 30% OF THE CONTRACT TO A NOMINATED COMPANY

1. We refer lo the meeting held between. ourselves yesterday on "
September 2015 at your offices in Airways Park, Kempton Park, at 14:00;

2. Atthis meeting, we reguested SAA to confirm if the allegations in the media

relating to the demand on Bidvest to give 30% of the contract with SAA to-a
cnmpény to be nominated by SAA are valid. This follows a referral by the
Minister of Trade and mdu-st'ry:of a concemn received from the Member of
Parliament, Adv. Anton Alberts, of the Fresdom Front:Plus, to the Acting B-
BBEE Commissioner in a letter dated 01 September 2015,
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During the meeting SAA confirmed thal there is a process to implement a
30% set aside to advance transformation, and that this is a process driven
through the Board of SAA, Dr Simba Dahwa confirmed having participated
in meetings where suppliers-were engaged on this 30% set aside. Bidvest
was confirmed as one of the suppliers that were engaged by SAA in this
regard. SAA confirmed that it is in the process of finalizing its transformation
targets. for adoption by the board, which will include the 30% set aside
initiative.

It was' confirmed -durinzg__ the meeting that SAA falls: within' the  integrated
Transport ‘Sector Code, and will be required to implement the B-BBEE
targets as set in the Sector Code, which is in the process of being afigned to
the generic codes. 8AA confirmed being part of this Sector Code process
and that it has provided its input through AASA, the industry association.

As an organ of state and public entity, SAA is required to apply any relevant
code: of good practice issued in terms of the B-BBEE Act, which refers to
the:generic codes issued by the Minister or the sector code as -approved
and gazette by the Minister. Any deviation or exemption on the part of SAA
must be facilitated through the Sector Code that SAA falls within, «or through
section 9(6) of the B-BBEE Act as amended, if particular objectively
verifiable facts: or circumstances applicable necessitate the exemption or

deviation.
Therefore, as SAA confirmed that the deviation o exemption referred to in

paragraph 5 above has not been. granted in line with: the framework of the
B-BBEE Act, as amended, SAA is-not in a position to legalfy proceed with

ﬂ’ B \)
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the implementation of the 30% set aside in the manner praposed until the
requirements articulated in Paragraph 5 above have been complied with.

in view of the above, we conclude that eveni though SAA's conduct may
have been in good faith, itis not aligned to-the B-BBEE Act and the Codes,
and therefore SAA should not proceed to implement the 30% set aside until
approval is applied for and obtained from the competent authority, in this
case the Minister of Trade and Industry. SAA confirmed that this. 30%
initiative does not conform‘to the B-BBEE Acl and Codes and undertook o
follow proper process and obtain applicable authorisation before

implementing the initiative.

We confirm that SAA further agreed that it would provide us. with a written
correspondence that outlines the 30% set aside initiative that was iniliated
and communicated with suppliers for our record, which will enable us to
properly close the matter on our part. Although SAA stated that it couldn’t
commit {o.a timeling in this meeting, as it needed to. first engage with: the
Board of SAA pror to submilling the written correspondence, we will
appreciate if this written correspondence can be provided to us by Friday,
18 September 2015,

Having said thé above, we request SAA to send us written confirmation that
it will not proceed to implement the 30% set aside intiative until it has
applied for-and received the authorization to do so0.in terms of the B-BBEE
Act, as amended, as agreed in the meeting: We will appreciate if the Acting
CEQ or SAA duly authorized person can send us this writfen confismiatian
by Friday, 11 September 2015.

LT TR 7 L BT Y P

L
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10. We also confirm our emphasis that transparency and. consistency in the
application of the B-BBEE Act and Godes is critical in ensuring that the
objectives of the: B-BBEE Act are effectively achieved. Therefore, ‘it is
important that: all entities required to apply the B-BBEE Act and the Codes
do so within the frameworl set by the 8-BBEE Act, as amended.

11, Wetrust that you will find the above in order and we ook forward to working
with your entity by advising on matters: of compliance to advance economic
transformation within the spirit of the B-BBEE Act; as amended.

12. We thank you for your cooperation.
Yours sincerely,

MS ZODWA NTULI
ACTING B-BBEE COMMISIONER
DIIO7IS
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Madidfmain Ramare - FW: SAA Letler on Bidvest Watier

Fram: Thali Mpstic ﬁ?}ulm’lpshc@ﬂys&z com>

Ta: “retalighhediiany m* -(mmbﬁ‘;hadn gov.rny

Bate: 20150811 242 P

Subject: FW SAA Laster-on Bidvest Matter

Cor *Fhpwaneithedii gava’ <FNotGmeditiedt govsa>, Misiabi Dilwa <Masiml,,

Ang:hmeu{sn éﬂwmmﬂuﬁ»{}@»l& 138655 §.pdf
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ANGING THE WORLD
: AT A TIME

GMMITTED Tt A BRIGHY FUTURE
FOR AFRICA, AND THE WERLE

Paar Commissioney

th;s matt&z‘

The board has requested that your office contact them directly in this regard.

The email address s chairperson@flysea.com
Thanicyou and kind regards,

Thiil: Mpsha} aonng Group CEC

o &J&W"ﬁ&w

From: Francirg Nowang 1f
Sents 10 September 2005 01128 A

To! Yolanda Bangn

Subject; P SAA Lier on Bigvest Matter

Thais o e 08 gsagprity s meimturg otz |

Dear-Acting CEO.

Kindly find atchied Hgned lester that - Captored the whéeting that wis Hehd on $ih September 3615
Hiipe you will find this in order

"King regards;

Erangina Notane

\\
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Advande Team Assisiant:CERD DDG's Offics.
39466

Fax 013 3942966

Exiail FNofound@ihedti gov za

™

Diclinmer- Theanformason in this e-annit is.confidentisl and is tegally prisileged’ it is intended solely for theaddresser. [F1his e-mail is notmended
For you, you eannur copy, distribute or disclase the inghuded inforation t shyons and request that the madt be deleted. Any disclosune of canfideniic)
a7 privileged information tranismisted hereswith may ewult in legal progeedings being nstinuted ‘agininst the recipient horeot White alf reasonahie steps-
have been tdker to ensure the seewmey asd miegrity of 2l dota wansnritied eleetronically, SAA does not accept liability o the date, for whatzver
fegson, is cotripl ordoes nod reachats inepded déstination, Please wiole thirt this e-rmail and the contents thereof is subject fo the standard SAA E-mait
Disclaitier which siuny be found af ey wid o (Tsgsaem?s 0 ol it shaiin’s ssond Larnat! - Should you not have aevess 1 (b intermer,.
sond ol 10 e e od et ) s o )

w2kl & copy m’l} seni o yﬁ);.l.

£t B 0 TR
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OFFICE OF THE B-BBEE COMMISSIONER

#Ms Dudu Myeni
Chairperson of the Board
South Africaf Alrways
Private Bag X13

Kempton Park

1827

Dear Ms. Myeni

LCONFIRMATION OF THE ALLEGED DEMAND BY SAA FOR BIDVEST TO
GIVE 30% OF THE CONTRACT TO A NOMINATED COMPANY

1. We refer to the meeting held betwesen us and the SAA Acting CED, Ms
Thuli Mpshe on 8" Septeémber 2015 at your offices in Airways Park,

the discussions which was sent on 8™ September 2015 as aitached hereto

foir ease of reference:

2 On Friday. 11 September 2018, we received an email correspondence from
Ms Thuli Mpshe- indicating that the Board of SAA. fequests that we
correspond directly with the Board.

~
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We reiterate ai the contenis of the letter sent to SAA on §F Septémber
2015, and-advise that the 30% seél aside inifiative that 8AA is in the process
af implementing, 10 the extent that it was explainad to-us in the mesting with
SAA 15 10 our view not in line with the 8-BBEE Actand the Oodes of Good

Practice.

As anprgan of state and public entity “SAA is required o apply any relevant
the geres: codos Bsued by e Mia ster of Trade and widushiy ar the sector
corle as approved and gazetie by the Minister of Trade and Industry. Any
organ of state of public éntity may deviate or be exempted through section
9(6) of the B-BBEE Act, as amended. if particular objectively verifiable facts
or gircumistances applicable necessitate the exemption or deviation,

SAA confirmed that the deviation or exemption referred to in paragraph 4
above has not been granted in line with the framework of the B-BBEE Act,
as amended, and therefore, it is our view that SAA is not in a position to
legally proceed with the implementation of the 30% set aside in the manner

proposed

We have also consulted with the Department of Trade and dustry and

they have confirmed that based on their record. SAA has not been granted

a deviation or an sxemplion rom the Codes of Good Practice within the
framework of the B-BBEE Act. as amended.

It is our view therefore that even though SAA'S conduct may bé in good

faith, it is not aligned to the B-BBEE Act and the Codes of Good Practice,
anid therefore SAA should not procesad to implement the 30% set aside untl

-

\
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approval 18 apphed for and oblamed flon the cempetent auwthonty m this
vase the Minister of Trade and Industry

& Hﬁvir‘gg saud the sbove wé reqlest SAA 0 send us witten confirmation that
towilt nat procesd to mplement the 30% se!l asie mitative untl ¢ has
applied for and receved the authotizaton to do s i terms of the B.-BBEE
Actoas amended. as agreso m the meelng We will appreciate f the persen
duly authorized persen at SAA can send us this written confirmation by
Friday, 18 September 2015

8. Shouid SAA be of the view that its 30% sel aside inibative 1s in ihe with the
B-BBEE Act, as amended, and the Codes of Good Practice. we will
appreciate. if SAA gan provide this view i writing to us, with reasons. to
enable us to determine a way forward on this matter,

10, We remain available to clarfy or provide advice on 1his matter to the board
of SAA, where necessary.

We trust that you will find the above in order,

WIS ZODWA NTULI
ACTING B-BBEE COMMISIONER

IR IO G fisy
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.5+ national treasury

Mmast
Netional Treasury
REPUBLID OF SOUTH AFRIDA.

Private Bay X115, Pretoris, aﬂm
Eoquiries: Vikar Noabe Tol: {012) 115 8070 Faxi{012) 326 5445 Emaih yulen ndsbadftiias

Reb 31112081

Me T. Mpshe
Acting Chiel Executive Officer

‘South Afdcdn Alrways
Private Bag X13

KEMPTON PARK

1827

Dear Ms Mpshg

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS NOMINATED BLACK S&A&.& BUSINESS FOR GROOMING,
TOWET AND WATER SERVICE CONTRACT

! refer to your lelter dated 23 September 2015.

Your [etter indicates that currently sl procurement decisions are made within the framework of the
Supply Chals Management Policy and that the Board resolved 1o sel asitie 30% of kay procurement

transactions for black owned businesses.

Decisions that are: taken by the Beard to encourage transformation in procurement are
gommendable, however, the SAA Board must not-operate outside the procurement legal framework,

The resolution of the Board o set aside the 30% in is corrent form is net supportad by any
procurement legal framework and must be stopped with immediate effact,

You are kindly requested to advise the Board not to take procurement decisions that brings the
name of SAA and National Tréasury into disrepule,

Kindly update me on the development around the 30% set sside of key procuremearnt irassactions.

CHilt .—.a PROCUREMENT wmm

DATE: Z/%y! 1 x
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“Aational treasury

e "‘""“m et
i National Treasury
REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

Privale Bag X118, Prelotia. 0001 ) B . .
Enqulries: Vikani Ndaba Tet: {012) 315 070 Fax: {012) 326 8445 Emallr vukani ndabad

Ref; 431121511
Ms. D Myeni

Chairperson of the Board

South Afritan Airways
Private Bag X13
KEMPTON PARK
1627

Dear Ms Myeni

SAA PROMOTION OF GOVERNMENT DEVELOPMENTAL PROGRAMME FOR SMALL MEDIUM

ENTERPRISES (SMMEs) AND CO-OPERATIVES

1 sefer to youir fefter datsd 7 October 2015,

Your letter requests that | consider in good faith and at an intergovernmental relations leval your
submissions, suggestions and requests made regarding transformation policy of setting aside 30%-
and where appropriate, provide' guidance on the implemeniation thereof, '

There is no dispute that section 217(2)-of the Constitition (Act 108 of 1866) allows an organ of state
or inslitution to implement a procurement. policy providing for eategories -of preference in the
allocation of conlracts; and the protection or advancement of persons; or categories of persons,
disadvantaged by unfair discrimination. However, there must be a national legisiation that prestribes
& framework within such a policy may be implemented, which currently does not exist,

1 Is true that the Nine-point Plan announced during the February 2015 State of the Nation Address
{SONA) was endorsed by Cabingt Lekgotia, It is-also true that the Economic Cluster is tasked with
monitoring the implementation of the plan to uniock the potential of SMME, co-operatives as well as

‘township-and rural enterprises. However, the pre raquisite is the issuing of practice notes to all
spheras of government to implement the set asides programme by National Treasury, which have

not been issued;

“Taking into accourit the sbove, the resolutioh of the Board to set aside the 30% is not supported by’
any national legislation or instructions issued by National Treasury. '

T trust that you wili find the above in order and lopking forward to further engagement with the Board,

Kind fegards.

KENNETH BROWN
CHIEF PROCUREMENT OFFICER
DATE: Gire Iyn ff“;

=\
N
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>

Sent: Thursday, 24 September 2015 12:15

To: Duduzile Myeni; Dudu Myeni; Yakhe Kwinana2; Yakhe Kwinana; Tony Dixon
{tonydixon@1telkomsa.net) (tonydixon@telkomsa.nat); John Tambi (johnt@nepad.org);
Wolf Meyer

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: FW: Letter to SAA

Attachments: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Device (17).pdf; Response letter to Mr Brown from
NT.PDF

Dear Board Members

Please note the attached response to National Treasury in respect of
Transformation policy and procurement.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEQ

¥ phone: +2711 978-2525 | 2] E-Mail: ThuliMpshe @flysaa.com
6th Floor,C Block, Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johanneshburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Thuli Mpshe

Sent: 23 September 2015 04:56 PM

To: 'vukani.ndaba@treasury.gov.za'

Cc: Masimba Dahwa; Ravesh Rajlal (Ravesh.Rajlal@treasury.gov.za); Yolanda Barron; Lusanda Jiya

Subject: FW: Letter to SAA

Dear Vukani

Please find our response as per the trailing email.

Sincere apologies for not responding yesterday as requested.
Please feel free to contact us in this regard.

Regards.

Thuli Mpshe | Acting Group CEQ

2 phone: +2711 978-2525 | o E-Mail: ThuliMpshe @flysaa.com
Bth Floor,C Block, Airways Park, OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Vukani Ndaba [mailto:Vukani.Ndaba@treasury.gov.za]
Sent: 17 September 2015 02:21 PM
To: Thuli Mpshe
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Cc: Masimba Dahwa; yolandabaron@flysaa.com; Ravesh Rajlal
Subject: Letter to SAA

Dear Ms Mpshe,
Please find attached letter for your attention.
Kindly acknowledge receipt.

Kind Regards
Vukani

DISCILLAIMER:
This email and its contents are subject to our email legal notice which can be viewed at

http://www .treasury.gov.za/Email Disclaimer html
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. national treasury

Bepartment:
Mational Treasury
REPUELIC OF SQUTH AFRICA

Private Bag X115, Pretoria, 0001
Enguiries: Vukani Ndaba Tel: (012) 315 5070 Fax: {(12) 326 5445 Email: yukani ndaba@

Ref: 4311721511

iis T Mpshe

Acting Chief Executive Officer
South African Airways

Privaie Bag X13

KEMPTON PARK

1627

Dear Ms Mpshe

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS NOMINATED BLACK SMALL BUSINESS FOR GROOMING,
TOILET AND WATER SERVICE CONTRACT

The Office of the Chief Procurement Officer noted that South African Airways requested Bidvest to
allocate 30% of the above contract to a nominated black empowered company.

It is not clear which policy is being used by the South African Airways to implement its transformation
strategy and whether the policy is in-line with the existing procurement legistation.

You are kindly requested to submit the transformation policy and further explain what measures ara
put in place to ensure that a nominated black empowerment company is selected in a fair and

transparent manner.

You are kindly requested to submit the required document and explanation by not later than 22
September 2015,

Do not hesitate contact my office if you need further clarification.

N

KENNETH BROWN
CHIEF PROCUREMENT OFFICER

DATE: 9 {gﬁzogg
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South African Alrvays
Acting CEO Difiee

&% Fioor

A Block, Arways Park

QR Tambo luternationsl Airpard

SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS Private Bag X 13

Kempion Park
1827

Tel: 27 11 978-2525
Emal. CEC@fysaacam

23 September 2015

ffir. K Brown

Chief Procurement Officer
Department of National Treasury
Pretoria

E-mail: Vukanl.ndaba@ireasury.gov.za

RE: South African Aimaxé nominated black smail business for grooming, toilet and water

service contract.

Cear Mr Brown,

We refer to your letter dated 17 September 2015 to me. Please accept my humble apologies for the
delay in & response o you,

SAA has a draft Transformation Policy that is not yet being implemented as it has o be signed off
by the relevant governance siructures at SAA. Currently all procurement decisions are made within
the framework of the Supply Chain Management Policy (SCM Policy} this policy ensures a fair and
competitive procurement.

The basis for the proposed 30% set aside in order io expedite transformation and contribute
towards BEE growth, is a decision in which the Board resolved io set aside 30% of key procurement
transactions for black owned South African businesses focusing on women, the youth and military
veterans.

As a state owned company, SAA Is mindful and seeks to ensure full compliance with applicable
taws and within its regulatory framework.

Birgeiors
DC Myars” (Che'rparson), WH Mayer {Ctial Financial Officer), ¥ Kwinana®. J& Tambi® (S erra Leansan), AD Dizon®

*Non-Exacutive Direcior )
Company Sesntary - Ruth Kibuuke

Sauth Affican Alrways S50 Ltd Reg. No. 1937102244430
A4 STAR ALLIANCE MEMBER V¥ \
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SAA aiso seeks to contribute towards opening up areas of the South African economy where there
is limited participation by black South Africans.

outh African Airways
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Annexure “TM49”
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Francina Notcane <FNotoane@beecommission.gov.za>

Sent: Tuesday, 12 March 2019 15:25

To: Andrew A. Keartland

Subject: Response to State Capture

Attachments: Annexure A.pdf; Annexure B.pdf; Annexure C.pdf; Annexure D.pdf; Annexure E.pdf;

Annexure F.pdf; Letter to Mr. Keartland.pdf

Good day

Please find the response letter and annexures as per request.

On behalf B-BBEE Commissioner Ms. Z. Ntuli

Kind Regards,

Ms. Francinag Notoane

Office of The Commissioner
Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment {B-BBEE) Commission

Telephone: +27 {12) 648 0922
Email: Fuotoene@beecommission.gov.za
Website: vasww. bbibeecommission.co.za

420 Witch-Hazel Avenue, Eco Glades 2, Block €, Eco Park, Centurion, 0144
ag X84, Pretoria, OO

Disclaipmer. "The yﬁrmﬁmmm this communication iz confidential and may be legally privifeged It is imtendied solel: for the use of the indl

wheRr it i aiddiensed and oohers auhorised i recsive i ﬁ’,w ire swrﬁﬁ@ m@dmwwfm are seredy ng%a’&%arm} disclasire, copying, dist
action in reliance of the coments of thiz z@%rm i srictly prohibites -am?m Be wnlanjil, mﬁmﬁw&d‘&&mﬁ:&cmm EWW Com
fiakle for the proper. mngam wrepisisission ofw infermation corsained in iic communication nor avy deka; i veseips "
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the dn Campus, 77 Maintjies Street, Sunnyside, Pretoria, Gauteng, 0002 J‘k

Yol +27 (12) 384 1535 Fax +27(12) 394 2535 F Y
frvate Bag X84 Pretoriz, Gauteng, D00 ) .
COMMISSION

a thomliariof Lo do proug

Emnail: RamareM@heecommission. gov.za

Mr Andrew Keartland

Commission of inquiry into State Capture
Hillside House, 39 Flocr

17 Empire Road

Parktown.

2193

Per Email: AndrewK@commissionsc.0rq.2a

Dear. Mr Keairtland,

REQUEST FOR CORRESPONDENCE RELATING TO THE COMPLAINT REGARDING THE
ALLEGED DEMAND BY SAA FOR BIDVEST TO GIVE 30% OF THE CONTRACT TO A
NOMINATED COMPANY

1. Your email of today, 12 Maich 2019; requesting corespondence relating to the above-
captioned matter as contained, inthe letter dated 13 September 2015 addressed to Ms Dudu
Myeni of South African Airways, refers.

2, By way of background, please be advised that the intervention of the B-BBEE Commission in
the matter was triggered by a complaint submitted by Adv. Anton Alberts; -a Member of
Parliament representing Freedom Front Plus, which was raferred to the B-BBEE Commission by
‘the Minister of Trade and Industry, Dr Rob Davies, on 1 September 2615.

3. Atthe time of receiving the complaint; the B-BBEE Commission did not have a format process
of handling complaints, although the powers to receive and investigate complaints ‘are
articulated in section 13F (1) {g)-(d) of the B-BBEE Act, as amended. The regulations that
prescribe: the process for complaints were subsequently issued by the Minister of Trade and
industry on & June 2016.

‘Page-t of 3
Commission of inqulry into State Capture 12 March 2019 \k
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Upon receipt of the complaint, we: requested a meeting with South African Airways, which
meeting request was accepted and scheduled for 8 September 2015.. The discussions of the
meeting were captured by way of summary in our letter dated © September 2015 addressed to
the Acting Chief Executive Officer, Ms Thuli Mpshe (sse Annexure A).

An emait was received from Acting Chief Executive Officer, Ms Thuli Mpshe, on 11 September
2015 stating that the Board of South African Airways reguested that the B-BBEE Commission
communicates directly with it through the email address chairperson@flysaa.comr (see
Annexure B). We thus issued a letter dated 13 September 2015 addressed fo Ms Dudu Myeni,
the Chairperson of the Board, attaching the letter dated 9 September 2018, to which we did not
receive a written response from the Board {see Annextire C).

After several follow-ups on a written response .to the B-BBEE Commission's letter of
8 September 2015 and 13 September 2015, we received an email on 8 October 2015 from the
Chairperson.of the Audit and Risk Commitiee of South African Airways, Ms Yakhe Kwinana,
attaching & letter dated 7 October 2015 addressed to National Treasury, which letter was not
relevant to-us (see Annexure D). On the same day we responded by emall and stated that we.
still required a response to our lefters for-our assessment to enable us o close on the matter,
‘which response was never received (see Annexure E).

Despite' not- receiving a written response as requested from South African Airways, we
conducted -our assessment on the matter based on the information cbtained through the
meeting we held with South African Airways on 8 September 2015 and the information available
publicty regarding the alleged demand by South African Airways for Bidvest to award 30% of the
contract to-a nominated company. and concluded that such a practice, although initiated: and
discussed within-South African Airways, had not yet beer implemented.

"Having considered the matter, albieit the lack of written confimation from South African-Airways
that it will not implement the initiative without obtaining applicable authorisation, we were of the
view that the matter can be closed, subject to monitering to detect if South African Airways
would implement the initiative without the relevant approvals; in which case the relevant
provisions of the B-BBEE Act would be invoked to investigate the matter.

Page2 of 3

‘Commission of Inguiry into State Capture 12 March 2019




MEM-376

8. We thereafter issued a letter to the complainant, Adv. Anton Alberis, dated 3 February 2016
reg_ardihgthet outcome of our assessment (see Annexure F). To date we have not received any
complaint from any person or a follow-ip from Adv. Anton Alberts indicating that such an
alleged initiative by South African Airways had been or is curently being implemented contrary
1o the requirements of the B-BBEE Act.

10. It must be noted also that whereas we did not receive any written response from the Board of
South Africa Airways regarding our letters an the matter, the Acting Chief Executive Officer, Ms
Thuli Mpshe:and her team, provided the B-BBEE Commission with full cooperation in sharing
.infcr;rﬁnaﬁ:o_n. about-the proposed initiative, its purpose and the status of it at the time of our
engagement, which enabléd us-to arrive at-a conclusion.

11.  Having said the above, we trust that this information, including the attached correspondence,
will assist your office to understand the context and the extent of our.intervention in respact of
this matter. We will be available for a meeting to discuss the -matter further, if necessary, to
assist the Commission of Inquiry into State Capture 1o achieve its mandate.

12. Please do not hesitate to contact us for any quefies in this regard by ‘emaill at
mramare@beecommission.gov.za or by telephone at +27 12640 0918.

Yours sinceraly

1/ 4
ar )
4 - =T e

Ms Zodwa Ntuli
Commissioner
Ien} ! March 2019

Page 3 of 3.
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Francina Notoane <FNotoane@beecommission.gov.za>
Sent: Monday, 25 March 2019 12:11

To: Andrew A. Keartland

Cc: Nhlakanipho N. Kunene

Subject: Re: FW: Response to State Capture

Dear Mr Keartland,

Thank you for the question,

Kindly note that section 10 of the B-BBEE Act makes it mandatory for organs of state to apply the applicable Codes of
Good Practice, and proceeding without a deviation of exemption granted by the Minister of Trade and Industry would be
non-compliance. However, the B-BBEE Act does not create a specific offence in respect of this conduct.

However, the B-BBEE Commission has powers to make recommendations in regard to a matter that it has investigated,
which could include cancellation of the contracts awarded and disciplinary steps against officials involved in the process
«0 award such a contract contrary to the B-BBEE Act.

It is our view that failing to adhere to section 10 of the B-BBEE Act does undermine or frustrate the achievement of the
objectives of the B-BBEE Act, which is an offence under section 130 (1) (d) of the B-BBEE Act, but we have not pursued
this argument yet. The B-BBEE Commission will be seeking a legal opinion on the matter relating to organs of state that do
not adhere to section 10 of the B-BBEE Act for guidance.

We have also since written to Portfolio Committee on Trade and Industry to hold the organs of state accountable, and
further engaged the Auditor General, who will be including B-BBEE as part of the audit scope. These are additional efforts
to strengthen accountability and compliance by the state and its entities.

We trust you wili find the above in order.

On behalf of B-BBEE Commissioner: Ms. Z Ntuli

Kind Regards,



MEM-378

Ms. Francing Notoane

Cffice of The Commissioner
Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment {B-BBEE} Commission

Telephone: +27 (12) 648 0922
Ermail: FMotoane @bescommission.gov.za
Wehsite: wwaw. bbbescommission.co.za

420 Witch-Huazel Avenue, Eco Glodes 2, Block €, Eca Park, Centurion, 0144
Private Bog X84, Fretorjg, 0001

fidentiol and may b lagall; privilesed i m&dw’g&k{}ﬁy 1he wse of the ind

oi&ws auihorised 10 ?wwg it .fi}m: e mﬁe mmwwxwym dereby notified ther ony disclosure, copying dist

axction wmequ coments of thix infermation is sirietly prohibived avd may be wnidwful Tmﬂm@%&d%&fmmfm&rmm
m&ﬁr mproper complete ransmission of the information consained in this conamuRicetion nor ae delay inits receipt

>>> "Andrew A. Keartland" <AndrewK@commissionsc.org.za> 3/20/2019 9:16 AM >>>
Morning Ms Notoane

Please see below email, where the question was raised regarding whether SAA continued, and awarded any contract (i
see Ms Ntuli’s letter at paragraph 8 makes reference), is this a contravention of the Act? If so, please elaborate.

Regards

Andrew Keartland

COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO STATE CAPTURE | Hillside House, 3 Floor, 17 Empire Road, Parktown, Johannesburg,
2193|Gauteng| South Africa |

mobile: +27 {0) 60 769 8048 |email: andrewk@ commissionsc,org.za | www.sastatecapture.org.za

From: Andrew A. Keartland

Sent: Thursday, 14 March 2019 07:40

To: 'Francina Notoane' <FNotoane@beecommission.gov.za>
Subject: RE: Response to State Capture

Good morning Ms Notcane

Many thanks to the Commissioner, and yourself for the information received, it is very heipfui.

| wiil pass it on to the team and the evidence leader for Aviation, and if there are any queries, | will revert back te you.

At this stage, | do not see a need for any meeting.
2 [/
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May | ask one question: if SAA continued, and awarded any contract, by tender or by deviated contract extension {as
was alluded to in this complaint), outside of the B-BBEE Act, would it be a contravention of the Act that could be
prosecuted? And would it be SAA as being accountable, or is the acceptance by the Servie provider also liable to
prosecution (if there is any allowance for prosecution at all}?

Many thanks for your assistance. | await your advice on the above question.

Regards

Andrew Keartland

COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO STATE CAPTURE |Hillside House, 3™ Floor, 17 Empire Road, Parktown, Johannesburg,
2193 [Gauteng| South Africa |

mobile: +27 (0) 60 769 9048 |email: andrewk@commissionsc.org.za | www.sastatecapture.org.za

from: Francina Notoane <FNotoane @ beecommission.gov.za>
Sent: Tuesday, 12 March 2019 15:25

To: Andrew A, Keartland <Andrewk @commissionsc.org.za>
Subject: Response to State Capture

Good day

Please find the response letter and annexures as per request.

On behalf B-BBEE Commissioner Ms, Z. Ntuli

Kind Regards,
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Ms. Francina Notoane

Office of The Commissioner
Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment {B-BBEE) Commission

Telephone: +27 {12} 849 0222
Email: FNotoans @bescornmission.gov.za
Website: wawww bbbeecommission.co.za

420 Witch-Hazel Avenue, Foo Glades 2, Block €, Foo Pork, Centurion, 1144
Private Bag X84, Pretoria, 0001

‘-Mmr “Thw information containgd in this communicaiion is confidential and may be legally privilaged & & intended solely for the use of the ind
whom it is addressed and others authorised 1o receive it Jf you tre nat the intended recipient vou are hereby notified that any disclosure, cogying, dist
action in relianee of the comenis of this iformation is strictly prohibiied gnd may be pnlowful The &rmmmk .&momw Ewgrmmﬁm
liable for the proper, complete transimission of the I!ﬁwmﬁm comtained in this communicaiion ror ey delay in i receipt”
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r¢

the dti " A

o epadment

Trode drd industry
REFUIBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

Private Bag X84, PRETORIA. 0001, the dti Camptes, 77 Meiies Streel Sunnysige; 6602, Tel: {0121 394 5600
the dtf Customar Comact Centie iocal; 0361 843 384 Internabonal 427 12 304 9500, www thed govzag

OFFICE OF THE B-BBEE COMMISSIONER

 Engiines. M-Ramere
Emait. MRamarag@inediigoy za

Talaphone: +37 1123 394 1538

Ms Thuli Mpshe

Acting Chief Executive Officer
South African Ainvays

Private Bag X13

Kempton Park

1627

Dear Ms. Mpshe

CONFIRMATION OF THE ALLEGED DEMAND BY SAA FOR BIDVEST TO
GIVE 30% OF THE CONTRACT TO A NOMINATED COMPANY

1. We refer to the meeting held between ourselves yesterday on 8"
Septeriber 2015 at your offices in Airways Park, Kempton Park, at 14:00,

2. At this meeting, we requested SAA to confirm if the allegations in the media
relating to the demand on:Bidvest to give 30% of the contract with SAA to a
company to be nominated by SAA are valid. This fallows a referral by the
Minister of Trade and Industry of a concern received from the Member .of
Parliamenit, Adv. Anton Alberts, of the Freedom. Front Plus, to the Acting B-
BBEE Commissioner in a.letter dated 01 September 2015.

£ 4



Madidinnto Ramare - FW: SAA Létter an Bidveést Mutter

From: Thpti Mpshe <ThaliMpshe@ fiysan comi>

Tay “aialig@hedit gov za° Qmul;'ii:medi; HEovny

Date: 201509711 282 PML.

Sabjees: FWESAA Letteron Bitvest Matter

e *Fiotoanie@thedt gov.2n” “FNotoandithedli gov e, Masisty Didiwa <Masimb. .

Attachmenty: docomnenr2il5. U?-I&lf!ﬁﬁiﬁ _bpdf
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= CHANGING THE WORLD
N> ONE FLIGHT AT A TIME

COMMITYED T4 & BRIGHT FUTURE
FOR AFRICA AND THE WORLD

Devaf Commissionar

Trust you are well: Fallowing cuf meeting and the attached corréspondence we have:zoprised the ooErd on

this matter.

The board has requested that your office comtact them directly in this regard.

Thie-email address'is chairperson @flysaa.com

Thank you and kind regards,

Tk Mpshd | Adurig Gridul 0RO

“From: Francina Notoans [Ehp it
Sant: 10 Spptember 2015 01:28 BN

Fo: Yolands. Barran

Sulject: Fiwd: SAA Latter on Bidvest Matter

Rusya Lgia Facory

Prear Avsag CEO,
Kty fifd-attachied signed Jétir thay captured 1he meviing that was beld on $il Sepidniber 2015
Hoipe you will find this in srder

Kind regueds,

Franging. Notoane
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Advance Team AssisantCORD DDG's Office
394 1466

bax 0F2 394 2466

Faail Fiotoanedthedti govza

Tt o tobomloy BV S < L E il

Disclaymer: Fhe fnfermation in thisemait is confidentisl and is legally privitoged. 1t is huemdod solely for the addressee. 18 this e-mail {5 not intended
for you, you casiio copy, distribute or disciose the inghided fnformation 1o dnyame and request that the madf be deloted. Any disclosure of confidentint
ot privileged infermation transmitied hereswith may. aobukt in legal proveedings being insiitured agiins the recipient hereaf While all reasonnbie stops
Have been taken 10.ensure the accuracy and miegrity of all dafe ransmitied clectronically, SAA does nat accept Hubility 4f e data, for whatever.
Fript 1 il wiil the sontants theredf is subject @ the standard SAA E-niail
Teaenonilusad | Shoutd vine nothave sieess 10 the thiemet,.

Teason, iscorapl oF doss ot reach iy inténdet destivation. Plegse ot that this e
Disclaimer whichnmy be Sund af daig 2 wviab fnds smmie e ped fofiag_jid TH
sendan el 1o regaad selinerd 108 v and-a copy. witl be seal 1o you:
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OFFICE OF THE B-BEEE COMMISSIONER

Foviorlon 20T T 2 TE A

#is Dudy Myent
Chairperson of the Board
Stulh African Arways
Private Bag X13

Kempton Park

1627

Dear Ms Myent

CONFIRMATION OF THE ALLEGED DEMAND BY SAA FOR BIDVEST TO
GIVE 30%0OF THE CONTRACT TO A NOMINATED COMPANY

1. We refer to the meeting held between us and the SAA Acting CEO, Ms
Thub Mpshe oh 8" September 2015 at your offices in Airways Park,
Kempton Park, at 1400 on the abtve matter; followed by a'letter confirming
the discussions which was sent on 87 September 2015 as attached hereto

for gase ofrelerence

2. On Friday. 11 September 2015, we received an email correspondence from

Ms Thuli Mpshe indicaling that the Board of SAA requests thal we
correspond directly with the Board,
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We reiterate all the contents of the lefer serit 1o SAA on 9" September
2015, and advise that the 30% sel aside inifiative that SAA is in the process
nf implementing. o the extent that it was explainad to us in the rmeating with
SAM 15 10 curview not in ine with the B-BBEE Asr and the Codes of Goad

Practice

As-an organ of state and public enti'ﬁ;;SﬁA i$ requirea 1o apply any relevant
Gode of Good Practioe issued i terms of the B-BREE Act which refers to
the generic codas issued by the Murster of Trate and indust ¥ Of e seclor
codde as approved and gazette by the Minister of Trade and Industry. Any
organ of state or public entity may deviate or be exempted through section
9{6} of the B-BBEE Act, as amended, if particular objectively verifiable facts
of circumstances applicable necessitate the exemption or devialion.

SAA confirmed that the deviation or exemption referred to i paragraph 4
above has not been granted in ling with the framework of the B-BBEE Act,
as amended. and therefore, it is our view that SAA is not in a position to
legally proceed with the implementation of the 30% set aside in the manner

proposed

We have aisc consulted with. the Department of Trade and Industry and
they have confirmed that based on their record, SAA has not been granted
a deviation or an exemption from the Codes of Good Practice within the.
framework of the B-BBEE Act, as amended.

it is our view therefore that even though SAA'S conduct may be in good

faith, it is not aligned to the B-BBEE Act and the Codes of Gued Practice,
anid therefore SAA should not proceed to implement the 30% set aside until

/0
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approval s applied o and eblaingd from the competent authority, m this

-case the Minister of Trade and ndustry.

g Having said the above . we request SAA o send us witten confirmabion that
it not proceed o aviplement the 3075 set asde inBafive untit # has
applied foi and receved the authorization © do 82 1 terms of the B-BREE
Act-as amended. as agreed in the mesling We will appraciate ifthe person
duly authorized person al SAA can send us this writfen conhirmation by
Friday, 18 September 2015

9. Should 8AA be of the view that its 30% set aside initiative is in Iine with the
B-BBEE Act, as amended, and the Codes of Good Practice. we will
appreciate if SAA can provide this view i writing 1o us, with reasons, to
enable us to defermine a way forward on this matter,

10. We rerhain available io clanlty or provide advice on this matter to the board

of SAA, where necessary.

We trust that you will find the above in order

MS ZODWA NTULI
ACTING B-BBEE COMMISIONER
VICWASK LY
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Madidimalo Ranyave - FW: SAA BOARD RESPONSE LETTER TO TREASURY CORRESPONDENCES 06 OCT
(2}

. {4
From: Yakbe Kwinana-<yakhe@kwinana.co 2> D i
Tos "rnvdi@ithedti.gov.es’ <entuligdthedtigov.m> §
Date: 2015710/08 3:36 PM S
Subject: F¥: SAA BOARD RESPONSE LETTER TO TREASURY CORRESPONDENCES 06 OCT {2)
T "Thotosve@thedti.gov.za” <fuiotoaneqithedti. gov za>, Ruth Kibuika <RuthKib.,.

-Attaciiments: Kenneth Brows.pdf

R — D e —

Bord v ke a0 Bipcnimen pio sap g N yoy. Be Sisiiiad Aty s Auk prie G5 A0 s SR
Stabehatdien s whoph Aungat e dhways B8 apprecited in a0 oot 1o Bring 4ut.a o ohL s, AT o st 1o BisdGe nalhy

disadvantaged youthy womers, oeop nwits disabalities aod milltary veteransy

Fhi medse will always tell 5 owiy stery o seliing ciapir. Gur Chaitgatstmwil teh our siory on hdw we ars maving 54 forward
“through SAK transformation and i subgorffor DT industriaisation ang e 9 Point Plan ot the SONA A04%.

Sest Regards

Yache Kwinana _
SAA Chairperson of Audit ond Risk Commitiee

o D207 08

FOxEI2807 0633

GriD7Y 2800510

Ermion yakneBkwinaneen ra :

Prysical Address Alenh Offics furk. Book H, 457 Witheste St Tae Wikaws Ex
A2, Feistpnics, Sin4 -

From: Yakhe Kwinana

Sant: (018 Cttober 2015 1140 AN

To: 'Vekan Noapa® <Vkani Ndaba @rsasury. gov. s

Ce: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe Bflyian come; dudumyeni@telkomsainet; chairperson @iiysia.coln; Thozaima Skept
«Thorana,Skeped treasury.gov.zas _ _ - ¥

Subject; RE: SAA BOARD RESPONSE LETTER TO TREASURY CORRESPONDENCES 06 OCT (2§

Resf Regords
Yokhe Kwinona

Tel 5ROy 08

B 012 H07 0630

Gl 78 950°0510"

Errios YOk @ keingad o6

Byt Acdgss Alent (fhos Pak, Biock W, 457 Withadte Shest. Tha Willgws By
B2 Pratoie, Q164

FromyVukani Ndaba {matia v
Sent: 08 October 201509:36 AM
To: Yakhe Kwinsna <gakhe@lowinana co.da>

Cet Thuli Mpshe <ThyliMpsheBfiysas.coms; dudumvenidieikomsa.ngt chairpetsnn @fiysas.

;om; Thorama Skepe W
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Subjm.'-FW SM SC}ARD RESPONSE LETIER TD TREASURY COREES?GN DENCES 08 OCT{2)
JeaE W Cainaa,

We have nuted that tie s¥tached Jatter s not s

W kindhy request the Chairperson to sign it and scan it back to pur office.

Tharks

Wiskani

Frons: Thozama_'sgepg o

Sent: Thursday, October 08, 2015 8113 aM;

To: Vkani Ndaba
Subject: FW: SAA BOARD RESPONSE LETTER TO TREASURY -CORRESFONDENCES 06 OCT (2)

From: Yakhe Kwinana [ altay s gdoninams muiza]
Sent: Wednesday, October 07, 2045 4:25 PM
To:- Thozama Skeps -
Ce Dudizile Fyenl; Thuli Mpshe
Subject: SAA BOARD RESPONSE LETTER TO TREASURY CORRESPONDENCES 06 OCT (2
Desr Thozarma
Find thi SAA Board response for Mr Kermeth Brown.
Best Regerds
Yakhie Kwinana

et 2 B/ U801
Fop 1 2807 (4633

Cel. 073 S50 0610
Emi yaknadkvinond o sa

Prgsoal Address Aleid Olce Rhig, Bock 4 4567 Witheste Steal, The Wilaws Bxf
B Prefarics D184

Cc 'Ruth xibuuka <
Subjec:‘ $AA BOARD RESFONSE LETTEK TO TREASUSW CORRESPONDENCES 08 €T {2)

Degar Ms Kwirana
Kirdly send-this letter to. Mr Brown yourself. on behalf of the Boazd
Regards.

Ms Dadu Myen!
Chairperson SAA
Tel: +27 11 978 2520
Email gf ga

o s,
*‘F’\-‘ Ay ,"\. ’L v‘-k\ -

Bast Airline in Africa \% 9 I A
SOUTH APRICAN AIRWAYS for the § Wi gongenGfive year agen® ‘%ii‘
ALIAR ALUANCE WENBER ©F A wien W £

Dirsttors
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DC Myeni* {Gha merson), H Kalawe {Chisf Executive Ofﬁcer}, W Mever (Chief Financhai Officar),
¥ Kwinara* JE Fambi® { Sitira Leonean), AD Dixon”
*Noh-Executivi I}irpc!or

Agting Company Secrelary ~Mabane Makhakha

South African Airways BOC Lid Reg. No. 1997/022444730.

DISCLAIMER:
‘This ¢eail and its contesits are subject to our emait legal notice: which can be viewed at
Hop wanrensery. oo o benil_Disekiimir, Fepl




‘\ South Atrican Airways

Panine 46y Bock A
Adrwars Barc lyreg Road
Femydon Park

LWL Bevis Hag K12
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O Tt Wermaoratdlgan

Regulic of Sauth Aloca: 1627

Mr. K Brown

Chisf Pracurement officer
Department. National Treasury
Private Bag X116

PRETORIA

0601

PerEmail; o

Your Ref 43/1/2/511

Dear Mr. Brown,

SAA PROMOTION OF GOVERNMENT DEVELOPMENTAL PROGRAMME FOR SMALL
MEDIUM ENTERPRISES {SMMEs) AND CO-OPERATIVES

1.

Pireghors.

We refer o the aboveé mentioned subject-matter and your correspondences dated

respsctively 17 & 28 September 2015, which were addressed to our Acting Chief

Executive Officer .;(SEO);an'd brought to our attention farmerly on 01 October 2015,

The Board as the Accounting Authority is: ctgnisant of the fact that your
correspondencas to the Acting CEO may have not been intended for its reply, albeit
that the conterts of each of these correspondences refated to @ resolution that was
taken by it ata fully constituted meeting. Furthermors, we submit with respect that the
Acting CEQ's. response 10 your letier dated 17 September 2015 did riof fully réspond
to the material averments in your correspondence and has aiso rationed what we
would have stated in response therelo.

Notwithstanding the above, it is our intention to respond hereto in full to each of your
correspondences. Ultimately, it is envisaged that this response will be taken in good
faith and entice your office to engage with. us directly and at an intergovernmental
refations level. We turn at this point 10 address you first on the contents of each of

your correspondsnce:

DE Myenr (Ghabrperson), WH Meye: (Ghiet Farsncis: Officer, Y Kwinana®. JE Tembr(Siars Leonean]. AD Dion”

“Non-Exarotivg Dissetgr”

Company Secretary ~ Rulh lobiuka

Seuth Atrican Arways 500 Lid Rag Mo 1500224430
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SAA Nominated Black Small Busiriess for Grooming, Tollet and Water Service
Contract: Correspondence dated 17 September 2015

4. We are concerned about the subject-matter of your first correspondence [f incomrectly
implies that we have awarded to a black small business a contract for grooming, toilet
and water services. Furthermore, our concern is that the ‘contenis of your latter fail to
provide more details on this subject-malter and averments feade therein. it compels
arny reader of the same to maks the 'fo%iowihg incorrect agsumptions:

4.1, Bidvest has been awarded by SAA the Grooming, Toilet and Water -Services
Confract; and

42 Bidvest is-requested to allocate 30% of the contract awarded 1o 'a nominated
black smalf business’.

5. We appreciate that these assumptions could have been corrected, had the Acting
CEQ took your offer to further clarify statements made in your initial corréspondence.
Later in paragraph 14 of this correspondence, we take this opportunity of seeking
clasity from your office. In par’é%é;ular? your office ought fo have explained first the
foundation of its claim andfor how it came to ‘note that South African Airways:
requested Bidvest 1o allocate 30% of the above contract to a nominated black
empowered company’.

SAA Board Response.

6. His important to provide 4 brief material background relating to the contract described
in your letter. The contract with BidAir/Bidvest had expired and in the absence of
an approved contract in place, the services are currently being rendered on a month-
to- month basis until a public procurement process for the appointment of a new
service provider is-finalised. An advertisernent should be out in a faw days., from 08
October 2016.

7. The negotiations with and request made to BidAir which we record that they have to
date not accepted it; pertained to the month-to-month arrangement described ahove
and was. aimed at promofing the government developmental program for small
medium enterprises and co-operatives of youth and miltary vetérans.
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8. The uitimate objective of the request was to ensure fairness, equity, transparency and
open competition to all small medium enterprises; which will riot necessary participate
in the provision of grooming, -toilet and water services if the contract is extended or
awarded to BidAir only.

LED

in respect of the enquify peftaining fo the policy we Used to implement our

transformation strategy, we can confirmy that .a draft transformation policy which we
have endorsed is aligned to the government policy 1o support the development of
SMMEs. Youth, Women and cooperatives. Our understanding of the foundation,
scope and implermentation of this government policy is as follows:

8.1

g.2.

gcsy

SAA as an organ of state is expected to contract and procure goods and services
in accordance with a system that is fair, equitable, fransparerit, competitive and
cost-effective. It is in this spirit that in resolving to incorporate SMMEs and Co-
operatives of youth and military veterans in SAA's contracls for goods and
services, the Board considered that it would be unfair, inequitable, opaque, anti-
competitive and tost ineffective to perpetuate the dominance of a single major
company like BidAir in the provision of grooming, toilet and water services. Any
continuation with BidAir or any other company that has continuously provided
certain services and goads to SAA would entrench an already dominant supplier
in’ this segment of the market, with the result of unfairly increasing the entry
barriers for SMMESs into this market segment.

The setting-aside of 30% -of appropriate categories of State prosurement for
purchasing from SMMES, co-gperatives as well as township and rurat enterprises
is government policy that is aligned to section 217(2) of the Constitution {Act 108
of 1996) and restated more recently in the Nine-point Plan announced during the
February 2015 State of the Nation Address (SO&A).

The plan described in 8.2 above is a government poficy that has also been
endorsed by Cabinet Lekgotla and Economic Cluster tasked with the monitoring
of its implementation, It contains ‘unlocking the potential of SMME, co-operatives

as well as township and rural enterprises’ as one of its ning-point plan. # is.

accordingly our understanding that as we are part of government we. are
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expected to implement the 30% set-aside policy to support SMMEs and co-
operatives of youth and military veterans.

10. What may be still left hereto as explanation and respénse to your first
correspondence, are the patliculars of how will SAA allocate the 30% of its contracts
for goods and services 1o the SMMEs and Co-Operatives in a fair and transparent
manner. The altached draft transformation policy provides the methodslogy and/or
structure to be used by SAA in giving effect to this transformation poiicy. of
government.

11 We also do note the ostensive representation rade in yours letter that the 30% is o be
implemented in terms of a policy that is aligned fo the existing procurement
legislation. In -addition- to our submissions in para 8 sbove, it 18 our view and
knowledge that it is govemment policy to implement the 30% set-aside and theie is
currently no specific procurement legislative provision that is prohibiting the
implementation of this policy. We submit with respect that the test for implementation
of the 30% set-aside is faimess, equity, transparency, cost-efficiency and
competitiveness. Once this test has been met, ‘we submit that there can be o
argument of illegality or-ransgression of procurement legal framework in as far as the
implementation of the 30% set aside is congerned.

SAA Nomihated Black Small Business for Grooming, Toilet and Water Service.
‘Contract: Correspondence dated 28 September 2015

2. itis our understanding that the response of the Acting CEQ did not articulate the form
andlor legal or policy framework which the Board based its resolution 1o set-aside the
30% of SAA’s procurement of goods and services. In vis:a-vis we are unclear about
the suggestion in your letter that you were preview to a form to set aside the 30% that
is not supported by any procurement legal framework'. In paragraph 8 hereto, we
have articulated what we understand as the foundation, policy and legal frameworK for
implementation of the 30% setaside and have also annexed hereto a draft
transformation policy that outlines the form of implementation,

13. We are grateful to receive your commendation of our efforis to promote government

transformation goals. However, we are concerned by what appears to be a directive
from your office. and #s potential implications for our procurement transformation

Page 4
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plans, Particularly, we are confused and concerned by the following directives or
stateménts made in your letler-

13.1. Board must not operate outside the procurement fega! framework.

13.2. The current form of 30% se! aside is not supported by any procurement legal
framework and must be stepped with immediate effect four emphasis).

133 Board iust not teke procurement decisions that bring the nams of SAA and
National Treasury into disreptite.

SAA Board Response

14. Without the intent of being confrontational, we consider it important to respond 1o your
statements outiined under paragraph 12 above. However the formulation of a.full
response fo these issues has been made difficuit by the lack of the following
infarmation from your office’

14.1. Explanation andfor fufl details of precisely how the Board has operated outside
the provurement legal framework in Implementing & government transformation
policy of seiting aside 30% of procurement to.unfock the potential of SMMEs, co~
operativas as well as township and rural enterprises?

14:2. VWhat is the current form of 30% set-aside that is being or has besn implemented
by the Board and which is not supported by any procurement legat framework?
Conversely if not further, what would be the tompliant form of setting aside the
30% described hereto?

14.3. Vvhich procurement decisions of the Board have brought the name of SAA and
National Treasury info disrepute?

15, it is our respectful view that it is prémature and unreasonable at this stage, to direct
the Board through the Acting CEO to stop with immediate effect the implemientation of
its resolution to set aside 30% of SAA procurement for SMME., co-operatives as well
as fownship and rural enterprises. We submit with respect that such a directive ought
to be made after your office has fully engaged with the Board and understood the

i 4
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foundaton of the resolution taken. Your conciuding sentence in your last Jeiter.
wherein you seek an update on the development around the 30% set aside of key
procurement transaclions, supports our submissions and suggestions in this regard,
Particularly, it supports our submission that the directive was made prematurely and
without the full backgreund information of the Board’ resolution.

18. ‘Accordingly, we request that you consider in good faith and at an intergovernmental
relations level our submissions. suggestions.and requests made herein abové. Where
appropriale. provide guidance - on the mplementation of this government
transformation policy of setting aside 30% of procursment of goods and services fo
SMMES, co-operatives, township and rural enterprises.

We trust you will find the above in order and taoking forward to hearing from you,

Yours sincerely
ke _

Hodar——

o

Ms Y Kwinana

BAA 303:‘63?&33‘{,&? & Chair of Audit & Risk
Date: 7 (Acdv e R GLS
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Madidimalo Ramare - Re: FW; SAA BOARD RESPONSE LETTER TO TREASURY CORRESPONDENCES 06 | E ¥
ocT ()

From: Zodwa Ntuli

Tor ‘Yakhe Kwinang

Pater  2015710/08.5:31 P

Subject: Re! FW: SAA BOARD RESPONSE LEFTER.TO TREASURY CORRESPONDENCES 06 OCT (23
Cey f'ram:ma Notpane; Madidimalo Ramare; Ruth Krbuuim Thuli M‘;ushe dudu...

Dear Ms Kwinana
Thank you very finich for your ermail.

Kindly sote thatas our invoelvement on this matter is.in respense:to u complaint by on external party, we will appreciate a
formal response from SAA to enable us to apply our mind, conclude and respond to the complainant. While we note the
aitached letter from SA'A to National Treasury, we unforfunately cunnot consider it for purposes of finalising this matter oni

our part..

As indicated in our letterto the chairpeison, we are availible to rdet onthis matter. We therefors will appreciate if the
mepting can be scheduled for next week, if practically possible. My office will follow up-with the company secretary for
wrpangernenis to have the meeting.

Thenk you ggain for the cooperation, and we look forward:to the meeting.

Kind regards,

ZODWANTULL
ACTING COMMISSIONER
B-BBEE COMMISSION

>5>¥ akhe Kwinana. <yakhe@kwinanaco.za> 178720135 3:31 PM >0
Brear My Nuli

Co-tneidentally your letber contains: shodlar concerns s the National Freasury better addressed to the Adting CED. We
therefure Felt we could copy. you on this response.

The Chuieperson of SAA Board will maks an appointment to meet with you, Be ussured that you arc one of our mist
important stakehplders whose support will always be appreciated in an effurt to bring gbowt sconomic wansformation to
histarically disadvantaged youth, woien, poople with dissbilities and mahtﬂx} wefegans:

Fhormedia will always t3l Hy own story 1 sell e papér, Our Chalrperson will tel] our story o' how we are moving SA
forward throvgh SAA trapsformation and ia suppairt for DT industrialisativn and the S-Point Plan of the BONA 2015,

Best Regards

¥Yakhe meaaa
SAA Chairperson of Audit.and Risk € ommitics.

1l DI2.507 DD

Fux 012807 0433

el 078 950 0610

Eai yokhadiwineng chey

Physia) 3idics Aert Ofice Park, Blogr H, 457 Withedle SHast The Wilgw e Bt 82,
Pretorid, 5184

From Yakhe Kwindng
Seint: 8 Ootober- 2015 11:40 AM,
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To: 'Wukani Ndaba' <Vukani Ndaba@itreasuty.gov.za>
Ce: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.coms>; dudumyeni@tetkomsanét; chalrperson@flysas.cons; Thozama Skepe

<Thozama.Skepe@ireasury.gov.za> )
Subject: RE: §AA BOARD RESPONSE LETTER TO TREASURY CORRESFONDENCES 06.0CT (2)

Best Regords
Yakhe Kwiiang

TerBIT 89 Y et
Fax D12 807 Po3d

Cell 679 950 0610

lﬁfnwil_ytzk?’?@ée‘rwiﬂcma,c:_;a:zwa;

Wi sizal Address Alenti\ifics Purk, Blonk H, 457 Wiheute Shes!, The Wilows bat 52,
Pretoria, (G54

Frani: Vukani Ndaba fmailto\ ukand Ndabad peasury sov.s0)

Sent: 08 Octaber 2015 00:16 AM

To: Yakhe Kwinaia <y aki@hwinaia oo

Cer Thuli Mpshe <} Ipshe @iy saa.con™, dudum enidithomsa net: chai apersutelysua.con; Thorama Skepe

M%gf@mh%@&&fmw _
Subject: FW: 8AA BOARD RESPONSE LETTER TO TREASURY UORRESPONDENCES 06 OCT {2}

Dear ME Kwinang,
We have moted thet the snsched fetter is 0ot sign,
We kindly request the Chairperson tw sige if and scan it back 1o our office.

Thanks
Yaaberi

Froms Thorama Skepe

Sent: “Thursday, Gctober (8, 2015 8: 13 AM
Foi Vigani Ndaba

Subject: PN SAA BOARD RESPONSE LETTER TO TREASHRY CORRESPONDENCES 06 OCT {2):

Piom: 'fakhe meana { Bl uaktedwingns,

Sent: Wedneséay Dcte&er@? 2015 4:25 PI'-IE

Toi Thorama Sképe

Tt Dyduizile Myeni; Thiull Mpshe:

Suhject SAA BOARD RESP‘QNSF, LE'f"f‘ﬁR T@ TREASURY CORRESPONDENCES 06 OCT {2)

Doar Thassma,
“Find the SAA Board résponse for Mr Kennith Brows.
Best Regards

Yakhe Kainhnag

el I 807 L8

¥ a,»()i” REFT B3
Ccil fiv ’Qﬁ*gi api

Ymait yOiNg kamgm__ SQE
Pliysival Aiddress Alanis (fice Packe Block H, 457 Witherite Street, The Willons Ext 82,
- Pretoria, G 1Es



From: DuduM [ 4 e oo e
Sent: 06 October 2615 08 2? PM
‘For Yakhe Kwinana. 500

Cez 'Ruth Kibuwka' ﬁﬂ:{a_a:hi\.:bsm& qa L::aé kI

Subject: SAA BOARD RE%‘?(INSE LETTER TO TREASURY CORRESPONDENCES 06 OCT 93]

Depr Ms Kwinana
Kindly send this letfer to Mr Brown yourself. on behatl of the Board
Regardy

Nis Dude Myeni
Chaleperion 3AA
Tl e <27 E !i ‘?""5 5
F,mal!x!u frpeasng sz com

\_\ Q\B Ale N %’M .
‘_ . v%\
T ¥ v
BT AT AR AT A B ¢ 'i.aJ} 3 J ._.‘;_%
s f“) Wik

Directors

0C Myeni® {Chairperson). 3 Kalawe {Chisf Exacutive Clficecy, WH: Meyer {Chief Financial Offices),
Y Kwinang*; JE Tambi* { Sierra Leonesn), AD Dixor”

"Non-Exacutive Direclor

Acting Company Secretary — Mabane Makhakhe
South African Adtways BOC Lid Reg. No. 1887102244130

PISC LAEM!;R
“This emal and its condents are subject to our email legal notice which-canrbe viewed at

hftndrwswiy srgasur v.gov.za/Emeil Disclaimer.him]
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» RamareM@beecommission.gov.za
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BOUTHAFRICAN AIRWAYS 367 DEMAND 0N BiD

agmeinsitaticn of the

T

SN Al e

SEBEE Aot ne et 6 ';%“%E-':; wieding i rective coppiaings 2s fimicthe el

gection 14 'r;." tos B-RBER 80

2 Wetant o yobr omplaing afimesad S0 sy, WG was refared b

T by

s sgdarting the sl gen demsn by SLadhy Sdrirar A e fop Boonve

CHPEL, W ¢ DammroBnnm path Sty af TEEAVe T deterrnne f e Aleged

i e o (5, e it M T > Mot e e
Soand Tas wh ‘f!‘f i izp':dﬁb siciete e BBESE Aok Yim wand o sivise tha

R

nftrinalion vakwred Sunng s peose

hesh mplemeniegyad v uiddating ¢F e BRRED A

feguretenre gl ARTAL S et al

BELE Aot We wit o 10 woniliorine matter o soteo.

3‘1:5}.‘1'.‘."]‘ ;‘;;« the 5‘:‘45 Mhgeint g BAWTTS W E-’i?f‘:’ir\?-‘-,.‘ 'léﬁi’gfs

-

Pl o pu Cidien 0 e G cpberg




MEM-400

the dti Campus, 77 Meintjies Street, Sunnyside, Prato !
, Pretoria, Gauteng, 0001

Tel:+27 (22

Ermail; RamareM@beccommission. gav.za
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‘g_m: ‘-/' ‘Iij'.'”/f;/ ~
4% Zodwa Nt U
Acting Commissioner
Broad-Based Black Ecanomic Empowsrment Commission

Date: & 3133 12045
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Masimba Dahwa

From: Masimba Dahwa

Sent: 05 October 2015 07:47 AM

To: Wolf Meyer

Cc: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: Urgent Matter for your Consideration

Dear Sir

Following the meeting between the two Board Members and I on Friday 2 October 2015, I was advised that
EFF was coming to Airways Park today Monday 5 October, to demonstrate. I was advised that they will be

demonstrating that there is no transformation at SAA because of people like me in senior positions as there

is no South Africans holding such positions in Zimbabwe.

Seeing the recent violence against foreign nationals I feel endangered.
, *te you aware of these demonstrations by EFF and that they are targeting "people like me, who are none

..juﬂl Afficans yet holding senior positions at SAA"? I do not find it safe to proceed to the office this
morning against the advice I was given by the two Board Membess I met on Friday.

I await your advice and direction.

Regards

Dr. Masimba Phillip Dahwa

Seat from Samsuny Mabile
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Masimba Dahwa

From:; Woif Meyer

Sent: 12 October 2015 10:57 PM

To: Masimba Dahwa

Ce: Thuli-Mpshe; Corrie Engelbrecit
Subject; FW: Implementation of board resolutions
Dear Masimba

My advice to you is to engage first with Legal and expiain that what i required is not in line with the
compainy’s SCM Policies and that you seek their advice prior to prepaning an award letter. This is to protact
yourself from acting outside of your mandate in-terms of the policy.

Best regards

i Mever | CFQ

% Mobite: +2771171-2345 | & prong; 471 1:978-1515 ) B £ o woltMever@fiysaa com
4th floor, block C Alrways Park, OR Tambo Intermational Alrport- dohannesburg- South Africs

_...._._»m-._m-...-——u—_mu—m_.,._._-___ﬁ.__ - o
[ e b e et e

From?‘fakhe Kwinana?2
Sent: 12 October 2015 09:48 AM

To: Masimba Dahwa
Cc: Duduzile Myeni; Thulj Mpshe; Wolf Meyer: Ursuia Fikelepi; Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: RE: Implementation of board resolutions

Dear Dr Masimba

Best Regards

Yakhe Kwinana

Tel 012 807 0801

Fox 012 BO7 0633

el B79 950 0410

Email YRS W, b bd 200

Physical Address Alenti Office Park, Block H, 457 Witherite Streel, The
“Willows Ext 82, Pretoric, 0184

From: Masimba Dahwa [ma_i!ta:Masimba[)ahwa@flysaa.comj

Sent: 12 October 2015 08:29 AM
To: Yakhe Kwinana <yakhe@kwinana.co.za>
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inbject: RE: implementation of board resclutions
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From: "Musa Zwane" <MusaZwane(w flysaa.com>
Date: 17/01/2016 at 19:29:10

To: "Mr Musa Zwane" <zwanemm(@mweb.co.za>
Subject: Fwd: revised letter

Sent from my Samsung Galaxy smartphone.

-------- Original message --------
From: Adv Lester Peter
Date:17/01/2016 19:06 (GMT+02:00)
To: Musa Zwane

Subject: Fwd: revised letter

Per:
Adv. Lester L Peter

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: "Nick Linnell" < nickl@theprojectoffice.com>
Date: Jan 17, 2016 18:10

Subject: revised letter

To: < adv.lester@gmail.com>

Cc:

Hi

Please find an amended letter with the additional allegations listed by you. When asking the
Acting CEQ to place on a letterhead please ensure that he cuts/paste the content into a new
letterhead document.

Kind regards

Nick

Nick Linnell

email: nickl(@theprojectoffice.com
cell: 083 488 1000

tel: 021 447 0154
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fax: 086 272 1456

www.theprojectoffice.com

The Project Office

Company Registered Office 22 Melkhout Crescent | Platiekloof 3 | 7500
Directors: N H Linnell| M Green

Postal Add PO Box 15813 | Panorama | 7506

Disclamer Tha information in this o-mad is conficental and i legally privieged 11 ntended soitly for the addressee If Dis o-mad is not
intended for you, you cannct copy. deinbate of disclose the inchuded informabon 10 anyone and recuest that the mai bo deletd Any
disclosuro of tomfidentiat or priviaged informataon transmitied herswith may resull in ingat Droosedings baing mstduled apanst the reciens
hateof Whis all reasonabie steps have bosn taken 1o ensure the accuracy wnd mlogly of o8 dats transmitied slsciron<aty, SAA dons net
oot labiay if the date, for whatevet 102500, is COMUPE Of JO3 NOL raach 5 intended destination Pleass note that this &.mal snd the
contents thereot i subsect to the standsnd SAA E-mad Distlaimer which may bo found 31 Mip ftwaw flysas comzalenpolicies_and_
Dacisimers actonfEmd! Shou'd you not have 500035 10 the ntemel send 30 8-mad 10 requesidsciamerRilyass com and 4 copy wit be

.Qirectgrg

J8 Magwaza” (Chairperson), V Jarana (Group Chief Executive Cfficer), Al Bassa®, ML Kingston®’, HP Maluleka®. TN Mgoduse®. T Mhlar®,
AH Moosa®. G Rothschild®, MP Tshisevhe®

*Non-Executive Dicector
British Citizen

Company Secretary ~ 8N Kibuuka

South African Arviays SOC L Reg. No 10971022444/30
A BTAR ALLIANCE MEMES
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S = —M

Yolanda Barron

From: Thuli Mpshe <mathulwanempshe@gmail.com>
Sent: 10 February 2016 03:23 PM

To: Yolanda Barron

Subject: Fwd: Media enquiries on allegations of misconduct

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Thuli Mpshe <ThuliMpshe@flysaa.com>

Date: 25 January 2016 at 14:42:08 SAST

To: Thuli Mpshe <Mathulwanempshe ®gmail.com>
Subject: FW: Media enquiries on allegations of misconduct

A INTROGDUCIN
2 INTRODUCING

WY, i Rl L S [
SOUTH AFRICAN A LUWAYS STARTING 26 JANUARY 2016

Thuli Mpshe | GMHR

% Phone: +2711 878-2525 | BIE-Mail: ThuliMp she@flysaa.com

6th Fioor,C Block,Airways Park, OR Tambo international Airport- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Musa Zwane

Sent: 23 January 2016 08:01 AM

To: Thull Mpshe

Cce: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: RE: Media enquiries on allegations of misconduct

Dear Thuli

As you know | was out of the country since Sunday and | only came back this moming. | requested a

meeting at two with you in order to clarify the contents of the letter, however | was told that you

are not available hence the meeting was then arranged for Tuesday next week. As far as | know, |

have no idea who might have communicated on this issue with the press. i spoke to Avril yesterday

as well as Tlali who were telling me about the press enquiries. | indicated to them that the letter \
given to you by Ruth was enquiring about certain allegations and that a meeting was arranged with \
your office to discuss the context before answers are provided. ] am not aware of any suspension or

intention to suspend so whoever is spreading such information is damaging the good name of the

company and everyone involved in this issue.

Regards,
Musa Zwane | CEQ | Technical -
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¥ Phone; +2711-978-3100 | ¥ Fax: +2711-978-3641 f S E_Mail: MusaZwane@ﬂzsaa.com
Room 222, Hangar 8,SAA Technical,OR Tambo international Airport- Johannesburg- South Africg

From: Thuli Mpshe

Sent: 22 January 2016 11:00 AM
To: Musa Zwane
Cc: Ruth Kibuuka
Subject: Media enquiries on allegations of misconduct

3

Dear Musa

Trust all is well and you had a good trip.

This serves to inform you that | have been approached by the media
in respect of the allegations of misconduct.

On Tuesday 19" January 2016 | was called by Craig Mckune from
Amabungane reporting for Mail and Guardian asking me to confirm
if | have been served with charges/allegations of misconduct. He
further mentioned that he has reliable sources within SAA and he
was informed that ‘they’ planned to suspénd me and decided against
it as it would have created media attention. My response to him was
a ‘no comment’. He forwarded his business card to what’s up in case
| change my mind.

On Wednesday 20" January 2016 | was called by Carol Paton from
the Business day on my mobile enquiring about the allegations of
misconduct. She indicated that this is a matter of public interest and
she needs my view. My response was ‘no comment’,

On Thursday 21st January 2016 | received a text message (herein
attached) from Nicky Smith from the Business day enquiring if | have
been suspended. | ignored the text message and later she called on
my mobile on the same matter. My standard response was ‘No
comment’.

Later in the afternoon | received a call on my mobile from Avril
Halstead from National Treasury informing me that they have been
inundated with media enquiries in respect of my suspension and
allegations. 1 shared with Avril that | received a letter and copy from
Ruth detailing allegations of misconduct. | did not share the details
or the copy. |

| have shared the information with Ruth at all times when | have
received the enquiries. The reason | have not shared with the \\
spokesperson and or communications is because | needed to keep LXB§N
the matter within Ruth and myself as the person who you delegated \j
to hand over the letter.
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Yolanda Barron
——— s
From: Thuli Mpshe <mathulwanempshe@gmail.com>
Sent: 10 February 2016 03:27 PM
To: Yolanda Barron

Morning please note , received yesterday.Thuli. | tried to cail now. I'm now told your suspension is
imminent/happened. Can you confirm? Are you open to meeting me for coffee? Craig

Sent from my iPhone
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Yolanda Barron
=
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From: Thuli Mpshe <mathuiwanempshe@gmail.com>
Sent: 10 February 2016 03:28 PM
To: Yolanda Barron

Hi. Nicky Smith here from Business Day. | have heard from two people now that SAA tried to suspend you. What has
come of the efforts to send you on special leave? And | have a second guestion too... | am told that a number of
senior aviation specialists have left senior positions in the commercial department. Ray Nkwe, Viwe Soga, Paul
Pavlides and Louis du Plessis. About half of the top management including Bosc. What is the senior staff vacancy
rate at SAA? And how many people have resigned int he past year? Hope you are able to help me. Kind thanks,

Sent from my iPhone
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Yolanda Barron

From: Thuli Mpshe <mathulwanempshe@gmail.com>
Sent: 10 February 2016 03:26 PM

To: Yolanda Barron

Morning Musa, FYI.

Good afternoon Ms Mpshe
Business Day will be writing a story tomorrow about your suspension and would like to include your comment

please. What are the rwasons for this?

My apologies for disturbing your day.
Kind regards

Linda Ensor

Sent from my iPhone
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Andrew <anddrewkcommissions@flysaa.com>

Sent: Wednesday, 27 March 2019 10:15

To: Andrew A. Keartland

Subject: FW: FW: Thuli Mpshe

Attachments: FW Privileged and Confidential Ms Mpshe.eml; FW SAAThuli Mpshe.eml; FW MsT

Mpshe South African Airways (SOE) Limited.eml; FW Ms T Mpshe South African
Airways (SOE) Limited.eml; no subject.eml; FW Thuli Mpshe.em

From: "Lester Peter” <LesterPeter@flysaa.com™>
Date: 06/04/2016 at 08:55:24

To: "Mbuleli Kolisi" <mbuleli@bmkinc.co.za>
Subject: FW: Thuli Mpshe

Sir,

See attachments hereto.

Regards,

Lester Peter | Global Supply Management

2 Phone: +2711-978-5938 | S E-Mail: LesterPeter@fiysaa.com

Room 401, Block A, 4" Floor, Airways Park, OR Tambo International- Johannesburg- SOUTH AFRICA

From: Fundiswa Goduka
Sent: 04 April 2016 01:14 PM
To: Lester Peter

Subject: Thuli Mpshe

N
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Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
clectronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA E-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and_Disclaimers,action#Email
-Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent tO you.

Disciawnar Thiy elamarn mMW@mmuwmm LTy Wwwmm vmmuam
weigotied or you. o0 sanngl copy. mwmmmmmx@mmmﬂmwemmm Awy
mmﬁwﬁmﬁﬂwmﬂmmmmwmmmmm Bl et el i PetRwed,
b mmwmwmmmaMammmwmmmammmmmm SR H0ME ot -
Buhpt habidy # e it Tor whuiever mason o Uit dOwK i Temch 48 misnses destiraedn #mmmﬂuw;mm
mW&&W@»MWWS«mnmmﬁm T Tt 87 Bt v Sy Sofizivenpohtes_and
Discimmrmie SctdaREmas SIOuS itu Sl five BOchis 8 1 ittt Tend 1n Ml 16 FequanE R NSy LRSS0 e E ety wit be
mwm

NUITTARICAN

gos0008807 _

‘_I-ﬂifmé-rs

B Magr.sau‘ ;Ghaupem:n} ';j Jarana {G&mp C:hlef Executive D!ﬁt:er; k Eassa‘ ‘ét_ Kingstan*’ s-i? Mikileka®, TN ¥poguse”; T Mﬁ.sn‘
- AH: Roasa®, G Rothschild*, P Tshisevha"

R ’ﬁﬂn-fimn*we Jmm
: Bnﬁh G;tt:zen

:Cﬁm;:m"y Sm"ﬁq N rﬁhuukz

' South Afrcary Advrays SOC.LM. Fleg Mo 1BO7/022444:30
A STAH ALLIANGE MEMBER ¥



MEM-417

Andrew A. Keartland

From: Musa Zwane <MusaZwane@flysaa.com>
Sent: Monday, 04 April 2016 13:01

To: Fundiswa Goduka

Subject: FW: Privileged and Confidential: Ms Mpshe
Attachments: image1aa56¢JPG

Musa Zwane | CEO | Technical

¥ Phone: +2711-678-3100 I ¥ Fax: +2711-078-3641 | 24 E-Mail; MusaZwane@flysaa.com
Room 222 Hangar 8,SAA Technical,OR Tambo International Alrport- Johannesburg- South Africa

From: Musa Zwane
Sent: 04 April 2016 12:54 PM

To: Thuli Mpshe

Subject: FW: Privileged and Confidential: Ms Mpshe

Musa Zwane | CEO | Technical

¥ phone: +2711-978-3100 | % Fax. +2711-978-3641 | 2 E-Mail: MusaZwane @flysaa.com
Room 222 Hangar 8,SAA Technical OR Tambo International Airport- Johannesburg- South Africa

From: Brian Patterson [mailte:bpatterson@ensafrica.com]
Sent: 07 March 2016 08:37 AM

To: Steven Powell
Cc: Musa Zwane; Muzi Khoza; Victor Mndebele; Anneline Padayachee

Subject: Re: Privileged and Confidential: Ms Mpshe

Hi Steven

Thanks.

Nick asked us to address this after I received a call from Nazeer Cassim SC (Johan Botes counsel) who advises
Ms Thuli Mpshe.

We will review and advise you what further info we need shortly.

Best regards

Brian

1

Sent from my iPad
On 02 Mar 2016, at 3:04 PM, Steven Powell <spowell‘@ensafrica.com<mailto:spowell(@ensafiica.com comzé \?
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wrote:

Dear Brian

[ received a call from the Acting CEO of SAA, Mr Musa Zwane earlier today who conveyed that the chair had
recommended that he enlist my help in attending to the Thuli Mpshe matter as Ms Mpshe has now routed her
response to the allegations thatSAA asked her to respond to via attorney, Johan Botes of Baker McKenzie.

I conveyed to Mr Zwane that we would need your employment law team to provide assistance and he agreed to
that. Can you kindly prepare a response to the letter.

I appreciate that you will no doubt need to have access to the information upon which the letter to Ms Mpshe
was based. [ also understand that you were pivotal to the discussions with Ms Mpshe regarding the Meyer
matter referred to in the letters.

Please liaise with Musa for the required background as necessary. I attach the Acting CEO’s letter to Ms Mpshe
as well her response thereto which was scnt to you by Mr Botes.

Kind regards,
Steven

<mime-attachment>
<mime-attachment>
<mime-attachment>

[cid:imagelaa56c.JPGladc9abdbd.4b954089]

Brian Patterson

director

employment

tel: +27 11 269 7600

cell: +27 82 338 9835

email: bpatterson'@ENSafrica.com

offices: ENSafrica locations<http://www.ensafrica.com/contact>

Africa’s largest law firm taw | tax | forensics | IP

info@ENSafrica.com
ENSafrica.com

7

N lewel 2 5URTE mtis
Taword Nathon Soanenbe gs inoorgstated legistration oumnber 2008, 01 )

This email contains confidential information. It may also be legally privileged. Interception of this email is prohibited. The
information contained in this email is only for the use of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient, any
disclosure, copying and/or distribution of the content of this email, or the taking of any action in reliance therson, or
pursuant thereto, is sirictly prohibited. Should you have received this email in error, please notify us immediately by
retumn email. ENSafrica (ENS and its affiliates) shafl not be liable if any variation is effected to any document or
correspondence emailed unless that variation has been approved in writing by the attomey dealing with the matter.

/;/__

2
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Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail is confidential and is legally privileged. It is intended solely for the
addressee. If this e-mail is not intended for you, you cannot copy, distribute or disclose the included
information to anyone and request that the mail be deleted. Any disclosure of confidential or privileged
information transmitted herewith may result in legal proceedings being instituted against the recipient hereof.
While all reasonable steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy and integrity of all data transmitted
electronically, SAA does not accept liability if the data, for whatever reason, is corrupt or does not reach its
intended destination. Please note that this e-mail and the contents thereof is subject to the standard SAA L-mail
Disclaimer which may be found at http://www.flysaa.com/za/en/policies_and_Disclaimers.action#Email
-Should you not have access to the internet, send an e-mail to requestdisclaimer@flysaa.com and a copy will be

sent to you.
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WEBBER WENTZEL

inaltianee with » Linklaters

‘The Honourable Minister of Finance B0 Rivonia Road, Sandton
Johanneshurg, 2196

clo Director General of Finance
PO Box £1771, Marshalitown

E-mail: minrea@treasurv.gov.2e Johannesburg, 2107, South Atncs
' Dacex 26 Johanriesburg

: ' T +27 11 530 5000

F 427 11530 5811

Email: 3 ﬁ 88, Mouay ;;11; BSUNLYIOV.ZA www.webberwentzel,com
cc: Chalrperson and Vice Chairpersons of the Board of South
African Alrways

cc: BMK Attorneys Atin: Mr. Mbuleli Kollsi

Email mbuleli@bmkine.co.za

{Page 1 of 3 including this page)

Yeur reference Our reference Date

Mr M Kolisi/SAAQDOSHE Mr J Olivier / Mr Hathorn 30 September 2048
0 ; 3012705

Dear Honourable Mr. Gordhan,

OUR CLIENT: W8. THULI MPSHE IN RE HER SUSPENSION AS GENERAL MANAGER:
HUMAN RESOURCES BY SOUTH AFRICAN AIRWAYS

Heaas i
Senine Partner: JC €8 Menaging Paciner: S Hukos Parimers: R Afr'ce NG A CA Ampolo-ant  RL Aspelbaum Al Bénnalt  DHL B5, ysen
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Hewes PMDuya LdeBuyn MBdetange DWde Vohers DEC Brelemirn  MA Deoone DA Dinghey & Drsgr HIou Provs  OF gy Tour
SK Edmuntison  AF Esterhuizan MIA Evans AA Felekls OA Fichart 1B Formuan HlGawth MM Glbson ) Gimaur HGiolam CF Guows 8D Gragty
A Maray 1¢l Harvey MH Hathom JS Hanning KP Hillis XNE Mistsbvaye § Hockey M HUgle PM Molisway HF Human AV ISTaed KA Jyrvis ME Jerws
Crt Jonksr 5 Joosle L& Kads Nignmvady A fsyser Prolingston CiKex JLemb L Marks 5 HMeCafferty MCMolrsh 59 dlemanse M Metlaren
St Meitzar 513 duthain ©F Muyer 4) il 18 Milner P Mga NP Mngomendu ) Hogiman Vi Movshowien M Vashak 3% Navkar A Malson BY Ngaepe
Atgabn ZHNshang S8 Namonde 1 Odendoel GJE Ohvier N Page AMT Pargini AS Parry 5 Petet GP Panfotd 5E Phatlane MA Flulhps 5 Kajah
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webber Weonkzel is agsociated with ALN
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We confirm that we act on behalf of Ms, Mpshe who was the acting CEO of South African
Alrways ("SAA”) until November 2015 whereafter she reverted to her former position as

General Manager: Human Resources.

Our cllent was suspended on 5 May 2016 and a disciplinary charge sheet was served an
her on 5 August 2016. The aforesaid Istter of suspension and charge shest was signed
by the acting CED, Mr. Musa Zwane. Our client denies that she s gullly of any
misconduct as contelned in the charge sheet or indesd any misconduct that warrants

disciplinery action against her,

Furthermore, our clent believes that the charges against her are motivated by an ulterior
motive and that her suspension and the disciplinary charges against her foliow on
Instructions to Mr. Zwane from the former and current Cheirperson of the Board, Ms. Dudy
Myeni as well as the former Board member and Chalrperson of Audit Ms, Yakhe Kwinana.

Whilst our client was the acting CEO she refused to sign off on instructions from the
aforementionsd Board members relating to changes to the instructions to awarg 30% of
the jet-engine jet fuel supply contract and 30% of Swiseport on the ground handling
contract fo pariles nominated by the Chairparson of the Board. At the time our client was
branded ss "uncooperative™ by the then Chairperson of the Board of SAA and chalrperson
of Audit. Our dlient verly believes that her aforesald actions iad to the investigation

egainst her, the suspension and the ultimate discipfinary charges.

It has been brought to our clisnt's attention that in a speech in Pariiament on 13
September 2016 regarding the appointment of the new SAA Board which was approved
by Cabinet on 31 August 2018, you instructed the Board as follows:

"We hava asied the Board to review all the suspensions that are curently in plece fe see
whether they are Justiffed in terms of the Law or whether they have happened on an

unjustifiable basis,"

Our cllent believes that her suspension is not justified and was driven by an ulterior
motive, as set out above. We have been Informed through Attomneys rapresenting the
SAA, Mr, Mbuleli Kolisi of BMK Attorneys that the acting CEQ Mr, Musa Zwane wil be
preparing a report to the Board reiating to our client's suspension and the disciplinary
charges. It is aiso not clear how the new Board will only start thelr work on 29 September
20186, which will address your instruction relating fo the review of the suspensions,

{
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7. Qur client believes that the Board should follow formal process to review such
suspensions, particularly our client's suspensicn. Our dlient needs ¢ be copled with any
report that Management wishes to submit to the Board in respect of her suspension and
disdipfinary cherges and our cllent would lke to have the opportunity to make
representations in person to the new Board in respect of her views on her suspension and
the fact that it is unjustified and occurred as a result of ulterior motivas at play.

8.  Our dlient believes that she can continue to make a substantial contribution to her
employer, SAA, particularly in the current diffieult circumstances in which it operates. Our
client remains a loyal employae of SAA and believes that the current suspension and
disciplinary charges formulated against her are spurous and unjustified angd that they
prejudicial to the corporation in that she is unable fo perform her current functions and to
act In the best interest of the State Owned Corporation.

8.  Inthe premises and due to the fact that the Hororable Minister has ful) oversight in terms
of Proclamation 88 of 2014, we would be pleased if an instruetion could be lssued to the
Board to conduct its investigation in respect of whether our client's suspension was
justified in a formal process and that she be aliowsd to make representations to the new
Board on her views. A copy of this lstter wil! also be forwarded to the new Board care of

its Chairperson and Vice Chairperson and to the acting CEO, Mr, Zwane,

10.  Please acknowledge recsipt hereof.

1. We look forward to hearing from you,

WEBBER WENTZEL
Johan Olivier
Partner

Direct tel: 427 11 530 6104

Direct fax: +27 11 530 8184
Emali; johan.olivier@wsbberwenizel.com
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Annexure “TM56”
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Deputy Chairperson of the Board of SAA

E-mail: shatadi.tshesane@ppc.co.za

Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee of the Board of
SAA

E-mail: Tmgoduso@ijojose.co.za

(Page 1 of 2 including this page)

Date

Reference: Letter/ Review of Suspensions/SAA
2 November 2016

Dear Mrs Romano and Mrs Mgoduso

SUSPENSION AS GENERAL MANAGER: HUMAN RESOURCES BY SOUTH AFRICAN

AIRWAYS

1. 1was the acting CEO of South African Airways ("SAA") untit November 2015 where after |
reverted fo my former position as General Manager: Human Resources,

2, I was suspended on 5 May 2016 and a disciplinary charge sheet was served onmeonb
August 2016. The aforesaid letter of suspension and charge sheet was signed by the acting
CEQ, Mr. Musa Zwane. | deny that | was guilty of any misconduct as contained in the charge
sheet or indeed any misconduct that warrants discipiinary action against me.

It has been brought to my attention that the Minister of Finance, Mr. Pravin Gordhan made
a speech in Parliament on 13 September 2016 regarding the appointment of the new SAA
Board which was approved by Cabinet on 31 August 2016. in his speech the Minister
discussed, inter alia, the govemment's expectation of the board, the importance of
complying with the procurement guidelines as well as National Treasury's mandate to the
board. The Minister of Finance In addition recorded the following:

4. "We have asked the Board fo review all the suspensions that are currently in place o see
whether they are justified in lerms of the Law or whether they have heppened on an

unjustifiable basis.”

5. My attorneys on record, Webber Wentze) wrote a letter to SAA's attorneys, BMK informing
them of the Minister of Finance's speech and inquiring If a review panel was established.
BMK Attorneys informed us that SAA was not aware of any review panel being set up and
that the new Board would be briefed about my suspension. Letters attached and marked
*T™M 1" and "TM2".

6.  On 30 September 2016, my attorneys wrote a letter to the Minister of Finance informing him
of the aforesaid and requesting him to issue an instruction to the Board of SAA fo conduct L/
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a formal review of suspensions. We forwarded this correspondence to the Chairperson of
the Board, Deputy Chairperson and the Acting CEO of SAA, howaver we have not received
a response to the letter attached and marked "TM 3".

7.  On 17 October 2016 BMK attorneys then advised us that the board has not instructed them
as to whether or not it infends to undertake a formal process to review any of the
suspensions. They also informed us that the disciplinary hearing is a management issue
and that management gave them an instruction to proceed with the disciplinary action
against me as per the letier attached and marked "TM4". The disciplinary hearing is
scheduled for 16, 17 and 18 November 2016 as per the email attached and marked "TM5"..
Please advise whether this is a true representation of the SAA Board's position.

8. Kindly advise if the board has decided to undertake a formai process fo review the
suspensions as per the request from the Minister of Finance, kindly advise if a review panel
has been established and if | will have the opportunify to make representations in respect
to my suspension. | am firmly of the belief that my suspension and the charges brought
against me were based on ultericr motives as set out in the letter to the Minister of Finance,

annexure "TM 3" above.
8. Please acknowledge receipt hereof.

10. We look forward to hearing from you.

Yours faithfully

Submitted electronically

Thuli Mpshe
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The Honourable Minister of Finance 90 Rivonla Road, Sandton
Johannesburg, 2196

c/o Director General of Finance
PO Box 61771, Marshalitown
Johannesburg, 2107, Seuth Africa

E-mail: minreg@treasury.gov.za
Cocex 26 Johannestiury

E-mali: jungisa fuzileireasury.qov.za T.+27 11 530 5000
F +27 11 530 51131

1) /.2 www.webberwentzel.com

cc: Chalmman and Vice Chairpersons of the Board of South
African Alrways

E-mail dudumye

{Page 1 of 2 including this page)

Your reference Our reference Dete
Mr M Kolisl'SAADODS/16 Mr J Olivier } Mr Hathorn 6 December 2016
3012705

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: This fax contains conidential informetion intended anly for the persons to whom f & addressed. Any other
lacicse s content fo any pamson, or take coplss, #nd is requested to nolify us

reciplent is not entitfed fo read the rest of this fax or o
immedistely by fax or ketephons ot the nmlhladu_bwaawwewﬂIrwnMeﬁnwﬂs ofdolngso.

Dear Mr. Gorghan,

QUR CLIENT: MS. THUL!I MPSHE RE HER SUSPENSION AS GENERAL MANAGER
HUMAN RESOURCES
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1. We refer to the ahove matter and our correspondence to yourseives dated 29 September
2016 to which we have not received a response, We act on behalf of Ms. Mpshe who was
the acting CEO of South African Alrways ("SAA") until November 2015 where after she
reverted to her former position as General Manager: Muman Resources until she was

suspended on § May 2016.

2. iIn our previous correspondence we refer to the speech you made in Parliament on 13
Sepiember 2018 regarding the appoiniment of the new SAA Board which was approved
by Cabinet on 31 August 2016, at which time you instructed the Board as follows: "We
have asked the Board to review all the suspensions that are currently in place to see
whether they are justified in terms of the Law or whether they have happened en an

unjustifiable basis." Our client's suspension on 5 May 2016 at ajj relevant times formed

part of the suspensions referred to in your instruction,

3.  We have asked SAA's Attorneys, BMK whether they have received an Instruction from the
new board regarding a formal process to review the suspensions and whether our client
will have the Opportunity to make representations, SAA's Atformeys informed us that they
were not aware of any review of suspensions but that management would brisf the new

Board about our cllent's suspension,

4. Our client then wrote a letter to the new Board inquiring whether they have decided to
undesrtake on formal process to review suspensions as per your instruetion, however she
has not received response from the board. A copy of our client's letter to the board is

attached and marked “Annexure 1"

Please advise whether the new board has provided any feedback to your office on the
appointment of a review panel, If 80, kindly provide us with the Gontact detalls of the
members. Our client wishes io make personal representation to the review panel in
respect of her own suspension as our client is firmiy of the belief that her suspension and
the charges brought against her are based on ulterior motives on the part of the
chairpersen of the Board as set out in the letter to you dated 29 September 2018,

in the event that a review panel has not been appointed we would be pleased If you could
issue an instruction to the new Board to conduct its investigation in respect of whether our
client's suspension was justified and to allow our client to make format representations.

s
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Alternativaly our client wishes to make formal representations to SCOF regarding her
suspension and the circumstances leading therato. '

7. Welook forward to hearing from you.

8.  Please acknowledge recelpt hereof,

Yours faithfully

WEBBER WENTZEL
Johan Oiivier

Partner

Dirsct tel: +27 11 530 5994

Blrect fax: 427 19 530 6154

Emall: johan.olivier@webbarwentzel.com
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Andrew A. Keartland

From: Thuli Mpshe <mathulwanempshe@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, 15 September 2017 11:55

To: Mabana Makhakhe; Sivakhula Vilakazi

Cc: Ruth Kibuuka

Subject: Fwd: Review of Misconduct Disciplinary Hearing

Attachments: Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Device.pdf; Thuli Mpshe review of suspension

representations - Aug 2017 (1).pptx; scan0033.pdf

Dear Mabana

Attached is a response addressed to Acting CEO Mr Musa Zwane on correspondence received and dated 14th
September 2017.

Please acknowledge receipt thereof.

Looking forward to a prompt responsc.

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: Mabana Makhakhe <MabanaMakhakhe@flysaa.com>

Date: Thu, Sep 14, 2017 at 10:40 AM

Subject: Review of Misconduct Disciplinary Hearing

To: Thuli Mpshe <mathulwanempshe/@gimail.com>

Cc: Siyakhula Vilakazi <SivakhulaVilakazi@flysaa.com>, Ruth Kibuuka <RuthKibuuka@flysaa.com>

THE ART OF FLYING
REDEFINED

SOUTH AFRICAN AHLWAYS

: MFORT. IN
A BTAR ALLIAMCE sMEMBER 7, L

how flying on selected wternational routes.

Dear Sis Thuli,

Please find correspondence regarding the process for the review of the disciplinary case against you
attached.

Kind Regards,
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Tel: 37 11 9786325
Fax; 27 11 978-8058

14 September 2017
Mis. Thull Mpshe

General Manager: Muman Hesources
South African Airways

Dear Ms. Mpshe
REVIEW OF MISCONDUCT DISCIPLINARY HEARING INSTITUTED AGAINST YOU

1. Kindly take note that after careful consideration of your request, the SAA board has faken
the following decision;

L. Togrant your request for the raview of the disciplinary hearing instituted against you,

ii. To appoint an independent Labour Specialist, Mr. Ravmond Hiongwane from
Hignowane and Associales o conduct the reviaw process.

2. Kindly take furthar note that you will be contacted by Mr. Hiongwane for an inlerview with
yourself, where you will be required to provide explanation and or clarification pertaining to
any concerns you might have on the substantive and or pracedural faimess of the
disciplinary hearing instituted against you.

3. Mr. Hiongwane will be expected to submit his report to the Ad hoc commitiee established
by the Board to oversee this maiter.

4. The Ad hoc committee will then consider the report and make a decision on the matter,
which will be communicated fo you in writing.

5, Your cooperation during this review process will be highly appreciated.

D0 Myesd® [ Cha'iparson), MGT Ramans® {Depuly Chairperson! MM Zwans (Acting Chief Exscutive Otficer), P Mhantsh{Chiaf Finanise O e
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Yours faithfully,

M

Musa’Zwane
Acting Chief Executive Officer (ACEQ)

South African Airways
Date: 14 [0 ( JOUT
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MATHULWANE "THULI" MPSHE

REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING REVIEW OF
SUSPENSION AND DISCIPLINARY PROCESS

30 August 2017
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INTRODUCTION

| wish to make representations to the board to lift my suspension in my

capacity as GM: HR and for the disciplinary process which commenced on 5
August 2015 to be halted.

| verily believe that both the suspension and the disciplinary process are
based on ulterior motives and has its basis on my altercations with the
chairperson of the Board and another Board member during my stint as
the acting CEO from 29 July 2015 to November 2015.

| will set out herein below reasons why | believe that my suspension and
the disciplinary process against me is without basis, unreasonable and
driven by ulterior motive.

| will together with these written representations provide the Board with a
bundle of documents in support of my various contentions. | will also be
prepared to appear before a subcommittee of the Board to further
elaborate on and explain my contentions.
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES

Prior to the suspension | was served with a long list of allegations signed
and handed over to me by Mr Zwane, it was at this meeting that Mr Zwane
confirmed that all these allegations come from the Board.

| was the acting CEO of South African Airways ("SAA") from 29 July 2015 to
until November 2015 where after | reverted to my former position as
General Manager: Human Resources.

During my tenure as the Acting CEO | had various altercations with Ms
Dudu Myeni ("Ms Myeni") the chairperson of the Board as well as Ms
Kwinana a fellow Board member and chairperson of the Audit committee
("Ms Kwinana") . These altercations all relate to instances where the Board
members tried to interfere with the day to day management and
operations of the SAA.

| will set out herein below a number of examples of such interference and
altercations.
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES

For supporting documents please refer to section 1 of the bundle

On 18 January 2015 | was served with a long list of allegations compiled by
SAA and handed over to me by Mr Musa Zwane("Mr Zwane") who was
appointed by the Board as the Acting CEO after | was removed from the
post. At this meeting Mr Zwane confirmed that all these allegations come
from the Board and that he had nothing to do with it.

| answered the allegations through my attorneys at the time we believed
that would be the end of the matter. My attorney at the time was

informed that ENS attorneys had advised SAA that there was no basis to
proceed against me.

In April 2016 | became aware of the fact that a firm of attorneys BMK
Attorneys have been appointed to investigate me with a view to take
disciplinary actions against me. | am of the view that the aforesaid
attorneys have been appointed by Ms Myeni and Ms Kwinana without
following proper appointment procedure.

However to my surprise | was suspended on 5 May 2016 pending
investigation and disciplinary process. | remain suspended to date.
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES

The suspension was handed over by Ms Kwinana and Mr Zwane which

confirmed my view that my suspension was motivated by Ms Kwinana and
Ms Myeni.

| was handed a charge sheet on 5 August 2016 which was signed by Mr
Zwane, the charge sheet contained six charges, three of which related to
the same set of facts and amounted to compounding of charges. A further
charge was later added on 9 November 2016.

Again Mr Zwane denied formulating or motivating the charges and it was
clear that the disciplinary process was driven by BMK Attorneys, acting on
behalf of the relevant Board members.

| appointed Webber Wentzel Attorneys ("WW") to represent me in the
disciplinary process. At all relevant times WW was required to deal with
BMK Attorneys and not any senior official of SAA. WW also found it difficult
to obtain further information, documents or access to relevant witnesses in
order for me to defend myself against the charges.

| still have not relevant documentation that | request and | believe that
some of these documents are being purposefully withheld.
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES

* When | was finally given access to certain documents as well as witnesses |
was able to show that | have a proper defense to each of the charges and
that there was no basis to discipline me and the relevant witnesses
corroborated my version. Despite this and the fact that | pointed out that |

verily believe that the whole process is tainted by ulterior motives, BMK
attorneys maintained that this process should continue.

* | set out herein below the facts which | believe demonstrate the ulterior

motives. | will also summarise my version and defense in respect of each of

the charges and why | believe there is no basis for disciplinary action
against me.
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES CONTD

During my tenure as Acting CEO, | was subjected to the following:
o Pressure from Ms Myeni to change the organizational structure of SAA

and to add the position of a Chief Operating Officer (on 18 May 2015
and 23 July 2015). This despite the fact that the relevant structure had
previous been reviewed by Labour and Management and approved by
the Board. This approved structure was also used for the section 189 of

the LRA process which had been embarked upon, as such opposed such
proposal.

pressure from Ms Myeni to appoint Captain Mpho Mamashela to Chief
Operations Officer position ( which did not exist as per the point above)
without due process. | again opposed such demand;

pressure from Ms Myeni to combine the positions of Chief Pilot and
HOD: Flight Operations and to appoint Captain Eric Manentsha
("Manenetsha") as the Chief Pilot to this position because he
complained to Ms Kwinana that his role as Chief Pilot is ceremonial;

Combining the abovementioned positions was not in line with the

standard operating procedures, Pilot's manual and not approved by the 7

Civil Aviation Authority. As such | opposed the appointment.

N|
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES CONTD

o pressure from Ms Myeni to appoint Kendy Phohleli ("Mr Phohleli") first
in the Commercial Division and subsequently in the office of the
Chairperson, even though Mr Phohleli's contract had ended, after it was
rolled over six times. After the last roll over- had made it clear that his
contract should not be rolled over again. Noting further that there was
no position available in Commercial at the time and that he was not
suitable and did not qualify for both positions. As such | opposed such
demand.

o pressure from Myeni to award 30% of Swissport's share on the ground
handling contract to parties nominated by the Chairperson of the Board
to a company called Jamicron (Pty)Ltd. This company was not listed on
the database of SAA Suppliers and was at the time not registered with
CIPRO. | opposed this demand which was against relevant procurement
and other SAA procedures and policies.
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES CONTD

o pressure from Ms Myeni to award 30% of the "jet-engine fuel" supply
contract to a consortium yet to be formed by Ms Myeni, Ms Kwinana
and Peter Tshisevhe. This list contained a number of Ms Myeni's
personal contacts. This contract was legally awarded to Engen and had
been running for approximately two years and could not be changed in
this manner. | opposed this demand as it was contrary to SAA policies
and procedures.

o Both these instructions were motivated by the Chair Person's
transformation agenda. She informed us that the President of SA had
mentioned at the State of the nation address in January 2016 that all
contracts must have a 30% BBBEE requirement. This was despite the
notification from the Commissioner of BBBEE from DTI and Chief
Procurement Officer from National Treasury that the action is illegal.
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES CONT

pressure by Ms Kwinana, to sign a tender award letter to Bogwana Burns
to do a forensic investigation on Mr Wolf Meyer (CFO) and Mr Nico
Bezuidenhout former Acting CEO. | referred the matter to the Chief
Audit Executive(CAE) to confirm if Bogwana Burns was listed on the
panel of Forensic investigators. He informed me that they were not.

| then referred the matter to the Chief Procurement officer (CPO) to
confirm if the tender process was followed, he informed me that he had
no such record of the tender. As a result of the responses | received
from CAE and CPO | declined to sign the award letter.

pressure from Ms Myeni to cancel LSG Sky Chefs' tender award despite
the fact that the award was lawful and had followed due process;

pressure from Ms Myeni to discipline Mr Wolf Meyer, Chief Finance
Officer ("Mr Meyer") without just cause. The chairperson wrote to me
and informed that | should discipline Mr Meyer based on an
investigation report and a legal opinion.

10
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES CONTD

o | requested copies of the investigation report and the legal opinion to

enable me to form a sound basis for the disciplinary action the
formulation of the related charges. To date | have not received same.

At the time | was branded as "uncooperative" by Ms Myeni and Ms
Kwinana for refusing to succumb to the abovementioned pressures. |
believe that the aforesaid actions led to the investigation against me, the
suspension and the ultimate disciplinary charges.

| deny that | am guilty of any misconduct as contained in the charge
sheet or any misconduct that warrants disciplinary action against me.

| believe that | can continue to make a substantial contribution to my

employer, SAA, particularly in the current difficult circumstances in
which it operates.

This is based on the track record of my performance and the value |
added to the organisation.

11
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ULTERIOR MOTIVES

o | am a loyal employee of SAA and | believe that the current suspension
and disciplinary charges formulated against me are spurious and
unjustified and that they are prejudicial to the organization in that | am
unable to perform my duties and to act in the best interest of the
organisation.

* lalso believe that the vendetta against has a very negative effect on morale
in the SAA as a whole and particularly in the Human Resources
department, hampering efficient service delivery.

* lwill set out my view on the relevant charges and whether they are of any
substance warranting the disciplinary process

12



MEM-448

CHARGE 1: FAILURE TO FOLLOW PRESCRIBED PROCUREMENT
POLICIES AND PROCEDURE IN THE APPOINTMENT OF
EXECUTIVE SECURITY OFFICER

* For supporting documents please refer to section 2 of the bundle.

* A meeting was held by the HR (Head of departments) ("HODs") where they
expressed concerns for my safety as Acting CEO whilst the section 189

restructuring process was taking place. This process was violently opposed
by the trade unions.

* MrLinga Moonsamy ("Mr Moonsamy") Head: Group Security Services, was
called into the meeting and he was informed about the HOD's concerns
around my safety.

* Mr Moonsamy's signed statement indicates that he instructed Mr Ezekiel
Koalibane ("Mr Koalibane") the Physical Security Specialist to perform a
full security risk assessment. According to Mr Koalibane the risk
assessment report indicated that "the Acting CEO was under increasing
pressure and worked long hours, resulting in her working until late at
night".

* Mr Koalibane's report recommended that an Executive Protection Officer
should be appointed through SAA procurement processes.

13
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CHARGE 1 CONTD

Mr Moonsamy then initiated the process of appointing an external service
provider as none of the SAA drivers could not be appointed because they
do not have experience in security and protection services.

Mr Moonsamy then approached GSS services for a list of registered
preferred suppliers.

Mr Moonsamy's statement provides that clause 11.6 of the Supply chain
Management policy states that a minimum of 3 quotes must be obtained
before deciding on a vendor or a purchase. This process could be deviated
from where it is impractical to follow the standard procurement process for
instance in the case of an emergency such as: customer service impacting
conditions or jeopardising of health and safety.

14
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CHARGE 1 CONTD

* Mr Moonsamy's statement indicates that the services of Nicolls Steyn and
Associates (Pty) Ltd were procured as they are a registered service provider
and are on the SAA preferred supplier data base. The services were
undertaken as an emergency in line with the SAA policies. The security

service procured were for an amount of R38 000 and the services included
an Executive Protective officer.

* | was driven from my residence to work in my vehicle and the Services

were from and the services lasted for a period 1 to 25 October 2015, this

was for less than 1 month. Thereafter the service stopped due to
reassessment of the risk.

15
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CHARGE 2 : BREACH OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

* The reason | did not decline the abovementioned service is because they
were recommended to me by the Head of Group Security services, after a

risk assessment was conducted by his department and after advise from
my family.

* It was not irregular for a Acting CEO to have security services as previous
CEOs also had protection services provided to them.

* ldeny that | breached my employment contract in any manner.

* lacted in good faith at all relevant times.

* | did not motivate for or demanded this appointment. It was completely in
the hands of Mr Moonsamy and his budget was utilised.

16
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CHARGE 3: DISHONEST CONDUCT

®

| deny any dishonest conduct relating to the appointment of the security
service provider.

Mr Moonsamy appears as a requestor of the service and motivated for the
provision of the service.

| signed the GSS Security Services request form ("GSS form") with the
intention of receiving the services and not as an organiser or approver. The
GSS form does not provide for signing in receipt of the service.

Should I have requested the service it would have come from my
department's Cost Centre. In this case the budget and expenditure came
from GSS Security Services as they were the requestor of the services.

| believe that charges 2 and 3 amount to compounding and are without
substance.

17
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CHARGE 4: IMPROPER ADJUSTMENT OF THE SALARY OF /M
SIMON NGWENYA

* | received a motivation in December 2012 for the adjustment of the salary
of Simon Ngwenya ("Mr Ngwenya") from Yvonne Mfeka, HOD Employer
Relations. Mr Ngwenya worked as a specialist in Employee Relations.

* Mr Ngwenya had been working for SAA since 1994 when he was a cabin

crew member. He came up the ranks and was employed as an Employee
Relations ("ER") Specialist.

* Mr Ngwenya had experience and performed his duties well. He was a
critical skill to SAA but he had a salary lag. The adjustment was aimed at

eliminating the unfair discrepancy and also retaining Mr Ngwenya's good
skills and competence.

* The department had four ER specialists at that time and he was the most
experienced with institutional memory and the least paid.

* Mr Ngwenya's salary was R474 510 per annum and it was adjusted to R598
100 which was in line with the Remuneration Bands for 2011/2012.

18
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CHARGE 4 CONT

* An audit was done in December 2014, regarding this adjustment following
a whistle blower's report. This audit report, handed to the CEO at the time
reflected no irregularities as the adjustment was in line with the
Remuneration Philosophy and within my Delegation of Authority.

* itis wholly irregular to now try and charge me in 2016 relating to events
from 2012 which | was exonerated in 2014.

19
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CHARGE 5: IRREGULAR INCREASE OF SALARY OF
MASIMBA PHILLIP DAHWA (" DR DAHWA")

Dr Dahwa, Chief Procurement Officer ("CPO") was employed on a fixed
term contract as he is a foreign national, the contract was initially from
13 August 2014 to 18 October 2014 and the fixed term contract was
extended for another 2 years.

The reason for the renewal was, to ensure that he would transfer his skills
to someone who would take over his position in April 2017, at the end of
his contract.

The motivation for the salary increase was a result of a change in the
procurement structure at the time. The legal department was being
incorporated into the procurement department.

The HOD Contracts Manager was moved from the Legal department to

Procurement and that resulted in the HOD Contracts Manager reporting to
Dr Dahwa.

Dr Dahwa earned R1 200 000 per annum while the Contracts Manager, a
subordinate, earned R1 639 800 per annum.

20
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CHARGE 5 CONTD

The HOD's Job was rated 830 hay units while Dr Dahwa's Job was rated
1142 hay units.

The Remuneration Guidelines states that there must be a 15% differential in
salary between a manager and their subordinate.

The recommendation was for Dr Dahwa's salary to be increased from

R1 200 000 to R1 600 000 with level 2 benefits, in line with the remuneration
guidelines.

This was still R39 800.00 per annum less than the Contracts Managetr.

Dr Dahwa's salary increase amounted to a 33% increase however it still
remained below the 15% differential between manager and subordinate as per
the Group Reward Philosophy and the Remuneration Guidelines for
management for 2013/14 and 2014/2015. In order to reach this differential 3
50% increase would have been necessary.

Catherine Mofokeng, the Human Resource Business Partner ("HRBP") compiled
the motivation and advised that she got assistance from the Remuneration and

Benefits specialist Shelley Venter who informed her of 15% differential that was
required.

21
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CHARGE 5 CONTD

* The Chief Financial Officer at the time Mr Meyer instructed Ms Mofokeng
to motivate for Dr Dahwa's salary increase and he approved the request
for the 33% increase.

* The motivation was signed by me in support, in line with my delegation of
Authority.

22
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CHARGE 6: IRREGULAR INCREASE OF THE SALARY
YVONNE MFEKA

On 6 December 2012 | requested Ms Yvonne Mkefa ("Ms Mkefa") ,
Employee Relations Specialist's salary adjustment.

Ms Mkefa was the most qualified and experienced member of the ER team
and she was the Acting HOD: Employee Relations at that time.

The reason for the increase was because an offer of employment was
extended to an external candidate Mr Lehutjo Mello ("Mr Mello") for the
Employee Relations Specialist position.

Mr Mello was going to earn R820 000.00 per annum while Ms Mkefa was

earning R736 590.00 per annum. The adjustment was for parity with Mr
Mello.

On 18 December 2012 Mr Mello accepted the employment offer however
on 2 January 2013 when he was due to start work, Mr Mello advised SAA
that he received a counter offer from his previous employer and would no
longer be coming to work for SAA.

23
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CHARGE 6 CONTD

* SAA could not retract Ms Mkefa's salary increase at the time as it would
have been tantamount to an unfair labour practice with the risk of the
matter being referred to the CCMA.

* An audit was conducted following a whistle-blower report. The audit report
makes it clear that the adhoc increase was in line with the Remuneration

Philosophy and my Delegation of Authority and it was approved by the
CEO.

* | submit that there is no basis for a disciplinary charge based on these
event from 2012 which were dealt with in a Audit report to the CEO in
2014.

24
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CHARGE 7: GROSS MISCONDUCT CHARGE ADDED IN

NOVEMBER 2016 RELATING TO APPOINTMENT OF MS HAMID
IN THE COMMERCIAL DIVISION

During 2014 SAA's revenues were in dire straits for a range of reasons and
various measures were being implemented by the then CEQ, CFO and head
of Commercial. One such measure included the recruitment of an

appropriately qualified and experienced Head of Revenue Planning and
Optimization.

The recruitment process was initiated by Sylvian Bosc ("Mr Bosc") who was
the Chief Commercial Officer at the time.

He was assisted by Thembi Mgomezulu ("Ms Mgomezulu") in her capacity
as HOD: Human Resource Business Partner ("HRBP").

Ms Hassimah Hamid ("Ms Hamid") and Martin Aerberli ("Mr Aeberli")
were identified during a recruitment process as persons with the necessary
qualification and experience. They are both foreign internationals and were

interviewed by Talent Africa a recruitment agency, on 2 April 2014 along
with other candidates.

.

£
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CHARGE 7 CONT

* The interview panel consisted of Mr Phohleli the Acting General manager
Commercial, Ms Mgomezulu, Sipho Chisi (HRBP Commercial Human
Resources), Mr Bosc and Auguste Coetzee the Talent Africa representative.

* Following the interview Mr Aerberli in accordance with SAA recruitment
policies and procedures was offered a position of Head Planning and
Revenue Optimization. Mr Aeberli accepted the appointment subject to
obtaining the necessary work permit.

* On 2 March 2015 Mr Aeberli resigned from SAA, as a result of the delay in

the granting of his work permit by the South African Home Affairs
department.

N

\\&&

26



MEM-462

CHARGE 7 CONTD

Upon Mr Aeberli's resignation Mr Bosc restarted the recruitment process.

Mr Bosc met with Ms Hamid in Dubai while he was on duty travel and they
discussed whether she still had an interest in the vacant position as one of
the candidates who were interviewed for the Head of Revenue position.

Mr Bosc asked Ms Hamid to be interviewed again in South Africa by the
SAA HODs in Commercial and Ms Mgomezulu. Such interview was held.

All the HODs agreed that she was the best candidate with the required skill
and competence for the position.

Ms Hamid is a Malaysian citizen and she worked in Dubai at that time. She

therefore required a work permit in order for her to provide servicas to
SAA in South Africa.

| requested for guidance from Pienie Jacobs ("Ms Jacobs") as International
Human Resources Specialist on the types of work permits that could be
applied for in light of Mrs Hamid's appointment, taking into account the
delay that Mr Aeberli experienced with the work permit.

-
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CHARGE 7 CONTD

* Ms Jacobs had experience with expatriates and she recommended that the

best option was to appoint Ms Hamid on an intra-company transfer work
permit, while she was based in Malaysia, her home country, which meant
that she would need to commute between South Africa and Malaysia. After
6 months she would then be transferred to work in South Africa in
accordance with the intra-company transfer work permit.

Whilst waiting for the finalisation of Ms Hamid's work permit, she was
given a 12 month Consultancy Agreement to enable her to travel to and
work in South Africa on a intermittent basis.

Ms Jacobs further recommended that the remuneration should be paid
using the General Sales Agent office in Malaysia via the SAA office in Hong

Kong. SAA does not fly directly to Malaysia however it operates there
through a General Sales Agent.

Mrs Jacobs arranged with the General Sales Agent and Ms Hamid started
working for SAA.

28
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CHARGE 7 CONT

| deny that the relevant SAA policies and procedures had not been followed

and that a position did not exist in the SAA approved structure in order for
Ms Hamid to be appointed.

¥
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CHARGE 8: CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 51(1)(E) OF THE
PFMA

* The Delegation of Authority allows me to sign all letters of appointment for
managers below level 1 { Levels 2, Level 3 and Specialists). It is through this
delegation that | signed Mrs Hamid's letter of appointment.

* The remuneration of all employees is done through the Remuneration
Department and for international employees, the International
Remuneration and Benefits Department handles it and Ms Jacobs is
responsible for it.

* Mrs Hamid reported to the Commercial department, which determined
and managed her responsibilities and approved her travel.

* Her salary was paid upon receipt of proof of the work done which was
predetermined in advance by her line manager and her salary was paid
through Commercial department's General Sales Agent .

This was done as a interim arrangement whilst waiting for her work permit

to be approved and to avoid losing her skills in the same manner as in thr
case of Mr Aerberli.

30
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CHARGE 8 CONT ﬁ

* Ideny that the financial management and internal control systems had
been undermined or that the SAA suffered fruitless and wasteful
expenditure.

* Ms Hamid had performed work for the commercial department for which
she was paid and she was due to be appointed to the Head of Revenue
position, a crucial position in the commercial department.

* She was also due to transfer skills to existing SAA personnel based on her
substantial skills and experience.

* lam of the view that | had been prematurely charged without a good
reason in respect of this matter. | had not been involved in any
investigation as conducted by internal audit and | have also been informed
that relevant documents held by Ms Jacobs had gone missing. This matter
should be thoroughly investigated and | tender my full participation in such
investigation.

1
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CONCLUDING STATEMENTS

| believe based on what is set out above that my suspension and the

disciplinary charges brought against me are motivated by ulterior motives
and should therefore be set aside.

Other senior managers and executives who were also viewed as being
uncooperative with requests and demands from the Board which were not
in line with the companies policies, procedures and processes were also
suspended and handed disciplinary charges. Examples are Mr Bosc who
was found not guilty of the charges brought against him but was not
allowed to return to work by the Board and Mr Lourens Erasmus and Ms
Thembi Mngomezulu whose suspensions have since been withdrawn. Ms
Cynthia Stimpel Group Treasurer who accepted a negotiated settlement
after months on suspension, and Dr Masimba Dahwa CPO who was
dismissed through a "kangaroo court".

It is important to note that BMK was the assigned attorney for all the
above cases.

3z
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CONCLUDING STATEMENTS

BMK attorneys agreed to provide us with outstanding relevant documents
that we requested but to date we have not received them.

BMK further agreed to revert to us regarding SAA's views on the matter
taking into account the representations, documentation and the evidence
provided by the companies' witnesses.

To date, we have not heard from BMK attorneys despite our cooperation
and patience.

| have also brought my concerns and views to the attention to the of
Deputy chairperson of the Board and Deputy chairperson of Remco on the
2nd November 2016 and only received acknowledgment of such on the
10™ February 2017. WW also wrote to the honourable Minister of Finance
and to the Director General of Finance on 9 December 2016 without a
response forthcoming.

This suspension has prevented me from making a valuable contribution to
the SAA at the time when the organisation is in dire straits.

This suspension has caused me and my family a lot of hardship, pain,
reputational damage and a substantial amount of attorney's fees.
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CONCLUDING STATEMENTS

* My suspension has been dragging on for over 15 months and with no
indication when my disciplinary will start. My representative from WW
have brought to the attention of BMK attorneys my argument and
submissions as set out above but without an appropriate response from
any senior official of SAA.

* itis clear from the above that this process has been motivated by ulterior
motives and that there is no basis for the suspension or these charges.

* | therefore request that the suspension be lifted and the charges be
retracted.
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THANK YOU FOR AFFORDING ME THIS OPPORTUNITY

®* Contact details

*  THULI MPSHE
073 611 7009
mathulwanempshe@agmail.com
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